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WE ARE AN ECONOMIC
ENTERPRISE WITH. ..

a relentless focus on growth,
alming to increase earnings by
double digits on average.

a global orientation, but with
deep local roots in every market
where we operate.

a highly diversified base of
earnings that enables us to
prosper under difticult market
conditions.

capital employed in higher-

margin businesses, each one of
which is capable of profitable
growth on a stand-alone basis.

financial strength protected by
financial discipline, enabling
us to take risks commensurate
with rewards to capture attrac-
tive opportunities.

a close watch on our overhead
costs, but a willingness to
invest prudently in our infra-
structure—we spend money
like it's our own.

a focus on technological
innovation, seamlessly deliv-
ering value to our customers
across multiple platforms.

WE VALUE A WORKPLACE
WHERE. ..

bureaucracy is discouraged,
entrepreneurial thinking is fos-
tered and decision-making is
streamlined by an “open-door”
management style.

diversity is embraced, particularly
in light of our globality.

employees think and act like
owners because they ARE owners,

mistakes are tolerated, admitted
and addressed before they become
real problems.

people are promoted on their
merits rather than on their tenure,
and rewarded for their perform-
ance within the context of what
they can personally control or
influence.

people treat each other with
mutual respect and dignity.

people truly feel that, no matter
how large we grow, each and
every one of us can make a
difference.

WE VALUE PEOPLE WHG. ..

take the company personally.
They care about each other, the
quality of our products and serv-
ices, and above all, their value to
our customers and shareholders.

are committed to a strong work
ethic and are constantly striving to
excel in serving their customers.

are more interested in teamwork
than in internal politics.

lead by example, giving credit to
others for success and assuming
personal responsibility for failure.

have a sense of urgency and
excitement, who demonstrate
candor, insight and creativity,
and thrive in an environment
of change, challenge and
competition.

are top performers and are com-
mitted to excellence in whatever
they do.

WE ASPIRE 70 BE
KNOWN &S...

a company with the highest
standards of moral and ethical
conduct—working to earn
client trust, day in and day
out. Our word is our bond.

the leader in global financial
services, with market leadership
in every one of our major activi-
ties, and one of the great
companies in the world.

a company where the best
people want to work, and the
first choice of where customers
want to do business.

customer centered, providing

unparalleled levels of service as a
means of protecting and building
our business franchise over time.

an organization with credibility
—doing what we say and report-
ing results with accuracy and
objectivity.

a company dedicated to
community service, taking a
leadership role in every local
community around the world in
which we operate, and making
each community a better place
because we are there.




CITIGROUP

In Millions of Dollars 2001 2000 % Change

ADJUSTED REVENUE $83,625 $77,694 8
SEGMENT INCOME

GLOBAL CONSUMER

Banking/Lending 4,217 3,390 24

Insurance 720 799 (10)

Western Europe 483 384 26

Japan 928 729 27

Emerging Markets 1,166 906 29

e-Consumer/Consumer Other (148 (204) 27

TOTAL GLOBAL CONSUMER 7,366 6,004 23

GLOBAL CORPORATE .

Corporate & Investment Bank 3,509 3,670 4

Emerging Markets Corporate Banking and )

Global Transaction Services ; 1,644 1,403 17
Commercial Lines Insurance 691 1,093 37
TOTAL GLOBAL CORPORATE 5,844 6,166 ($)
GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING
Travelers Life & Annuity 821 777 6
The Citigroup Private Bank 378 323 17
Citigroup Asset Management 336 345 3
TOTAL GLOBAL INVESTMENT

MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING 1,535 1,445 6
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (A) 530 1,383 62)
CORPORATE/OTHER (706) 858) 18
CORE INCOME 14,569 14,140 3 "~
Restructuring and Merger-Related ltems—After Tax (28%) (621) 54
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes $14,284 $13,519 6
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes (B) (158) - -
NET INCOME $14,126 $13,519 4
RETURN ON COMMON EQUITY (CORE INCOME) 20.4% 23.5% -

(A) Includes the Company’s venture capital activities, the realized investment gains and losses related to
certain corporate- and insurance-related investments, and the results of certain investments in countries that
refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady Plan or plans of a similar nature. (B) Accounting Changes refer to the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” as amended and the adoption of EITF issue 99-20 Recognition of Interest Income
and Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets.”
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

IN 2001, CITIGROUP SOLIDIFIED ITS POSITION AS ONE OF THE MOST SUCCESSFUL FINANCIAL
SERVICES COMPANIES IN THE WORLD, OUTPERFORMING AND LEADING THE FIELD IN THE
MOST PROFITABLE AND ATTRACTIVE GROWTH AREAS. WE REGISTERED DOUBLE-DIGIT

INCREASES ACROSS MANY LINES OF BUSINESS, AND A 20 PERCENT RETURN ON EQUITY.

While these results are a testament to the intelligence, creativity and commitment of our
268,000 employees across more than 100 countries, they also say something about our
coming of age as a company. Over the past three years, we have described Citigroup as
a work in progress, a new model of financial services organization that we were building

to serve our clients’ financial needs and deliver value for our shareholders.
Today, we can say without hesitation that the model is working.

We are now completely focused on our strategic aspiration—to establish trusted relation-
ships with consumers, corporations, institutions and governments as we continue to

deliver the full spectrum of financial services across our multiple distribution channels.



2001: A YEAR OF UNPRECEDENTED
CHALLENGES

2001 was an extraordinary year. We
saw a world transformed from pros-
perity and peace to economic turmoil
and war. We experienced the first
synchronized global economic slow-
down in decades. We saw the
economy of Argentina collapse and
witnessed the largest corporate bank-
ruptcey in history. And in the U.S.,
amid an environment of weakening
corporate credit and falling stock
markets, the September 11 attack took
thousands of lives even as it struck
hard at the financial markets, causing
more than $30 billion of damage to
the insurance industry alone.

Despite these considerable challenges,
Citigroup continued to grow in 2001.
We achieved record core income of
$14.6 billion, making us once again
one of the world’s most profitable
companies. Our revenues rose eight
percent, while expenses increased
only four percent, and our core diluted
earnings per share were up three
percent. We alsc completed multiple
acquisitions in key markets. At the
same time, we teceived credit rating
upgrades from Standard & Poor’s

and Moodys.

What allowed us to operate success-
fully in this difficult environment was
our unique business model—the first
of its kind in our industry. Citigroup
brings together an incredible diversity
of products and services...multiple
distribution channels...a powerful
brand...the largest global footprint

of any financial services firm.. .capital
strength that enables us not only to
ride out economic storms but also

to seize opportunities. . .acquisitions
expertise and expense management
discipline.. all built on a foundation
of recurring and predictable earnings.

“CITIGROUP HAS PROVEN THE BENEFITS OF ITS
EXTRAORDINARY DIVERSIFICATION IN A DIFFICULT
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT.”

—STANDARD & POOR'S, SEPTEMBER 2001

There is one other important reason
for our success: more than two-thirds
of our employees are owners of
Citigroup, which offers them an addi-
tional opportunity to participate in
our company’s success. When employ-
ees think and act like owners, their
interests are aligned with those of their
fellow shareholders and our clients are

served well.

Our achievements received important
recognition when Citigroup, for the
first time, was named one of America’s
10 Most Admired Companies by
Fortune magazine and ranked number
one in our industry category. I'm
especially proud that, of the top 10
companies, not only did Citigroup
bring the fourth-highest return to
shareholders over the past five years,
but we were also rated the very best

long-term investment value.

While we have experienced success,

a great deal of work lies ahead. What
we can say, however, is that our brand
is becoming synonymous with growth,
stability, innovation and shareholder
value, and that we have been recog-
nized as a safe haven for millions of
new customers around the world in

these uncertain times.

SEPTEMBER 11

We will never forget the terrorist
attack that took thousands of lives
on September 11, including six of
our own people. We dedicate this

annual report to their memory.

The third building to collapse that
day was 7 World Trade Center, home
to 2,500 Citigroup employees from

Salomon Smith Barney and Citigroup
Asset Management. In total, we had to
evacuate 16,000 people from a dozen
sites in lower Manhattan. Nevertheless,
our company continued to function

with minimal disruption.

We were conducting business imme-
diately—resuming trading when the
bond market reopened and again
when the bell sounded at the New
York Stock Exchange. Qur Travelers
catastrophe-response vans arrived
just a few blocks from Ground Zero
on September 12, processing claims
and approving overdraft limits for
people hit hard by the tragedy.

Many of our own people were also
hit hard by the tragedy, having lost
family and friends, yet they contin-
ued to perform their duties under
very difficult circumstances.

My heartfelt thanks and admiration
go to them and to our Disaster
Recovery team, under the leadership
of Bob Druskin and Frank Bisignano.
They were called into action within
minutes of the disaster and made it
possible for us to continue working
on behalf of our clients, our share-

holders and our markets.

With the human side of this tragedy
uppermost in our minds, we created
the Citigroup Relief Fund on Sep-
tember 14 with an initial grant of
$15 million to provide college schol-
arships for the most innocent victims
of all—the children of those who died
or were permanently disabled. Since
that day, the Fund has received an
additional $4.5 million from our

shareholders, clients and employees,
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as well as individuals and organiza-

tions from many other countries.

We are very grateful for your generos-
ity and, like you, we hope that these
funds can in some small way help
secure a better future for the families

who lost so much on September 11.

2001: & YEAR OF SOLID ACHIEVEMENTS
Despite the shadow cast over 2001
by September 11 and the global eco-
nomic downturn during the course of
the year, Citigroup continued to build
on its strengths.

n We acquired Banamex, Mexico’s
most profitable bank, making us the
leading financial services provider in

that country. This deal, which was the

markets during a period of attractive
market valuations and consolidation

in the insurance industry.

» We continued to make strong
progress toward $1 billion in expense
savings—hbefore reinvestment—mbefore
the end of 2002, by leveraging tech-
nology and best operational practices

across Citigroup.

m We acquired European American
Bank, strengthening our foothold
in the important consumer, small
business and middle markets in the
Northeast U.S.

= We made additional prudent invest-
ments in the Internet. Our alliances
with AOL Time Warner and Microsoft

“WE CELEBRATE 100 YEARS OF SERVING THE FINANCIAL
NEEDS OF THE PEOPLE OF ASIA AND THE UNITED

KINGDOM.”

largest financial services investment
ever in Mexico, adds considerable
distribution strength to our Emerging
Markets franchise, and brings more
than 1,500 branches and 4,200 ATMs
throughout Mexico.

a We completed the integration of
Associates, which has not only
resulted in better-than-forecast cost
savings and strong revenue returns

in the U.S., but has also positioned us
to become a major force in consumer
finance markets overseas, particularly

in Japan.

= We announced our plan to spin off
our property and casualty business in
2002 to enable our company to focus
its resources more fully on higher-
growth areas of financial services,
while giving Travelers Property
Casualty greater headroom to grow
through capital-raising in the public

have made us the preferred payment
product on the Internet. And we
nearly doubled our online consumer

accounts to 15 million.

= Despite the difficult economic envi-
ronment, we are also continuing to
make significant investments in our
own technology infrastructure and
applications that will keep us in the

forefront of client services globally.

For example, CitiDirect® Online
Banking, our Web-based transaction
banking platform for corporate and
financial institution clients, is now
available in 12 languages and pro-
vides access to our branches in 85
countries, a significant expansion
over last year. And our interactive
Web sites for individual investors,
SSB Accesse, and corporate benefits
clients, Benefits Accesse, surpassed
a combined total of four million

accounts online.

2001 marked one more important
step toward realizing our vision for
Citigroup: cross-marketing initiatives
led to enormous benefits for our
customers and shareholders. Today,
we derive more than $12 billion in
revenue from cross-marketing pro-
grams—an increase of five percent
over 2000. We are taking measures
to ensure that this important earn-
ings-generating trend will continue
in 2002 and beyond.

POSITIONED FOR THE FUTURE

While I am extremely proud of our
achievements, 'm humbled by the
enormous possibilities that await us

globally. Over the next several years,

the financial services industry will be
marked by continuing consolidation,
globalization and the convergence of
what were once distinct businesses.
Technology will play an ever more

critical role in increasing productivity

and containing expenses.

We believe Citigroup has many

core advantages that uniquely distin-
guish us from other financial services
firms, and position us for continued

success in this environment:

1. Globality: While many talk about
globality, we define it. No other
financial firm can match our presence
in more than 100 countries—some
for more than a century. Our global
opportunities are extracrdinary,
particularly in the fastest-growing
markets of the world—the emerging
markets—where we generate more
profits than any other financial

services company.

2. Diversified business portfolio:
We have played a lead role in defin-
ing the concept of a fully diversified
financial services firm. As 2001 illus-
trated, our diversification can help
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reduce earnings volatility, thus
increasing our protection from
economic downturns and other

unfavorable market conditions.

3. Capital strength: With the most
equity capital of any financial services
firm, at $88 billion (including trust
preferred securities), we maintain
control over our strategic destiny,
positioning us to withstand difficult
conditions and take full advantage
of opportunities.

4. Acquisitions expertise: By virtue
of our tightly managed and well-
honed acquisition processes, we
have become an acquirer of choice
and often enjoy the first look at
the most attractive assets; This is
a critical advantage in an industry

undergoing significant consolidation.

5. Multi-channel distribution: We
have built distribution channels to
every consumer wealth segment—
from consumer finance branches,
retail banking branches and the
Internet, to life insurance agents,
Financial Consultants and private
bankers. Having a world-class invest-
ment bank and commercial bank
under one roof has enabled us to
provide greater value for our
customers. In a world where value
is migrating from manufacturing

to distribution, and where open
architecture is becoming mainstream,
our strategy has positioned us favor-
ably for marketing multiple services
to customers around the world.

6. Financial controls: The strong
financial controls we have in place
in managing each of our businesses
have allowed us to provide full and
accurate reporing to our shareholders.
We continue to manage risk carefully
and achieve profitability by running
our businesses well rather than by
leveraging our balance sheet.

7. Expense discipline and operational
efficiency: Keeping a tight lid on costs
is an unshakable part of our corporate
culture and, as our expetience in the
past year demonstrated, enables
Citigroup to manage profitably
through all kinds of business cycles.
This operational flexibility allowed

us to initiate a number of efficiency-
focused projects that, in 2001, cut our
expenses by $600 million—a key
contributor to our performance at the
bottom of the market cycle. We antici-
pate additional reductions in 2002.

OUR OPPORTUNITY

Our greatest opportunity is to
increase share in certain strategic
markets in which we operate. Given
the growth rates in many of those
economies, and our unique advan-
tages listed above, we believe that

we can increase our market share and
earnings significantly over the coming
years. Qur objective is to have annual
double-digit earnings growth, on

average, across business cycles.

We will achieve that by continuing to
attract, develop and retain the most
talented employees available, and by
fostering an entrepreneurial culture
that allows employees of all back-
grounds to flourish individually as
they work on our team.

NEW CITIGROUP PRESIDENT MAMED

We began 2002 with another impor-
tant milestone for our company:

the naming of Bob Willumstad as
President of Citigroup. Bobs leadership
of our consumer business—where he
was very successful in integrating
acquisitions, building our franchises
from within, exporting our consumer
finance model into the untapped inter-
national markets and keeping expenses
under control—has contributed signif-

icantly to our earnings and moved us

toward true leadership in global
consumer finance. Bob's new role,
in addition to his current position as
Chairman and CEO of the Consumer
Group, will enable us to leverage his
talents even further as we grow our

company in the years ahead.

A MOTE OF APPRECIATIDN

My sincere appreciation goes to my
fellow directors for an outstanding
job in 2001. We came through a
tough year and emerged more unified
than ever, with a strong sense of pur-
pose about where we want to take

our company in the years ahead.

For Citigroup, 2002 marks a special
anniversary: we celebrate 100 years
of serving the financial needs of the
people of Asia and the United
Kingdom. We're very proud of our
achievements in these markets and
the role we played in some of their
landmark financial events of the 20th
century. We eagerly look forward to
the next 100 years.

Let me close with a special word to
our employees. No one could have
predicted the kind of year 2001 turned
out to be. But your enormous talent
and commitment to do whats right
for our customers and shareholders
give me tremendous confidence in
our continued success, no matter
what challenges may arise in the
years ahead. Thank you for making
Citigroup the great company that it is.

&7/ y 2%

Sandy Weill
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DEAR CITIGRCUP SHAREHOLDER,

IN THE TWO YEARS THAT | HAVE BEEN AT CITIGROUP, THE PEOPLE OF THIS COMPANY HAVE

MADE GREAT PROGRESS IN TRANSFORMING ITS CONSTITUENT PARTS INTO A SOUND AND

SUCCESSFUL ORGANIZATION WITH A BROAD PRODUCT SCOPE AND LOCAL OPERATIONS IN

MORE THAN 100 COUNTRIES.

This immense accomplishment has provided great value for our consumer
customers, our corporate clients and investors by providing products, services
and global capacity relevant to our clients’ needs, all within one organization.
Citigroup, already the worlds largest financial institution, is in many ways the
worlds leading financial institution.

This ability to serve our clients is manifested in the work that our clients ask us
to do, day in and day out. The effectiveness of Citigroup’s combination of great
financial strength and broad product as well as geographical scope also provides
an opportunity for outstanding professionals to more fully realize their potential.
QOur highest priority, in seeking to serve our clients and provide shareholder
value, is to focus with great intensity on attracting outstanding people o

Citigroup and providing them with a rewarding and fulfilling environment.

Having said that, great institutions are always works in progress because only
through a dynamic commitment to moving ahead strategically can an organiza-
tion remain successful—all within the context of an unchanging set of underlying
values. A great deal has been accomplished at Citigroup, but much remains to be
done to realize the immense potential of this organization. This will always be
true. When the challenges of today have been met, there will be new issues, new
opportunities and new problems. Qur dynamic commitment to change will best
ensure that we meet the needs of our customers, provide fulfillment for our

people and create shareholder value.
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2001 was an especially stressful year, for the global community and for our
company. The terrorist attack on September 11 was a great tragedy, and both
that attack and the continued softening of the global economy posed huge
challenges to Citigroup. Our people successfully met these challenges through
extraordinary effort, maintaining our operations under difficult conditions in the
immediate aftermath of September 11, and producing strong financial results for
the year.

In the years ahead, globalization, the spread of market-based economics and new
technologies will continue to present great opportunities in the developed and
emerging markets. But the challenges will also be great, both to policymakers and
to each of us as participants in the global economy. No one knows what eco-
nomic conditions will be like over this year or in the longer run; but I think our
strategy of dynamically seeking opportunities to build our businesses, combined
with intense expense discipline and a sound balance sheet, is the right approach
1o weathering difficult times when they occur and, at the same time, realizing
what I believe is the immense potential over time for the global economy and
for Citigroup.

Though we can look back with great satisfaction at all that Citigroup has accom-
plished for the benefit of its customers, employees and shareholders over the
past few years, I believe equally that there is absolutely no room for even one
moment of complacency. All of our activities are highly competitive, and the
global economic environment will always be challenging, in good times and in
difficult times. Thus, we must remain committed to constant improvement and
change in all of our activities, while adhering to unchanging values. This view is

widely shared at Citigroup—in fact, it is central to the culture of our company.

I have continued to focus on working with Sandy and members of the
Management Committee on strategic and managerial issues, acting as a sounding
board for others in all our businesses, and working with clients. As my experi-
ence here grows, so too does my great respect for what has been accomplished
and my strong belief in the immense potential of Citigroup to serve our
customers, provide opportunity for our people and create value for our share-
holders. 1 look forward to working with Sandy, the management team and the
people of Citigroup for a long time to come, in our joint undertaking to build a

truly extraordinary institution.

TS

Robert E. Rubin
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CITIGROUP NEARLY
DOUBLED ITS NUMBER OF
ONLINE CUSTOMERS TO |




CONSUMER GROUP

DESPITE A DIFFICULT ECONOMY, THE CONSUMER GROUP WAS A POWERFUL ENGINE OF GROWTH

FOR CITIGROUP IN 2001. WITH CONSISTENT AND STRONG PERFORMANCES ACROSS THE

BOARD, WE REINFORCED THAT A RELENTLESS FOCUS ON THE CONSUMER EXPERIENCE IS THE

BEST MEANS NOT ONLY TO SATISFY FINANCIAL NEEDS, BUT TO BUILD SHAREHOLDER VALUE

AND CONTINUE TO EXPAND THE BUSINESS INTO A TRULY DYNAMIC GLOBAL FRANCHISE.

Our results in 2001 further vali-
dated our business model—that
is, a balanced business strategy
focusing on revenue gains and
productivity enhancements,
organic growth as well as growth
by acquisition, strict expense dis-
cipline, and maintaining and
enhancing our market leadership
in key business segments.

This strategy—which has been
the foundation of the Consumer
Group’s success in recent years—
has propelled us to the top in
every business. We are a provider
of more product and service
choices to our customers than
our competitors, a low-cost pro-
ducer and, ultimately, a leading
player in the continued consoli-
dation of the financial services
industry.

BEST IN CLASS

The Consumer Group is
Citigroup’s most diverse collection
of businesses, and the majority of

them reported exceptionally

strong results in 2001. Two
outstanding examples are
CitiFinancial and our U.S.

Citi® Cards operations.

CitiFinancial—which now

has the largest consumer finance
operation in North America with
some 2,200 branches—continues
to have a customer satisfaction
rating of nearly 90 percent. The
business also was among the
lowest-cost providers in the con-
sumer finance industry in 2001,
with expenses at only 3.4 percent
of receivables.

Citigroup’ cards business is the
worlds largest provider of credit
cards. In the U.S., the business
has grown significantly over the
last three years, at a rate estimated
at 1.4 times the industry average.

We strengthened the franchise
significantly by leveraging our
vast product array and focusing

extensively on providing superior
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customer service. This, in turn,
led to enhanced satisfaction lev-
els, deeper customer relationships
and greater retention—all leading
to increased wallet share.

CITIGROUP BUSINESS MODEL

A hallmark of the Consumer
Group has been the ability to
“export” a business model to
other businesses abroad. As
Citigroup moves further into
the huge, untapped international
consumer finance markets, this
core competency will play a sig-
nificant role in our growth, given
the fact that these markets are
less mature and offer enormous
opportunity going forward. Our
existing global platform has put
the franchise in a strong position.

We have demonstrated the ability
of our Consumer franchise to
acquire large companies such as
Associates, leverage them and
grow significantly. We are now
among the top ive companies in
the consumer finance industry in
Japan, compared to 1997 when
we had no significant consumer

finance presence there.

And consumer finance means
much more than lending.

Primerica, which celebrates




of any American bank in Shanghai.

its 25th anniversary in 2002,
continues to be a strong distribu-
tion channel domestically for
Citigroup products. We will
export the Primerica business
model to other countries in 2002.

The fact that our business model
is flexible and easily adaptable has
been an enormous competitive
advantage. An example is the
acquisition of European American
Bank (EAB), a highly successful
branch banking operation serving
New York City and adjacent Long
Island. Our defined business
model helped to integrate EAB into
the Citibanking operation, setting
the stage for future expansion.

Citipro®, our unique banking
financial-needs analysis program,
has become embedded in the
Citibank Financial Center sales
process as we offer investments,
insurance, debt management
and basic cash management
services to our clients. Citipro
also proved to be a valuable tool
in the integration of the EAB into
the Citibanking culture.

LEADER 1% INNOVATION

To maintain our leadership on
the Internet, we continue to
invest in online services. We

nearly doubled our online

100YEARS IN ASIA & UK. U0Y Lo <6

102:

the percentage increase
of Citibank’s home
equity business

consumer accounts to 15 million and have become the preferred pay-
ment provider on the net through alliances with America Online and
Microsoft. Citibank® Online, which debuted in 2000, is now fully inte-
grated into the business and provides users with unprecedented
information and access, allowing them to deepen their relationships
with Citigroup.

We use the Internet to provide expanded services to our customers and
greater efficiencies for our organization. And its working, In our private
student loan business, approximately 70 percent of the business—or
$1 billion—was generated and processed online. CitiMortgage closed
its first paperless “e-Mortgages” in the fourth quarter. And CitiFinancial
continues to increase its Internet presence.

IAPAN

The Citibank Consumer business in Japan grew substantially in 2001
and benefited from a full year of expense savings at Diners Japan.
Growth was reported across all product categories, and we anticipate it
will continue in 2002 as we look to expand our cards, revolving credit
and investment products, as well as build the banking business by
focusing on expanded distribution channels, including remote banking,
In addition, as the regulatory environment changes in Japan, we expect
the business to benefit as consumers look to Citigroup as the safe and
trusted company with which to do their business.

WESTERN EUROPE

Consumer Western Europe reported core income up 26 percent in
2001, mainly reflecting growth in the consumer finance, branch lending
and credit card businesses, particularly in Germany, the U.K., Spain and
Iraly. Revenues and assets in the region grew seven percent during the
year, even after the sale of several Diners Club franchises. Core income
growth was supported by strong expense and credit management, which
is reflected in the net credit loss ratio of 1.88 percent in 2001 versus 2.05
percent in 2000.

The consumer business in Western Europe continues to gain selective
market share in loans and cards, specifically in Germany, Belgium, the
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U.K. and Spain. In all European markets, we improved our advisory-based As a result, we anticipate that our

investments program, adding market share of net retail investrnent flows in consumer businesses will main-

most markets, notwithstanding uniformly weak equity market conditions. tain the momentum they built in
2001 and continue to strengthen

The business also successfully managed the changeover to the euro ,
’ their market positions to take

currency for our customers in the Eurozone without any major issues.

advantage of the huge global

LIVE RICHLY:" opportunities that await.

In 2001, we introduced new branding. The Citi brand became even
more recognized through our Live Richly ad campaign, with its non-
traditional approach. The philosophy behind the brand platform—that
Citl advocates a healthy approach to money—has resonated with con-
sumers and helped generate positive results. For example, after just
two months of advertising about Citipro, we experienced a 73 percent
increase in the sales of products using Citipro over a four-month
period. Moreover, because the Citi brand is used across the Consumer

Group businesses, the advertising has created a broad impact.

CONCLUSION

During 2001, our consumer businesses demonstrated the importance

of “predictable and recurring earnings” to Citigroup’s value proposition.
In a difficult global economic environment, most of these businesses still
sustained double-digit growth rates. Although expense control—one of
our core competencies—was a key factor, revenues in a number of
these businesses registered double-digit growth over 2000, offsetting a
higher level of credit losses related to the slowing of the global economy.

Importantly, every business within the Consumer Group is either
the leader or near the top of its class. In the primary areas of cards,
consumer finance and banking, the businesses maintain distinct
competitive advantages:

u low-cost producers with superior credit management,

s exportable business models with superior acquisition capabilities,

» a strong brand.
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CITIGROUP STOCK
OUTPERFORMED
THE S&P 500 BY

PERCENTAGE POINTS



CORPORATE & It
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WITH FLAT EARNINGS IN 2001 DURING THE TOUGHEST BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT IN A DECADE,

CITIGROUP'S CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANK (CIB) OUTPERFORMED COMPETITORS, WHOSE

EARNINGS WERE DOWN DRAMATICALLY.

GLOBAL FIRANCE

The reason for this superior result
is the unique business model we
have implemented successfully
over the last three years. With the
mergers of Salomon and Smith
Barney, Citibank and Salomon
Smith Barney (SSB), the formation
of Nikko Salomon Smith Barney
and the acquisition of Schroders,
today we have leading-edge capa-
bilities in every part of the globe
for every financial services product
that corporations, governments
and institutional investors need.

By combining world-class invest-
ment banking services through
SSB and world-class commercial
banking through Citibank, we
provide unique value propositions
to our clients. As a result, invest-
ment banking revenue from our
target client base rose 15 percent.
Due to this success in serving our
clients, 2001 was a year of impor-
tant “firsts” for us:

» We became the leading global
underwriter in combined equity
and debt for the first time. With

12 percent market share, we
raised some $487 billion for our
clients, a 37 percent increase over
the prior year. We also ranked
first in disclosed fees at $2.4 bil-
lion, up 17 percent over 2000.

s We became the leading global
investment banking firm as

measured by revenue.

= We became the number-one
global fixed-income underwriter
with record new-issue volume,
earning International Financing
Review’s Global Bond House of
the Year award. In addition, our
firm was again voted number one
in the Institutional Investor Fixed
Income Trading Survey.

» We maintained our first place
positioning in many other areas,
such as municipal finance, foreign
exchange and project finance.

» Our equity research ranked
number one in the Institutional
Investor All-America Research
poll. Coupled with a number-two
showing in Europe, our research
platform is becoming a global
leader.

VESTMENT BANK

We also made tremendous
progress in developing other
important areas of our business.
For example, our global market
share in equity underwriting
jumped from 8 percent to 12 per-
cent, with an overall third-place
ranking. In M&A, our share of
completed deals globally rose
from 17 to 22 percent.

Our success touched all regions.
In Japan, Nikko Salomon Smith
Barney again dominated the
equity markets, being named the
number-one equity bookrunner,
and increasing our lead market
share over last year from 32 per-
cent to 36 percent. In Europe,
Schroder Salomon Smith Barney
continued to build its franchise,
becoming the number-two under-
writer in the European bond
markets and number-one in
European securitization as well as
in completed M&A in the UK.

In Latin America, we earned
top-three rankings in the debt,
equity, syndicated loans and
M&A league tables, and were
named Regional Bank of the Year
by Latin Finance. In the U.S.,
we topped the league tables for
investment grade bonds with a
22 percent market share, while

our share of the market in
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$10 note of local currency issued in Tientsin,

July 1, 1918 by the International Banking
Corporation/National City Bank.

convertibles more than doubled
to 15 percent, and our equities
market position rose to third with
a 14 percent share. Also in the
U.S., we were again the year’s
leader of municipal debt under-
writing; and in Asia, the CIB was
named International Financial
Review (IFR) Asia’s Bank of the
Year, winning recognition for the
quality and professionalism of its
various businesses in virtually
every country in the region.

The CIB was involved in many
of the year’s key transactions. In
the U.S., we jointly led the Kraft
Foods Tnitial Public Offering, the
largest of the year, which was
voted U.S. Equity Issue of the
Year by IFR. We also lead man-
aged the majority of the years
jumbo bond deals, including
those for AOL Time Warner,
DaimlerChrysler and Kellogg. We
were instrumental in many other
award-winning financings, includ-
ing Lucent and Rite Aid. We led
Europe’s PO of the Year, a 2.4
billion euro offering for Spain’s
Inditex. In Asia, Citigroup under-
wrote SingTel’s US$2.3 billion
equivalent global bond offering,
the largest non-Japanese Asian
corporate bond issuance in

history. In Latin America, we

100YEARS IN ASIA & UK. "C20 =/ -z C07=s w0V i s
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percentage of the Fortune 50
doing business with our
Corporate & Investment Bank

co-lead-managed Brazils $2.15 billion par-for-par debt exchange,
which was named Sovereign Liability Management Deal of the Year
by Latin Finance.

Strong expense discipline was another reason for the CIB% industry-
leading performance this year, and for our achieving profits significantly
greater than those of our competitors. By initiating a program of
aggressive expense reductions early in the year, well ahead of competi-
tors, we reduced our quarterly expenses by 19 percent from their peak in
the first quarter. Today, we are the low-cost competitor in our industry.

No review of the year would be complete without mentioning
September 11 and the unspeakable human and material devastation.
Sadly, and most importantly, one of our CIB employees remains unac-
counted for. Given the location of the CIB’s global headquarters—just
blocks from the World Trade Center—and the significant number of
CIB staff displaced by the collapse of 7 World Trade Center, the dis-
ruption was enormous, but the emotional and business support we
received from colleagues and clients around the globe was beyond
anything we could have imagined.

To the credit of those who developed and implemented our disaster
recovery plan, its depth and quality addressed our immediate needs as
an organization. Qur extensive communication and array of counseling
programs sought to address the needs of our employees, virtually all of
whom were touched in some way by this tragedy. As the financial mar-
kets reopened after September 11, the CIB was a leading participant,
providing back-up lines of credit to our clients the next day and even
handling record single-day volume on the resumption of equity trading.

PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP

Despite challenging market conditions, the Private Client Group (PCG)
continued to distinguish itself in 2001 as a world-class leader in delivering
wealth management and financial planning services to high-net-worth
private investors, small- to mid-sized businesses, non-profit organizations
and family foundations.
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The PCG’s commitment to delivering superior value to clients was
evidenced by the development of new client relationships and the expan-
sion of others, resulting in more than $40 billion in net new money for
2001. In a year that reinforced the value of prolessional and personalized
advice, the firm selectively increased the number of Financial Consultants
by nearly 600 to a record 12,927 by year-end.

For the year, the PCG continued its leadership in fee-based financial
services, which now comprise 49 percent of total revenues. The division
also maintained industry-leading profit margins of 21 percent, reflecting
the productivity of its financial professionals and disciplined cost man-

agement in all market conditions.

The PCG sharpened its focus on client-friendly technology, adding the
e-delivery of client statements and prospectuses to its roster of Web
offerings for individual investors. Also reaching new highs in 2001,
PCGs Web sites for individual investors and corporate benefits clients
surpassed a combined total of four million client accounts online.

Our Financial Consultants continued to leverage access to the resources
of Citigroup on behalf of their clients. In fact, they assisted clients with
a record $3 billion in loans and mortgages during the year—a billion
dollars more than last year.

CITICAPITAL

In 2001, CitiCapital, the commercial finance business of Citigroup,
continued integrating acquisitions into its operations, most notably
Associates Commercial Finance and the leasing businesses of the
European American Bank. As the second-largest U.S.-based leasing com-
pany, CitiCapital serves equipment manufacturers, as well as dealers and
buyers of transportation equipment, material handling and construction
equipment, and business technology and medical equipment. It is also a
leading provider of master leasing programs to large corporations.

With several significant mergers and acquisitions behind it, CitiCapital
has grown in less than two years from almost $8 billion in managed
receivables to nearly $35 billion. Profitability in 2001 was affected

by particularly difficult market

conditions in the transportation
market and the costs of integrat-
ing many diverse operations. The
ongoing priorities are to refine
the focus of the overall business,
enhance and integrate operational
controls and improve profitability.

COMMERCIAL LINES

Despite the economic difficulties of 2001
and a decade of falling rates, Travelers
Commercial Lines — the third-largest
provider of insurance to businesses, insti-
tutions and government — emerged a
strong, well-capitalized and profitable
business. As the rate environment began
to improve last year, Travelers' financial
strength enabled us to use technology to
reinforce our ties with the independent
agent and broker community through which

all our products and services are sald.
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WITH A PRESENCE IN 80 COUNTRIES IN ASIA, LATIN AMERICA, CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPE,

THE MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA, CITIGROUP, PRINCIPALLY THROUGH CITIBANK, HAS A UNIQUE

XGING MARKETS

FRANCHISE IN THE EMERGING MARKETS OF THE WORLD.

In 2001, this franchise achieved
enormous success, recording
significant earnings growth,
increasing our market share,

and building our client base as cus-
tomers turned to Citibank, seeking
the kind of quality products and
services few others can offer in
the emerging markets, along with
the stability we provide.

Against the backdrop of unstable
economies in many emerging-
market countries and global
political turmoil, 2001 was a
solid year for our franchise and
one in which we built- momen-
tum for 2002 and beyond. We
earned $2.8 billion in core
income, up 22 percent-over the
prior year, even with the $470
million (pre-tax) charges we
took in Argentina.

100 YEARS [N ASIA

We have a long and unrivaled
history in the world’s emerging
markets, and 2002 is an important
year for us. It marks our centen-
nial anniversary in six countries
in Asia: China, Hong Kong, India,
Japan, the Philippines and
Singapore. In fact, we have a long

history in most of the markets in
which we operate. Our presence
in Latin America dates back to
1904, and we opened offices in
the Middle East and Africa in the
1950s. Through this unparalleled
on-the-ground presence, Citibank
provides the industrys most
extensive array of products and
services to the broadest range of
clients. No other financial institu-
tion can rival our global network
or customer base—key factors

in our continuing success as a

franchise.

The opportunity for growth in
these markets is dramatic, as the
demographics show: 86 percent
of the world’s population lives in
emerging-market countries; their
economies account for 43 percent
of the world’s purchasing power;
and their emerging middle class

has new and largely unmet needs.

Individuals and businesses

in these countries need what
Citibank has—credit cards for
consumers, electronic solutions
for small businesses, sophisticated
corporate finance for multinational
subsidiaries, and the trust that
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has been built over many years.
Indeed, for millions of customers
in the emerging markets, Citibank
is a trusted partner and the logi-
cal choice for financial services.

Recognizing the immense potential
in these markets, Citigroup created
an organization two years ago

to focus on our businesses there.
We brought together the consumer
and corporate businesses in each
country. We offer two transaction
banking businesses, which serve
our corporate customers in both
the developed and emerging mar-
kets—e-Business, our award-
winning e-comimerce, cash-man-
agement and electronic-banking
business; and Citibank Global
Securities Services, which provides
a [ull spectrum of industry-leading
securities-related services, includ-
ing custody, clearing, agency and
trust, and depositary receipts. In
addition, our Sales and Trading
business provides capital markets
products to clients and manages

our own position.

The results in 2001 validate our
decision to focus on the emerg- -
ing markets. Our 22 percent

- growth in earnings came from

both our consumer and corporate
franchises, which grew 29 percent
and 17 percent, respectively.




Singapore branch opene& in 1902,
relocated to the Ocean buitding in 1923.

ROOM TO GROW

Indeed, the emerging markets
represent our most exciting growth
opportunity. While our overall
market share of four percent gives
us a leadership position, we still
have substantial room to grow. In
2001, we completed the Banamex
acquisition, the largest financial
services investment ever in Mexico.
This transaction powerfully posi-
tions us in Mexico, where we are
now the number-one corporate
bank, the number-one retail bank
and the number-one credit card
issuer, with a share of between 25
percent and 30 percent in most
markets. In addition to Banamex,
we acquired Credito Familiar, a
consumer finance company, which
positions us to provide services to
virtually every consumer and cor-

porate segment in Mexico.

The Banamex transaction followed
our acquisition of Bank Handlowy
w Warszawie in Poland, where we
are now the leading corporate bank
in terms of the number of customers
we serve. Both acquisitions under-
score the kind of growth we can
build in our largest and highest-
potential markets.

While these acquisitions have
received much attention, organic
growth fuels the bulk of our

expansion. Our goal is to grow our
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400 million:

amount of business in U.S. dollars
Citigroup awarded to companies
owned by minorities and/or women

market share over the next five years through our Embedded Bank
strategy. By Embedded Bank we mean a bank that has roots in the coun-
try as deep as any local indigenous bank, building a broad customer
base, offering diverse products, actively participating in the community
and recruiting staff and senior management from the local population.
Our long history in these regions positions us as a genuinely local
bank—but one with an important difference. As much as they appreci-
ate our local character and established roots, our customers also value
our global access and expertise. In these markets, Citibank offers the
best of both worlds.

The Embedded Bank strategy is validated by the strength of our brand.
The Citibank brand is recognized throughout the emerging markets and,
in 2001, we launched a focused effort to enhance our brand. In Asia, we
are one of the top five consumer brands and number one among financial
services providers. We are now introducing the new Citibank logo across

our markets.

THE CONSUMER FRAMCHISE

The opportunity in our consumer business is also tremendous. We cur-
rently provide consumer services in 36 of our 80 countries, so there is
ample room to grow as we introduce these services into new countries.
In countries where we have consumer businesses, we will introduce new
products as the markets mature. Our goal is to provide a complete spec-
trum of services for consumers as they enter the middle class and their
financial needs evolve.

Our consumer finance business offers a broad array of loan products to
meet the growing needs of people in the emerging-markets economies.
As consumers gain confidence in their earning power, retail bank serv-
ices and credit cards become more important. Indeed, credit cards
represent the bulk of consumer lending in the emerging markets and
provide the highest rates of return. We are steadily expanding retail
bank services and our cards business, and launched several new prod-
ucts during 2001, including cobranded and youth cards.

Wealth Management for the middle affluent is an important new initia-
tive, as consumers begin to accumulate wealth and seek advice and
expertise in managing their assets. In 2001, we introduced Wealth
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Management Banking in Asia, which we will expand across other
regions. Insurance also represents a large untapped opportunity in our
markets and will be an important initiative in 2002, Our integrated
organization also facilitates the cross-marketing of consumer products
to the employees of corporate customers, and we will continue to roll

out these programs.

We are a leader in Internet banking for consumers, with more than three
million customers in 25 countries accessing our online offerings. From
mobile banking and wireless alerts to e-commerce and electronic bill
presentment and payment, we are continuously introducing new serv-

ices that meet our clients’ needs.

THE CORPORATE FRANCHISE

We serve the full spectrum of business clients, from small family busi-
nesses to subsidiaries of the worlds largest multinational companies.
CitiBusiness® focuses on emerging local corporations—local companies
with annual sales of less than $50 million, the fastest-growing customer
segment in the Emerging Markets. Our Citibank Global Securities Services
business remains a leader in its field, offering award-winning services in
73 markets. Our Sales and Trading business had record earnings in 2001,
with net income growth of 35 percent. We are steadily building our global
customer base and have been recognized as a leader in foreign exchange,
derivatives, treasury and risk management in every region.

The demand for online banking continues to increase, and we are
committed to being the number one provider of Internet services for
our customers. During 2001, e-Business continued to roll out CitiDirect®
Online Banking, our online platform for corporate customers which is
now available in 85 countries and is processing more than $50 billion
in payments a month—a number that is steadily growing as more
companies take advantage of this platform.

With its extensive global presence, Citigroup’s Emerging Markets busi-
ness has a long track record of operating in volatile markets. In 2001,
we demonstrated once again our ability to manage through a crisis.

e-Business and Citibank Global Securities Services provide basic

payments and clearing systems
used by customers and industry
colleagues alike. In the wake

of September 11, both of these
critical operating areas performed
flawlessly. Qur international
network remained open, even
in markets facing heightened
tension. This was a result of the
extraordinary efforts of our many
people around the world, and we
thank them for their dedication.

Citibank’s experience allows us
to maintain a long-term commit-
ment to the markets where we
do business. The strength of
our business model allows us to
weather even the most difficult
periods. While the competition
may retreat from challenging mar-
kets, we can sustain our presence
and even thrive. This is a crucial
attribute for organizations seeking
to do business around the world,
and our extensive experience
has enabled us to develop the
people and processes to succeed.
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CITIGROUP HAD RECORD
CORE INCOME OF

BILLION



THE GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING GROUP COMBINES A
US. LEADER IN THE LIFE AND ANNUITIES ARENA, A LEADING PRIVATE BANK FRANCHISE,
A TOP-TIER GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT FIRM, A STRONG ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
CAPABILITY, AND THE SECOND-LARGEST U.S. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

SERVICES RECORD KEEPING PLATFORM.

Across these businesses, our
group is committed to achieving
strong investment performance
with an emphasis on risk control,
providing broad product offerings
tailored for each client segment,
and delivering world-class client
service supported by superior
technology.

We estimate that Citigroup ranks
number one or two in Global
Wealth Management as measured
by revenue and net income.
Citigroup is extremely well-
positioned to capture even
greater share in the Global
Wealth Management market
based on our strong product set
and the firm’ impressive distribu-
tion channels. The high-net-worth
market is growing faster than the
financial services industry overall,
and generates relatively stable
earnings and attractive margins.

TRAVELERS LIFE & ANNUITY

Travelers Life & Annuity (TL&A)
prospered in a year of uncertain
market conditions, continuing its
strong operating results. TL&A
achieved record operating earn-
ings of $821 million, placing it in
the top three U.S. companies pro-
viding individual life and annuity
products. Expense management
remained a high priority, with
TL&A continuing its industry-
low expense ratio. In 2001,
TL&As strong sales results pro-
duced market share gains in all
three of its product lines: individ-
ual life, and individual and group
annuities.

Leveraging its scale and strength
in Citigroup channels, TL&A out-
paced the industry in individual
annuity sales by increasing third-
party channels in 2001 by 32

percent. Overall net individual

annuity sales in all channels
increased by four percent. Over
the last four years, TL&A has
moved from 38 to 18 in life
insurance industry sales (LIMRA)
—with a year-over-year increase
of 61 percent—Dby focusing on
high-net-worth customers and
by achieving significant growth
from the independent producer
channel. TL&A maintained

its number-three rank within
the institutional annuity arena
(LIMRA), mainly due to record
group annuity sales in the pen-
sion closeout and structured

settlement segments.

Our partnership with Citigroup
sister companies continued to
grow across all product lines.
Citigroup profits were further
increased with 52 percent of new
annuity deposits into TL&A vari-
able annuity products going into
Citigroup Asset Management
funds. Distribution continued

to be expanded within Citigroup
channels, as well as through an
exciting new venture leveraging
Citibank’s overseas distribution,
offering new investment and life
products.
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First office in the U.K. opened in
London in 1902.

THE CITIGROUP PRIVATE BANK
Despite a turbulent year, The
Citigroup Private Bank made
major progress in building the
business globally, expanding its
investment offerings and leveraging
the vast resources of Citigroup. The
Private Bank provides personal-
ized wealth management services
for many of the world’s most suc-
cessful families through 90 offices
in 58 cities and 31 countries.

The Citigroup Private Bank acts
as a global gateway to the full
resources of Citigroup. The firm
offers affluent families a full range
of portfolio management and
investment advisory services.
Clients of the Private Bank are
considered clients of Citigroup
as a whole, allowing them to have
multiple touch points within the
organization and giving them
unparalleled access to Citigroup’s
global capabilities. The Private
Bank is committed to providing
high-quality investment advisory
services and asset allocation to

clients.

Working with Citigroup Asset
Management and Citigroup’s

Corporate & Investment Bank,
the Private Bank offers clients a
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4.8 trillion:

total assets in U.S. dollars under custody
by Citibank Global Securities Services

wide array of investment management, capital markets and investment
banking services. In addition, the bank differentiates itself by offering
distinctive advisory services to the marketplace, including the highly
successful Family Advisory Practice, which provides families with guid-
ance on an array of wealth management issues from business succession
to philanthropy. Art Advisory Services helps clients build or disperse art
and antique collections.

The Citigroup Private Bank ended 2001 with double-digit growth

in margin and net income. During the past two years, net income has
grown more than 40 percent, despite the uncertainty and volatility in
our industry.

CITIGROUP ASSET MANAGEMENT

Citigroup Asset Management (CAM) is a leading asset manager, with
$417 billion in assets under management as 2001 closed. CAM is
committed to offering excellent investment performance through a
broad array of products and services to institutional, high-net-worth
and retail clients around the world. The business achieved record
net flows in 2001, with $29 billion in retail and high-net-worth man-
aged accounts and long-term mutual fund llows, and $35 billion in
institutional managed accounts and liquidity flows.

CAM is a market leader in U.S. retail managed accounts with $63 billion
assets under management and is ranked number one in the Dalbar
Survey (Research) of investment professionals regarding quality of service
among mid-size mutual fund families,

CAM also has built one of the world’s finest global buyside research
organizations, which has become a cornerstone of our institutional and
retail asset management business. The depth and breadth of our research
and investment capabilities is helping to accelerate the growth of insti-
tutional sales. CAMS Institutional Division expects to continue to
improve its share of the institutional pension segment globally.
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Through CitiStreet, our joint ven-
ture with State Street Bank & Trust
Company, we offer administration,
outsourcing and investment man-
agement services for defined
contribution, pension and health-
and-welfare plans worldwide.
CitiStreet now ranks second overall
among retirement plan record-
keepers, administering $179
billion in assets for 71 million par-
ticipants (Plan Sponsor thagazine).
CAM is committed to growing
defined contribution assets by cap-
italizing on the CitiStreet platform,
and currently manages $3 billion
for CitiStreet clients.

CITIGROUP ALTERNATIVE [NVESTMENTS
Citigroup Alternative Investments
is a newly branded business unit
and a leader in the field of alter-
native investments. It meets the
needs of investors around the
world seeking a range of products,
including hedge funds, real estate,
credit structures and private
equity. In 2001, assets under
management grew 10 percent,

to $39 hillion.

CITIGROUP GLOBAL INVESTMENTS

Citigroup Global Investments (CGl), one of the world’s leading investment organizations,
continued to outperform peers despite a difficult investment environment in 2001. CGI
applies Citigroup’s in-depth knowledge of geographies, industries and clients and
makes direct investments across a full range of fixed-income, equities and alternative
products, including real estate, private equity, hedge funds and structured investments.
Our $160 billion portfolio of investments consists of our Property Casualty and Life &
Annuity assets, the Citigroup Pension Fund, Citigroup’s Proprietary Equity Investments,
and our clients’ money. It is managed across four categories: Citigroup Venture Capital,

U.S. Proprietary and Alternative Investments, Fixed Income and Emerging Markets.

In 2001, our fixed-income insurance investment performance ranked in the upper 20th
percentile of the Lipper Intermediate Investment Grade Debt Rankings. The Citigroup
Pension Fund outperformed benchmarks, ranking just shy of the top quartile of all pen-
sion funds of more than $1 billion. Additionally, earnings from our proprietary
investments—combined with the realized gains of our insurance investments—totaled
$530 million in net income.

In addition to generating significant returns in 2001, CGl committed an additional
$1.9 billion of proprietary capital across several alternative asset classes and raised
almost $1.5 billion of client capital for a variety of co-investment opportunities, includ-
ing nearly $1 billion for the new CVC Fund, about $500 million for the CT Mezzanine
Fund 11 and $350 million for the Tishman V Fund.

Toward the end of the year, CGI created Citigroup Alternative Investments, a business
responsible for structuring and marketing atternative investments to customers, often
as co-investment with Citigroup. This business allows us to systematically leverage two
of Citigroup’s greatest strengths—our distribution channels and our diverse product

offering—into increased shareholder valug.
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UNITY

CITIGROUP STRIVES TO MAKE EACH COMMUNITY WHERE WE OPERATE A BETTER PLACE

BECAUSE WE ARE THERE. WE FOCUS THIS EFFORT IN THREE AREAS: BUILDING COMMUNITIES

AND ENTREPRENEURS, FINANCIAL EDUCATION AND EDUCATING THE NEXT GENERATION.

Our philosophy is founded upon
‘high standards of ethics, fair lend-
ing and fair access to financial
services, customer privacy, diver-
sity in hiring, and cultural and
environmental sensitivity. We
believe that extending our
resources and expertise to benefit
others is the right thing 1o do; and
we understand that economically
healthy communities are necessary
for business success.

We live these values through our
business activities, through our
philanthropic giving, and through
our employee volunteers. Overall,
our total philanthropy in 2001,
from the Citigroup Foundation
and the businesses combined,
exceeded $67 million.

BUILDING COMMURNITIES

Our employees regularly seek out
opportunities where business and
social responsibility go hand-in-
hand. Our Smith Barney Public
Finance Group specializes in
funding a wide variety of environ-
mentally beneficial projects. In
2001, we announced the launch

of the Smith Barney Charitable
Investment Fund. The fund is
administered through Salomon
Smith Barney Charitable Trust
Inc., an independent public charity
for clients who want to make
future philanthropic grants to
charitable organizations while
receiving immediate income tax
deductions on their contribution
of cash or appreciated securities.

Citigroup’s community lending
to and investing with low-

and moderate-income (LMI)
individuals and areas in the

U.S. continued to grow, reaching
more than $21 billion—an
increase of 140 percent since
1997 In 2001, we leveraged our
partnerships to further extend
our reach to thousands of LMI
and minority families, new immi-
grants, underserved households
and other emerging markets.

Our Center for Community
Development Enterprise (CCDE)
also delivered impressive results.
During 2001, CCDE loaned and
invested $892 million, which rep-
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Tesents an increase of 107 percent
over a two-year period. CCDE
draws resources from across
Citigroup’ businesses to
provide nonprofit and for-profit
organizations with innovative,
comprehensive and cost-effective
financing packages for commu-
nity development.

Our businesses also supported
non-governmental organizations
{(NGOs) and nonprofits around
the globe by working to develop
financial programs that address
their needs and offering them
customized financial product
and services packages. In 2001,
we introduced a capacity building
program to help NGOs in
Indonesia run their operations
efficiently. This was part of our
Citibank Peka program. In the
U.S., Citigroup’s Community
Development Institute sponsored
technical assistance and training
programs attended by more than
1,500 nonprofit organizations.

MICROCRED!T

Citigroup participates in a broad
range ol community building
initiatives that foster healthy
economies: microlending,
affordable housing and special-
needs facilities, small-business




Hankow branch pened in 1909.

development and savings incen-
tive programs. Qur involvement
includes offering customized
products and services and access to
technical assistance, along with the

volunteer efforts of our employees.

Citigroup has pioneered and
funded microlending programs
around the world for more than
20 years. We have helped microfi-
nance institutions (MFIs) become
more self-sufficient and improve
their accounting and financial
management so they can serve
more clients effectively. In 2001,
we contributed $3.5 million and
issued letters of credit totaling
$4.5 million.

Among our new microlending
initiatives in 2001 was the devel-
opment of the Wholesale Funding
Facility in Jordan through a part-
nership with the United States
Agency for International
Development (USAID) and

the Access to Microfinance
and Improved Implementation
of Reform Program (AMIR).
This first-of-its-kind facility
will enable the country’s USAID-
supported MFIs to obtain low-
interest loans from commercial

banks. Citibank Jordan acts as

21 billion:

U.S. dollar amount Citigroup loaned to
and invested in low- and moderate-
income communities in the U.S.

escrow agent for the $6 million facility, financed by USAID through
AMIR, while also issuing guarantees to the commercial banks that
provide credit to the MFIs.

We also expanded our microlending outreach to Morocco, where we are
partners with Al-Amana, one of the country’ largest providers of micro-
finance. Citigroup is helping to capitalize Al-Amana’s lending portfolio
and working closely with the institution to increase its capacity to meet

the growing demands of microentrepreneurs.

FINANCIAL EDUCATION

In 2001, Citigroup strengthened its commitment to financial education
by providing more opportunities for individuals and institutions to learn
about managing their finances.

In the U.S., Citibank offered some 1,400 free financial education semi-
nars attended by more than 23,000 individuals. In addition, Smith
Barney continued sponsorship of its Target Market investor education
programs that give women, minorities and young investors greater
insight into investing and the financial markets. At Travelers, consumer
education was offered in loss prevention and safety through its partner-
ship with the Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation’s National
Insurance Task Force.

In Taiwan, we launched the Citibank Personal Finance Seminar Series
on EduCities, a Web site that provides free access to hundreds of
courses. In China, we opened the Citigroup-Fudan International
Management Center, which offers training programs to help develop
management talent there. Another successful program is Salomon Smith
Barney Australia’s ASX Schools Sharemarket Game, which provides
teams of high school students hands-on experience trading virtual

shares via the Internet.

During 2001, more than 17,000 students attended Academies of

* Finance, a program of the National Academy Foundation, founded and

chaired by Citigroup Chairman & CEO Sandy Weill. While preparing for
careers in the financial services industry, these students also develop their
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own personal finance skills. In the spring of 2001, Citigroup named
20 graduating seniors from across the country as its first Academy of
Finance Scholars. This annual scholarship program provides selected stu-
dents with $20,000 scholarships, along with internship opportunities
and a mentor from Citigroup.

EDUCATING THE REXT GENERATION

Recognizing that knowledge enables individuals and societies to realize
their full potential, Citigroup is committed to supporting education and
career development at every level. In Singapore, we expanded our suc-
cessful Foundations in Finance program to the secondary school level
and sponsored the countrys first global business plan competition for

university students.

The Citigroup Success Fund multimarket program awards grants to edu-
cators to develop innovative, easily replicable, grassroots programs aimed
at helping students succeed. In 2001, Citigroup provided grants totaling
$798,000 to support Success Fund programs in California, Florida,
Georgia, New York, Singapore, Hong Kong and Guam that afforded
thousands of teachers an opportunity to put their best ideas into action.

THE ENVIRONMENT

We recognize the importance of responsible environmental stewardship
and continue to work with key environmental organizations. In 2001,
along with expanding our relationship with environmental organizations
such as Conservation International and World Resources Institute, we
established new partnerships with the World Wildlife Fund and others.
In addition, we focused on raising the awareness of our employees about
the opportunities and challenges associated with environmental issues
and conducted training sessions for our bankers on environmental risk

manageiment.

VOLUNTEERISH

Citigroup encourages volunteerism. We have a diverse range of company-

sponsored employee programs in countries such as Australia, Brazil,
Indonesia, Turkey, the UK. and the U.S.
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One of our leading volunteer activ-

ities is “hands-on” community
building. In Colombia, 300
Citibank employees are involved
in the School Construction
Program helping to build schools
and collect educational supplies
benefiting more than 2,000
children,

[n 2001, the Citigroup Foundation
further strengthened our U.S.
Citigroup Builds Communities
with Habitat for Humanity volun-
teer program with a $1 million
grant. Since Citigroup launched
the program two years ago, more
than 6,000 employees in 20 states
have contributed 64,000 volun-
teer hours. Our employees in
Bolivia, Colombia, Kenya,
Paraguay, Peru, the Philippines,
South Africa, South Korea,
Uganda and Venezuela were

also involved in local Habitat
projects.




AS THE WORLD'S LEADING FINANCIAL SERVICES PROVIDER TO iNDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE CLIENTS,

CITIGROUP IS RECOGNIZED BY INDEPENDENT ORGANIZATIONS, THE MEDIA AND CLIENTS AS THE

BEST IN THE INDUSTRY. FOLLOWING IS A SAMPLING OF THIS RECOGNITION:

ADWEEK
Named a Live Richly Ad—Delivery Room—
One of Best Spots of the Year

AMERICAN FOUNDATION
FOR THE BLIND

Helen Keller Award (talking ATMs)

ASIAMONEY
Best Cash Management Bank in Asia
Best Derivatives Bank in Asia

BARRON'S

Salomon Brothers Asset Management
Ranked Number Four in the Mutual
Fund Family Annual Rankings

CORPORATE FINANCE

Best Bank for Project Finance

COUNCIL FOR AID TO EDUCATION
2001 Leaders for Change

Best in Class

DARWIN

Fittest 50 e-Business

EUROCMONEY
World’s Best Bank

World’s Best Global Bank in Emerging Markets
World’s Best Foreign Exchange Bank

Best Bank in Latin America

Best Bank in Asia

Best Bank in Africa

Best Bank in Online FX

Best Online Site for Cash Management
World’s Best Credit Bond House

FINANCE ASIA
Best Bank

Best Commercial Bank
Best Cash Management Bank
Best Foreign Exchange Bank

FINANCIAL TIMES
World’s Most Respected Financial Company

FORBES
Number One on Forbes Super 50
Citibank Online Named Forbes Favorite

Smith Barney Aggressive Growth Fund
Honor Roll

FORTUNE
Citigroup Named to Top 10 of America’s
Most Admired Companies

FREDDIE AWARD
Diners Club/Club Rewards, Best Frequent
Traveler Affinity Charge/Credit Program

FX WEEK

Best Bank for Foreign Exchange

GLOBAL FINANCE
Best Global FX Bank

Best Global Consumer Bank

Best Bank in Middle East/Africa (SAMBA)
Best Global Emerging Markets Bank

Best Trade Finance Bank Globally

Best Internet Bank in Latin America

Best Internet Bank in Asia Pacific

GLOBAL INVESTOR
Best FX Provider

Best Clearing Bank in Equities
Best Clearing Bank in Fixed Income

GOMEZ ADVISORS

Citibank Online: Number One Online
Banking Service

CitiCards.com Ranked Number One Among
Online Credit Card Sites

HISPANIC MAGAZINE
Top 100 Companies Providing the Most
Opportunities to Hispanics

INDEPENDENT INSURANCE AGENTS
CF AMERICA

Best Practices Award of Excellence

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR

Top Fixed Income Trading Firm
Top All-America Research Team
Number One in Global Custody Top 20

INTERNATIONAL FINANCING REVIEW
Best Global Bond House

Best US. Dollar Bond House
Best Japan Securitization House
Best Latin America Loan House

INTERNATIONAL FINANCING
REVIEW ASIA

Bank of the Year

LAFFERTY GROUP/RETAIL BANK
INTERNATIONAL

Best Global Retail Bank

LATIN FINANCE

Best Regional Bank in Latin America

LATINA STYLE
Number One Company for Latinas to Work
for in the U.S.

MUTUAL FUNDS MAGAZINE

Best in Class:

Smith Barney Large Cap Growth Fund

Smith Barney Social Awareness Fund

Salomon Brothers Capital Fund

Smith Barney Fundamental Value Fund &
Smith Barney Security and Growth Fund

Smith Barney Aggressive Growth Fund
Smith Barney Appreciation Fund

RED HERRING

Top Investment Bank

RISK

Derivatives House of the Year

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Excellence in Lending

Citibank: Special Recognition (9/11 Support)
THE ASSET

Best Commercial Bank in Asia
Best Cash Management Bank
Best Foreign Exchange Bank

Best Asian Currency Bond House
Best Loan House

Best Project Finance House

Best Structured Trade Finance Bank

THE BANKER

Global Bank of the Year
Best Bank in North America
Best Use of Technology
Bond House of the Year

FX House of the Year

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL
Ranked Number One in Best of the Street
Survey

WOMEN & DIVERSITY
LEADERSHIP SUMMIT

Diversity Best Practices

WORKING MOTHER
100 Best Companies for Working
Mothers—Top 10

WORTH

Best Online Bank

Readers’ Choice: Number One
in Online Banking
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THE COMPANY

Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup and, together with its subsidiaries, the Company) is a
diversified global financial services holding company whose businesses provide
a broad range of financial services to consumer and corporate customers with
192 million customer accounts in over 100 countries and territories. Citigroup
was incorporated in 1988 under the laws of the State of Delaware.

The Company's activities are conducted through Global Consumer, Global
Corporate, Global Investment Management and Private Banking, and
Investment Activities.

The Company has completed certain strategic business acquisitions during
the past three years, details of which can be found in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company is a bank holding company within the meaning of the U.S.
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (BHC Act) registered with, and subject to
examination by, the Federal Reserve Board (FRB). Certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries are subject to supervision and examination by their respective
federal and state authorities. Additional information on the Company’s
regulation and supervision can be found within the Regulation and
Supervision section beginning on page 124.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately 145,000 full-time
and 4,000 part-time employees in the United States and approximately
123,000 employees outside of the United States.

The periodic reports of Citicorp, Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.,
Travelers Insurance Group Holdings Inc., The Student Loan Corporation
(STU), The Travelers Insurance Company (TIC), and Travelers Life and
Annuity Company (TLAC), subsidiaries of the Company that make filings
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange
Act), provide additional business and financial information concerning those
companies and their consolidated subsidiaries.

The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 399 Park
Avenue, New York, New York 10043, telephone number 212-559-1000.
Additional information is available on the Company’s web site at
(http:/fwww.citigroup.com).

GLOBAL CONSUMER

Global Consumer delivers a wide array of banking, lending, insurance and
investment services through a network of local branches, offices and
electronic delivery systems, including ATMs, unmanned kiosks and the World
Wide Web. The businesses of Global Consumer serve individual consumers as
well as small businesses.

Citibanking North America delivers banking, lending, and investment
services through 445 branches and through Citibank Online, an enhanced
Internet banking site on the World Wide Web.

The Mortgage Banking business originates and services mortgages and
student loans for customers across North America.

The North America Cards unit combines the operations of Citi Cards and
Diners Club, whose products include MasterCard, VISA and private label credit
and charge cards issued to customers across North America. At December 31,
2001, Citi Cards had 93 million accounts and $109 billion of managed
receivables, which represented approximately 20% of the U.S. credit card
receivables market. New accounts are acquired through multiple channels
including direct marketing efforts, the Internet, and portfolio acquisitions.

CitiFinancial provides community-based lending services through its
branch network system, regional sales offices and cross-selling initiatives
with other Citigroup businesses. As of Decemnber 31, 2001, CitiFinancial

maintained 2,221 loan offices in North America that offer real estate-secured
loans, unsecured and partially secured personal loans, auto loans and loans
to finance consumer goods purchases. In addition, CitiFinancial, through
certain subsidiaries and third parties, makes available various credit-related
and other insurance products to its U.S. consumer finance customers.

The business operations of Primerica Financial Services (Primerica)
involve the sale in North America of life insurance and other products
manufactured by its affiliates, including Smith Barney mutual funds,
CitiFinancial mortgages and personal loans and TIC annuity products.

The Primerica sales force is composed of over 100,000 independent
representatives. A great majority of the sales force works on a part-time basis.

Through Travelers Property Casualty Corp. (TPC), Global Consumer writes
virtually all types of property and casualty insurance covering personal risks.
The Personal Lines unit of TPC had approximately 5.4 million policies in
force at December 31, 2001. The primary coverages are personal automobile
and homeowners insurance sold to individuals, and are distributed through
approximately 7,600 independent agencies located throughout the United
States. Personal Lines also uses additional distribution channels, including
sponsoring organizations such as employers” and consumer associations, and
joint marketing arrangements with other insurers.

The International unit of Global Consumer provides full-service banking
and community-based lending, including credit and charge cards, and
investment services in Western Europe, Japan, Asia {excluding Japan),
CEEMEA (Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East, & Africa), Latin America
and Mexico, which includes the results of all operations of Banamex and
Citibank Mexico, through more than 3,000 branches and offices in 52
countries and territories.

e-Consumer is the business responsible for developing and implementing
Citigroup’s Internet financial services products and e-commerce solutions.
e-Consurner’s mission is to build and deliver new forms of financial services
that meet the changing needs of customers and to facilitate all aspects of
e-commerce as it grows with the new digital economy.

GLOBAL CORPORATE

Global Corporate provides corporations, governments, institutions and
investors in 100 countries and territories with a broad range of financial
products and services, including investment advice, financial planning and
retail brokerage services, banking and financial services and commercial
insurance products.

Global Corporate, through the Corporate and Investment Bank (CIB),
delivers investment banking and commercial banking services in North
America, Western Europe and Japan, and also includes investment banking
services in the emerging markets. CIB delivers a full range of global capital
market activities, including the underwriting and distribution of fixed income
and equity securities for United States and foreign corporations and for state,
local and other governmental and government-sponsored authorities. CIB
also provides capital raising, advisory, research and other brokerage services
to its customers, acts as a market-maker and executes securities and
commodities futures brokerage transactions on all major United States and
international exchanges on behalf of customers and for its own account. CIB
also offers foreign exchange, structured products, derivatives, loans, leasing,
and equipment finance produgcts. CIB trades for its own account in various
markets throughout the world and uses many different strategies involving a
broad spectrum of financial instruments and derivative products.




Global Corporate is a major participant in foreign exchange and in the
over-the-counter (OTC) market for derivative instruments involving a wide
range of products, including interest rate, equity and currency swaps, caps
and floors, options, warrants and other derivative products, It also creates and
sells various types of structured securities.

Citibank has a long-standing presence in emerging markets, which
includes all locations outside North America, Western Europe and Japan.
Citigroup’s Emerging Markels Corporate Banking and Global
Transaction Services (EM Corporate & GTS) business offers a wide array of
banking and financial services products and services that help multinational
and local companies fulfill their financial goals or needs. Citigroup’s
strategies focus on its plans to gain market share in selected priority emerging
market countries and to establish Citibank as a local bank as well as a leading
international bank. Citibank typically enters a country to serve global
customers, providing them with cash management, trade services, short-term
loans and foreign-exchange services. Then, Citibank offers project finance,
fixed-income issuance and trading and, later, introduces securities custody,
loan syndications and derivatives services. Finally, as a brand image is
established and services for locally headquartered companies become
significant, consumer banking services may be offered. The EM Corporate &
GTS segment also includes the global results of cash management, securities
custody and trade services. .

TPC’s Commercial Lines unit offers a broad array of property and casualty
insurance and insurance-related services, which it distributes through
approximately 6,300 brokers and independent agencies located throughout
the United States. TPC is the third largest writer of commercial lines
insurance in the U.S. based on 2000 direct written premiums published by
AM. Best Company. Commercial Lines is organized into five marketing and
underwriting groups, each of which focuses on a particular client base or
product grouping to provide products and services that specifically address
clients’ needs: National Accounts, primarily serving large national
corporations; Commercial Accounts, serving mid-size businesses; Select
Accounts, serving small businesses; Bond, providing specialty products which
include surety bonds and executive liability; and Gulf, providing a variety of
specialty coverages. Environmental, asbestos and other cumulative injury
claims are segregated from other claims and are handled separately by TPC's
Special Liability Group, a separate unit staffed by dedicated legal, cfaim,
finance, and engineering professionals.

GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND
PRIVATE BANKING

Global Investment Management and Private Banking is composed of
Travelers Life and Annuity, The Citigroup Private Bank and Citigroup
Asset Management,

These businesses offer a broad range of life insurance, annuities, and asset
management products and services from global investment centers around
the world, including individual annuities, group annuities, individual life
insurance products, corporate owned life insurance (COLI), mutual funds,
closed-end funds, managed accounts, unit investment trusts, variable
annuities, alternative investments, pension administration and personalized
wealth management services distributed to institutional, high net worth and
retail clients.
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Travelers Life and Annuity (TLA) offers individual annuity, group
annuity, individual life insurance and COLI products. The individual products
include fixed and variable deferred annuities, payout annuities, and term and
universal life insurance. These products are primarily distributed through
Citigroup businesses, a nationwide network of independent agents and
unaffiliated broker dealers. The COLI product is a variable universal life
product distributed through independent specialty brokers. The group
annuity products offered include institutional pension products, including
guaranteed investrment contracts, payout annuities, structured finance, and
group annuities to U.S. employer-sponsored retirement and savings plans
through direct sales and various intermediaries.

The Citigroup Private Bank provides personalized wealth management
services for high net worth clients through 90 offices in 31 countries and
territories, generating fee and interest income from investment funds
management and customer trading activity, trust and fiduciary services,
custody services, and traditional banking and lending activities. Through its
Private Bankers and Product Specialists, The Citigroup Private Bank leverages
its extensive experience with clients’ needs and its access to the breadth and
depth of Citigroup to provide clients with comprehensive investment and
banking services tailored to the way they create and manage their wealth and
lifestyles in today’s economy,

Citigroup Asset Management includes Smith Barney Asset Management,
Salomon Brothers Asset Management, and Citibank Asset Management
along with the pension administration and insurance businesses of Global
Retirement Services. Clients include private and public retirement plans,
endowments, foundations, banks, central banks, insurance companies, other
corporations, government agencies and high net worth and other individuals.
(lient relationships may be introduced through the cross marketing and
distribution channels within Citigroup, through Citigroup Asset Management's
own sales force or through independent sources.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company's fnvesiment Activities segment consists primarily of its
venture capital activities, realized investment gains and losses from certain
insurance related investments, results from certain proprietary investments,
the results of certain investments in countries that refinanced debt under
the 1989 Brady Plan or plans of a similar nature and since August 2001, the
investment portfolio related to Banamex.

CORPORATE/OTHER

Corporate/Other includes net corporate treasury results, corporate staff and
other corporate expenses, certain intersegment eliminations, and the
remainder of Internet-related development activities not allocated to the
individual businesses.




FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA Ciigroup inc. and Subsidiaries

In millions of doliars, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Total revenues $ 112,022 3111826 $ 94,396 §$ 85925 $ 80,530
Total revenues, net of interest expense 80,057 75,188 65,722 55,233 53,231
Benefits, claims and credit losses 18,559 15,486 13,880 12,788 11,455
Operating expensest! 39,601 38,558 33,691 31,360 29,471
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 14,284 13,519 11,370 6,950 7,682
Cumulative effect of accounting changes @ (158) — (127 — —
Net income $ 14126 $ 13519 $ 11243 $ 6950 § 7,682

Earnings per share®
Basic earnings per share:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes $ 282 $ 269 $ 226 $ 135 $ 148

Net income 279 2.69 2.23 1.35 1.48
Diluted earnings per share:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 2.7 282 219 1.31 1.42

Net income 2.72 2.62 217 1.31 1.42
Dividends declared per common share @@ 0.600 0.520 0.405 0.277 0.200
At December 31,
Total assets $1,061,450 $902,210 $795,584 $740,336 $755,167
Total deposits 374525 300,586 261,573 229,413 199,867
Long-term debt 121,631 111,778 88,481 86,250 75,605
Mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 7,125 4,920 4,920 4,320 2,995
Redeemable preferred stock - — — 140 280
Common stockholders' equity 79,722 64,461 56,395 48,761 44,610
Total stockhelders' equity 81,247 66,206 58,290 51,035 47,956
Ratio of earnings te fixed charges and preferred stock dividends 1.67x 1.56x 1.61x 1.34x 1.42x
Return on average common stockholders’ equity® 19.7% 22.4% 21.5% 14.4% 17.5%
Common stockholders’ equity to assets 7.58% 7.14% 7.09% 6.59% 5.91%
Total stockholders’ equity to assets 7.73% 7.34% 7.33% 6.89% 6.35%
Income Analysis ©
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 80,057 $75188 §$ 65722 §$ 55233 § 53,231
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707 2,364 1,734
Housing Finance unit charge @ - 47 - — —
Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense 83,625 77,694 68,429 57,597 54,965
Adjusted operating expenses © 39,143 37,775 33,744 30,565 27,753
Benefits, claims and credit losses 18,559 15,486 13,880 12,788 11,455
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707 2,364 1,734
Housing Finance unit charge ™ - (40) — - —
Adjusted benefits, claims and credit losses 22,127 17,905 16,587 15,152 13,189
Restructuring- and merger-related items (458) (759 53 (795) (1,718
Housing Finance unit charge @ - (112 — — —
Income before taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect of accounting changes 21,897 21,143 18,151 11,085 12,305
Provision for income taxes 7,526 7,525 6,530 3,907 4,411
Minority interest, net of income taxes 87 99 251 228 212
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 14,284 13,519 11,370 8,950 7,682
Cumulative effect of accounting changes @ (158) — (127) — -
Net income $ 14126 $ 13519 $ 11,243 § 6950 § 7,682

{1) The years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997 include net restructuring-related items (and in 2000 and 1998 merger-refated items) of $458 million ($285 million after-tax}, $759 million ($550
million after-tax), ($53) mitlion (($25) milion after-tax), $785 million ($535 milfion after-tax} and $1,718 million (31,046 million after-tax), respectively. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Accounting changes in 2001 include the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended (SFAS 133), of ($42) million and
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF} Issug No. 99-20, “Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets” (EITF 39-20) of ($116) million.
Accounting changes in 1999 include the adoption of Statement of Position (SOP) 97-3, “Accounting by Insurance and Other Enterprises for insurance-Related Assessments” of ($135) million; SOP 98-7, *Deposit
Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Gentracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk” of $23 million; and SOP 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities” of ($15) million. See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

(3) All amounts have been adjusted to reflect stock splits.

(4) Armounts prior to 1399 represent Travelers’ historical dividends per commaon share.

(5} The return on average common stockholders’ equity is calculated using net income after deducting preferred stock dividend.

(6) The income analysis reconciles amounts shown in the Consolidated Statement of Income on page 80 to the basis presented in the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations section.

(7) The 2000 period includes charges associated with the discontinuation of the loan origination operations of the Associates Housing Finance unit.

(8) Excludes restructuring- and merger-related items and the discontinuation of Associates Housing Financa loan ariginations in 2000.

32




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The year ended December 31, 2001 presented the Company with a
challenging economic environment, a continued global recession, the
September 11th terrorist attack, Enron’s bankruptcy and severe economic
turmoil in Argentina,

Impact from Argentina's Political and Economic Changes
During the fourth quarter of 2001, Argentina underwent significant political
and economic changes. The government of Argentina implemented
substantial economic changes, including abandoning the country’s fixed
U.S. dollar-to-peso exchange rate, as well as converting certain U.S. dollar-
denominated consumer loans into pesos. The Company recognized charges
in the 2001 fourth quarter of $235 million (pretax) related to write-downs

of Argentine credit exposures and $235 million (pretax) in losses related to
the foreign exchange revaluation of the consumer loan portfolio. Since year-
end, the government announced additional steps, including redenomination
of substantially all of the remaining dollar denominated loans and dollar
denominated deposits into pesos, and new government bonds, which in part
are designed to compensate for the redenomination of assets and liabilities
into pesos. The Argentine government is attempting to stabilize the economic
environment. As these financial regulations and implementation issues
remain fluid, we are working with the Argentine government and our
customers and will continue to monitor conditions closely and assess the
financial impact. Financial results in 2002 are likely to be impacted. This
statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Staternents”
on page 62.

Impact from Enron

As a result of the financial deterioration and eventual bankruptcy of Enron
Corporation in the fourth quarter of 2001, Citigroup’s results were reduced by
$228 million (pretax) as a result of the write-down of Enron-related credit
exposure and trading positions, and the impairment of Enron-related
investments. We will continue to monitor this situation and its impact. This
statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on
page 62.

September 11th Events

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attack financially impacted the Company in
several areas. After-tax losses recorded in the third quarter of 2001 related to
insurance claims {net of reinsurance impact) totaled $502 million. Revenues
were reduced due to the disruption to Gitigroup's businesses and additional
expenses incurred as a result of the attack resulted in after-tax losses of
approximately $200 million. The Gompany also experienced significant
property loss, for which it is insured. The Company has recorded insurance
recoveries up to the net book value of the assets written off. Additional
insurance recoveries will be booked when they are realized. Losses attributable
to insurance claims are based in part on estimates by the Company of
insurance losses and related reinsurance recoverables. The associated reserves
and related reinsurance recoverables represent the estimated ultimate net
costs of all incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses. Since the reserve
and related reinsurance recoverables are based on estimates, the ultimate net
liability may be more or less than such amounts. This statement is a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62,

Acquisition of Banamex

On August 6, 2001, Citicorp, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup,
completed its acquisition of 99.86% of the issued and outstanding ordinary
shares of Grupo Financiero Banamex-Accival (Banamex), 4 leading Mexican
financial institution, for approximately $12.5 billion in cash and Citigroup
stock. Citicorp completed the acquisition by settling transactions that were
conducted on the Mexican Stock Exchange. On September 24, 2001, Citicorp
became the holder of 100% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares

of Banamex following a share redemption by Banamex. The results of
Banamex are included from August 2001 forward within the Global
Consumer-Mexico and Investment Activities segments. Banamex’s and
Citicorp’s banking operations in Mexico have been integrated and conduct
business under the “Banamex” brand name.

Planned Initial Public Offering and Tax-Free
Distribution of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.

Citigroup announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. (TPC), intends to sell 2 minority interest in TPC in an initial
public offering and Citigroup intends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such amount of the remainder of its interest in TPC so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TPC
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution. The distribution
is expected to be concluded by year-end 2002.

Citigroup business units will continue to offer certain TPC products and
the two companies plan to enter into an agreement under which a Citigroup
subsidiary will provide investment advisory as well as certain back office and
data processing services to TPC during a transition period.

The distribution is subject to various regulatory approvals as well as a
private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the distribution
will be tax-free to Citigroup and its stockholders. Citigroup has no obligation
to consummate the distribution by the end of 2002 or at all, whether or not
these conditions are satisfied.

In February 2002, TPC declared two dividends of $1 billion and
$3.7 billion.

Citigroup has offered to enter into an agreemnent that will provide that,
in the event that in any fiscal year TPG records ashestos-related income
staternent charges in excess of $150 million (pretax), net of any reinsurance,
Citigroup will pay to TPC the amount of any such excess up to a cumulative
aggregate of $800 million, reduced by the tax effect of the highest Federal
income tax rate as applied to TPC. A portion of the gain expected to be
realized as a result of the offering will be deferred to offset any payments
arising in connection with this agreement.

These statements are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Managed Basis Reporting

The business segment discussions that follow include amounts reported in
the financial statements (owned basis) adjusted to reflect certain effects of
securitization activities, receivables held for securitization, and receivables
sold with servicing retained (managed basis). On a managed basis, these
earnings are reclassified and presented as if the receivabies had neither been
held for securitization nor sold.




The income analysis on page 32 reconciles amounts shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Income on page 80 to the basis presented in the
business segment discussions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contain a summary of
Citigroup’s significant accounting policies, including a discussion of recently-
issued accounting pronouncements. Certain of these policies are considered
to be important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition, since
they require management to make difficult, complex or subjective judgments,
some of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain. These
policies include valuation of financial instruments where no ready market
exists, determining the level of the allowance for credit losses and insurance
policy and claims reserves, and accounting for securitizations. Additional
information about these policies can be found in Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The statements below contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-
Looking Statements” on page 62.

Valuation of Financial Instruments with
No Ready Markets

Investments include fixed maturity and equity securities, derivatives,
investments in venture capital activities and other financial instruments,
Citigroup carries its investments at fair value if they are considered to be
available-forsale or trading securities. For the substantial majority of our
portfolios, fair values are determined based upon externally verifiable model
inputs and quoted prices. All financial models which are used for updating
the firm’s published financial statements, or for independent risk monitoring,
must be validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created the model. Changes in value of
available-for-sale securities are recognized in a component of stockholders’
equity, unless the value is impaired and the impairment is not considered to
be temporary. Impairment losses that are not considered temporary are
recognized in earnings. The Company conducts regular reviews to assess
whether other-than-temporary impairment exists. Deteriorating economic
conditions— global, regional, or related to specific issuers—could adversely
affect these values. Changes in the fair value of trading account assets and
liabilities are recognized in earnings. Venture capital subsidiaries also carry
their investments at fair value with changes in value recognized in earnings.

If available, quoted market prices provide the best indication of value.
If quoted market prices are not available for fixed maturity securities,
derivatives or commodities, the Company discounts the expected cash flows
using market interest rates commensurate with the credit quality and
maturity of the investment. Alternatively, matrix or model pricing may be
used to determine an appropriate fair value. The determination of market or
fair value considers various factors, including time value and volatility
factors, underlying options, warrants, and derivatives; price activity for
equivalent synthetic instruments; counterparty credit quality; the potential
impact on market prices or fair value of liquidating the Company's positions
in an orderly manner over a reasonable period of time under current market
conditions; and derivative transaction maintenance costs during the period.
Changes in assumptions could affect the fair values of investments.

For venture capital investments in publicly traded securities, fair value is
generally based upon quoted market prices. In certain situations, including

thinly traded securities, large block holdings, restricted shares or other special
situations, the quoted market price is adjusted to produce an estimate of the
attainable fair value for the securities. For investments that are not publicly
traded, estimates of fair value are made based upon a review of the investee’s
financial results, condition and prospects and discounted cash flows, together
with comparisons to similar companies for which quoted market prices are
available. See discussion of trading account assets and liabilities, and
investments in Sunmary of Significant Accounting Policies in Note 1 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses represents management’s estimate of probable
losses inherent in the portfolio. This evaluation process is subject to
numerous estimates and judgments. The frequency of default, risk ratings,
and the loss recovery rates, among other things, are considered in making
this evaluation, as are the size and diversity of individual large credits.
Changes in these estimates could have a direct impact on the provision and
could result in a change in the allowance.

Larger balance, non-homogeneous exposures representing significant
individual credit exposures are evaluated based upon the borrower’s overall
financial condition, resources, and payment record; the prospects for support
from any financially responsible guarantors; and, if appropriate, the
realizable value of any collateral. The allowance for credit losses attributed to
these loans is established via a process that begins with estimates of probable
loss inherent in the portfolio based upon various statistical analyses. These
analyses consider historical and projected default rates and loss severities;
internal risk ratings; geographic, industry, and other environmental factors;
and model imprecision, Management also considers overall portfolio
indicators, including trends in internally risk-rated exposures, classified
exposures, cash-basis loans, and historical and forecasted write-offs; and a
review of industry, geographic, and portfolio concentrations, including
current developments within those segments. In addition, management
considers the current business strategy and credit process, including credit
limit setting and compliance, credit approvals, loan underwriting criteria,
and loan workout procedures,

Within the allowance for credit losses, amounts are specified for larger-
balance, non-homogeneous loans that have been individually determined to
be impaired. These reserves consider all available evidence, including, as
appropriate, the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at
the loan’s contractual effective rate, the secondary market value of the loan
and the fair value of collateral.

Each portfolio of smaller balance, homogeneous loans, including
consumer mortgage, installment, revolving credit and most other consumer
loans, is collectively evaluated for impairment. The allowance for credit losses
is established via a process that begins with estimates of probable losses
inherent in the portfolio, based upon various statistical analyses. These
include migration analysis, in which historical delinquency and credit loss
experience is applied to the current aging of the portfolio, together with
analyses that reflect current trends and conditions. Management also
considers overall portfolio indicators including historical credit losses,
delinquent, non-performing and classified loans, and trends in volumes and
terms of loans; an evaluation of overall credit quality and the credit process,
including lending policies and procedures; economic, geographical, product,
and other environmental factors; and model imprecision.




This evaluation includes an assessment of the ability of borrowers with
foreign currency obligations to obtain the foreign currency necessary for
orderly debt servicing,

During the year-ended December 31, 2001, there were increases in net
credit losses, cash-basis loans and delinquency rates. If such experience
continues, higher loss experience could result in the future. See discussions of
Consumer Credit Risk and Corporate Credit Risk in Management's Discussion
and Analysis for additional information.

Insurance Policy and Claims Reserves

Insurance policy and claims reserves represent liabilities for future insurance
policy benefits. Insurance reserves for traditional life insurance, annuities,
and accident and health policies have been computed based upon mortality,
morbidity, persistency and interest rate assumptions (ranging from 2.5% to
8.1%) applicable to theses coverages, including adverse deviation. These
assumptions consider Company experience and industry standards and may
be revised if it is determined that future experience will differ substantially
from that previously assumed. Property-casualty reserves include (1)
unearned premiums representing the unexpired portion of policy premiums
and (2) estimated provisions for both reported and unreported claims
incurred and related expenses.

In determining insurance policy and claims reserves, the Company
performs a continuing review of its overall position, its reserving techniques
and its reinsurance. The reserves are also reviewed periodically by a qualified
actuary employed by the Company. The Company maintains property and
casualty loss reserves to cover the estimated ultimate unpaid liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses with respect to reported and unreported claims
incurred as of the end of each accounting period. Reserves do not represent
an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent estimates, generally
utilizing actuarial projection techniques at a given accounting date. These
reserve estimates are expectations of what the ultimate settlement and
administration of claims will cost based on an assessment of facts and
circumstances then known, review of historical settlement patterns, estimates
of trends in claims severity, frequency, legal theories of liability and other
factors. Variables in the reserve estimation process can be affected by both
internal and external events, such as changes in claims handling procedures,
economic inflation, legal trends and legislative changes. Many of these items
are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis. Additionally,
there may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured
event and the time it is actually reported to the insurer. Reserve estimates are
continually refined in a regular ongoing process as historical loss experience
develops and additional claims are reported and settled. Adjustments to
reserves are reflected in the results of operations in the periods in which the
estimates are changed. Because establishment of resetves is an inherently
uncertain process involving estimates, currently established reserves may not
be sufficient. If estimated reserves are insufficient, the Company will incur
additional income statement charges, which could be material to our
operating results in future periods.

Additional information on the uncertainties relating to environmental and
asbestos claims and litigation can be found in the Commercial Lines section
of Management’s Discussion and Analysis. Additional information about
Citigroup’s insurance policy and claims reserves can be found in Note 13 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Securitizations

Securitization is a process by which a legal entity issues certain securities to
investors, which securities pay a return based on the principal and interest
cash flows from a pool of loans or other financial assets. Citigroup securitizes
credit card receivables, mortgages, home equity loans, and auto loans that

it originated and/or purchased and certain other financial assets. After
receivables or loans are securitized, the Company continues to maintain
account relationships with credit card holders and certain mortgage and
home equity and auto loan customers. As a result, the Company continues

to consider these securitized assets to be part of the business it manages.
Citigroup also assists its clients in securitizing the clients’ financial assets.
Citigroup may provide administrative, underwriting, liquidity facilities and/or
other services to the resulting securitization entities, and may continue to
service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity.

There are two key accounting determinations that must be made relating
to securitizations. In the case where Citigroup originated or previously owned
the financial assets transferred to the securitization entity, a decision must be
made as to whether that transfer would be considered a sale for generally
accepted accounting purposes. The second key determination to be made is
whether the securitization entity should be considered a subsidiary of the
Company and be consolidated into the Company’s financial statements or
whether the entity is sufficiently independent that it does not need to be
consolidated. If the securitization entity’s activities are sufficiently restricted
to meet certain accounting requirements, the securitization entity is not
consolidated by the seller of the transferred assets. Most of the Company’s
securitization transactions meet the criteria for sale accounting and
nonconsolidation.

Additional information on the Company'’s securitization activities can
be found in the Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements section on page 71 and
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Business Combinations, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets

Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and certain provisions
of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” as required for
goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business combinations
consummated after June 30, 2001. The new rules require that all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the
purchase method. The nonamortization provisions of the new rules affecting
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are effective for
all purchase business combinations completed after June 30, 2001.

On January 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS
142 when the rules became effective for calendar year companies. Under the
new rules, effective January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to
have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual
impairment tests. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives.

Based on current levels of goodwill and an evaluation of the Company’s
intangible assets, which determined that certain intangible assets should be
reclassified as goodwill and identified other intangible assets that have




indefinite lives, the nonamortization provisions of the new standards will
reduce other expense by approximately $570 million and increase net income
by approximately $450 million in 2002.

During 2002, the Company will perform the required impairment tests of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1, 2002. It is not
expected that the adoption of the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 will have a
material effect on the financial statements as a result of these impairment tests.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a
replacement of FASB Statement No. 125 (SFAS 140). In July 2001, FASB
issued Technical Bulletin No. 01-1, “Effective Date for Certain Financial
Institutions of Certain Provisions of Statement 140 Related to the Isolation
of Transferred Assets.”

Certain provisions of SFAS 140 require that the structure for transfers of
financial assets to certain securitization vehicles be modified to comply with
revised isolation guidance for institutions subject to receivership by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. These provisions will become effective
for transfers taking place after December 31, 2001, with an additional
transition period ending no later than September 30, 2006 for transfers to
certain master trusts. It is not expected that these provisions will materially
affect the financial statements. SFAS 140 also provides revised guidance for an
entity to be considered a qualifying special purpose entity.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

On January 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144), when the rule
became effective for calendar year companies. SFAS 144 establishes additional
criteria as compared to existing generally accepted accounting principles to
determine when a long-lived asset is held for sale. It also broadens the
definition of “discontinued operations,” but does not allow for the accrual of
future operating losses, as was previously permitted.

The provisions of the new standard are generally to be applied
prospectively. The provisions of SFAS 144 will affect the timing of discontinued
operations treatment for the planned initial public offering and tax-free
distribution of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.
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Business Focus

The table below shows the core income (loss) for each of Citigroup's

businesses for the three years ended December 31:

In mitlions of doftars, except per share data 2001 20000 19930
Global Consumer
Citibanking North America $ 605 § 49 $ 373
Mortgage Banking 353 297 249
North America Cards 2,133 1,787 1,436
CitiFinancial 1,126 810 761

Total Banking/Lending 4,217 3,390 2,819
Primerica Financial Services 512 492 452
Personal Lines 208 307 280

Total Insurance 720 799 732
Western Europe 483 384 312
Japan 928 729 494

Asia 611 550 352

Latin America 120 250 193

Mexico 346 56 83

Central & Eastern Europe,

Middle East & Africa 89 50 38

Total Emerging Markets Consumer Banking 1,166 906 666

Tota! International 2,577 2,019 1,472
e-Consumer 7 (160) (110)
Other n) (44) 62
Total Global Consumer 7,366 6,004 4,975
Global Corporate
Corporate and Investment Bank 3,509 3,670 3,372
Emerging Markets Corporate Banking

and Global Transaction Services 1,644 1,403 882
Commercial Lines 691 1,093 884
Total Global Corporate 5,844 6,166 5138
Global Investrent Management

and Private Banking
Travelers Life and Annuity 821 777 623
The Citigroup Private Bank 378 323 269
Citigroup Asset Management 336 345 327
Total Global Investment Management and

Private Banking 1,535 1,445 1,219
Investment Activities 530 1,383 650
Corporate/Other (706) (858) (637)
Core income 14,569 14,140 11,345
Restructuring- and merger-related

items, after-tax (285) (550) 25
Housing Finance unit charge, after-tax - 71 —
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (158) — (127)
Net income $14,126 $13,519 $11,243
Diluted earnings per share
Core income $ 281 $ 274 $ 219
Net income $ 272 $ 262 $ 217

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Income and Earnings Per Share
Citigroup reported 2001 core income of §14.569 billion or $2.81 per diluted
share, both up 3% from $14.140 billion or $2.74 per diluted share in 2000.
Core income in 2001 excluded $285 million in after-tax restructuring-related
items and $158 million in after-tax charges reflecting the cumulative effect of
adopting SFAS 133 and EITF 99-20, as described in Notes 1 and 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Core incorne in 2000 excluded $621
million in after-tax restructuring- and merger-refated items. Core income of
$11.345 billion or $2.19 per diluted share in 1999 excluded a release of §25
million after-tax in restructuring-related items and an after-tax charge of
$127 million reflecting the cumulative effect of adopting several new
accounting standards as described in Notes 1 and 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Net income in 2001 was $14.126 billion or $2.72 per diluted share, both
up 4% from $13.519 billion or $2.62 per diluted share in 2000. Net income
in 2000 was up $2.276 billion or 20% from 1999. Core income return on
common equity was 20.4% in 2001 compared to 23.5% for 2000 and 21.7%
for 1999.

Global Consumer core income increased $1.4 billion or 23% in 2001 led
by increases of $346 million or 19% in North America Cards, $316 million
or 39% in CitiFinancial, $290 million in Mexico reflecting the August
acquisition of Banamex, and $199 million or 27% in Japan. Global Corporate
decreased $322 million or 5% in 2001 reflecting decreases in Commercial
Lines and Corporate and Investment Bank, partially offset by a 17% increase
in EM Corporate & GTS. Global Investment Management and Private
Banking improved $90 million or 6% in 2001, while Investment Activities
decreased $853 million or 62%, primarily due to lower venture capital results.

Core income growth of $2.8 billion or 25% in 2000 was led by Global
Corporate which improved $1.0 billion or 20% from 1999, Global Consumer
which increased $1.0 billion or 21%, Investment Activities which was up §733
million and Global Investment Management and Private Banking which
improved $226 million or 19%.

Revenues, Net of Interest Expense

Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense of §83.6 billion in 2001 were up
$5.9 billion or 8% from 2000. Revenues in 2000 were up $9.3 billion or 14%
from 1999. Global Consumer revenues in 2001 were up $5.8 billion or 16%
from 2000 to $41.3 billion, including increases of $3.4 billion or 18% in
Banking/Lending, $2.2 billion or 22% in International and $298 million or
5% in Insurance. Global Consumner revenues in 2000 increased $2.9 billion or
9% from 1999 to $35.5 billion, led by Banking/Lending, up $1.6 billion or 9%,
and the International businesses, up $1.2 billion or 14%.

Global Corporate revenues of $34.3 billion in 2001 were up $818 million
or 2% from 2000, led by increases of 11% in EM Corporate & GTS and 6 %
in Commercial Lines, partially offset by a 2% decrease in Corporate and
Investment Bank. In 2000, Global Corporate revenues of $33.5 billion were
up $4.8 billion or 17% from 1999 reflecting increases in Corporate and
Investment Bank of $3.3 billion or 20%, 16% in EM Corporate & GTS, and
10% in Commercial Lines.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking revenues increased
$408 million or 6% in 2001, and $1.0 billion or 17 % in 2000 reflecting
continued growth in assets under management and business volumes for
both years and the impact of acquisitions in 2000.

Selected Revenue Items

Net interest revenue as calculated from the Consolidated Statement of Income
was $34.6 billion in 2001, up $6.3 billion or 22% from 2000, which was up
$2.0 billion or 8% from 1999 reflecting business volume growth in most
markets and the impact of acquisitions. Net interest revenue, adjusted for the
effect of securitization activity, of $40.7 billion was up $7.0 billion or 21% in
2001 and $1.6 billion or 5% in 2000.

Total commissions, asset management and administration fees, and other
fee revenues of $21.3 billion were down $368 million or 2% in 2001 primarily
reflecting decreases in over-the-counter securities and mutual fund
comrmissions due to depressed market conditions, partially offset by the
impact of acquisitions. Insurance premiums of $13.5 billion in 2001 were up
$1.0 billion or 8% from year-ago levels and up $925 million or 8% in 2000
reflecting strong growth in Travelers Life & Annuity in both 2001 and 2000,
and Commercial Lines in 2001.

Principal transactions revenues decreased in 2001, from $6.0 billion in
2000 and $5.2 billion in 1999 reflecting results in Corporate and Investment
Bank. Realized gains from sales of investments of $578 million in 2001 were
down from $806 million in 2000, but were up from $541 million in 1999
The increase in 2000 resulted from gains on the exchange of certain Latin
American bonds, partially offset by losses in insurance-related investments.
Other income of $4.5 billion in 2001 decreased §1.4 billion from 2000, which
was up $1.2 billion from 1999. The 2001 decrease primarily reflected venture
capital activity.

Operating Expenses

Adjusted operating expenses, which exclude restructuring- and merger-related
costs, grew $1.4 billion or 4% to $39.1 billion in 2001, and increased §4.0
billion or 12% from 1999 to 2000.

Global Corporate expenses were up $57 million in 2001, primarily
attributable to higher expenses in Commercial Lines and EM Corporate &
GTS, as a result of acquisitions, and other volume-related increases, and
partially offset by lower production-related compensation and expense control
initiatives in the Corporate and Investment Bank. Expenses increased in
Global Consumer by 7% in 2001 and 8% in 2000 reflecting higher business
volumes including acquisitions, partially offset in 2001 by savings resulting
from the integration of Associates. Global Investment Management and
Private Banking expenses increased 1% in 2001 and 16% in 2000, driven by
acquisitions in 2001 and investments in sales and marketing activities,
technology, and product development in both years.

Restructuring- and Merger-Related items
Restructuring-related items of $458 million ($285 million after-tax) in 2001
related primarily to severance and costs associated with the reduction of staff
primarily in the Global Corporate and Global Consumer businesses and the
acquisition of Banamex in the 2001 third quarter.

Restructuring-related items of $759 million ($550 million after-tax) in
2000 primarily related to the acquisition of Associates. Restructuring charges
included the reconfiguration of branch operations, the exiting of certain
activities, and the consolidation and integration of certain middle and back
office functions. Also included in the costs were §177 million of merger-
related items, which included legal, advisory and SEC filing fees, as well as
other costs of administratively closing the acquisition.




Housing Finance Unit Charge

Included in other operating expenses for 2000 is a $71 million (after-tax)
charge associated with the discontinuation of the loan origination operations
of the Associates Housing Finance unit.

Benefits, Claims and Credit Losses

Adjusted benefits, claims and credit losses were $22.1 billion in 2001, up

$4.2 billion or 24% from 2000, which was up $1.3 billion or 8% from 1999.
Policyholder benefits and claims increased 16% to $11.8 billion in 2001 and
11% to $10.1 billion in 2000 primarily as a result of higher loss levels in
Commercial and Personal Lines and increased volume in Travelers Life &
Annuity. The adjusted provision for credit losses increased 34% to $10.4 billion
in 2001 and 4% to $7.8 billion in 2000.

Global Consumer adjusted benefits, claims and credit losses of $13.0
billion were up 25% in 2001 and 3% in 2000. Managed net credit losses in
2001 were $8.9 billion and the related loss ratio was 2.89% compared with
$6.8 billion and 2.48% in 2000 and $6.7 billion and 2.80% in 1999. The
managed consumer loan delinquency ratio (90 days or more past due)
was 2.37% at the end of 2001, up from 1.75% and 1.95% at the end of 2000
and 1999.

Global Corporate benefits, claims and credit losses increased to $6.5 billion
from §$5.2 billion in 2000, which was up from $4.3 billion in 1999, resulting
from increases in Commercial Lines of $873 million, and $362 million in
Corporate and Investment Bank and $136 million in EM Corporate & GTS,
primarily in Asia.

Commercial cash-basis loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were §4.0
biltion and $2.0 billion, respectively, while the commercial Other Real Estate
Owned (OREO) portfolio totaled $220 million and $291 million, respectively.
The increase in cash-basis loans was primarily related to the acquisition
of Banarnez, the transportation portfolio, and increases attributable to
borrowers in the retail, telecommunication, energy and utility industries.
The improvements in OREQ were primarily related to the North America
real estate portfolio.

Capital

Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) was $75.8 billion or 10.92% of risk-adjusted
assets, and Tier 1 capital was $58.4 billion or 8.42% at December 31, 2001,
compared to $73.0 billion or 11.23% and $54.5 billion or 8.38% at
December 31, 2000.

The Income line in each of the following business discussions excludes the
curnulative effect of adopting accounting changes in 2001 and 1999. See
Notes 1 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GLOBAL CONSUMER

In millions of doliars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $37,697 $32,999 $29,816
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense 41,265 35,458 32,523
Adjusted operating expenses @ 16,793 15,668 14,471
Provisions for benefits, claims

and credit losses 9,382 7,895 7,346
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707
Adjusted provisions for benefits, claims

and credit losses 12,950 10,354 10,053
Core income before taxes and

minority interest 11,522 9,436 7,999
income taxes 4,102 3,394 2,953
Minority interest, after-tax 54 38 71
Core income 7,366 6,004 4,975
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (144) (144) (78)
Income $ 7,222 $ 5,860 $ 4,897

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Global Consumer—which provides banking, lending, including credit
and charge cards, and investment and personal insurance products and
services to custormners around the world — reported core income of $7.366
billion in 2001, up §1.362 billion or 23% from 2000, which, in turn, increased
$1.029 billion or 21% from 1999. Banking/Lending core income increased
$827 million or 24% in 2001 reflecting double-digit earnings growth in all
businesses. Banking/Lending core income increased $571 million or 20% in
2000 marked by strong performances in North America Cards, Citibanking
North America and Mortgage Banking, For the insurance businesses of Global
Consumer, which include Primerica Financial Services and Personal Lines,
core income decreased $79 million or 10% in 2001 primarily driven by
catastrophe losses in Personal Lines associated with the terrorist attack of
September 11th. For the insurance businesses of Global Consumer, core
income grew $67 million or 9% in 2000 reflecting strong mutual fund sales
and net investment income in Primerica Financial Services. The developed
markets of Western Europe and Japan reported core income of $1.411 billion
in 2001, up $298 million or 27% from 2000, which, in turn, grew $307
million or 38% from 1999 primarily reflecting the impact of acquisitions and
higher business volumes. Core income in Emerging Markets Consumer
increased $260 million or 29% in 2001 primarily reflecting the acquisition of
Banamex, partially offset by translation losses in Latin America resulting
from the re-denomination of certain consumer loans in Argentina. In 2000,
core income in Emerging Markets Consumer increased $240 million or 36%
reflecting strong performance in Asia and Latin America.

Income of $7.222 billion in 2001, $5.860 billion in 2000, and $4.897
billion in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $144 million ($223
million pretax), $144 million ($223 million pretax), and $78 million ($120
million pretax), respectively. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of restructuring-related items.




In 2000, Citigroup adopted the Federal Financial Institutions
Examination Council’s (FFIEC) revised Uniform Retail Classification and
Account Management Policy, which provided guidance on the reporting of
delinquent consumer loans and the timing of associated charge-offs for
Citigroup’s depository institution subsidiaries. The adoption of the policy
resulted in additional net credit losses of approximately $90 million which
were charged against the allowance for credit losses.

BANKING/LENDING

Citibanking North America

In mitlions of doffars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,7114 $2,273 $2,121
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,651 1,423 1,417
Provision for credit losses 70 29 64
Core income bhefore taxes 993 821 640
income taxes 388 325 267
Core income 605 496 373
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (3) 9 1
Income $ 602 $ 505 $ 374
Average assets (i tillions of doliars) $ 13 $ 9 $ 9
Return on assets 4.63% 5.61% 4.16%
Excluding restructuring - related items

Return on assets 4.65% 5.51% 414%

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Citibanking North America—which delivers banking, lending and
investment services to customers through Citibank’s branches and electronic
delivery systems— reported core income of $605 million in 2001, up $109
million or 22% from 2000 primarily reflecting revenue growth, as well as the
acquisition of the European American Bank (EAB). InJuly 2001, Citibanking
North America completed the acquisition of EAB, a state-chartered bank that
added $8.4 billion to end-of-period deposits, $4.4 billion to end-of-period
loans and 78 branches at December 31, 2001. Core income of $496 million
in 2000 grew $123 million or 33% from 1999 due to revenue growth and
lower net credit losses. Income of $602 million in 2001, $505 million in 2000
and $374 million in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $3
million ($5 million pretax) in 2001 and restructuring-related credits of

$9 million (815 million pretax) and $1 million ($2 million pretax) in 2000
and 1999, respectively.

As shown in the following table, Citibanking grew accounts, customer
deposits and loans in both 2001 and 2000 reflecting, in part, the acquisition
of EAB which added $4.0 billion to average customer deposits, $2.3 billion to
average loans and 0.8 million to accounts in 2001,

In bilions of doltars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts fin millions) 7.7 6.7 6.3
Average customer deposits $52.4 $44.8 $42.4
Average loans $93 $70 $73

39

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.714 billion in 2001 increased $441
million or 19% from 2000 reflecting improved net funding and positioning
spreads, the benefit of strong customer deposit growth and increased debit
card fees, as well as the acquisition of EAB in July and a realized investment
gain resulting from the disposition of an equity investment. Revenue growth
in 2001 was partially offset by reduced investment product fees reflecting
market conditions throughout the year. Revenues of $2.273 billion in 2000
grew $152 million or 7% from 1999 reflecting growth in deposits and spreads
combined with increased investment product fees.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.651 billion in 2001 increased $228
million or 16% from 2000 primarily due to the acquisition of EAB, higher
advertising and marketing costs and investments in technology and staff.
Expenses in 2000 were up slightly compared to 1999 primarily reflecting the
impact of expense management initiatives.

The provision for credit losses was $70 million in 2001, up from $29
million in 2000 and $64 million in 1999. The net credit loss ratio was 1.03%
in 2001 compared to 0.91% in 2000 and 1.22% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90
days or more were $96 million or 0.82% at December 31, 2001, comnpared to
$35 million or 0.48% at December 31, 2000 and $55 million or 0.78% at
December 31, 1999. The increases in the provision for credit losses and
delinguencies in 2001 were mainly due to the acquisition of EAB and
increases related to commercial market loans. Net credit losses are expected to
increase from 2001 due to the inclusion of a full year’s credit losses for EAB.
This statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements”
on page 62.

Average assets of $13 billion in 2001 increased $4 billion from 2000
primarily reflecting the acquisition of EAB. Return on assets was 4.65% in
2001 down from 5.51% in 2000. The decline in return on assets reflects the
increase in loans associated with the addition of EAB.

Mortgage Banking

In mitfions of dotars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,037 $912 $819
Adjusted operating expenses @ 431 3985 354
(Benefit) Provision for credit losses (12) 2 28
Core income before taxes and

minority interest 618 515 437
Income taxes 238 196 169
Minority interest, after-tax 27 22 18
Core income 353 297 249
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 2 — —
income $ 351 $297 $249
Average assets (in biions of doliars) $ 48 $ 40 $ 30
Return on assets 0.73% 0.74% 0.83%

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-refated items.




Mortgage Banking—which originates and services mortgages and
student loans for customers across the United States — reported core income
of $353 million in 2001, up §56 million or 19% from 2000 which, in turn,
increased $48 million or 19% from 1999 reflecting growth in both the student
loan and mortgage businesses. Income of $351 miltion in 2001 included
restructuring-related items of $2 million ($3 million pretax).

As shown in the following table, accounts grew 7% in 2001 and 29% in
2000 primarily reflecting strong growth in student loans. Average on balance
sheet loans grew 23% and 29% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Growth in 2001
was driven by increases in student loans and mortgage loans held for sale.
Growth in 2000 was driven by increases in variable rate mortgage loans,
which are typically held in the portfolio rather than securitized, and student
loans. Other serviced loans increased 13% in 2001 and 25% in 2000 primarily
reflecting growth in originations and servicing portfolio acquisitions. Total
originations were up significantly from 2000 reflecting increased mortgage
refinancing activity due to lower interest rates.

In billions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Average loans-on balance sheet (! $ 45.1 $36.8 $28.6
Other serviced loans 67.5 59.6 47.6
Total owned and serviced loans $112.6 $96.4 $76.2
Total originations $ 385 $25.5 $22.1
Accounts in mitlions) 48 4.5 3.5

(1) Includes loans held for sale.

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $1.037 billion in 2001 grew $125
million or 14% from 2000 mainly due to higher mortgage securitization
income and spread improvements in student loans, partially offset by lower
servicing revenue. The decline in servicing revenue primarily reflected
increased prepayment activity that was driven by lower interest rates.
Revenues in 2000 increased $93 million or 11% from 1999 as loan growth
and higher servicing income was partially offset by reduced spreads and lower
securitization activity. Adjusted operating expenses increased $36 million or
9% in 2001 and grew $41 million or 12% in 2000 primarily reflecting
additional business volumes.

The (benefit) provision for credit losses was ($12) million in 2001
compared to $2 million in 2000 and $28 million in 1999. The declines in the
provision for credit losses in 2001 and 2000 principally reflect improvements
in the quality of the mortgage portfolio. The adoption of revised FFIEC write-
off policies in 2000 added $17 million to net credit losses, which were charged
against the allowance for credit losses, and 4 basis points to the 2000 net
credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 0.09% in 2001 compared to
0.16% (0.12% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy revisions) in 2000 and
0.18% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were $1.157 billion or
2.53% of loans at Decernber 31, 2001, up from $846 million or 2.01% at
December 31, 2000 and §707 million or 2.26% at December 31, 1999. The
increase in delinquencies from 2000 mainly reflects a higher level of
buybacks from GNMA pools where the credit risk is maintained by
government agencies.
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North America Cards

In miflions of dollars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 9,574 $ 8,346 $7,157
Effect of securitization activities 3,454 2,410 2,707
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense 13,028 10,756 9,864
Adjusted operating expenses @ 4,069 3,954 3,607
Adjusted provision for credit losses @ 5,593 3,973 3,979
Core income before taxes 3,366 2,829 2,278
Income taxes 1,233 1,042 842
Core income 2,133 1,787 1,436
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 16 {657) 12
Income $ 2,149 $ 1,730 $1,448
Average assets (in billions of doliars)® $ 48 $ 45 $§ 35
Return on assets 4.48% 3.84% 4.14%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets @ 4.44% 3.97% 4.10%

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

(3} Adjusted for the effect of credit card securitization activities.

(4) Adjusted for the effect of securitization activities, managed average assets and the related retum on
assets, excluding restructuring-related items, for North America Cards were $108 billion and $1.98% in
2001, compared to $98 biltion and 1.82% and $86 billion and 1.67% in 2000 and 1999, respectively.

North America Cards—which includes Citi Cards (bankcards and

private-label cards) and Diners Club—reported core income of $2.133 billion

in 2001, up $346 miltion or 19% from 2000 which, in turn, increased $351
million or 24% from 1999, driven by strong revenue growth that was partially
offset by higher credit costs. Income of $2.149 billion in 2001, $1.730 billion
in 2000 and $1.448 billion in 1999 included restructuring-related credits of
$16 million ($26 million pretax) and $12 million ($19 million pretax) in

2001 and 1999, respectively, and restructuring-related charges of §57 million

($91 million pretax) in 2000,

As shown in the following table, on a managed basis, the Citi Cards
portfolio experienced growth in 2001 of 6% in end-of-period receivables, 2%
in accounts, 1% in cards in force and 1% in total sales. Growth in sales,
accounts and cards in force in 2001 was negatively impacted by current
economic conditions, as well as the impact of the events of September 11th.
Increases in 2000 primarily reflect the impact of portfolio acquisitions.

In billions of dofiars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts (in millions) 92.9 90.8 76.7
Cards in force (in millions) 142 140 124
Total sales $218.5 $215.7 $183.1
End-of-period managed receivables $108.9 $103.2 $ 856

Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense, of $13.028 billion in 2001
increased $2.272 billion or 21% from 2000 reflecting spread improvement due
to lower cost of funds and repricing actions, combined with the benefit of
receivable growth. Adjusted revenues of $10.756 billion in 2000 increased
$892 million or 9% from 1999 primarily reflecting receivable growth,
including portfolio acquisitions, and higher interchange fee revenues due to
sales volume growth, partially offset by lower spreads,




Risk adjusted margin is a measure of profitability calculated as adjusted
reverues less managed net credit losses divided by average managed loans.
This measure is consistent with the goal of matching the revenues generated
by the loan portfolio with the credit risk undertaken. As shown in the
following table, Citi Cards risk adjusted margin of 6.98% decreased 6 basis
points from 2000 as higher spreads were more than offset by higher net
credit losses.

In billions of doltars 2001 2000 1999
Risk adjusted revenues () $7.1 $6.5 $5.6
Risk adjusted margin % @ 6.98% 7.04% 7.06%

(1) Citi Cards adjusted revenues less managed net credit losses.
(2) Risk adjusted revenues as a percentage of average managed loans.

Adjusted operating expenses of §4.069 billion in 2001 increased $115
million or 3% from 2000 as volume-related increases were partially offset by
disciplined expense management. In 2000, adjusted operating expenses grew
$347 million or 10% from 1999 reflecting acquisitions and increased target-
marketing efforts in Giti Cards. Citi Cards adjusted operating expenses as a
percentage of average managed loans were 3.69%, 4.00% and 4.20% in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

The adjusted provision for credit losses in 2001 was $5.593 billion
compared with $3.973 billion in 2000 and $3.979 billion in 1999. Citi Cards
managed net credit losses in 2001 were $5.556 billion and the related loss
ratio was 5.44%, compared with $3.921 billion and 4.28% in 2000 and $3.903
billion and 4.91% in 1999. The increase in net credit losses from the prior year
reflects current U.S. economic conditions as well as 4 rise in bankruptcy
filings. Citi Cards managed loans delinquent 90 days or more were $2.135
billion or 1.98% of loans at December 31, 2001 compared with $1.497 billion
or 1.46% at December 31, 2000 and $1.285 billion or 1.51% at December 31,
1999. Net credit losses and the related ratio are expected to increase from 2001
as a result of continued economic weakness including rising bankruptcy
filings and delinquent loans. This statement is a forward-looking staternent
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See
“Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

CitiFinancial

In mifions of doflars 2001 20000 1999
Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense  $5,634 $5,071 $4,600
Adjusted operating expenses @ 2,006 2,256 1,980
Adjusted provisions for benefits, claims

and credit losses 1,830 1,546 1,414
Core income before taxes 1,798 1,269 1,206
Income taxes 672 459 445
Core income 1,126 810 761
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (19) (68) (2)
Income $1,107 $ 742 $ 759
Average managed assets (in bifions of dollars) $ 65 $ 56 $ 48
Return on managed assets 1.70% 1.33% 1.58%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on managed assets 1.73% 1.45% 1.59%

(1} Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.
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CitiFinancial—which provides community-based lending services
through its branch network, regional sales offices and cross-selling initiatives
with other Citigroup businesses— reported core income of $1.126 billion in
2001, up $316 miltion or 39% from 2000 primarily reflecting strong growth in
receivables, efficiencies resulting from the integration of Associates and lower
cost of funds. Core income of $810 million in 2000 increased $49 million or
6% from 1999 primarily reflecting strong growth in receivables, including the
effects of acquisitions. Income of $1.107 billion in 2001, $742 million in 2000
and $759 million in 1999 included restructuring-related items of $19 million
($32 million pretax), §68 million ($105 million pretax) and $2 million ($3
million pretax), respectively.

As shown in the following table, managed receivables grew 9% in 2001 and
15% in 2000 resulting from higher volumes from CitiFinancial locations, the
cross-selling of products through other Citigroup distribution channels, and,
in 2000, the impact of acquisitions. At Decernber 31, 2001 and 2000, the
portfolio consisted of 69% real estate-secured loans, compared with 68% at
December 31, 1999. The average net interest margin of 7.99% in 2001
increased 20 basis points compared to 2000 as lower cost of funds was
partially offset by continued growth in lower-risk real estate loans that have
lower yields. The average net interest margin of 7.79% in 2000 decreased 54
basis points compared to 1999 due to growth in lower-risk real estate loans
and higher cost of funds.

In billions of doilars 2001 2000 1999
End-of-period managed receivables ()

Real estate secured loans—other $33.5 $32.9 $28.9
Real estate secured loans—PFS sourced 78 5.2 38
Personal loans 97 9.9 10.0
Auto 6.5 46 25
Sales finance and ather 2.7 2.7 2.9
Total $60.2 $55.3 $48.1
Average net interest margin % 7.99% 7.79% 8.33%

(1} Excludes loans held for sale.

Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense, of $5.634 billion in 2001
increased $563 million or 11% from 2000 reflecting strong growth in
receivables and lower cost of funds which was mainly due to a lower interest
rate environment, partially offset by lower yields. Adjusted revenues in 2000
increased $471 million or 10% from 1999 primarily reflecting strong growth
in receivables. Adjusted operating expenses of $2.006 billion in 2001 decreased
$250 million or 11% from 2000 primarily reflecting efficiencies resulting from
the integration of Associates, partially offset by volume-related increases. In
2000, adjusted operating expenses increased $276 million or 14% from 1999
reflecting higher business volumes, including the effects of acquisitions.

Adjusted provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses were $1.830
billion in 2001, up from $1.546 billion in 2000 and $1.414 billion in 1999.
The net credit loss ratio of 2,70% in 2001 was up from 2.57% in 2000 and
2.66% in 1999. Net credit losses in 2001 include losses of $76 million from the
sales of certain underperforming loans, which were charged against the
allowance for credit losses and resulted in a 12 basis points increase in the net
credit loss ratio. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were $2.002 billion or
3.32% of loans at December 31, 2001, up from $1.272 billion or 2.23% of
loans at December 31, 2000 and $943 million or 1.96% at December 31, 1999.
The increase in delinquencies in 2001 was primarily due to the alignment of




credit and collection policies in the Associates real estate portfolio to those at
GitiFinancial combined with the impact of current U.S. economic conditions.
Net credit losses and the related loss ratio are expected to increase from 2001
as a result of economic conditions and credit performance of the portfolios,
including bankruptcy filings. This statement is a forward-looking statement
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See
“Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

INSURANCE

Primerica Financial Services

purchase of term life insurance as compared to traditional whole life
insurance. Primerica sales of variable annuities, predominately underwritten
by Travelers Life and Annuity, generated net written premiums and

deposits of §924 million in 2001 compared to $1.057 billion in 2000 and $990
million in 1999. Cash advanced on loan products primarily underwritten by
CitiFinancial was $3.87 billion in 2001 compared to $2.09 billion in 2000 and
$1.92 billion in 1999. The increase in cash advanced reflects rate reductions
implemented during 2001. Sales of mutual funds were $3.409 billion in 2001
compared to $4.220 billion in 2000 and $3.124 billion in 1999 reflecting a
difficult market environment during 2001. During 2001, proprietary mutnal
funds accounted for 67% of Primerica’s U.S. sales and 58% of Primerica’s total

In millions of dollars 2001 2000 1999 Sales, Compared 10 50% and 43% in 2000.

Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,979 $1,915 $1,775 \

Provision for benefits and claims 506 496 487 Personal Lines

Adjusted operating expenses () 683 859 586 In millions of dollars 2001 20000 19991

Core income before taxes 790 760 702 Total revenues, net of interest expense $4,464 $4,230 $4,071

Income taxes 278 268 250 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 3,099 2,767 2,572

i i @

Core income @ 512 490 459 Adjusted operating expenses 1,079 1,002 1,021

Restructuring-related items, after-tax - 1 - Income before taxes and minority interest 286 461 478
Income taxes 78 138 144

Income $ 512 $ 493 § 452 Minority interest, after-tax @ - 16 54

(1) Excludes restructuring-related items. H

(2) Excludes investment gains/losses included in Investment Activities segment. Core mco,me “ ) 208 307 280
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 3) — —

Primerica Financial Services —which sells life insurance as well as Income $ 205 $ 307 $ 280

other products manufactured by the Company, including Salomon Smith
Barney mutual funds, CitiFinancial mortgages and personal loans and
Travelers Insurance Company annuity products— reported core income of
$512 million in 2001 compared to $492 million in 2000 and $452 million in
1999. The 4% improvement in 2001 reflects strong net investment income
and $ MAR.T loan® sales, partially offset by lower mutual fund sales. The
9% improvement in 2000 reflects strong mutual fund sales and net
investment income partially offset by increased infrastructure investment
including international expansion. Results in all periods continue to reflect
success at cross selling a range of products (particularly mutual funds,
variable annuities and debt consolidation loans), growth in life insurance in
force, improved investment income, and disciplined expense management.

Increases in production and cross-selling initiatives were achieved during
2001. Earned premiums net of reinsurance were $1.145 billion, $1.106
billion, and $1.071 billion in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Total face
amount of issued term life insurance was $71.5 billion in 2001 compared
to $67.4 billion in 2000 and $56.2 billion in 1999. The number of policies
issued was 244,700 in 2001, compared to 234,700 in 2000 and 209,900 in
1999. The average face value per policy issued was $250,400 in 2001
compared to $245,000 in 2000 and $229,000 in 1999. Life insurance in force
at yearend 2001 reached $434.8 billion, up from $412.7 billion at year-end
2000 and $394.9 billion at year-end 1999, and continued to reflect good
policy persistency.

Primerica leverages its cross-selling efforts through the Financial Needs
Analysis (FNA) —the diagnostic tool that enhances the ability of the Personal
Financial Analysts to address client needs—to expand its business beyond life
insurance by offering its clients a greater array of financial products and
services, delivered personally through its sales force. During 2001, 470,000
FNAs were submitted. In addition, Primerica has traditionally offered mutual
funds to clients as a means o invest the relative savings realized through the

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.
(3) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financiat Statements.
(4) Excludes investment gains/losses included in Investment Activities segment.
Personal Lines—which writes property and casualty insurance covering
personal risks— reported core income of $208 million in 2001 compared to
$307 million in 2000 and $280 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease reflects
the impact of catastrophe losses of $42 million associated with the terrorist
attack on September 11th, increased loss cost trends, including increased
medical costs and auto repair costs, lower favorable prior-year reserve
development and lower net investment income, partially offset by premium
growth driven by improving rates. Also reflected in the 2001 results are the
incremental earnings from the minority interest buyback. The 2000 results
reflect increased net investment income, lower catastrophe losses, and the
incremental earnings from the minority interest buyback, partially offset by
increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-year reserve development.
Included in the 1999 results is a charge related to curtailing the sale of
TRAVELERS SECURE® auto and homeowners products.

The following table shows net written premiums by product line for the
three years ended December 31:

in millions of doflars 2001 20000 19990
Personal automobile $2,642 $2,408 $2,388
Homeowners and other 1,524 1,456 1,444
Total net written premiums $4,166 $3,864 $3,832

{1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation,

Personal Lines net written premiums for 2001 were $4.166 billion
compared to $3.864 billion in 2000 and $3.832 billion in 1999. Net written
premiums in 1999 included an adjustment associated with the termination




of a quota share reinsurance arrangement, which increased homeowners’
premiums written by independent agents by $72 million, The increase in net
written premiums in 2001 compared to 2000 reflects growth in target markets
served by independent agents and growth in affinity group marketing and
joint marketing arrangements, partially offset by continued emphasis on
disciplined underwriting and risk management. Rate increases implemented
in both the automobile and homeowners product lines were the primary
contributors to the growth in net written premiums. The business retention
ratio for 2001 was comparable to the 2000 ratio. The increase in net written
premiums in 2000 compared to 1999, excluding the reinsurance adjustment,
primarily reflects growth in target markets served by independent agents and
growth in affinity group marketing and joint marketing arrangements and is
partially offset by planned reductions in the TRAVELERS SECURE® auto and
homeowners business, a mandated rate decrease in New Jersey and continued
emphasis on disciplined underwriting and risk management. The business
retention ratio for 2000 was moderately lower compared to the1999 ratio
reflecting planned reductions in the TRAVELERS SECURE® auto and
homeowners business.

Catastrophe losses, net of taxes and reinsurance, were $86 million in 2001
compared to $54 million in 2000 and $79 million in 1999. Catastrophe losses
in 2001 were primarily due to the terrorist attack on September 11th, Tropical
Storm Allison and windstorms and hailstorms in Texas and the Midwest.
Catastrophe losses in 2000 were primarily due to Texas, Midwest and
Northeast windstorms and hailstorms and hailstorms in Louisiana and Texas.
Catastrophe losses in 1999 were primarily due to Hurricane Floyd, windstorms
and hailstorms on the East Coast and tornadoes in the Midwest and a
windstorm and ice storm in the Midwest and Northeast.

The Company, along with others in the industry, uses the combined ratio,
which measures the total cost per $100 of premium production, as a measure
of performance for Personal Lines. The statutory combined ratio for Personal
Lines was 102.7% in 2001 compared to 99.8% in 2000 and 96.7% in 1999.
The U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) combined ratio
for Personal Lines was 103.1% in 2001 compared to 99.5% in 2000 and 96.8%
in 1999. GAAP combined ratios for Personal Lines differ from statutory
combined ratios primarily due to the deferral and amortization of certain
expenses for GAAP reporting purposes only.

The 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios include the impact of the
terrorist attack on September 11th. Excluding the impact of this event, the
2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios would have been 101.2% and
101.6%, respectively. The 1999 statutory and GAAP combined ratios for
Personal Lines include an adjustment associated with the termination of a
quota share reinsurance arrangement. Excluding this adjustment, the 1999
statutory and GAAP combined ratios were 96.5% and 97 3%, respectively.

The increase in the 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios, excluding
the related adjustment above, compared to the statutory and GAAP combined
ratios for 2000 reflects increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-
vear reserve development, partially offset by the growth in premiums due to
rate increases. The increase in the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios
compared to the statutory and GAAP combined ratios {excluding the
premium adjustment) for 1999 was primarily due to increased loss cost trends
and lower favorable prior-year reserve development, offset in part by the
TRAVELERS SECURE® charge taken in 1999 and lower catastrophe losses.
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INTERNATIONAL CONSUMER

Western Europe

In millions of doflars 2001 2000M 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,555 $2,388 $2,424
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,392 1,396 1,474
Provisions far benefits, claims and credit lasses 414 390 453
Core income before taxes 749 802 497
Income taxes 266 218 185
Core income 483 384 312
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (1) — 2
Income $ 482 $ 384 $ 314
Average assets (in billions of dofiars) $§ 22 $ 21 $ 23
Return on assets 2.19% 1.83% 1.37%

(1} Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Western Europe —which provides banking, community-based lending,
including credit and charge cards, and investment products and services—
reported core income of $483 million in 2001, up $99 million or 26% from
2000 which, in turn, increased $72 million or 23% from 1999 primarily
reflecting growth in the consumer finance, branch lending and credit card
businesses, particularly in Germany, the UK. and Spain. Income of $482
million in 2001 and $314 million in 1999 included a restructuring-related
charge of $1 million ($2 million pretax) in 2001 and a restructuring-related
credit of $2 million ($4 million pretax) in 1999.

As shown in the following table, the Western Europe business experienced
growth of 7% in both average loans and customer deposits in 2001. Accounts
were unchanged from 2000 as loan and deposit growth and the impact of
acquisitions was offset by the sale of Diners Club franchises in the region. In
2000, custorner deposit and loan volumes were reduced by the effect of foreign
currency translation.

in billions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts (in mitions) 101 10.1 9.6
Average customer deposits $13.3 $12.4 $13.7
Average loans $18.0 $16.8 $17.3

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.555 billion in 2001 increased $167
million or 7% from 2000 principally due to growth in consumer finance,
branch lending and bankcard revenues, reflecting increased volumes and
spreads, partially offset by the effects of the Diners Club sale and foreign
currency translation as well as reduced investment product fees. Revenues in
2000 decreased $36 million as loan growth and higher investment product
fees were more than offset by the adverse effect of foreign currency translation.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.392 billion in 2001 declined $4 million
from 2000 as costs associated with higher business volumes were more than
offset by the effects of the Diners Club sale, foreign currency translation and
management expense initiatives. Expenses in 2000 decreased $78 million or
5% from 1999 primarily reflecting lower regional office and technology
expenses and the effect of foreign currency translation.




The provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses were $414 million in
2001, compared with $390 million in 2000 and $453 million in 1999. The
adoption of revised FFIEC write-off policies in 2000 added $10 million to net
credit losses, which were charged against the allowance for credit losses, and
added 6 basis points to the net credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was
1.88% in 2001, compared with 2.05% (1.99% excluding the effects of FFIEC
policy revisions) in 2000 and 2.00% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or
more were $800 million or 4.21% of loans at December 31, 2001, down from
$835 million or 4.78% at December 31, 2000 and $928 million or 5.39% at
December 31, 1999. Net credit losses and the related loss ratio may increase
from 2001 as a result of economic conditions, statutory changes in the region
and future credit performance of the portfolios. This statement is 4 forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements™ on page 62.

Adjusted operating expenses increased $131 million or 11% in 2001 and grew
$334 million or 41% in 2000 reflecting costs associated with expansion efforts,
including the impact of acquisitions and higher business volumes, partially
offset by the effect of foreign currency translation.

The provision for credit losses in 2001 was $649 million, up from $500
million in 2000 and $315 million in 1999. The net credit loss ratio of 4.10%
in 2001 increased from 3.50% in 2000 and 3.49% in 1999. The increases in
net credit losses in 2001 and 2000 were primarily due to higher loan volumes,
including the impact of acquisitions, and, in 2001, increased bankruptcy
filings and deteriorating credit quality. Loans delinquent 90 days or more
were $178 million or 1.24% of loans at December 31, 2001, up from §101
million or 0.73% at December 31, 2000 and $112 million or 1.19% at
December 31, 1999. Net credit losses and the related ratio are expected to
increase from 2001 as a result of continued increases in bankruptey filings
and higher unemployment rates in Japan. This is a forward-looking

Japan s . . R
P statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.
In millions of doliars 2001 2000(1) 1999(1) See “FOI'WS.I‘d-LOOkmg Statementsyv on page 62
Total revenues, net of interest expense $3,382 $2,781 $1,930 Asi
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,282 1,151 817 sia
Provision for credit losses 649 500 315 In mitions of doflars 2001 20000 1999
Core income before taxes 1,451 1,130 798 Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,201 $2,096 $1.847
Incame taxes 523 401 304 Adjusted operating expenses @ 969 g71 944
Core income 928 799 494 Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses 268 273 341
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 6) — - Core income before taxes 964 852 562
Income $ 922 $ 729 $ 494 Income taxes 353 302 210
‘ Core income 611 550 352
Average assets fin billions of doliars) $ 20 $ 17 $ 13 Restructuring-related items, after-tax 3) (@ (13
Return on assets 4.61% 4.29% 3.80%
Income $ 608 $ 546 $ 339
(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items. Average assets (in bitions of doflars) $ 25 $ 27 $ 26
, . , , L \ Return on assets 2.43% 2.02% 1.30%
Japan—which provides banking, community-based lending, including - - ’
credit cards, and investment products and services— reported core income of Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 2.44% 2.04% 1.35%

$928 million in 2001, up $199 million or 27% from 2000 which, in turn,
increased $235 million or 48% from 1999 reflecting growth in the consurner
finance business, including the impact of the acquisition of Unimat in
September 2000. Income of $922 million in 2001 included a restructuring-
related charge of $6 million ($12 million pretax).

As shown in the following table, the Japan business experienced strong
growth in loans, customer deposits and accounts in both 2001 and 2000.
Growth in 2000 benefited from the acquisitions of Diners Club and Unimat,
which added approximately 0.6 million and 0.4 million to accounts and $0.5
billion and $0.4 billion to average loans, respectively. In 2001, average loans
for Unimat were $1.5 billion.

In billions of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts (in mitlions) 5.2 48 3.3
Average customer deposits $14.9 $13.6 $11.4
Average loans $14.4 $11.6 $78

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $3.382 billion in 2001 grew $601
million or 22% from 2000 which, in turn, were up $351 million or 44% from
1999 reflecting growth in business volumes, including the impact of
acquisitions, and increased foreign exchange fees, partially offset by the
impact of foreign currency translation, and, in 2001, reduced spreads.
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(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.
Asia {excluding Japan) —which provides banking, lending, including
credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers throughout
the region— reported core income of $611 million in 2001, up $61 million
or 11% from 2000 reflecting growth across the region especially in deposits,
investrment product fees and cards. Core income in 2000 was up $198 million
or 56% from 1999 reflecting growth across the region especially in deposits,
investment product fees and cards, as well as lower credit costs. Income of
$608 million in 2001, $546 million in 2000 and $339 million in 1999
included restructuring-related charges of $3 million ($4 million pretax),
$4 million ($5 million pretax) and $13 million ($21 million pretax),
respectively.

As shown in the following table, Asia accounts grew 20% in 2001 and 14%
in 2000 primarily reflecting growth in the cards business across the region.

In bittions of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts ¢ millions) 9.8 8.2 7.2
Average customer deposits $35.5 $34.7 $30.7
Average loans $21.3 $22.2 $21.7




Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.201 billion in 2001 increased $105
million or 5% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $249 million or 13% from
1999 reflecting continued growth across the region especially in deposits,
investment product fees and cards.

Adjusted operating expenses in 2001 of $969 million decreased §2 million
from 2000 reflecting expense control initiatives across the region, partially
offset by increased costs associated with volume growth. Expenses in 2000
increased $27 million or 3% from 1999 reflecting increased variable
compensation and increased marketing costs, partially offset by lower
expenses in certain countries resulting from previously implemented
restructuring initiatives.

The provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses in 2001 were $268
million compared with $273 million in 2000 and $341 million in 1999. The
net credit loss ratio was 1.21% in 2001, compared with 1,16% in 2000 and
1.32% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were §367 million or 1.73%
of loans at Decemnber 31, 2001, compared with $335 million or 1.51% at
December 31, 2000 and $442 million or 1.93% at December 31, 1999. The
increases in the net credit loss ratio and delinquencies from 2000 reflect the
weakening economic conditions in most countries across the region. Net
credit losses and loans delinquent 90 days or more may increase from 2001
levels due to economic weakness in Asia, whose exporting economies have
been impacted by the recession in the U.S. This statement is a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “‘Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Latin America

in miflions of dollars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,380 $1,656 $1,638
Adjusted operating expenses @ 938 1,007 916
Provisions for benefits,

claims and credit losses 299 298 436
Core income before taxes 143 351 286
Income taxes 23 101 93
Core income 120 250 193
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (19) (31) 27)
Income $ 101 $ 219 $ 166
Average assets gn biflions of doliars) $ 8 $ 9 $ 10
Return on assets 1.26% 2.43% 1.66%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 1.50% 2.78% 1.93%

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Latin America (excluding Mexico) —which provides banking, lending,
including credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers
throughout the region— reported core income of §120 million in 2001, down
$130 million or 52% from 2000 primarily reflecting translation losses
associated with the re-denomination of certain consumer loans in Argentina.
Core income in 2000 was up $57 million or 30% primarily reflecting lower
credit costs and an increase in earnings from Credicard, a 33%-owned
Brazilian Card affiliate. Income of $101 million in 2001, $219 million in
2000, and $166 million in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $19
million ($28 million pretax), $31 million ($45 million pretax), and $27
million ($40 million pretax), respectively.
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As shown in the following table, Latin America accounts declined as
decreases in deposits and loan products were partially offset by growth in
banking-related insurance products and cards. Average customer deposits
declined in 2001 reflecting continued weak economic conditions in
Argentina and foreign currency translation effects. Average loans declined
13% in 2001 reflecting continued credit risk management initiatives and
foreign currency translation effects. In 2000, the decline in average loans
reflects the 2000 first quarter auto loan portfolio sale in Puerto Rico and
credit risk management initiatives.

In billions of doliars 2001 2000 1999
ACCounts (in mitlions) 74 7.2 7.6
Average customer deposits $10.4 $10.6 $10.7
Average loans $ 6.0 $ 6.9 $77

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $1.380 billion in 2001 decreased
$276 million or 17% from 2000 primarily reflecting estimated translation
losses of $235 million associated with the re-denomination of certain
consumer loans in Argentina. In 2000, revenues of $1.656 billion increased
$18 million from 1999 as higher Credicard earnings were partially offset by
business volumne declines, including the effect of the auto loan portfolio sale
in Puerto Rico.

Adjusted operating expenses of §938 million decreased $69 million or 7%
from 2000 primarily reflecting expense rationalization initiatives across the
region. Adjusted operating expenses of $1,007 billion in 2000 were up $91
million or 10% from 1999 primarily due to costs associated with new business
initiatives and acquisitions in the region.

The provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses were $299 million in
2001 compared to $298 million in 2000 and $436 million in 1999. The
adoption of revised FFIEC write-off policies in 2000 added $41 million to net
credit losses, which were charged against the allowance for credit losses, and
61 basis points to the net credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 4.63%
in 2001, as compared to 4.67% (4.06% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy
revisions) in 2000, and 5.32% in 1999. The increase in the net credit loss ratio
in 2001 primarily reflects deteriorating economic conditions in Argentina.
The improvement in the net credit loss ratio in 2000, as compared to 1999,
primarily reflects high write-offs in Argentina in 1999. Loans delinquent 90
days or more of $248 million or 4.71% of loans at December 31, 2001
increased from $235 million or 3.59% at Decernber 31, 2000 and $303
million or 3.99% at December 31, 1999. The increase in loans delinquent 90
days or more primarily reflects deteriorating economic conditions in
Argentina, partially offset by Puerto Rico’s gradual fiquidation of its auto
loan portfolio. The decline in delinquent loans in 2000 from 1999 reflects
additional write-offs related to the adoption of revised FFIEC policies as well
as temporary improvements in Argentina during 2000. Net credit losses and
loans delinquent 90 days or more are expected to increase from 2001
levels due to the economic crisis in Argentina and will be impacted by
unemployment and the instability of prices. This statement is a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.




Mexico
In millions of dolfars 2001 20000 1999M
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,117 $603 $531
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,399 461 369
Provisions for bensfits, claims and credit losses 254 40 32
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 464 102 130
Income taxes 91 46 47
Minority interest, after-tax 27 — —
Core income 346 56 83
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (90) — —
Income $ 256 $ 56 $ 83
Average assets (in billions of doliars) $ 35 $ 9 $ 10
Return on assets 0.73% 0.62% 0.83%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 0.99% 0.62% 0.83%

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

{2} Excludes restructuring-refated items.

Mexico—which includes the results of Banamex from August 2001, as well
as Citigroup's legacy consumer banking, corporate banking, and retirement
services businesses in Mexico and provides a wide array of banking,
insurance, and financial services products—reported core income of $346
million in 2001, up $290 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting the
acquisition of Banamex. Core income in 2000 was $56 million, down

$27 million or 33% from 1999 primarily due to the loss of a subsidy from
the Mexican government related to the Confia acquisition. Income of

$256 million in 2001 includes a restructuring-related charge of $90 million
($139 million pretax).

On August 6, 2001, Citicorp completed its acquisition of Banamex, The
transaction was accounted for as a purchase, therefore, five months of
Banamex results are included in the Mexico results. Subsequently, Citibank
Mexico’s banking operations merged into Banamex, with Banamex being the
surviving entity. The business also successfully merged the Citibank branches
onto the Banamex operating platform without customer disruption.

in biflions of doflars 2001 2000 1993
Accounts (in millions) 16.1 1.7 1.4
Average customer deposits $14.3 $3.2 $4.0
Average Loans:
Consumer 26 0.3 0.3
Corporate 7.2 3.2 34
Government/government agencies 15 0.2 0.2
Total Average Loans $11.3 $3.7 $3.9

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.117 billion in 2001 increased
$1.514 biltion from 2000 primarily reflecting the acquisition of Banamex.
Revenues reflect strong volume growth from the underlying customer deposit
business combined with improvements in trading revenue primarily due to
interest rate positioning, partially offset by declining spreads. The consumer
business was impacted by lower interest rates that reduced spreads on deposits.
In 2000, revenues, net of interest expense, increased $72 million or 14% from
1999 reflecting the Garante acquisition and strong trading revenues, partially
offset by the loss of a subsidy fror the Mexican government related to Confia.
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Adjusted operating expenses of $1.399 billion in 2001 increased $938
million primarily reflecting the acquisition of Banamex. The business has
initiated actions to rationalize headcount, branches, and systems. Since
August 2001, headcount has been reduced by 4,079 and 77 branches have
been closed. In 2000, adjusted operating expenses increased $92 million or
25% from 1999 primarily due to Confia systems consolidation expenses and
the acquisition of Garante.

The provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses in 2001 were §254
million compared with $40 million in 2000 and $32 million in 1999. The
consumer net credit loss ratio was 3.72% in 2001, compared with 3.67% in
2000 and 4.89% in 1999. Consumer loans delinquent 90 days or more were
$523 million or 8.75% of loans in 2001 compared with $15 million or 5.17%
of loans in 2000 and $17 million or 6.78% of loans in 1999 reflecting the
acquisition of Banamex. Consumer loans delinquent 90 days or more
primarily include mortgages.

Commercial cash-basis loans were $1.030 billion, $79 million, and $55
million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in P
2001 reflects the acquisition of Banamex whose commercial cash-basis loans
include exposures in steel, textile, food products and other industries.

Net credit losses, cash-basis loans, and loans delinquent 90 days or more
may increase from 2001 levels, due to economic weakness in Mexico, whose
exports have been impacted by the slowdown in the U.S. This statement is a
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

)

Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East & Africa

In millions of doliars 2001 20000 19980
Total revenues, net of interest expense $548 $438 $350
Adjusted operating expensas @ 369 332 253
Provision for credit losses 39 33 35
Core income before taxes 140 73 62
Income taxes 51 23 24
Core income 89 50 38
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 1) 4 (17
Income $ 88 $ 54 $ 21
Average assets (i billions of doliars) $ 4 $ 3 $ 3
Return on assets 2.20% 1.80% 0.70%
Excluding restructuring-related items

Return on assets 2.23% 1.67% 1.27%

{1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2} Excludes restructuring-related items.

Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East & Africa (CEEMFA—
including India and Pakistan) — which provides banking, lending, including
credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers throughout the
region—reported core income of §89 million in 2001, up $39 million or 78%
from 2000, and in 2000 core income was up $12 million or 2% from 1999
reflecting continued growth in deposits, branch lending and cards across the
region, including the impact of acquisitions. Income of $88 million in 2001
included restructuring-related charges of 1 million ($2 million pretax).
Income of $54 million in 2000 included restructuring-related credits of

$4 million ($5 million pretax). Income of $21 million in 1999 included
restructuring-related charges of $17 million ($28 million pretax).




In June 2000, CEEMEA completed the acquisition of a majority interest in
Bank Handlowy in Poland, whose consumer businesses are reported in this
segment. In August 2000, CEEMEA completed the acquisition of ING’s retail
branches in Hungary.

As shown in the following table, CEEMEA reported 39% account growth in
2001 and 33% in 2000 primarily reflecting growth in custorner deposits, cards
and other lending, including the impact of acquisitions, as franchise growth
efforts continue across the region.

In billions of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts (in milions) 3.9 2.8 2.1
Average customer deposits $5.9 $3.9 $3.5
Average loans $2.3 $1.9 $1.6

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $548 milfion in 2001 increased
$110 million or 25% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $88 million or 25%
primarily reflecting growth in deposits, branch lending and cards across the
region, including the impact of acquisitions, partially offset by weakness
in Turkey.

Adjusted operating expenses of $369 million increased $37 million or
11% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $79 million or 31% from 1999
reflecting higher business volumes, acquisitions and franchise growth in
the region.

The provision for credit losses was $39 million in 2001 compared with
$33 million in 2000 and §35 million in 1999. The adoption of revised FFIEC
write-off policies in 2000 added $3 million to net credit losses, which were
charged against the allowance for credit losses, and 14 basis points to the net
credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 1.70% in 2001, as compared to
1.95% in 2000 (1.81% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy revisions) and
1.96% in 1999 primarily due to lower net credit losses in Pakistan and India.
Loans delinquent 90 days or more of $36 million or 1.41% of loans at
December 31, 2001 increased from $32 million or 1.37% at December 31,
2000 primarily due to higher delinquent loans in Poland. Loans delinquent
90 days or more of $32 million or 1.37% at December 31, 2000 decreased from
$46 million or 2.25% at December 31, 1999 primarily due to lower delinquent
loans in Pakistan. Net credit losses and loans delinquent 90 days or more
may increase from 2001 levels due to weakening global economic conditions.
This statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements”
on page 62.

e-CONSUMER

In mifions of doftars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $176 $170 $108
Adjusted operating expenses @ 305 426 285
Core loss before tax benefits (129) (256) 177
Income tax benefits (52) (96) (67)
Core loss {77) (160) (110)
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 8) — —
Loss $ (85) $(160) $(110)

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
() Excludes restructuring-related items.
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e-Consumer —the business responsible for developing and implementing
Global Consumer Internet financial services products and e-commerce
solutions— reported a loss before restructuring-related items of $77 million
in 2001, compared to losses of $160 million in 2000 and $110 million in
1999. The loss of $85 million in 2001 included restructuring-related items of
$8 million ($13 million pretax).

Revenues, net of interest expense, in 2001 increased $6 million or 4% from
2000 primarily due to growth associated with both new and established
product offerings, partially offset by lower realized investment gains.
Revenues of $170 million in 2000 included gains related to the sale of
Internet/e-commerce investments.

Adjusted operating expenses in 2001 declined $121 million or 28% from
2000 primarily due to the effect of initiatives discontinued in 2001 and 2000,
partially offset by continued investment spending on Internet financial
services and products. Expenses in 2000 increased $141 mitlion or 49% from
1999 reflecting investment spending combined with charges related to the
termination of certain contracts and other initiatives.

OTHER CONSUMER

In milions of doflars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 50 $169 $445
Adjusted operating expenses @ 220 235 448
Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses (59) 7 (103)
Core income (loss) before tax benefits (111) {73) 100
Income taxes (benefits) (40) (29) 40
Minority interest, after-tax — — 2
Core income (loss) (71) (44 82
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (5) 2 (34)
Income (loss) $ (76) $(42) $ 28

{1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

{2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Other Consumer—which includes certain treasury and unallocated
staff functions, global marketing and other programs— reported losses before
restructuring-related items of $71 million and §44 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively, compared to core income of $62 million in 1999. The increase in
losses from 2000 was primarily due to lower treasury results, primarily
reflecting a change in internal transfer pricing methodology, and lower
foreign currency hedge gains. Incorne in 1999 was primarily due to gains
resulting from the disposition of the Associates recreational vehicle finance
operations (Fleetwood Credit Corporation) and the sale of certain non-
strategic operations.

Losses of $76 million and $42 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively,
included a restructuring-related charge of 85 million ($7 million pretax) in
2001 and a restructuring-related credit of $2 million ($3 million pretax) in
2000. Income of $28 million in 1999 included a restructuring-related charge
of $34 million ($53 million pretax).

Revenues, expenses, and the provisions for benefits, claims and credit
losses reflect offsets to certain line-item reclassifications reported in other
Global Consumer operating segments. The 1999 revenues, expenses and
provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses also include the results of
certain private label cards and other businesses that were discontinued in
1999 and 2000.




GLOBAL CONSUMER OUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Locking
Staterments” on page 62.

Banking/Lending

Citibanking North America. The year ended December 31, 2001 was
a year of continued success in both our core business momentum and the
successful integration of EAB, Citibanking invested in programs and staff to
improve operations and customer service while continuing to control overall
expenses. In addition, Citibanking continues to emphasize its needs-based
sales approach through Citipro, a complimentary financial analysis that
assesses customers’ needs and recommends appropriate financial products to
meet those needs. The key elements to grow our earnings will be increasing
sales productivity in the Financial Centers; increasing customer retention
through focused marketing, cross selling, and technology; streamlining
processes and investing in appropriate technology to improve productivity and
cost efficiency, which, in turn, will enhance price flexibility; and improving
customer service and satisfaction.

Mortgage Banking. In 2001, Mortgage Banking increased core income
by 19% over 2000, Heavy refinancing activity in 2001 drove CitiMortgage
origination volumes to a record $32.3 billion, 4 62% increase over 2000,
Student Loans benefited in 2001 from lower cost of funds while growing its
number one market share position by expanding sales capabilities and
increasing Internet distribution. In 2002, core income should reflect
continued improverment compared to 2001. With an expected decrease in
refinance activity, CitiMortgage anticipates focusing on increasing market
share in the stable purchase market, with 2 special emphasis on Citigroup
referrals. CitiMortgage should also benefit from higher net servicing income
as mortgage prepayment rates decline. Student Loans expects to benefit from
its strengthened sales platform and continued low funding costs. Credit costs
are anticipated to be comparable to 2001.

North America Cards. In 2001, the Cards business reported a record
core income of $2.1 billion. Core income increased 19% for the year, driven by
improved spreads, resulting from lower interest rates and repricing actions
and contained expense levels, partially offset by higher credit costs. National
bankruptcy filings increased 20% in 2001, due to the combination of pending
legislative reform, higher unemployment and a weakened economy. In 2002,
the Cards business is expected to deliver continued growth and consistent risk-
adjusted revenue performance, despite the presence of a challenging
environment which is expected to continue in 2002. Credit costs and
delinquencies are expected to increase from 2001 levels as a result of
economic conditions and credit performance of the portfolios.

CitiFinancial. During 2001, CitiFinancial focused on the integration

of the Associates businesses, including eliminating redundant, unprofitable
branches or centers and conforming all underwriting and collection
practices. The results of these efforts contributed to significant expense
reductions and improved profitability. Real estate volume increased
significantly primarily due to the success of the PFS-sourced business, which
increased 50% to $7.8 billion in outstandings as of December 31, 2001.
CitiFinancial continues to improve its cost structure and plans to pursue
growth by expanding and developing new sales channels and diversifying its

product offerings. As in the past, cross-selling opportunities among Citigroup
affiliates will continue, Net credit losses and the related loss ratio are expected
to increase from 2001 as a result of economic conditions and credit
performance of the portfolios, including bankruptcy filings.

International

Western Europe. The Western Europe region experienced strong growth
in 2001 with expanded margins resulting from improved spreads and
continued cost management. Business volumes in 2001 benefited from
organic growth and acquisitions in the home equity and credit card
businesses. Our strategic priorities—consumer finance, cards and wealth
managernent—continue to show excellent growth opportunities in the
markets in which we operate. Continued focus on distribution channels will
ensure that customers can access our products in ways that are most
convenient and comfortable for their individual needs. We expect that with
continued product innovation and focused customer support we will continue
to enhance our performance. Credit costs may increase from 2001 as a result
of economic conditions and statutory changes in the regjon.

Japan. Japan’s increase in core income in 2001 reflected the impact of
acquisitions and continued organic growth with over 500,000 new customers
generated. The business began to experience deteriorating credit quality as
unemployment rates and bankruptcy levels reached record highs in late 2001.
We expect this deterioration to continue in 2002 as the Japanese econormy
continues to weaken.

Asia. The region recorded improved financial performance in 2001, driven
by growth in deposits, investment product fees and cards, combined with
expense control initiatives. Credit costs may increase in 2002 reflecting the
delayed effect of weak economic conditions in the region, The business focus
in 2002 will be on continuing the revenue momentum to expand deposits,
investment product fees and cards, combined with expense control initiatives
and tight credit underwriting and collections.

Mexico. Mexico experienced an increase in core income in 2001 primarily
due to the acquisition of Banamex. In 2002, the business expects to continue
its initiatives for significant expense rationalization combined with market
share expansion. The Mexican economy has been negatively impacted by
the slowdown of exports to the U.S. and the credit portfolio continues to be
closely monitored.

Latin America. In 2001, Argentina experienced continued recession
ending the year in an economic and political crisis. The business was able to
generate core income growth in its other countries through modest reverniue
growth combined with expense reduction initiatives and disciplined credit
management. In 2002 delinquencies and net credit losses may increase due to
continuing weak global economic conditions. We will continue to manage for
moderate growth and cost management in the rest of our businesses across
Latin America.




Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East & Africa. The
business experienced strong growth in 2001 driven by growth in deposits,
branch lending and cards across most countries in the region, including
the impact of acquisitions. In 2002, the business expects continued market
share expansion in established markets, build-out of new franchises

in the Czech Republic and in Israel and continued focus on disciplined
credit management.

e-Consumer. In 2001, the business entered into a strategic alliance with
the Microsoft Network and continued to develop and refine existing product
offerings including Citibank Online, C2it, MyCiti, and a strategic alliance
with America Online. These efforts will continue in 2002 as the business seeks
to extend Citigroup’s ability to deliver financial services via the Internet and
improve cross-selling opportunities among Citigroup businesses. These
activities should position Citigroup to grow with the digital economy and
improve the performance and cost effectiveness of our customer service
capabilities.

Insurance Industry

A variety of factors continue to affect the property and casualty insurance
market and the Company’s core business outlook, including improvement in
pricing in the commercial lines marketplace as evidenced by price increases,
a continuing highty competitive personal lines marketplace, inflationary
pressures on loss cost trends including medical inflation and increasing
auto loss costs, asbestos-related developments and rising reinsurance and
litigation costs.

The property and casualty insurance industry continues to be reshaped
by consolidation and globalization. With respect to globalization, Citigroup
formed Citilnsurance, the international arm of Citigroup’s insurance
activities, o capitalize on the strength of the Citigroup branch franchise and
the extensive distribution strength of the Citigroup consumer business around
the world. This unit expects to build on the progress already made in
Southeast Asia during the last several years with the strategic alliance with
Fubon Group, a diversified financial services company based in Tatwan.

Changes in the general interest rate environment affect the return received
by the insurance subsidiaries on newly invested and reinvested funds. While a
rising interest rate environment enhances the returns available, it reduces the
market value of existing fixed maturity investments and the availability of
gains on disposition. A decline in interest rates reduces the return available on
investment of funds, but creates the opportunity for realized investment gains
on disposition of fixed maturity investments.

As required by various state laws and regulations, the Company’s
insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessments from state-administered
guaranty associations, second-injury funds and similar associations.
Management believes that such assessments will not have a material impact
on the Company’s results of operations.

Certain social, economic, political, and litigation issues have led to an
increased number of legislative and regulatory proposals aimed at addressing
the cost and availability of certain types of insurance, as well as the claim and
coverage obligations of insurers. While most of these provisions have failed to
become law, these initiatives may continue as legislators and regulators try to
respond to the public availability, affordability, and claim concerns. The
resulting laws, if any, could adversely affect the Company’s ability to write
business with appropriate returns.

Primerica. During the last few years, Primerica has instituted programs,
including sales and product training, that are designed to maintain high
compliance standards, increase the number of producing agents and
customer contacts and, ultimately, increase production levels. Additionally,
increased effort has been made to provide all Primerica customers full access
to all Primerica marketed lines. Insurance in force continues to grow. A
continuation of these trends could positively influence future operations.
Primerica continues to expand cross selling with other Company subsidiaries.

Personal Lines. Personal Lines strategy includes control of operating
expenses to improve competitiveness and profitability, growth in sales
primarily through independent agents and selective expansion of additional
marketing channels to broaden distribution to a wider customer base. These
growth strategies also provide opportunities to leverage the existing cost
structure and achieve economies of scale. In addition, Personal Lines
continues to take action to control its exposure to catastrophe losses,
including limiting the writing of new homeowners business in certain
markets and implementing price increases in certain hurricane-prone areas,
and non-renewing policies in some hurricane-prone areas where acceptable
returns are not being achieved, subject to restrictions imposed by insurance
regulatory authorities.

The personal auto insurance marketplace remains highly competitive as
some personal auto carriers have been reluctant to increase prices despite
increases in loss cost trends due to inflationary pressures in medical costs and
auto repair costs. These trends are expected to continue into 2002. Personal
Lines will continue to emphasize underwriting discipline in this competitive
marketplace and continue to pursue its strategy of increases in auto rates to
offset increases in loss cost trends. Market conditions for homeowners
insurance have remained stable with the industry experiencing modest rate
increases. Personal Lines expects homeowners rate increases to continue in
2002. Homeowners loss cost trends continue to increase at modest levels
reflecting inflationary pressures and the increased frequency of weather-
related losses.

The Personal Lines insurance market shows indications of contraction
as a result of the terrorist attack on September 11th. Several Personal Lines
carriess have ceased writing new policies and are not renewing existing
policies. As carriers exit markets and fail to renew policies, Personal Lines is
well positioned within the independent agent’s office to take advantage of this
opportunity to properly underwrite and bind this new business.




GLOBAL CORPORATE

In miftions of dolfars 2001 20000 1999(
Total revenues, net of interest expense $34,297 $33,479 $28,688
Adjusted operating expenses @ 18,869 18,812 16,233
Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses 6,544 5173 4,317
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 8,884 9,494 8,138
Income taxes 3,014 3,260 2,831
Minority interest, after-tax 26 68 169
Care income 5,844 6,166 5,138
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (137) (146) 121
Income $ 5,707 $ 6,020 $ 5,259

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Global Corporate serves corporations, financial institutions, governments,
investors and other participants in capital markets throughout the world. It
consists of the Corporate and Investment Bank (CIB), Emerging Markets
Corporate Banking & Global Transaction Services (EM Corporate & GTS),
and the Commercial Lines business of TPC. The CIB delivers a full range of
financial services and products including investment banking, brokerage,
research and advisory services, foreign exchange, structured products,
derivatives, loans, leasing and equipment finance. EM Corporate & GTS offers
a wide array of banking and financial services products in the emerging
markets (excluding Mexico) and also includes the global operations of
Transaction Services. TPC is one of the largest property and casualty insurers
in the United States offering, among other products, workers’ compensation,
commercial multi-peril, commercial auto, other liability, fidelity and surety
and property and other lines, which it distributes through independent agents
and brokers.

Global Corporate reported core income of §5.844 billion in 2001, down
$322 million or 5% from 2000. The decrease reflects declines in Commercial
Lines, down $402 million to $691 million, and the CIB, down $161 million to
$3.509 billion, partially offset by increases in EM Corporate & GTS, up $241
million to $1.644 billion. Commercial Lines decreased primarily due to the
catastrophe losses associated with the terrorist attack of September 11th,
increased loss costs trends including increased medical costs, auto repair costs
and reinsurance costs and lower net investment income, partially offset by the
benefit of rate increases, higher fee income and higher favorable prior-year
reserve development. Also reflected in the 2001 results are the incremental
earnings from the minority interest buyback. The decrease in the CIB was
primarily due to lower income in global equities and private client, lower
earnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial and higher credit losses,
partially offset by strong growth in fixed income and expense control
initiatives. The increase in EM Corporate & GTS primarily reflects higher
trading-related revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives,
partially offset by write-downs in Argentina.

Income of $5.707 billion in 2001 and $6.020 billion in 2000 included
restructuring-related charges of $137 million ($222 million pretax) and $146
million (§172 million pretax), respectively. Income of $5.299 billion in 1999
included net restructuring-related credits of $121 million ($192 million
pretax). See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
of the restructuring-related items.

1)
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The businesses of Global Corporate are significantly affected by the levels
of activity in the global capital markets which, in turn, are influenced by
macro-economic and political policies and developments, among other
factors, in the 100 countries in which the businesses operate. Global
economic and market events can have both positive and negative effects on
the revenue performance of the businesses and can affect credit performance.
Losses on commercial lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans can
vary widely with respect to timing and amount, particularly within any
narrowly-defined business or loan type. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans
may increase from the 2001 levels due to weak global economic conditions,
sovereign or regulatory actions and other factors. The property and casualty
insurance market will benefit from improvements in pricing, offset in part by
competitive pressures, inflation in the cost of medical care, and litigation.
This paragraph contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

In mitions of dollars 2001 2000 1999 M
Total revenues, net of interest expense $19,406 $19,746 $16,500
Adjusted operating expenses @ 12,846 13,268 10,990
Provision for credit losses 1,117 755 193
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 5,443 5,723 5317
Income taxes 1,932 2,051 1,943
Minority interest, after-tax 2 2 2
Core income 3,509 3,670 3,372
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (105) 94 131
Income $ 3,404 $ 3,576 $ 3,503

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-refated items.

The CIB delivers a full range of financial services and products
including investment banking, brokerage, research and advisory services,
foreign exchange, structured products, derivatives, loans, leasing and
equipment finance.

Core income was $3.509 billion in 2001 compared to $3.670 billion in
2000 and $3.372 billion in 1999. CIB core income decreased $161 million
during 2001 primarily due to lower income in global equities and private
client, lower eamnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial and higher
credit losses, partially offset by strong growth in fixed income and expense
control initiatives. Core income of $3.670 billion in 2000 increased $298
million compared to 1999 primarily reflecting double-digit growth across
most businesses, partially offset by increases in production-related expenses
and the provision for credit losses, including the impact of acquisitions in
2000. Income of $3.404 billion in 2001 and $3.576 billion in 2000 included
net restructuring-related charges of $105 million ($176 million pretax)
and $94 million ($111 million pretax), respectively. Income of $3.503 billion
in 1999 included net restructuring-related credits of $131 million ($208
million pretax).




On May 1, 2000, the CIB completed the acquisition of the global invest-
ment banking business and related net assets of Schroders PLC (Schroders),
including all corporate finance, financial markets and securities activities.
During the second quarter of 2000, the CIB strengthened its position in the
U.S. leasing market through the purchase of Copelco.

Revenues, net of interest expense, decreased 2% in 2001 to $19.406 billion
from $19.746 billion in 2000 primarily reflecting decreases in global equities
and private client and lower earnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial,
partially offset by strong growth in fixed income. Revenues increased
20% to $19.746 billion in 2000 from 1999 reflecting strong growth across
all businesses.

Revenues by category were as follows:

In millions of dollars 2001 2000M 19980
Commissions and fees $ 3,702 $ 4,471 $ 3,721
Investment banking 4,519 4,098 3,353
Principal transactions 3,248 4,238 3,608
Asset management and administration fees @ 2,035 2,169 1,641
Interest and dividend income, net 5,009 3,801 3,600
QOther income 893 969 576
Total revenues, net of interest expense $19,406 $19,746 $16,500

{1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes the revenues of SSB Asset Management which are reported in the Citigroup Asset

Management segment,

Commissions and fees were $3.702 billion, $4.471 billion and $3.721
billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The 2001 decline primarily
reflects decreases in over-the-counter securities and mutual fund
commissions due to depressed market conditions. The 2000 increase reflects
growth in sales of listed and over-the-counter securities along with increased
mutual fund commissions and transaction services fees.

Investment banking revenues were $4.519 billion in 2001 compared to
$4.098 billion in 2000 and $3.353 billion in 1999. Growth in 2001 was
primarily due to increases in high-grade debt, structured products and high
vield underwritings, partially offset by decreases in equity and unit trust
underwriting and lower merger and acquisition fees. Growth in 2000 was
primarily due to increases in equity and high-grade debt underwriting and
in merger and acquisition fees, partially offset by a decline in high yield
underwriting.

Principal transactions revenues were $3,248 billion in 2001, down $990
million or 23% from 2000 primarily reflecting decreases in global equities.
Principal transactions revenues were $4.238 billion in 2000 compared to
$3.609 billion in 1999 primarily reflecting increases in global equities, fixed
income and foreign exchange.

Asset management and administration fees decreased $134 million in
2001 to $2.035 bilkion from $2.169 billion in 2000 primarily due to a
decrease in average balances of assets under fee-based management. Asset
management and administration fees increased $528 million in 2000 from
$1.641 billion in 1999 primarily due to strong growth in assets under fee-
based management. These fees include results from assets managed by the
Financial Consultants and other internally managed assets as well as those
that are managed through the Consulting Group.

Net interest and dividend income was $5.009 biltion in 2001 compared to
$3.801 billion in 2000 and $3.600 billion in 1999. The increase in 2001 was
primarily due to wider spreads in fixed income, treasury and loans. The
increase in 2000 was primarily due to the addition of Copelco.

Other income was $893 million in 2001 compared to $969 million in 2000
and $576 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease is primarily due to lower
earnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial and the effect of a change in
the presentation of intercompany balances that had the effect of reducing
other income and other expense, partially offset by gains on the sale of the
Associates Relocation and Canadian Fleet businesses and gains on sale of
municipal bonds from the available-for-sale portfolio. Other income of $969
million in 2000 increased $393 million from 1999 primarily due to an
increase in ownership in Nikko Cordial along with higher income from the
Nikko SSB joint venture which began operations during the 1999 first quarter.

Total assets under fee-based management at December 31, were as follows:

In bitions of doftars 2001 2000 1999
Financial consultant managed $ 54.9 $ 56.2 $ 43.6
Consuiting group and internally managed 150.2 145.8 126.2
Total assets under fee-based

management " $205.1 $201.8 $169.8

(1) Includes assets managed jointly with Citigroup Asset Management.

Adjusted operating expenses were §12.846 billion in 2001 compared to
$13.268 billion in 2000 and $10.990 billion in 1999. Adjusted operating
expenses decreased 3% in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to lower
compensation and benefits and other operating and administrative expenses.
Compensation and benefits decreased primarily as a result of declines in
production-related compensation and savings from restructuring actions
initiated in 2001. Other operating and administrative expenses declined
$374 million primarily due to tight expense controls and a change in the
presentation of intercompany balances that had the effect of reducing other
income and other expense. Adjusted operating expenses increased 21% in
2000 compared to 1999 primarily due to higher production-related
compensation and benefits expense, including the impact of the acquisitions
of Schroders and Copelco in the 2000 second quarter.

The provision for credit losses was $1.117 billion in 2001 compared to
$755 million in 2000 and $193 million in 1999. The increase in 2001 was
primarily due to higher net credit losses in the transportation leasing portfolio
combined with higher net credit losses in the telecommunication, energy,
retail and airline industries. The increase in 2000 compared to 1999 was due
to losses on exposures to North American health care borrowers, additional
provisions for the transportation portfolio, recoveries on real estate loans in
1999 and the inclusion of losses for Copelco, which was acquired in the
second quarter of 2000.

Cash-basis loans were $1.525 billion, $776 million and $481 million at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, reflecting increases in the
transportation portfolio and borrowers in the telecommunication, energy,
utility, and retail industries. The OREO portfolio totaled $64 million, $115
million and $156 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The improvements in OREOQ in 2001 and 2000 were primarily related to the
North America real estate portfolio. Losses on commercial lending activities
and the level of cash-basis loans can vary widely with respect to timing and
amount, particularly within any narrowly-defined business or loan type. Net
credit losses and cash-basis loans may increase from 2001 levels due to weak
economic conditions in the U.S., Japan and Europe. This statement is a
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.




EMERGING MARKETS CORPORATE BANKING AND
GLOBAL TRANSACTION SERVICES

fn millions of dollars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $6,928 $6,236 $5,373
Adjusted operating expenges @ 4,037 3,845 3,612
Provision for credit losses 300 164 329
Core income before taxes and

minority interest 2,591 2,227 1,432
Income taxes 923 808 544
Minority interest, after-tax 24 16 6
Core income 1,644 1,403 882
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (32) (11 (10)
Income $1,612 $1,392 $ 872

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Citigroup’s EM Corporate & GTS business offers a wide array of banking
and financial services products in the emerging markets (excluding Mexico)
and also includes the global operations of Transaction Services.

EM Corporate & GTS core income totaled $1.644 billion in 2001, up
$241 million or 17% from 2000 primarily reflecting higher trading-related
revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives, partially offset by
write-downs in Argentina. The improvement in core income was driven by
growth in Asia up 23% to $674 million, CEEMEA up 31% to $519 miltion and
Latin America up 10% to $521 million. Core income in 2000 of $1.403 billion
increased $521 million or 59% from 1999 primarily reflecting broad-based
revenue growth, tight expense control management and improved credit in
Asia. Income of $1.612 billion, $1.392 billion and $872 million in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively, included restructuring-related charges of $32 million
($46 million pretax), $11 million ($18 million pretax) and $10 milkion
($16 million pretax), respectively.

In June 2000, EM Corporate & GTS completed the acquisition of a majority
interest in Bank Handlowy, a leading bank in Poland.

Revenues, net of interest expense, were $6.928 billion in 2001 compared to
$6.236 billion in 2000. Revenue growth in 2001 was led by CEEMEA, up 22%
from 2000, primarily due to the acquisition of Bank Handlowy along with
growth in trading-related revenues and benefits from capital hedging
activities. Asia revenues were up 13% in 2001 primarily due to growth in
trading-related revenues and the impact of a building sale. Latin America
reverues were up 14% in 2001 primarily reflecting growth in trading-related
revenues and benefits from capital hedging activities, partially offset by fourth
quarter write-downs in Argentina. Revenues of $6.236 biilion in 2000 grew
$863 million or 16% compared to 1999 primarily due to the acquisition of
Bank Handlowy and growth in transaction services revenues in all regions.

Adjusted operating expenses increased 5% in 2001 to $4.037 billion from
$3.845 billion in 2000 which, in turn, increased 6% from $3.612 billion in
1999 primarily reflecting the acquisition of Bank Handlowy and volume-
related increases, partially offset by cost controls in all regions.

The provision for credit losses totaled $300 million, $164 million and
$329 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001 is
primarily due to fourth quarter write-downs in Argentina reflecting the
deteriorating economic situation in that country. The decrease in 2000
primarily reflects improvements in Asia, mainly China, Indonesia, Australia
and Thailand, and in CEEMEA.

Cash-basis loans (excluding Mexico, which is included in the Mexico
Consumer segment) were $1.465 billion, $1.069 billion and $989 million
at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001
primarily reflects increases in Latin America, mainly Argentina, and increases
in Asia, mainly Australia and New Zealand. The increase in 2000 was
primarily due to the acquisition of Bank Handlowy along with increases in
Latin America, partially offset by improvements in Asia. Losses on commercial
lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans can vary widely with
respect to timing and amount, particularly within any narrowly-defined
business or loan type. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans may increase
from the 2001 levels due to weakening global economic conditions, the
economic crisis in Argentina, sovereign or regulatory actions and other
factors. This staternent is a forward-looking statement within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

COMMERCIAL LINES

In millions of doliars 2001 2000 19980
Total revenues, net of interest expense $7,963 $7,497 $6,815
Claims and claim adjustment expenses 5,127 4,254 3,795
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,986 1,699 1,631
Income before taxes and minority interest 850 1,544 1,389
Income taxes 159 401 344
Minority interest, after-tax® - 50 161
Core income @ 691 1,093 884
Restructuring-related items, after-tex - 41) —
Income $ 691 $1,052 $ 884

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

(3) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4) Excludes investment gains/losses included In Investment Activities segment.

Commercial Lines —which offers a broad array of property and casualty
insurance and insurance-related services through brokers and independent
agencies—reported core income of $691 million in 2001 compared to $1.093
billion in 2000 and $884 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease compared to
2000 primarily reflects the impact of catastrophe losses of $448 million
associated with the terrorist attack on Septernber 11th, increased loss cost
trends including increased medical costs, auto repair costs and reinsurance
costs and lower net investment income, partially offset by the benefit of rate
increases, higher fee income and higher favorable prior-year reserve
development. Also reflected in the 2001 results are the incremental earnings
from the minority interest buyback. The improvements in 2000 over 1999
reflect the incremental earnings from the minority interest buyback, rate
increases, higher fee income, lower catastrophe losses, and higher net
investment income and were partially offset by increased loss cost trends and
lower favorable prior-year reserve development. Results for 2000 and 1999
also reflect benefits resulting from legislative actions that changed the
manner in which certain states finance their workers’ compensation second-
injury funds, principally in the states of New York and Pennsylvania.

(On May 31, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of the surety
business of Reliance Group Holdings, Inc. (Reliance Surety). In the third
quarter of 2000, the Company purchased the renewal rights to a portion of
Reliance Group Holdings, Inc.’s commercial lines middle-market book of
business (Reliance Middle Market) and also acquired the renewal rights to




Frontier Insurance Group, Inc.’s (Frontier) environmental, excess and
surplus lines casualty businesses and certain classes of surety business.

The following table shows net written premiums by market for the three
years ended December 31:

in millions of doliars 2001 20000 19990
National accounts $ 419 $ 352 $ 488
Commercial accounts 2,947 2,851 2,373
Select accounts 1,713 1,575 1,494
Bond 590 487 207
Gulf 608 517 403
Total net written premiums $6,277 $5,782 $4,965

(1} Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

Commercial Lines net written premiums were $6.277 billion in 2001
compared to §5.782 billion in 2000 and $4.965 billion in 1999. Included in
Bond net written premiums in 2000 is an adjustment of $131 million due to a
reinsurance transaction associated with the acquisition of the Reliance Surety
business. The trend in net written premiums reflects the impact of an
improving rate environment as evidenced by the continued favorable pricing
on new and renewal business. Also contributing to the net written premium
increases in 2001 were the full year impacts of the acquisition of the renewal
rights for the Reliance Middle Market business in Commercial Accounts, the
Reliance Surety acquisition in Bond and the acquisition of the renewal rights
for the Frontier business in Gulf. The 2001 increase in National Accounts net
written premiums is due to the purchase of less reinsurance reflecting the
shift in business mix from guaranteed cost products to loss-sensitive products
combined with the re-population of the involuntary pools. Also contributing
to the net written premium increases in 2000 was the new business associated
with the acquisition of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle Market
business in Commercial Accounts, the Reliance surety acquisition in Bond
and the new business associated with the acquisition of the renewal rights for
the Frontier business in Gulf. The net written premium decrease in National
Accounts was primarily due to a shift of business mix from premium-based
products to fee-based products.

National Accounts works with national and regional brokers providing
insurance coverages and services, primarily workers’ compensation, mainly
to large corporations. National Accounts also includes the residual market
business, which sells claims and policy management services to workers’
compensation and automobile assigned risk plans and to self-insurance pools
throughout the United States. New business in National Accounts for 2001 was
marginally lower than in 2000 reflecting a disciplined approach to market
opportunities. New business in 2000 was marginally lower than in 1999
reflecting the Company's disciplined approach to underwriting and risk
management. National Accounts business retention ratio for 2001 was
moderately lower than in 2000 primarily reflecting a focus on account
profitability and an increase in lost business due to the renewal price
increases in 2001. National Accounts business retention ratio for 2000 was
moderately lower than 1999 reflecting an increase in lost business due to the
renewal price increases in 2000.

Commercial Accounts serves primarily mid-sized businesses for casualty
products and both large and mid-sized businesses for property products
through a network of independent agents and brokers. Within Commercial
Accounts, a dedicated construction unit exists as well as a unit which
primarily writes coverages for the trucking industry. New premium business

in Commercial Accounts for 2001 was moderately lower than in 2000
reflecting the acquisition of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle Market
business in 2000. New business in 2000 was significantly higher than in 1999
reflecting the impact of the acquisition of the Reliance Middle Market renewal
business. Commercial Accounts business retention ratio for 2001 was
significantly lower than 2000 reflecting the continued disciplined approach to
achieving acceptable levels of account profitability and an increase in lost
business due to the renewal price increases in 2001. Commercial Accounts
business retention ratio for 2000 was moderately lower than 1999 reflecting
an increase in lost business due to the renewal price increases in 2000,

Select Accounts serves small businesses through a network of
independent agents. For 2001, new business in Select Accounts was
marginally lower than in 2000, while for 2000, new business was moderately
higher than in 1999 reflecting the unusually low new business in 1999
resulting from the Company’s selective underwriting policy in the highly
competitive marketplace, The business retention ratio in 2001 was virtually
the same as in 2000. Select Accounts business retention ratio for 2000 was
moderately lower than in 1999 reflecting an increase in lost business due to
renewal price increases in 2000.

Bond provides a variety of fidelity and surety bonds and executive liability
coverages to clients of all sizes through independent agents and brokers.

Gulf markets products to national, mid-size and small customers and
distributes them through both wholesale brokers and retail agents and
brokers throughout the United States.

Catastrophe losses, net of tax and reinsurance, were $471 million in
2001 and $27 million in 1999. There were no catastrophe losses in 2000.
Catastrophe fosses in 2001 were primarily due to the terrorist attack on
September 11th, Tropical Storm Allison and the Seattle earthquake, The
1999 catastrophe losses were primarily due to Hurricane Floyd and tornadoes
in Oklzhoma.

The Company, along with others in the industry, uses the combined
ratio, which measures the total cost per $100 of premium production, as
a measure of performance for Commercial Lines. The statutory combined
ratio before policyholder dividends for Commercial Lines was 111.7% in
2001 compared to 104.1% in 2000 and 106.8% in 1999. The GAAP combined
ratio before policyholder dividends for Commercial Lines was 110.9% in
2001 compared to 100.9% in 2000 and 103.8% in 1999. GAAP combined
ratios for Commercial Lines differ from statutory combined ratios primarily
due to the deferral and amortization of certain expenses for GAAP reporting
purposes only.

The 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios include the impact of the
terrorist attack on September 11th. Excluding the impact of this event, the
2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratio before policyholder dividends would
have been 100.2% and 99.4%, respectively. The 2000 statutory and GAAP
combined ratios include an adjustment associated with the acquisition of the
Reliance Surety business. Excluding this adjustment, the 2000 statutory and
GAAP combined ratios before policyholder dividends would have been 103.8%
and 101.5%, respectively. The 1999 statutory combined ratio for Commercial
Lines reflected the treatment of the commutation of an asbestos liability to an
insured. Excluding this commutation, the statutory combined ratio before
policyholder dividends for 1999 would have been 104.6%.

The decrease in the 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before
policyholder dividends, excluding the related adjustment above, compared to
the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before policyholder dividends,




excluding the related adjustment above, was primarily due to premium
growth related to rate increases, the full year impact of the ongoing business
associated with the Reliance Surety acquisition, the purchase of the renewal
rights for the Reliance Middle Market and Frontier businesses and higher
favorable prior-year reserve development, partially offset by increased loss cost
trends and catastrophe losses due to Tropical Storm Allisen in the 2001 second
quarter and the Seattle earthquake in the 2001 first quarter.

The improvement in the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before
policyholder dividends, excluding the adjustments above, compared to the
1999 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before policyholder dividends,
excluding the adjustments above, was primarily due to premium growth
related to rate increases as well as the impact of the Reliance Surety
acquisition and the purchase of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle
Market and Frontier businesses and lower catastrophe losses, partially
offset by increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-year reserve
development and a disproportionately smaller increase in expenses associated
with the growth in premiums.

Environmental Claims

The Company continues to receive claims from insureds which allege that
they are liable for injury or damage arising out of their alleged disposition of
toxic substances. Mostly, these claims are due to various legislative as well as
regulatory efforts aimed at environmental remediation. For instance, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, or
CERCLA, enacted in 1980 and later modified, enables private parties as well
as federal and state governments to take action with respect to releases and
threatened releases of hazardous substances. This Federal statute permits the
recovery of response costs from some liable parties and may require liable
parties to undertake their own remedial action. Liability under CERCLA may
be joint and several with other responsible parties.

The Company has been, and continues to be, involved in litigation
involving insurance coverage issues pertaining to environmental claims. The
Company believes that certain court decisions have interpreted the insurance
coverage to be broader than the original intent of the insurers and insureds.
These decisions often pertain to insurance policies that were issued by the
Company prior to the mid-1970s. These decisions continue to be inconsistent
and vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Environmental claims when
submitted rarely indicate the monetary amount being sought by the claimant
from the insured, and the Company does not keep track of the monetary
amount being sought in those few claims which indicate a monetary amount.

The Company'’s reserves for environmental claims are not established on a
claim-by-claim basis. The Company carries an aggregate bulk reserve for all
of the Company’s environmental claims that are in dispute, until the dispute
is resolved. This bulk reserve is established and adjusted based upon the
aggregate volume of in-process environmental claims and the Company’s
experience in resolving those claims. At December 31, 2001, approximately
75% of the net environmental reserve, approximately $298 million, is carried
in a bulk reserve and includes unresolved and incurred but not reported
environmental claims for which the Company has not received any specific
claims as well as for the anticipated cost of coverage litigation disputes
relating to these claims. The balance, approximately 25% of the net
environmental reserve, or approximately §98 million, consists of case reserves
for resolved claims.

The Company’s reserving methodology is preferable to one based on
“identified claims” because the resolution of environmental exposures by the
Company generally occurs by settlement on an insured-by-insured basis as
opposed to a claim-by-claim basis. Generally, the settlement between the
Company and the insured extinguishes any obligation the Company may
have under any policy issued to the insured for past, present and future
environmental liabilities as well as extinguishes any pending coverage
litigation dispute with the insured. This form of settlement is commonly
referred to as a “buy-back” of policies for future environmental liability. In
addition, many of the agreements have also extinguished any insurance
obligation which the Company may have for other claims, including but not
limited to asbestos and other cumulative injury claims. Provisions of these
agreements also include appropriate indemnities and hold harmless
provisions to protect the Company. The Company’s general purpose in
executing these agreements is to reduce its potential environmental exposure
and eliminate the risks presented by coverage litigation with the insured and
related costs.

In establishing environmental reserves, the Company evaluates the
exposure presented by each insured and the anticipated cost of resolution, if
any, for each insured on a quarterly basis. In the course of this analysis, the
Company considers the probable liability, available coverage, relevant judicial
interpretations and historical value of similar exposures, In addition, the
Company considers the many variables presented, such as the nature of the
alleged activities of the insured at each site; the allegations of environmental
harm at each site; the number of sites; the total number of potentially
responsible parties at each site; the nature of environmental harm and the
corresponding remedy at each site; the nature of government enforcement
activities at each site; the ownership and general use of each site; the overall
nature of the insurance relationship between the Company and the insured,
including the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the Company has
issued to the insured; the involvement of other insurers; the potential for other
available coverage, including the number of years of coverage; the role, if any,
of non-environmental claims or potential non-environmental claims, in any
resolution process; and the applicable law in each jurisdiction.

The following table displays activity for environmental losses and loss
expenses and reserves for the years ended December 31

Environmental Losses

In mitlions of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Beginning reserves

Direct $669 $ 801 $928
Ceded (111) (125) (96)
Net 558 676 832
Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct 58 75 139
Ceded (12) (1 82)
Losses paid

Direct 248 207 266
Ceded (40) (25) (53)
Ending reserves

Direct 479 669 801

Ceded (83) (111 (125)
Net $396 $ 558 $676




Over the past three years, the Company has experienced a substantial
reduction in the number of policyholders with pending coverage litigation
disputes, a continued reduction in the number of policyholders tendering for
the first time an environmental remediation-type claim to the Company as
well as a continued reduction in the number of policyholders with active
environmental claims.

As of December 31, 2001, the number of policyholders with pending
coverage litigation disputes pertaining to environmental claims was 216,
approximately 11% less than the number pending as of December 31, 2000,
and approximately 20% less than the number pending as of December 31,
1999. Also, in 2001, there were 134 policyholders tendering for the first time
an environmental remediation-type claim to the Company. This compares to
158 policyholders doing so in 2000 and 256 policyholders in 1999.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has resolved the environmental
liabilities presented by 5,595 of the 6,214 policyholders who have tendered
environmental claims to the Company for approximately $1.88 billion
(before reinsurance). This resolution comprises 90% of the policyholders who
have tendered these claims. The Company generally has been successful in
resolving its coverage litigation disputes and continues to reduce its potential
exposure through favorable settlements with some insureds.

Asbestos Claims and Litigation

The Company believes that the property and casualty insurance industry has
suffered from judicial interpretations that have attempted to maximize
insurance availability for asbestos claims from both a coverage and liability
standpoint far beyond the intent of the contracting parties. These policies
generally were issued prior to 1980. The Company continues to receive
asbestos claims alleging insureds’ liability from claimants’ asbestos-related
injuries. Since the beginning of 2000, the Company has experienced an
increase over prior years in the number of ashestos claims being tendered to
the Company and the Company expects this trend to continue. This statement
is a forward-looking staternent within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62. Factors
leading to these increases include more intensive advertising by lawyers
seeking asbestos claimants, the increasing focus by plaintiffs on new and
previously peripheral defendants and an increase in the number of entities
seeking bankruptcy protection as a result of asbestos-related liabilities. In
addition to contributing to the increase in claims, the bankruptey proceedings
may have the effect of significantly accelerating and increasing loss payments
by insurers, including the Company. Particularly during the last few months
of 2001 and continuing into 2002, these trends have both accelerated and
become more visible.

Because each insured presents different liability and coverage issues,
the Company evaluates those issues on an insured-by-insured basis. The
Company’s evaluations have not resulted in any meaningful data from which
an average asbestos defense or indemnity payment may be determined.

In establishing the Company’s asbestos reserve, the Company evaluates
the exposure presented by each insured. In the course of this evaluation, the
Company considers available insurance coverage, including the role of any
umbrella or excess insurance the Company has issued to the insured; limits
and deductibles; an analysis of each insured’s potential liability; the
jurisdictions involved; past and anticipated future claim activity; past
settlernent values of similar claims; allocated claim adjustment expense;
potential role of other insurance; the role, if any, of non-asbestos claims or

potential non-asbestos claims in any resolution process; and applicable
coverage defenses or determinations, if any, including the determination as

to whether or not an asbestos claim is a product/completed operation claim
subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if any, for that claim.
Once the gross ultimate exposure for indemnity and allocated claim
adjustment expense is determined for each insured by each policy year, the
Company calculates a ceded reinsurance projection based on any applicable
facultative and treaty reinsurance, as well as past ceded experience.
Adjustments to the ceded projections also occur due to actual ceded claim
experience and reinsurance collections,

The Company also compares its historical direct and net loss and expense
paid experience, year-by-year, to assess any emerging trends, fhuctuations or
characteristics suggested by the aggregate paid activity. The comparison
includes a review of the ratio of the ending direct and net reserves by last
year’s direct and net paid activity, also known as the survival ratio.

At December 31, 2001, approximately 81%, or approximately $665
million, of the net asbestos reserve, represents incurred but not reported
losses for which the Company has not received any specific claims. The
balance, approximately 19% of the net asbestos reserve, or approximately
$155 million, is for pending ashestos claims. As in the past, asbestos claims,
when submitted, rarely indicate the monetary amount being sought by the
claimant from the insured, and the Company does not keep track of the
monetary amount being sought in those few claims that indicated a
monetary amount. Based upon the Company’s experience with ashestos
claims, the duration period of an asbestos claim from the date of submission
to resolution is approximately two years.

In general, the Company posts case reserves for pending asbestos claims
within approximately thirty business days of receipt of these claims.

The following table displays activity for asbestos losses and loss expenses
and reserves for the years ended December 31:

Asbestos Losses

in millions of doftars 2001 2000 1999
Beginning reserves

Direct $1,005 $1,050 $1,252
Ceded (199) (223 (266)
Net 806 827 986
Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct 283 187 128
Ceded (94) (137) {(71)
Losses paid

Direct 242 232 330
Ceded (67) (161) (114)
Ending reserves

Direct 1,046 1,005 1,050
Ceded (226) (199) (223)
Net $ 820 $ 806 $ 827

Uncertainty Regarding Adequacy of Environmental and
Asbestos Reserves

It is difficult to estimate the reserves for environmental and asbestos-related
claims due to the factors described above. Conventional actuarial techniques
are not used to estimate these reserves.




As a result of the processes and procedures described above, the reserves
carried for environmental and asbestos claims at December 31, 2001 are the
Company’s best estimate of ultimate claims and claim adjustment expenses
based upon known facts and current law. However, the uncertainties
surrounding the final resolution of these claims continue. These include,
without limitation, the risks inherent in major litigation, any impact from
the bankruptcy protection sought by various asbestos producers and other
asbestos defendants, a further increase or decrease in asbestos and
environmental claims which cannot now be anticipated, the role of any
umbrella or excess policies the Company has issued for these claims, the
resolution or adjudication of some disputes pertaining to the amount of
available coverage for asbestos claims in 2 manner inconsistent with the
Company’s previous assessment of these claims, the number and outcome
of direct actions against the Company, and unanticipated developments
pertaining to the Company’s ability to recover reinsurance for environmental
and asbestos claims. It is also not possible to predict changes in the legal and
legislative environment and their impact on the future development of
asbestos and environmental claims. This development will be affected
by future court decisions and interpretations, as well as changes in
applicable legislation.

Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabilities may arise
for amounts in excess of the current related reserves. These additional
amounts, or a range of these additional amounts, cannot now be reasonably
estimated and could result in liability exceeding those reserves by an amount
that could be material to the Company’s operating results in future periods.
However, in the opinion of the Company’s management, it is not likely that
these claims will have 2 material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition or liquidity.

Cumulative Injury Other than Asbestos (CIOTA) Claims
CIOTA claims are generally submitted to the Company under general liability
policies and often involve an allegation by a claimant against an insured that
the claimant has suffered injuries as a result of long-term or continuous
exposure to potentially harmful products or substances. These potentially
harmful products or substances include, but are not limited to, lead paint,
pesticides, pharmaceutical products, silicone-based personal products,
solvents, latex gloves, silica, mold and other potentially harmful substances.
To the extent disputes exist between the Company and a policyholder
regarding the coverage available for CIOTA claims, the Company resolves the
disputes, where feasible, through settlement with the policyholder or through
coverage litigation. Historically, the Company’s experience has indicated
that insureds with potentially significant environmental and/or asbestos
exposures, may often have other CIOTA exposures or CIOTA claims pending
with the Company. Due to this experience and the fact that settlement
agreements with insureds may extinguish the Company’s obligations for all
claims, the Company evaluates and considers the environmental and asbestos
reserves in conjunction with the CIOTA reserve. Generally, the terms of a
settlement agreernent set forth the nature of the Company’s participation
in resolving CIOTA claims and the scope of coverage to be provided by the
Company, and contain the appropriate indemnities and hold harmless
provisions to protect the Company. These settlements generally eliminate
uncertainties for the Company regarding the risks extinguished, including
the risk that losses would be greater than anticipated due to evolving theories
of tort liability or unfavorable coverage determinations. The Company’s

approach also has the effect of determining losses at a date earlier than would
have occurred in the absence of these settlement agreements. On the other
hand, in cases where future developments are favorable to insurers, this
approach could have the effect of resolving claims for amounts in excess of
those that the Company ultimately would have paid had the claims not been
settled in this manner.

At Decernber 31, 2001, approximately 80%, or approximately $569
million, of the net CTOTA reserve, represents incurred but not reported losses
for which the Company has not received any specific claims. The balance,
approximately 20% of the net CIOTA reserve, or approximately $141 million,
is for pending CIOTA claims.

The following table displays activity for CIOTA losses and loss expenses and
reserves for the years ended December 31:

CIOTA Losses

{n millions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Beginning reserves

Direct $1,079 $1,184 $1,346
Ceded (280) (313) (392)
Net 799 871 954
Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct (115) 27 (36)
Ceded 70 (1) 28
Losses paid

Direct Fa 132 126
Ceded (27) (44) (51)
Ending reserves

Direct 893 1,079 1,184
Ceded (183) (280) (313)
Net $ 710 $ 799 $ 87

GLOBAL CORPORATE OUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Global Corporate is significantly affected by the levels of activity in the
global capital markets which, in turn, are influenced by macro-economic and
political policies and developments, among other factors, in the 100 countries
in which the businesses operate. Global economic and market events can
have both positive and negative effects on the revenue and credit performance
of the businesses.

Losses on commercial lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans
can vary widely with respect to timing and amount, particularly within any
narrowly defined business or loan type.

The Corporate and Investment Bank. In 2001, the Corporate and
Investment Bank was impacted by the slowdown in capital markets activity
combined with higher net credit losses from weakening economic conditions.
Strong growth in fixed income and market share improvements mitigated
weakness in global equities and private client. The business initiated several
expense reduction initiatives.

In 2002, focus will continue on identifying problem credits early and
taking appropriate remedial actions. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans
may increase from 2001 levels due to weak economic conditions. Expense
management initiatives may continue across the business. While initiatives




will contirnue to expand market share, reveniue performance is dependent
upon the timing and strength of a recovery in U.S. and global economic
conditions.

EM Corporate & GTS. In 2001, EM Corporate & GTS reflected higher
trading-related revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives,
partially offset by write-downs in Argentina.

In 2001, Argentina experienced continued weakness ending the year in an
economic and political crisis. The remaining countries were able to generate
core income growth through modest revenue growth combined with expense
reduction initiatives and disciplined credit management. In 2002, the
business expects to focus on containing the negative fallout from Argentina's
econornic crisis. The remaining countries continue to be closely monitored
for possible contagion.

In 2002, EM Corporate & GTS expects to continue to work on strategies to
increase market share in priority countries through organic growth and
selective acquisitions, combined with continued focus on expense control
initiatives and disciplined credit management. The EM Corporate & GTS
portfolio remains diversified across a number of geographies and industry
groups. Citigroup continues to monitor the economic situation in emerging
market countries closely and, where appropriate, adjusts exposures and
strengthens risk management oversight. 2002 net credit losses and cash-basis
loans may increase from the 2001 levels due to continuing weak global
economic conditions, the economic crisis in Argentina, sovereign or
regulatory actions and other factors.

Commercial Lines. In 2001, the trend of higher rates continued in
Commercial Lines. Prices generally rose throughout the year, although some
of the increases varied significantly by region and business segment. These
increases were necessary to offset the impact of rising loss cost trends and the
decline in profitability from the competitive pressures of the last several years.
Since the terrorist attack on September 11th, there has been greater concern
over the availability, terms and conditions, and pricing of reinsurance. As a
result, the primary insurance market is expected to continue to see significant
rate increases for some coverages.

In National Accounts, where programs include risk managerment services,
such as claims settlement, loss control and risk management information
services, generally offered in connection with a large deductible or self-
insured program, and risk transfer, typically provided through a guaranteed
cost or retrospectively rated insurance policy, pricing improved during 2001
and 2000. National Accounts has benefited from higher rates on both new and
renewal business as evidenced by the improving profit margins earned on this
business. National Accounts believes that pricing will continue to firm into
2002. However, National Accounts will continue to reject business that is not
expected to produce acceptable returns. Included in National Accounts is
service fee income for policy and claim administration of several states’
Workers’ Compensation Residual Market pools. After several years of
depopulation, these pools are growing significantly as the primary market is
firming. Premiums the Company services for these pools grew 76% in 2001
compared to 2000 and is expected to continue to grow significantly.

Commercial Accounts achieved double-digit price increases on renewal
business during 2001 and 2000, improving the overall profit margin in this
business and offsetting the impacts of rising loss cost inflation, medical
inflation and reinsurance costs. Commercial Accounts will continue to seek
significant rate increases in 2002, as pricing in some areas and business
segments still has not improved to the point of producing acceptable returns.
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In Select Accounts, the trends toward increased pricing on renewal
business that started in late 1999 gained momentum in 2000 and continued
to improve during 2001. Prices generally rose during this time frame while
customer retention remained consistent with prior periods. Price increases
varied significantly by region, industry and product. However, the ability of
Select Accounts to achieve future rate increases is subject to regulatory
constraints in some jurisdictions. Loss cost trends in Select Accounts also
worsened in 2001, especially in workers’ compensation and property, The
impact of these negative loss cost trends has been partially offset by a
continued disciplined approach to underwriting and risk selection by the
Company. The Gompany will continue to pursue business based on its ability
to achieve acceptable returns.

Bond achieved significant growth in 2001 and 2000 with the acquisition
of Reliance Surety, cementing a leadership position in the surety bond
marketplace by broadening product and service capabilities. In addition,
the expanding array of products and recognized expertise in the executive
liability marketplace has enabled Bond to further enhance its product and
customer diversification and profit opportunities. Bond’s focus remains on
underwriting and selling its products to customers that provide the greatest
opportunity for profit. Bond is also focused on its efforts to cross-sell its
expanding array of specialty products to existing customers of Commercial
Lines and Personal Lines. In Bond, prices in both of its markets began to
modestly increase in late 2001, In 2001, Bond and the industry have
experienced an increase in claim frequency and severity in the most recent
accident years. This increase in claim frequency and severity has impacted the
primary insurer and reinsurance capacity in the Company’s marketplace.
This decrease in capacity is expected to create opportunities for further price
increases for all products in 2002, although the worsening loss cost trends and
increased cost of reinsurance will offset some of the positive impact.

In Gulf, rate increases began in most lines of business in 2001 although
specific increases varied significantly by region, industry and product.
Improvement was most evident in the umbrella and excess and surplus lines
of business, with lesser increases achieved in the professional liability lines
of business. In most areas of the business, capacity has dissipated due to
reinsurance constriction, which should lead to further rate increases
throughout 2002. The favorable impact from rate improvement continues
to be offset by rising loss costs.

Insurers generally, including the Company, are experiencing an increase
in the number of asbestos-related claims due to, among other things, more
intensive advertising by lawyers seeking asbestos claimants, the increasing
focus by plaintiffs on new and previously peripheral defendants and an
increase in the number of entities seeking bankruptcy protection as a result
of asbestos-related liabilities. In addition to contributing to the increase in
claims, the bankruptcy proceedings may have the effect of significantly
accelerating and increasing loss payments by insurers, including the
Company. Increasingly, policyholders have been asserting that their claims
for ashestos-related insurance are not subject to aggregate limits on coverage
and that each individual bodily injury claim should be treated as a separate
occurrence under the policy. Particularly during the last few months of 2001
and continuing into 2002, the asbestos-related trends described above have
both accelerated and become more visible. In addition, these claims and the
related litigation could result in liability exceeding these reserves by an
amount that could be material to our operating results in future periods.




GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
AND PRIVATE BANKING

In millions of dofiars 2001 2000M 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $7,553 $7,145 $6,099
Adjusted operating expenses @ 2,562 2,529 2,171
Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses 2,632 2,375 2,009
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 2,359 2,241 1,918
Income taxes 823 793 700
Minarity interest, after-tax 1 3 —
Core income 1,535 1,445 1,218
Restructuring-related items, after-tax @ (11) 2
Income $1,528 $1,434 $1,221

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking is comprised of
Travelers Life and Annuity (TLA), The Citigroup Private Bank and Citigroup
Asset Management. These businesses offer a broad range of life insurance,
annuity and asset management products and services, including individual
annuity, group annuity, individual life insurance products, COLI products,
mutual funds, closed-end funds, managed accounts, unit investment trusts,
variable annuities, pension administration and personalized wealth
management services distributed to institutional, high net worth and
retail clients.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking core income in 2001
increased to $1.535 billion, up $90 miltion or 6% from 2000. The 2001
increase in core income reflected increased customer activity across most
products within The Citigroup Private Bank and higher business volumes
and premiums within TLA, partially offset by lower core income in Asset
Managerment primarily due to the impact of a charge in Argentina related to
the exchange of Argentine debt for loans, Core income of $1.445 billion in
2000 was up $226 million or 19% from 1999. The 2000 increase in core
income reflected increased business volumes, a strong capital base and strong
investment income at TLA, continued customer revenue momentum within
The Citigroup Private Bank along with the impact of the acquisitions of
Siembra, Colfondos and Confia in Citigroup Asset Management. Income of
$1.528 billion in 2001, $1.434 billion in 2000 and $1.221 hillion in 1999
included restructuring charges of $7 million ($13 million pretax) and $11
million ($18 million pretax) in 2001 and 2000, respectively, and a
restructuring credit of $2 million ($4 million pretax) in 1999.

TRAVELERS LIFE AND ANNUITY

In millions of dollars 2001 2000 1999M
Total revenues, net of interest expense $4,088 $3,891 $3,394
Provision for benefits and claims 2,552 2,325 1,997
Total operating expenses 329 408 451
Income before taxes 1,207 1,157 946
Income taxes 386 380 323
Income @ $ 821 § 777 $ 623

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes investment gains/losses included in Investment Activities segment.
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Travelers Life and Annuity offers individual annuity, group annuity, and
individual life insurance products and COLI products marketed by TIC and
its wholly-owned subsidiary TLAC under the Travelers name. Among the
range of individual products offered are fixed and variable deferred annuities,
payout annuities and term, universal and variable life insurance. These
products are primarily distributed through CitiStreet Retirement Services
(CitiStreet) (formerly The Copeland Companies (Copeland)), 2 joint venture,
Salomon Smith Barney Financial Consultants, Primerica, Citibank, and a
nationwide network of independent agents and the growing outside broker
dealer channel. The COLI product is a variable universal life product
distributed through independent specialty brokers. The group products
include institutional pensions, including guaranteed investment contracts
{GICs), payout annuities, group annuities to employer-sponsored retirernent
and savings plans and structured finance transactions.

Income was $321 million in 2001 compared to $777 million in 2000 and
$623 million in 1999. The improvement in 2001 compared to 2000 reflects
operating expense reductions and a 3% net investment income growth,
despite the declining markets. During 2001, TLA also achieved double-digit
growth in individual life direct periodic premiums, group annuity net written
premiums and deposits and account balances versus the prior year. The 25%
improvement in 2000 reflects increased business volume, a strong capital
base and particularly strong investment income versus the prior-year period.
During 2000, this business continued strong individual annuity sales and
achieved double-digit business volume growth in group annuity account
balances and individual life net written premiums, reflecting growth in
retirement savings and estate planning products and strong momentum from
cross-selling initiatives. The continued growth in 2001 and 2000 reflects both
greater popularity of these products with an aging American population and
strong momentum from cross-selling initiatives. Total operating expenses
decreased in 2001 compared to the prior-year period due to continued expense
management and the absence of expenses related to the long-term care
insurance business which was sold during the third quarter of 2000. The
long-term care transaction also reduced the amount of premium revenue
reported in 2001. Total operating expenses decreased in 2000 compared to the
prior-year period due to the contribution of Copeland to the CitiStreet joint
venture and the absence of certain one-time technology expenses in 1999.
The increase in revenues was also mitigated by the contribution of Copeland.

The cross-selling initiatives of TLA products through Primerica,

Citibank, Salomon Smith Barney Financial Consultants, and CitiStreet, as
well as strong sales through various intermediaries, a nationwide network
of independent agents and outside broker dealers, reflect the ongoing
effort to build market share by strengthening relationships in key
distribution channels. ‘

On July 31, 2000, TIC sold 90% of its individual long-term care insurance
business to General Electric Capital Assurance Company in the form of an
indemnity reinsurance arrangement. Proceeds from the sale were $410
million, resulting in a deferred gain of approximately $150 million after-tax.




The following table shows net written premiums and deposits by product
line, excluding long-term care insurance written premiums for the three
years ended December 31:

In miflions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Individual annuities
Fixed $ 2,120 $ 1,267 $ 1,008
Variable 4,000 5,025 4,265
Individual payout 59 80 78
GICs and other group annuities 7,068 5,528 5,619
Individual life insurance
Direct periodic premiums and deposits 652 511 409
Single premium deposits 208 98 84
Reinsurance (96) 83) 71
Total $14,011 $12,426 $11,392

The majority of the annuity business and a substantial portion of the
life business written by TLA are accounted for as investment contracts,
with the result that the premiums are considered deposits and are not
included in revenues.

Individual annuity account balances and benefit reserves reached $30.0
billion at December 31, 2001, up from $29.4 billion at year-end 2000 and
$27.9 billion at year-end 1999. Net written premiums and deposits decreased
in 2001 to $6.179 billion from $6.372 billion in 2000 (down 3%). The
decrease in individual annuity net written premiums and deposits was driven
by a decline in variable annuity sales due to current market conditions, but
was partially offset by significant fixed annuity sales increases over the prior-
year period. Non-affiliated sales channels increased 32% allowing this
business to increase market share despite lower sales. Net written premiums
and deposits increased in 2000 to $6.372 billion from $5.351 billion in 1999
(up 19%). Both 2001 and 2000 continue to reflect the cross-selling initiatives
at all of the Citigroup affiliates, and also reflect the continued penetration of
outside broker-dealer channels.

Group annuity account balances and benefit reserves reached $21.0 billion
at December 31, 2001, up from $17.5 billion at year-end 2000 (up 20%), and
$15.1 billion at year-end 1999. During both 2001 and 2000 the group annuity
business experienced continued strong sales momentum in all products,
particularly long-term liability and guaranteed investment contracts. Net
written premiums and deposits (excluding the Company’s employee pension
plan deposits) in 2001 were $7.068 billion, compared to $5.528 billion in
2000 reflecting fixed GIC growth through structured finance transactions and
long-term liability growth through the extension of structured settlement
broker relationships and large case employer pension sales. Net written
premiums and deposits were $5.619 billion in 1999 and reflected particularly
strong structured finance transactions.

Direct periodic premiums and deposits for individual life insurance
were $652 million in 2001 compared to $511 million in 2000 (up 28%),
driven by independent agent high end estate planning and COLI sales, and
$409 million in 1999. Life insurance in force was $75.0 billion at December
31, 2001, up from $66.9 billion at year-end 2000 and §60.6 billion at year-
end 1999.

THE CITIGROUP PRIVATE BANK

In millions of doltars 2001 20000 19939
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,536 $1,400 $1,212
Adjusted operating expenses @ 924 874 770
Provision for credit losses 23 24 12
Core income before taxes 589 511 430
Income taxes 21 188 161
Core income 378 323 269
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 4) (5) 1
Income $ 374 $ 318 $ 270
Average assets fin billions of dotiars) $ 26 $ 25 $ 20
Return on assets 1.44% 1.27% 1.35%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 1.45% 1.29% 1.35%
Client business volumes under

management (in billions of doltars) $158 $153 $140

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restructuring-related items.

The Citigroup Private Bank provides personalized wealth management
services for high net worth clients around the world. The Citigroup Private
Bank core income was $378 million in 2001, up $55 million or 17% from
2000 primarily reflecting increased customer activity across most products,
partially offset by increased investment spending in technology and front-end
sales and servicing capabilities. Core income of $323 million in 2000 was up
$54 million or 20% from 1999 primarily reflecting continued customer
revenue momentum, partially offset by increased front-end expenses and a
moderate increase in the provision for credit losses.

Client business volumes under management which include custody
accounts, client assets under fee-based management and deposits and loans,
were $158 billion at the end of the year, up 3% from $153 billion in 2000
reflecting strong growth in Asia and continued growth in the U.S,, despite
challenging market conditions.

Revenues, net of interest expense, were $1.536 billion in 2001, up $127
million or 9% from 2000, primarily driven by the impact of lower interest
rates and higher investment product (fees and trading) revenues. The 2001
increase also reflects strong international growth in Japan and Asia, up 22%
and 19%, respectively, from the prior-year period and continued growth in the
North American region, up 12% from the prior-year period. Revenues in 2000
were $1.409 billion, up $197 million or 16% from 1999 reflecting increases in
fee and interest-related products. The 2000 increase also reflects strong
international growth in Japan, Asia and CEEMEA, up 40%, 23%, and 19%,
respectively, from the prior-year period and growth in the North American
region, up 16% from the prior-year period.

Adjusted operating expenses of $924 million in 2001 were up $50 million
or 6% from 2000 primarily reflecting continued investment spending in
technology and front-end sales and servicing capabilities. Expenses were
$874 million in 2000, up $104 million or 14% from 1999 primarily reflecting
higher levels of bankers and product specialists hired to improve front-end
sales and service capabilities.




The provision for credit losses was $23 million in 2001, compared to $24
million in 2000 and $12 million in 1999. The increase in the provision for
credit losses in 2000 of $12 million primarily related to a loan in Europe. Net
credit losses in 2001 remained at a nominal level of 0.06% of average loans
outstanding, compared with 0.09% in 2000. Loans 90 days or more past due
at year-end 2001 were $135 million or 0.53% of total loans outstanding,
compared with 0.23% at the end of 2000 and 0.54% at the end of 1999.

Average assets of $26 billion in 2001 increased $1 billion or 4% from $25
billion in 2000, which, in turn, increased 85 billion or 25% from 1999. The
increase in 2000 was primarily related to incremental margin lending and
mortgage financing,

CITIGROUP ASSET MANAGEMENT

In miltions of doliars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,929 $1,845 $1,493
Adjusted operating expenses @ 1,309 1,246 950
Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses 57 26 —
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 563 573 543
Income taxes 226 225 216
Minority interest, after-tax 1 3 —
Core income 336 345 327
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 3) (6) 1
Income $ 333 $ 339 $ 328
Assets undsr management (in bitions of qoirars) @4 $ 417 $ 400 $ 377

1) Reclassifled to conform to the 2001 presentation.
2) Excludes restructuring-related items.
3) Includes $31 billion, $30 hillion, and $31 bilfion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, for Citigroup
Private Bank clients.
4) Includes Unit Investment Trusts held in client accounts of $7 billion, $9 billion and $13 billion in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively, and $5 billion in Emerging Markets Pension Administration assets under
management in 2001.
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Citigroup Asset Management is comprised of the substantial resources
that are available through its three primary asset management business
platforms— Smith Barney Asset Management, Salomon Brothers Asset
Management and Citibank Asset Management — along with the pension
administration businesses of Global Retirement Services. These businesses
offer institutional, high net worth and retail clients a broad range of
investment alternatives from investment centers located around the world.
Products and services offered include mutual funds, closed-end funds,
separately managed accounts, unit investment trusts, alternative investments,
variable annuities (through affiliated and third party insurance companies),
pension administration and insurance.

Core income of $336 million in 2001 was down £9 million or 3%
compared to 2000 primarily reflecting a charge for Argentine debt securities
exchanged for loans held in the Siembra insurance companies of Global
Retirement Services, partially offset by growth in Citigroup Asset Management
earnings. The Argentine debt securities were held in support of existing
contractholders’ liabilities. The Global Retirement Services business in
Argentina, Siembra, includes pension administration and insurance
companies. Core income of $345 million in 2000 was up $18 million or 6%
compared to 1999 reflecting the impact of Latin American acquisitions in the
Global Retirement Services business and growth in asset-based fee revenue,
partially offset by increased expenses.
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Assets under management rose to $417 billion as of December 31, 2001, up
4% from $400 biltion in 2000 reflecting strong net flows that were partially
offset by negative market activity and the transfer of $26 billion in retail
Money Market assets to the SSB Bank Deposit Program. Institutional client
assets of $185 billion as of December 31, 2001 were up 20% compared to a
year ago reflecting an increase in institutional money market fund and
long-term product flows, offset by negative market action and alternative
investment volurne growth, Retail client assets were $227 billion, down 6%
from $242 billion in 2000. Retail client assets, excluding money markets and
unit investment trusts, grew 9%, driven by strong net flows, partially offset by
negative market action.

Sales of proprietary mutual funds and managed account products at SSB
rose 33% to $28 billion in 2001 from the prior vear primarily driven by growth
in managed account products, and represented 59% of SSB's retail channel
sales for the year. Sales of mutual and money funds through Global
Consumer’s banking network were $11 billion for the year, representing 53%
of total sales, including $8 billion in International and $3 billion in the U.S.,
of which Primerica sold $2.0 billion of proprietary U.S. mutual and money
funds in 2001, a 9% increase compared to 2000, representing 67% of
Primerica’s total sales. Institutional long-term product sales of $28 billion
increased 40% over the prior year and include $14 billion of sales to Global
Corporate clients.

Revenues, net of interest expense, increased $84 miltion or 5% to $1.929
billion in 2001. This was compared to $1.845 billion in 2000, which was up
$352 million or 24% from 1999. The increase in 2001 was primarily due to
the effects of positive net flows, the impact of acquisitions and a reduction in
death and disability reinsurance premiums in the Global Retirement Services
business, partially offset by the impact of lower market values of assets under
management, the transfer of assets to the SSB Bank Deposit Program and the
impact of the Siembra Argentina debt securities exchange. The increase in
2000 was primarily due to the impact of the acquisitions of Siembra,
Colfondos and Confia in the Global Retirement Services business, along with
continued growth in asset-based fee revenues.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.309 billion in 2001 increased $63
million or 5% from 2000. The increase in 2001 primarily represents the
impact of Global Retirement Services acquisitions and other variable expenses
related to revenue growth. Adjusted operating expenses of $1.246 billion in
2000 increased $296 million or 31% from 1999. The increase in 2000 was
primarily due to the impact of acquisitions in the Global Retirement Services
business, as well as continued investment in sales and marketing activities,
technology and product development.

Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses of $57 million in 2001
increased $31 million from 2000, driven by reduced reinsurance levels on
death and disability business and the Generar acquisition.




GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND
PRIVATE BANKING OUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-locking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Travelers Life and Annuity should benefit from growth in the aging
population which is becoming more focused on the need to accumulate
adequate savings for retirement, to protect these savings and to plan for the
transfer of wealth to the next generation. TLA is well positioned to take
advantage of the favorable long-term demographic trends through its strong
financial position, widespread brand name recognition and broad array of
competitive life, annuity and retirement and estate planning products sold
through established distribution channels.

However, competition in both product pricing and customer service is
intensifying, While there has been some consolidation within the industry,
other financial services organizations are increasingly involved in the sale
and/or distribution of insurance products. Financial services reform is likely
to have many effects on the life insurance industry and the results will take
time to assess, however, heightened competition is expected. Also, the
annuities business is interest rate and market sensitive, and swings in interest
rates and equity markets could influence sales and retention of in-force
policies. In order to strengthen its comnpetitive position, TLA expects to
maintain a current product portfolio, further diversify its distribution
channels, and retain its financial position through strong sales growth and
maintenance of an efficient cost structure.

Private Banking and Asset Management. The businesses of
Private Banking and Asset Management are affected by the economic outlook
and market levels. The market for private banking and asset management
services continues to be extremely attractive because the “wealth” segment
has been growing faster than the overall market. While competition for this
attractive and dynamic market segment is increasing, the global market is
highly fragmented. This presents Private Banking and Asset Management
with an extremely attractive business opportunity because it is one of the few
providers that can claim to offer a full range of services on a global basis.

The Argentina economic and political crisis that occurred towards the end
of 2001 impacted the Global Retirement Services business, which operates a
portion of its business in Argentina. In 2002, the business will focus on
containing the negative fallout from Argentina’s econormic crisis.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

In millions of doftars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $907 $2,309 $1,089
Total operating expenses 118 124 72
Provision for credit losses - 7 —
Income before taxes and minority interest 789 2,178 1,017
Income taxes 264 805 356
Minority interest, after-tax (5) (10) 11
Income $530 $1,383 $ 650

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

Investment Activities comprises Citigroup’s venture capital activities,
realized investment gains (losses) from certain insurance-related
investments, results from certain proprietary investments, the results of
certain investments in countries that refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady
Plan or plans of a similar nature, and since August 2001, the investment
portfolio related to Banamex.

Revenues, net of interest expense, include $380 million, $2.042 billion and
$809 million from proprietary investments, $59 million, $331 million and
$78 million from LDC Debt Sales/Refinarcing portfolios and $468 million,
($64) million and $202 million from net realized gains from insurance-
related investments for the years ended 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Revenues, net of interest expense, in 2001 of $907 million decreased
$1.402 billion from 2000 primarily reflecting lower venture capital results
and current year impairment write-downs in insurance-related and other
proprietary investments, partially offset by increased gains in insurance-
related and other proprietary investments. Revenues, net of interest expense,
in 2000 of $2.309 billion increased $1.220 billion from 1999 primarily
reflecting increases in venture capital results and gains on the exchange of
certain Latin American bonds. The 2000 first quarter incuded losses
in insurance-related investments from repositioning activities designed
to improve yields and maturity profiles, and write-downs in the
refinancing portfolio.

Investrment Activities results may fluctuate in the future as a result of
market and asset-specific factors. This staterent is a forward-looking
statemnent within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.
See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.




CORPORATE/OTHER

In millions of doflars 2001 20000 19990
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense @ $ (397) $ (697) $ 30
Adjusted operating expenses @ 801 642 797
Adjusted provision (credit) for benefits,

claims and credit losses @ 1 4 208
Core loss before tax benefits

and minority interest (1,199) (1,335) (975)
Income tax benefits (504) (477) (338)
Minority interest, after-tax 11 — —
Core loss (706) (858) (637)
Restructuring-related items and

merger-related costs, after-tax 3 (249) (20)
Housing Finance unit charge, after-tax - 71 —
Loss $ (703) $(1,178) $(657)

(1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes Housing Finance unit charge and restructuring-related items and merger-refated costs.

Corporate/Other includes net corporate treasury results, corporate staff and
other corporate expenses, certain intersegment eliminations, the remainder
of Internet-related development activities not allocated to the individual
businesses and in 1999 and 2000, activities related to the Associates Housing
Finance (AHF) unit. In January 2000, Associates announced its intention to
discontinue the loan origination operations of its AHF unit. Prior to the
announcement, AHF originated and serviced loans for manufactured homes.

Adjusted revenues in 2001 of ($397) million increased $300 million from
2000 due to lower net treasury costs primarily related to reduced rates and the
impact of higher intersegment eliminations, partially offset by increased
funding costs related to the Associates and Banamex acquisitions. Adjusted
revenues in 2000 of ($697) million decreased $727 million from 1999
primarily reflecting the discontinuation of AHF activity, higher net treasury
costs and the impact of lower intersegrment eliminations. Adjusted operating
expenses in 2001 of $301 million increased $159 million from 2000 primarily
due to the impact of higher intersegment eliminations, as well as a §57
million fourth quarter pretax expense for the contribution of appreciated
venture capital securities to Citigroup’s Foundation, which had minimal
impact on Citigroup’s earnings after related tax benefits and investment
gains, partially offset by 4 2000 §108 million pretax expense for the
contribution of appreciated venture capital securities to Citigroup’s
Foundation. Adjusted operating expenses in 2000 of $642 million decreased
$155 million from 1999 primarily reflecting the discontinuation of AHF
activity and decreases in certain unallocated corporate costs, intersegment
eliminations, performance-based option expense and technology costs. The
adjusted provision for benefits, claims and credit losses in 1999 primarily
related to AHE

The 2000 after-tax restructuring-related items and merger-related charges
of $249 million ($346 million pretax) included exit costs incurred as a result
of Citigroup's acquisition of Associates. See Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of restructuring-related items. The 2000
after-tax Housing Finance unit charge of $71 million ($112 million pretax)
included costs related to the discontinuation of AHF loan origination
operations. The 1999 after-tax restructuring-related charge of $20 million
related primarily to accelerated depreciation.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained herein that are not historical facts are
forward-locking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. Many of these statements appear under the heading
“Global Consumer Outlook,” “Global Corporate Outlook,” and “Global
Investment Management and Private Banking Outlook.” The Company’s
actual results may differ materially from those included in the forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by
words or phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “may increase,” “may fluctuate,” and similar expressions or
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,” and “could.”
These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties including,
but not limited to, weakening global economic conditions, the economic
crisis in Argentina, higher unemployment rates and the continued increase in
bankruptey filings in Japan, sovereign or regulatory actions, and political
conditions and developments; possible changes in estimated reserves for
property and casualty insurance losses, an increase in the number of entities
seeking bankruptey protection as a result of asbestos-related liabilities, the
changing trends in policyholders’ claims with respect to aggregation limits
and separate occurrence treatment, and environmental and asbestos claims
and related litigation, the highly competitive nature of the personal-lines
marketplace; inflationary pressures in medical costs and auto and home
repair costs; ashestos-related developments including more intensive
advertising by lawyers seeking asbestos claimants and the increasing focus by
plaintiffs on new and previously peripheral defendants; rising reinsurance
and litigation costs in the property and casualty insurance marketplace;
proposed changes in laws and regulations on the cost and availability of
certain types of insurance, as well as the claim and coverage obligations of
insurers; assessments on insurance subsidiaries from state-administered
guaranty associations, second-injury funds and similar associations; the
amount of refinancing activity in mortgage banking; the effect of banking
and financial services reforms, of rules governing the regulatory treatment of
merchant banking investments, and of rules regarding the regulatory capital
treatment of recourse, direct credit substitutes and residual interest in asset
securitizations; possible amendments to, and interpretations of, risk-based
capital guidelines and reporting instructions; the ability of states to adopt
more extensive consumer privacy protections through legislation or
regulation; the resolution of legal proceedings and related matters; and the
Company’s success in managing the costs associated with the expansion of
existing distribution channels and developing new ones, and in realizing
increased revenues from such distribution channels, including cross-selling
initiatives and electronic commerce-based efforts.
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MANAGING GLOBAL RISK

The Citigroup Risk Management framework recognizes the wide range and
diversity of global business activities by balancing strong corporate oversight
with defined independent risk management functions at the business level.
Included in this oversight is an assessment of the accounting and financial
reporting risks across all businesses.
The risk management framework is grounded on the following seven
principles, which apply universally across all businesses and all risk types:
» Integration of Business and Risk Management —Risk
managerment is integrated within the business plan and strategy.
* Risk Ownership—All risks and resulting returns are owned and
managed by an accountable business unit.
¢ Independent Oversight—Risk limits are approved by both business
management and independent risk management.
* Policies—All risk management policies are clearly and
formally documented.
*» Risk Identification and Measurement —All risks are measured
using defined methodologies, including stress testing.
+ Limits and Metrics —All risks are managed within a limit
framework.
* Risk Reporting—All risks are comprehensively reported across
the organization.

The risk management functions at the corporate-level are responsible for
establishing Citigroup risk management standards for the measurement,
approval, reporting and limiting of risk, appointing independent risk
managers at the business-level, approving business unit risk management
policies, approving business risk-taking authority through the allocation of
limits and capital, and reviewing, on an ongoing basis, major risk exposures
and concentrations across the organization.

The independent risk managers at the business-level are responsible for
establishing and implementing risk management policies and practices
within their business, while ensuring ongoing consistency with Citigroup
standards. The business risk managers have dual accountability—to the
Citigroup Senior Risk Officer and to the head of their business unit.

The Citigroup Senior Risk Officer is responsible for reviewing material
corporate-wide risks, and determining appropriate exposure levels and limits.
Risks are regularly reviewed with the independent business risk managers, the
Citigroup Management Committee, and as necessary, with comrnittees of the
Board of Directors. Reviews may include analysis of current exposure levels,
trends in exposure levels, as well as assessments of the impact of “normal”
market moves and sudden, severe market events. The scope of risks covered
includes, but is not limited to:

« Corporate Credit Risk, including obligor exposures vis-a-vis limits, risk
ratings, industry concentrations, and country cross-border risks;

e Consumer Credit Risk, including product concentrations, regional
concentrations, and trends in portfolio performance;

* Counterparty pre-settlement risk in trading activities;

* Distribution and underwriting risks;

e Price Risk, including the earnings or economic impact of changes in the
level and volatilities of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commodity, debt and equity prices on trading portfolios and on investment
portfolios;

* Liquidity Risk, including funding concentrations and diversification
strategy;

¢ Risks resulting from the underwriting, sale and reinsurance of life
insurance policies and property and casualty policies (commercial,
personal and performance bonds); and

o Other risks, including legal, technology, operational and franchise, as well
as specific matters identified and reviewed in the Audit and Risk Review.

The following sections summarize the processes for managing credit and
market risks within Citigroup’s major businesses, and reflect the ongoing
integration of businesses and risk management practices.

THE CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss resulting from the faiture of a
borrower or counterparty to honor its financial or contractual obligation.
Credit risk arises in many of the Company’s business activities including
lending activities, sales and trading activities, derivatives activities, securities
transactions settlement activities, and when the Company acts as an
intermediary on behalf of its clients and other third parties. The credit risk
management process at Citigroup relies on corporate-wide standards to
ensure consistency and integrity, with business-specific policies and practices
to ensure applicability and ownership.

CONSUMER CREDIT RISK

Within the Global Consumer Group (GCG), business-specific credit risk

policies and procedures are derived from the following risk management

framework:

«» Each business must develop 2 plan, including risk/return tradeoffs, as well
as risk acceptance criteria and policies appropriate to their activities;

« Senior Business Managers are responsible for managing risk/return
tradeoffs in their business;

« Senior Business Managers, in conjunction with Senior Credit Officers,
implement business-specific risk management policies and practices;

» Approval policies for a product or business are tailored to internal audit
ratings, profitability and credit risk management performance;

* Independent credit risk management is responsible for establishing
the GCG Policy, approving business-specific policies and procedures,
monitoring business risk management performance, providing
ongoing assessment of portfolio credit risks, and approving new
products and new risks.

Citigroup’s consumer loan portfolio is well diversified by both customer
and product. Consumner loans comprise 62% of the total loan portfolio. These
toans represent thousands of borrowers with relatively small individual
balances. The loans are diversified with respect to the location of the borrower,
with 67% originated in the United States and 33% originated from offices
outside the United States. Mortgage and real estate loans constitute 44% of the
total consumer loan portfolio and installment, revolving credit and other
consumer loans constitute 56% of the portfolio.




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO REVIEW

In the consumer portfolio, credit loss experience is expressed in ternis of
annualized net credit losses as a percentage of average loans. Pricing and

credit policies reflect the loss experience of each particular product. Consurmer
loans are generally written-off no later than a predetermined number of days

past due on a contractual basis, or earlier in the event of bankruptcy. The

number of days is set at an appropriate level according to loan product and
country. The following table summarizes delinquency and net credit loss
experience in both the managed and on-balance sheet loan portfolios in
terms of loans 90 days or more past due, net credit losses, and as a percentage
of related loans.

Consumer Loan Delinquency Amounts, Net Credit Losses, and Ratios

Total Average
loans 90 days or more past due ! loans Net credit losses("!
In miions of doflars, except total and average loan amounts in bilions 2001 2001 2000 1999@ 2001 2001 2000@ 19992
Citibanking North America $117 $ 9 3 35 $ 55 $ 93 $ 9% $ 64 § 9
Ratio 0.82% 0.48% 0.78% 1.03% 0.91% 1.22%
Martgage Banking 457 1,157 846 707 451 40 59 52
Ratio 253% 2.01% 2.26% 0.09% 0.16% 0.18%
Citi Cards 107.7 2,135 1,497 1,285 102.1 5,556 3,921 3,903
Ratio 1.98% 1.46% 1.51% 5.44% 4,28% 491%
Other Cards 1.0 6 6 21 1.5 47 65 49
Ratio 0.61% 0.35% 1.31% 3.13% 3.76% 3.00%
CitiFinancial 60.2 2,002 1,272 943 58.7 1,583 1,338 1,189
Ratio 3.32% 2.23% 1.96% 2.70% 2.57% 2.66%
Western Europe 19.0 800 835 928 18.0 338 342 345
Ratio 4.21% 4.78% 5.39% 1.88% 2.05% 2.00%
Japan 144 178 101 112 144 589 406 270
Ratio 1.24% 0.73% 1.19% 4.10% 3.50% 3.49%
Asia (excluding Japan) 21.2 367 335 442 21.3 259 257 286
Ratio 1.73% 1.51% 1.93% 1.21% 1.16% 1.32%
Latin America 5.3 248 235 303 6.0 279 321 408
Ratio 4.711% 3.59% 3.99% 4.63% 4.67% 5.32%
Mexico 6.0 523 15 17 26 96 1 11
Ratio 8.75% 517% 6.78% 3.72% 3.67% 4.89%
CEEMEA 25 36 32 46 23 39 38 32
Ratio 1.41% 1.37% 2.25% 1.70% 1.95% 1.96%
The Citigroup Private Bank & 25,7 135 61 120 24.9 14 23 19
Ratio 0.53% 0.23% 0.54% 0.06% 0.09% 0.10%
Other 4.0 18 30 33 3.4 13 (12) 39
Total managed $3244 § 7,701 $ 5,300 $5,012 $3096 5 8948 $6833 $ 6,693
Ratio 2.37% 1.75% 1.95% 2.89% 2.48% 2.80%
Securitized receivables (68.4) (1,282) (1,012) 916) (63.8) (3,251) (2,228) (2,479)
Loans held for sale (11.9) (110) (110) (32) {14.2) (317) (182) (121)
Consumer loans $244.1 $ 6,309 $ 4,178 $4,064 $231.6 $ 5,380 $ 4,423 $ 4,003
Ratio 2.58% 1.83% 2.09% 2.32% 2.11% 2.24%
{1) The ratios of 90 days or more past due and net credit losses are calculated based on end-of-period and average loans, respectively, both net of unearned income.
(2) Rectassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
{3} The Citigroup Private Bank results are reported as part of the Global Investment Management and Private Banking segment.
Consumer Loan Balances, Net of Unearned Income
End of period Average
1n biliions of dofiars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Total managed $324.4 $302.8 $257.2 $309.6 $275.5 $239.3
Securitized receivables (68.4) (60.6) (58.0) (63.8) (57.0) (51.0)
Loans held for sale (11.9) (13.3) (4.6) (14.2) 8.7 (5.5)
On-balance sheet $244.1 $228.9 $194.6 $231.6 $209.8 $182.8

Citigroup’s allowance for credit losses of $10.088 billion is available to
absorb probable credit losses inherent in the entire portfolio. For analytical

purposes only, the portion of Citigroup's allowance for credit losses attributed

to the consumer portfolio was $5.169 billion at December 31, 2001, $4.946

billion at December 31, 2000 and $5.220 billion at December 31, 1999. The
increase in the allowance for credit losses from 2000 was primarily due to the
acquisitions of Banamex and EAB. The allowance as a percentage of loans on
the balance sheet was 2.13% at December 31, 2001, down from 2.16% at
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Decemnber 31, 2000 and 2.68% at December 31, 1999. The decline in the
allowance as a percentage of loans primarily reflects the growth in consumer
loans. On-balance sheet consumer loans of $244.1 billion grew $15 billion or
7% from December 31, 2000 primarily driven by the impact of the
acquisitions of Banamex and EAB and growth in CitiFinancial, mostly real
estate secured loans. On-balance sheet loans in Citi Cards declined in 2001 as
growth in managed receivables was more than offset by increased
securitization activity. In addition, loans in 2001 increased in Japan and
Western Europe, mainly in consumer finance, and decreased in Asia and
Latin America. The decline in Latin America loans primarily reflects
reductions associated with the re-denomination of certain consumer loans in
Argentina. The attribution of the allowance is made for analytical purposes
only and may change from time to time. Consumer net credit losses and loans
90 days or more past due are expected to increase from 2001 levels as a result
of portfolio growth and seasonal factors and as uncertain global economic
conditions persist. This statement is a forward-looking statement within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-
Looking Statements” on page 62.

In miflions of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Allowance for credit losses $5,169 $4,946 $5,220
As a percentage of total consumer loans 213% 2.16% 2.68%

CORPORATE CREDIT RISK

For corporate clients and investment banking activities across the

organization, the credit process is grounded in a series of fundamental

policies, including:

» Ultimate business accountability for managing credit risks;

* Joint business and independent risk management responsibility for
establishing limits and risk management practices;

e Single center of control for each credit relationship that coordinates credit
activities with that client, directly approves or consents to all extensions of
credit to that client, reviews aggregate exposures, and ensures compliance
with exposure limits;

e Portfolio limits, including obligor limits by risk rating and by maturity, to
ensure diversification and maintain risk/capital alignment;

» Aminimum two-authorized credit officer-signature requirernent on
extensions of credit-one from a sponsoring credit officer in the business
and one from a credit officer in independent credit risk management;

¢ Uniform risk measurement standards, including risk ratings, which must
be assigned to every obligor and facility in accordance with Citigroup
standards; and

o Consistent standards for credit origination, measurement and
documentation, as well as problem recognition, classification and
remedial action,

These policies apply universally across corporate clients and investment
banking activities in the Corporate and Investment Bank and Emerging
Markets. Businesses that require tailored credit processes, due to unique or
unusual risk characteristics in their activities, may only do so under a Credit
Program that has been approved by independent credit risk management. In
all cases, the above policies must be adhered to, or specific exceptions must be
granted by independent credit risk management.
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The Global Corporate credit portfolio is diversified by obligor, industry and
geographic location.

The following table presents the Global Corporate credit portfolio before
consideration of collateral by maturity at December 31, 2001 broken out by
direct outstandings which include drawn loans, overdrafts, interbank
placements, banker’s acceptances and leases; and unfunded commitments
which include unused commitments to lend, letters of credit and financial
guarantees:

Greater
Within than 1 year Greater Total
In billions: 1year butwithin than5 years exposure
Direct outstandings $133 $ 54 $28 $215
Unfunded commitments 132 52 10 194
Total $265 $106 $38 $409

Credit Exposure Arising from Derivatives and
Foreign Exchange

The Company measures and manages the credit exposure on its derivative
and foreign exchange contracts taking into account both the current mark-
to-market value of each contract plus a prudent estimate of its potential
change in value over its life. The measurement of the potential future
exposure for each credit facility is based on simulation of market rates and
generally takes into account legally enforceable risk-mitigating agreements
for each obligor such as netting and margining,

Under a margin agreement the Company obtains collateral from its
counterparties, consisting ptimarily of cash or marketable securities which are
revalued on a regular basis. The collateral reduces the measured exposure.

The current mark-to-market which is reported within the balance sheet
credit exposure of $29.8 billion represents the current cost of replacing all
contracts and is reported as a component of Trading Account Assets. The total
exposure, which is used to manage counterparty risk, also includes a prudent
estimate of the potential increase in the replacement cost of each credit
facility. The simple sum of the maximum potential lifetime increase in
replacement cost of all facilities is $101 billion. While the current mark-to-
market and the maximum potential increase in replacement cost per credit
facility for a single counterparty is a prudent number used to manage
exposure, when summed across all facilities it materially overstates the
potential loss that could occur at any one time.

Portfolio Mix

The Global Corporate credit portfolio is geographically diverse by region.
The following table shows direct outstandings, unfunded commitments,
derivatives, and foreign exchange, measured as discussed above, by region:

Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

2001 2000

North America 46% 48%
Europe 22% 22%
Japan 3% 3%
Asia 9% 1%
Latin America 6% 7%
Mexico® 7% 2%
CEEMEA 6% 5%
Other 1% 2%
Total 100% 100%

(1) December 31,2001 includes Banamex outstandings and unfunded commitments.




The Company attempts to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings
across the Global Corporate credit portfolio. This facilitates the comparison of
credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic region and product.
Allinternal risk ratings must be derived in accordance with the Corporate
Risk Rating Policy. Any exception to the Policy must be approved by the
Citigroup Senior Risk Officer. The Corporate Risk Rating Policy establishes
standards for the derivation of obligor and facility risk ratings that are
generally consistent with the approaches used by the major rating agencies.

Obligor risk ratings reflect an estimated probability of default for an obligor,
and are derived through the use of validated statistical models, external rating
agencies (under defined circumstances), or approved scoring or judgmental
methodologies. Facility risk ratings are assigned, using the obligor risk rating,
and then taken into consideration are factors that affect the loss-given default
of the facility such as parent support, collateral or structure.

Internal obligor ratings equivalent to BBB- and above are considered
investment grade. Ratings below the equivalent of BBB- are considered
non-investment grade.

The following table presents the Global Corporate credit portfolio by
internal obligor credit rating at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000,
as a percentage of the total portfolio:

Direct outstandings and

Derivatives unfunded commitments

2001 2000 2001 2000

AAA/ANA 75% 79% 42% 47%
BBB 15% 14% 29% 23%
BB/B 8% 6% 19% 18%
CCC or below - — 3% 2%
Unrated® 2% 1% % 10%
100% 100% 100% 100%

(1) Includes retail margin loans, as well as portfolios of recent acquisitions, which are in the process of
conforming to Citigroup’s risk rating methodology.
The Global Corporate credit portfolio is diversified by industry with
a concentration only to the financial sector which includes banks, other
financial institutions, investment banks and governments and central banks.
The following table shows direct outstandings, unfunded commitments,
derivatives and foreign exchange to the top thirteen industries as a percentage
of the total commercial portfolio;

Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

2001 2000

Banks 14% 14%
Other financial institutions and investment banks 14% 1%
Governments and central banks 1% 7%
Telephone and cable 4% 5%
Insurance 4% 4%
Industrial machinery and equipment 4% 4%
Agricultural and food prep 4% 4%
Utilities 4% 4%
Freight transportation 3% 4%
Global information technology 3% 4%
Petroleum 3% 3%
Chemicals 2% 3%
Autos 2% 2%
Other industries 28% 31%
Total 100% 100%

(1) Includes all other industries, none of which exceed 2% of total outstandings.

GLOBAL CORPORATE PORTFOLIO REVIEW

Commercial loans are identified as impaired and placed on a nonaccrual
basis when it is determined that the payment of interest or principal is
doubtful of collection or when interest or principal is past due for 90 days or
more, except when the loan is well secured and in the process of collection.
Impaired commercial loans are written down to the extent that principal is
judged to be uncollectible. Impaired collateral-dependent loans are written
down to the lower of cost or collateral value. The following table summarizes
commercial cash-basis loans and net credit losses:

In mittions of dollars 2001 2000 1999

Cash-basis loans at year-end

Corporate and Investment Bank (4 $1,525 $ 776 $ 481

EM Corporate & GTS 1,465 1,069 989

Mexico @ 1,030 79 55
Insurance and Investment Activities © 21 46 55
Total commercial cash-basis loans $4,041 $1,970 $1,580
Net credit losses

Corporate and Investment Bank $1,261 $ 536 $ 145

EM Corporate & GTS 321 199 388

Mexico @ 66 29 21
Insurance and Investment Activities @ - 7 —
Total commercial net credit losses $1,648 $ M $ 554

(1) Prior period cash-basis foans were restated to change the policy of the Assaciates Commercial Leasing
business for suspending accrua! of interest on past due loans to conform with other leasing businesses
in the Corporate and Investment Bank. The prior policy of placing loans that are 60 days or more past
due into cash-basis, was changed to 90 days or more past due.

(2) 2001 includes Banamex cash-basis loans and net-credit losses.

(3} Investment Activities results are reported in the [nvestment Activities segment.

(4) In 1999, excludes amounts refated to manufactured housing, as such loan origination operations were
discontinued in early 2000. Excluded cash-basis loans and net-credit losses relating to manufactured
housing were $55 million and $36 million, respectively,

Total commercial cash-basis loans were $4.041 billion, $1.970 billion and
$1.580 billion at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Cash-basis
loans in CIB were $1.525 billion, $776 million and $481 million at December
31,2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, reflecting increases in the
transportation leasing portfolio and borrowers in the telecommunication,
energy, utility, and retail industries. EM Corporate & GTS cash-basis loans
were $1.465 billion, $1.069 billion and $989 million at December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001 primarily reflects increases
in Latin America, mainly Argentina, and increases in Asia, mainly Australia
and New Zealand. The increase in 2000 was primarily due to the acquisition
of Bank Handlowy along with increases in Latin America, partially offset by
improvements in Asia. Mexico cash-basis loans were $1.030 billion, $79
million and $55 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The increase in 2001 reflects the acquisition of Banamex whose cash-basis
loans include exposures in steel, textile, food products and other industries.

Total Other Repossessed Assets were $439 million, $292 million and
$256 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, primarily
reflecting increases in repossessed transportation equipment and the
acquisition of Banamex.

Total commercial loans outstanding at December 31, 2001 were §148
billion compared to $138 billion and $120 billion at December 31, 2000 and
1999, respectively.




Total commercial net credit losses of $1.648 billion in 2001 increased
$877 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting increases in CIB and EM
Corporate & GTS. CIB net credit losses of $1.261 billion in 2001 were up
$725 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting higher net credit Josses
in the transportation portfolio combined with higher net credit losses in the
telecommunication, energy, retail and airline industries. EM Corporate &
GTS net credit losses of $321 million in 2001 increased $122 million
from 2000 primarily due to write-downs in Argentina, partially offset by
improverments in CEEMEA. Total commercial net credit losses increased
$217 million in 2000 compared to 1999 primarily due to increases in CIB,
partially offset by decreases in EM Corporate & GTS. The CIB increase in 2000
was due to write-offs on the transportation portfolic and North American
health care botrowers, 1999 recoveries on real estate loans and the inclusion
of losses for Copelco, which was acquired in the second quarter of 2000. The
EM Corporate & GTS decrease in 2000 primarily reflects improvements in
Asia, mainly China, Indonesia, Australia and Thailand, and in CEEMEA. For
afurther discussion of trends bv business, see the business discussions on
pages 50 10 52.

Citigroup's allowance for credit losses of $10.088 billion is available to
absorb probable credit losses inherent in the entire portfolio. For analytical
purposes only, the portion of Citigroup’s allowance for credit losses attribued
1o the commercial portfolio was $4.919 billion at December 31, 2001
compared to $4.015 billion and $3.633 billion at December 31, 2000 and
1999, respectively. The increase in the allowance at December 31, 2001
primarily reflects the acquisition of Banamex. The increase in the allowance
at December 31, 2000 primarily reflects additional provisions related to the
transportation portfolio. Losses on commercial lending activities and the level
of cash-basis loans can vary widely with respect to timing and amount,
particularly within any narrowly-defined business or loan type. Commercial
net credit fosses and cash-basis loans may increase from the 2001 levels due
to weakening global economic conditions, the economic crisis in Argentina,
sovereign or regulatory actions and other factors, This statement is a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

In billions of dolars at year-end 2001 2000 1999
Commercial allowance for credit losses $4.919 $4.015 $3.633
As a percentage of total commercial loans 3.31% 2.90% 3.02%

REINSURANCE RISK

In the course of its insurance activities, TP reinsures a portion of the risks it
underwrites in an effort to control its exposure to losses, stabilize earnings and
protect capital resources. TPC cedes to reinsurers a portion of these risks and
pays premiums based upon the risk and exposure of the policies subject to
such reinsurance. Reinsurance involves credit risk and is subject to aggregate
loss limits. Although the reinsurer is liable to TPC generally to the extent of
the reinsurance ceded, TPC remains primarily liable as the direct insurer on
all risks reinsured. TPC also holds collateral, including escrow funds and
letters of credit, under certain reinsurance agreements. TPC monitors the
financial condition of reinsurers on an ongoing basis, and reviews its
reinsurance arrangements periodically. Reinsurers are selected based on their
financial condition and business practices and the price of their product
offerings. For additional information concerning reinsurance, see Note 14 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Market risk at Citigroup— like credit risk—is managed through corporate-

wide standards and business policies and procedures.

* Market risks are measured in accordance with established standards to
ensure consistency across businesses and the ability to aggregate like risks
at the Citigroup-level. .

* Each business is required to establish, and have approved by independent
Market Risk Management, a market risk limit framework, including risk
measures, limits and controls, that clearly defines approved risk profiles
and is within the parameters of Citigroup’s overall risk appetite.

e Businesses, working in conjunction with independent Market Risk
Management, must ensure that market risks are independently measured,
monitored and reported, to ensure transparency in risk-taking activities
and integrity in risk reports.

In all cases, the businesses are ultimately responsible for the market risks
that they take, and for remaining within their defined limits.

Market risk encompasses liquidity risk and price risk, both of which
arise in the normal course of business of a global financial intermediary.
Liquidity risk is the risk that some entity, in some location and in some
currency, may be unable to meet a financial commitment to a customer,
creditor, or investor when due. Liquidity Risk is discussed in the Liquidity
and Capital Resources section.

Price risk is the risk to earnings that arises from changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and commodity prices, and in their implied
volatilities. Price risk arises in Non-Trading Portfolios, as well as in Trading
Portfolios.

Non-trading Portfolios

Price risk in non-trading portfolios is measured predominantly through
Earnings-at-Risk and Factor Sensitivity techniques. These measurement
techniques are supplemented with additional tools, including stress testing
and cost-to-close analysis.

Business units marage the potential earnings effect of interest rate
movements by managing the asset and liability mix, either directly or
through the use of derivative financial products. These include interest rate
swaps and other derivative instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges. The utilization of derivatives is managed in response to changing
market conditions as well as to changes in the characteristics and mix of the
related assets and liabilities.

Earnings-at-Risk is the primary method for measuring price risk in
Citigroup's non-trading portfolios (excluding the Insurance companies).
Earnings-at-Risk measures the pretax earnings impact of a specified upward
and downward parallel shift in the yield curve for the appropriate currency.
The Earnings-at-Risk is calculated separately for each currency and reflects
the repricing gaps in the position as well as option positions, both explicit
and embedded. U.S. dollar exposures are calculated by multiplying the gap
between interest sensitive items, including assets, liabilities, derivative
instruments and other off-balance sheet instruments, by 100 basis points.
Non-U.S. dollar exposures are calculated utilizing the statistical equivalent
of a 100 basis point change in interest rates and assuming no correlation
between exposures in different currencies.

Citigroup’s primary non-trading price risk exposure is to movements
in the U.S. dollar and Mexican peso interest rates. Gitigroup also has




Earnings-at-Risk in various other currencies; however, there are no
significant risk concentrations in any other individual non-U.S. dollar
currency.

The following table illustrates the impact to Citigroup’s pretax earnings
from a 100 basis point increase or decrease in the U.S. dollar yield curve.
As of December 31, 2001, the potential impact on pretax earnings over the
next 12 months is 2 decrease of $241 million from an interest rate increase
and an increase of $244 million from an interest rate decrease. This level of
12 month Earnings-at-Risk equates to less than 1.5% of Citigroup pretax
earnings in 2001. The potential impact on pretax earnings for periods
beyond the first 12 months is an increase of $898 million from an increase
in interest rates and a decrease of $1,082 million from an interest rate
decrease. The change in Earnings-at-Risk from the prior year reflects the
growth in Citigroup’s fixed funding, the change in mortgage prepayment
characteristics in our portfolio, offset by the change in the asset/liability
mix to reflect Citigroup's view of interest rates.

The statistical equivalent of 2 100 basis point increase in Mexican peso
interest rates would have a potential positive impact on Citigroup’s pretax

Citigroup Earnings-at-Risk (impact on pretax earnings)

December 31, 2001

earnings of approximately $208 million for 2002 and a potential positive
impact of $207 million for the years thereafter. The statistical equivalent of
a 100 basis points decrease in Mexican peso interest rates would have a
potential negative impact on Citigroup’s pretax earnings of approximately
$208 million for 2002 and potential negative impact of $207 miltion for the
years thereafter. The change in Earnings-at-Risk from December 31, 2000
primarily represents the inclusion of Banamex’s Mexican peso exposure,
Excluding the impact of changes in Mexican peso interest rates, the
statistical equivalent of a 100 basis point increase in other non-U.S. dollar
interest rates would have a potential negative impact on Citigroup’s pretax
earnings of $275 million for 2002 and potential negative impact §236 million
for the years thereafter. The statistical equivalent of 2 100 basis point decrease
in other non-U.S. dollar interest rates would have a potential positive impact
on Citigroup’s pretax earnings of $278 million for 2002 and a potential
positive impact of §250 million for the vears thereafter. The sensitivity to
rising rates in the other non-U.S. dollar Earnings-at-Risk from prior year
reflects the change in the use of derivatives in managing the risk portfolio and
the change in the asset/liability mix to reflect Citigroup’s view of interest rates.

December 31, 20001

0.S. dollar Mexican peso Other non-U.S. dollar U.S. dollar Mexican peso Other non-U.S. dollar
In miflions of doflars Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Twelve months and less $(241) $ 244 $208 $(208)  $(275) $278 $(243) $270 $ 9 $9 $(178) $180
Thereafter 898 (1,082) 207 {207) (236) 250 778 (883) 9 9 (89) 106
Total $657 §$ (838) $415 $(415) $(511) $528 $535 $(613) $(18) $18 $(267) $286

(1) Excludes the Insurance Companies (see below).

{2 Prior year amounts have been restated to conform with the current period's presentation.
Insurance Companies

The table below reflects the estimated decrease in the fair value of financial
instruments held in the Insurance companies, as a result of a 100 basis point
increase in interest rates. '

In millions of dollars at December 31, 2001 2000
Assets

Investments $3,404 $2,715
Liabilities

Long-term debt $ 18 $ 28
Contractholder funds 775 542
Redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 1 44

Assignificant portion of the Insurance companies’ liabilities (e.g.,
insurance policy and claims reserves) are not financial instruments and are
excluded from the above sensitivity analysis. Corresponding changes in fair
value of these accounts, based on the present value of estimated cash flows,
would materially mitigate the impact of the net decrease in values implied
above, The analysis also excludes all financial instruments, including long-
term debt, identified with trading activities. The analysis reflects the estimated
gross change in value resulting from a change in interest rates only and is not
comparable to the Earnings-at-Risk used for the Citigroup non-trading
portfolios or the Value-at-Risk used for the trading portfolios.
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Trading Portfolios
Price risk in trading portfolios is measured through a complementary set of
tools, including Factor Sensitivities, Value-at-Risk, and Stress Testing, Each
trading portfolio has its own market risk limit framework, encompassing
these measures and other controls, including permitted product lists and a
new product approval process for complete products, established by the
business and approved by independent market risk management,

Factor Sensitivities are defined as the change in the value of a position
for a defined change in a market risk factor (e.g,, the change in the value
of a Treasury bill for a 1 basis point change in interest rates). It is the
responsibility of independent market risk management to ensure that factor
sensitivities are calculated, monitored and, in some cases, limited, for all
relevant risks taken in a trading portfolio. Value-at-Risk estimates the
potential decline in the value of a position or a portfolio, under normal
market conditions, over a one-day holding period, at a 99% confidence level.
The Value-at-Risk method incorporates the Factor Sensitivities of the trading
portfolio with the volatilities and correlations of those factors.

Stress Testing is performed on trading portfolios on a regular basis,
to estimate the impact of extreme market movements. Stress Testing is
performed on individual trading portfolios, as well as on aggregations
of portfolios and businesses, as appropriate. It is the responsibility of
independent market risk management, in conjunction with the businesses, to
develop stress scenarios, review the output of periodic stress testing exercises,
and utilize the information to make judgments as to the ongoing
appropriateness of exposuzre levels and limits,




New and/or complex products in trading portfolios are required to be
reviewed and approved by the Capital Markets Approval Committee (CMAC).
The CMAC is responsible for ensuring that all relevant risks are identified and
understood, and can be measured, managed and reported in accordance with
applicable business policies and practices. The CMAC is made up of senior
representatives from market and credit risk management, legal, accounting,
operations and other support areas, as required.

The level of price risk exposure at any given point in time depends on the
market environment and expectations of future price and market movernents,
and will vary from period to period.

For Citigroup's major trading centers, the aggregate pretax Value-at-Risk
in the trading portfolios was $54 million at December 31, 2001, Daily
exposures averaged $63 million in 2001 and ranged from $39 million to
$96 million.

The following table summarizes Value-at-Risk in the trading portfolios as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, along with the averages.

Dec. 31, 2001 Dec. 31, 20000
In milfions of dollars 2001 Average 20000 Average
Interest rate $44 $ 55 $53 $43
Foreign exchange 9 12 11 10
Equity 10 15 24 20
All ather (primarily commodity} 21 18 15 14
Covariance adjustment (30) (37) (39) (35)
Total $54 $63 $64 $52

(1) Prior-year information has been restated from that previously presented to reflect reorganizations and
achange in assumptions made to reflect a more consistent view for managing price risk throughout
the organization.

Cross-Border Outstandings and Commitments

The table below provides the range of Value-at-Risk in the trading
portfolios that was experienced during 2001 and 2000.

2001 20000
In mitlions of doliars Low High Low High
Interest rate $33 $90 $32 $65
Foreign exchange 6 22 5 26
Equity 9 53 10 51
Al other {primarily commodity) 8 52 6 32

(1) Prior-year information has been restated from that previously presented to reflect reorganizations and
a change in assumptions made to reflect a more consistent view for managing price risk throughout
the organization.

MANAGEMENT OF CROSS-BORDER RISK

Cross-border risk is the risk that Citigroup will be unable to obtain payment
from customers on their contractual obligations as a result of actions taken
by foreign governments such as exchange controls, debt moratoria, and
restrictions on the remittance of funds. Citigroup manages cross-border risk
as part of the risk management framework described on page 63.

Except as described below for cross-border resale agreements and the
netting of certain long and short securities positions, the following table
presents total cross-border outstandings and commitments on a regulatory
basis in accordance with FFIEC guidelines. In regulatory reports under FFIEC
guidelines, cross-border resale agreements are presented based on the
domicile of the issuer of the securities that are held as collateral. However, for
purposes of the following table, cross-border resale agreements are presented
based on the domicile of the counterparty because the counterparty has the
legal obligation for repayment. Similarly, under FFIEC guidelines, long
securities positions are required to be reported on a gross basis. However,
for purposes of the following table, certain long and short securities positions
are presented on a net basis consistent with internal cross-border risk
management policies, reflecting a reduction of risk from offsetting positions.

Total cross-border outstandings include cross-border claims on third parties as well as investments in and funding of local franchises. Countries with FFIEC
outstandings greater than 0.75% of Citigroup assets for the respective periods include:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

Cross-border claims on third parties Net invest:':znrﬁ
Tradingand  Cross-border funding  Total cross- Total cross-
short-term resale of focal border border
in biflions of doflars claims”  agreements All other Total franchises outstandings Commitments® outstandings  Commitments®
Germany $6.0 $5.8 $1.5 $13.3 $0.2 $13.5 $73 $124 $ 71
Mexico ® 33 - 5.6 8.9 34 12.3 0.6 39 1.7
United Kingdom 3.9 3.6 3.7 11.2 - 1.2 16.8 109 15.4
France 51 38 15 10.4 0.5 10.9 8.7 13.4 8.4
Brazil 32 —_ 2.8 6.0 47 10.7 0.3 8.1 0.2
ltaly 5.3 1.4 1.2 79 1.8 97 24 9.9 5.7
Japan 29 35 1.5 79 - 79 33 7.4 0.8
Canada 27 0.1 3.0 5.8 2.1 78 34 8.9 5.0
Netherlands 4.1 1.8 1.3 7.2 — 7.2 3.0 10.6 1.9

(1} Trading and short-term ctaims include cross-border debt and equity securities held in the trading account, trade finance receivables, net revaluation gains on foreign exchange and derivative contracts, and other claims

with a maturity of less than one year.

{2) Commitments (nat included in total cross-border outstandings) include legally binding cross-border letters of credit and other commitments and contingencies as defined by the FFIEC.

(3) Increase from December 31, 2000 primarily represents inclusion of Banamex’s Mexican exposure.
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Total cross-border outstandings under FFIEC guidehnes,’including €ross-
border resale agreements based on the domicile of the issuer of the securities
that are held as collateral, and long securities positions reported on a gross
basis, at December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were (in billions): Germany
($19.5,416.8, and $14.9), Mexico ($13.2, $4.7, and $5.2), the United
Kingdom ($9.3, $9.6, and $8.8), France ($13.5, $13.5, and $7.9), Brazil
{$11.9, $9.8, and $4.9), Italy ($12.8, $13.9, and $10.2), Japan (§6.5, $9.1,
and $10.5), Canada ($8.9, $9.0, and $7.1), and the Netherlands ($6.9, $7.7,
and $5.0), respectively.

Cross-border commitments (in billions) at December 31, 1999 were
$3.7 for Germany, $0.1 for Mexico, $15.5 for the United Kingdom, $2.2 for
France, $0.1 for Brazil, $0.4 for Italy, $0.1 for Japan, $2.1 for Canada, and
$2.9 for the Netherlands.

The sector percentage allocation for bank, public, and private cross-border
claims on third parties under FFIEC guidelines at December 31, 2001 was:
Germany (17%, 59%, and 24%), Mexico (1%, 28%, and 71%), the United
Kingdom (24%, 18%, and 58%), France (26%, 47%, and 27%), Brazil
(14%, 25%, and 61%), Ttaly (13%, 72%, and 15%), Japan (21%, 22%, and
57%), Canada (30%, 9%, and 61%), and the Netherlands (16%, 13%, and
71%), respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Gitigroup’s primary source of capital resources is its net earnings. Other
sources include proceeds from the issuance of trust preferred securities, senior
debt, subordinated debt and commercial paper. Citigroup can also generate
funds by securitizing various financial assets including credit card receivables
and other recetvables generally secured by collateral such as automobiles and
single-family residences.

Citigroup uses these capital resources to pay dividends to its stockholders,
to repurchase its shares in the market pursuant to Board-of-Directors
approved plans, to support organic growth, to make acquisitions and to
service its debt obligations.

4s a financial holding company, substantially all of Citigroup’s net earn-
ings are generated within its operating subsidiaries including Citibank, SSB,
TIC and TPC. Each of these subsidiaries makes these funds available to
Citigroup in the form of dividends. The subsidiaries’ dividend paying abilities
are limited by certain covenant restrictions in credit agreements and/or by
regulatory requirements. Certain of these subsidiaries are also subject to
rating agency requirernents that also impact their capitalization levels.

During 2002, it is not anticipated that any restrictions on the subsidiaries’
dividending capability will restrict Citigroup’s ability to meet its obligations as
and when they become due. It is also anticipated that during 2002 Citigroup
will maintain its share repurchase program.

Citigroup announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. {TPC), intends to sell a minority interest in TPC in an initial
public offering and Citigroup intends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such amount of the remainder of its interest in TPC so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TPC
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution. The distribution
is expected to be concluded by year-end 2002. Gitigroup is not obligated to
conclude the distribution at that time or at all. The distribution of TPC, if it
occurs, will be treated as a dividend to stockholders for accounting purposes
that will reduce stockholders’ equity by an amount in excess of $7 billion.
This paragraph and the preceding paragraph contain forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.
See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Citigroup, Citicorp and certain other subsidiaries issue commercial paper
directly to investors, Citigroup and Citicorp, both of which are bank holding
companies, maintain combined liquidity reserves of cash, securities and
unused bank lines of credit to support their combined outstanding
commercial paper.

Citigroup has unutilized bilateral committed revolving credit facilities
in the amount of $950 million that expire in 2002. Under these facilities,
Gitigroup is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated stockholders'
equity (as defined in the agreements). Citigroup exceeded this requirement
by approximately $36 billion at December 31, 2001.

Associates, a subsidiary of Citicorp has a combination of unutilized credit
facilities of $6.8 billion as of December 31, 2001 which have maturities
ranging from 2002 to 2005. Al! of these facilities are guaranteed by Citicorp.
In connection with the facilities, Citicorp is required to maintain a certain
level of consolidated stockholder’s equity (as defined in the agreements). At
December 31, 2001, this requirement was exceeded by approximately $49
billion. Citicorp has also guaranteed various debt obligations of Associates
and CitiFinancial Credit Company (CCC), an indirect subsidiary of Citicorp.




Borrowings under bank lines of credit may be at interest rates based on
LIBOR, CD rates, the prime rate, or bids submitted by the banks. Each
company pays its banks facility fees for its lines of credit.

Citicorp, Salomon Smith Barney, and some of their nonbank subsidiaries
have credit facilittes with Citicorp’s subsidiary banks, including Citibank, N.A.
Borrowings under these facilities must be secured in accordance with Section
234 of the Federal Reserve Act.

The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s
consolidated contractual long-term debt payments and operating leases at
December 31, 2001:

In millions of dollars Long-term debt Operating leases

2002 $ 31,202 $1,079
2003 24,636 927
2004 16,305 761
2005 13,175 759
2006 10,045 488
Thereafter 26,268 2,654
Total $121,631 $6,668

Management of Liquidity
Management of liquidity at Citigroup is the responsibility of the Corporate
Treasurer. A uniform liquidity risk management policy exists for Citigroup
and its major operating subsidiaries. Under this policy, there is a single set of
standards for the measurement of liquidity risk in order to ensure consistency
across businesses, stability in methodologies and transparency of risk.
Management of liquidity at each operating subsidiary and/or country is
performed on a daily basis and is monitored by Corporate Treasury. Each
major operating subsidiary and/or country must prepare an annual liquidity
and funding plan for the approval by the Corporate Treasurer. Under the
annual liquidity and funding plan, liquidity limits, targets and ratios are
established. Contingency Funding Plans are prepared on a periodic basis
for Citigroup and each major operating subsidiary and country. These
plans inctude stress testing of assumptions about significant changes in
key funding sources, credit ratings, contingent uses of funding, and political
and economic conditions in Emerging Markets countries.

Citigroup’s funding sources are well-diversified across funding types
and geography, a benefit of the strength of the global franchise. Funding
for the Parent and its major operating subsidiaries includes a large
geographically diverse retail and corporate deposit base, a significant
portion of which is considered core, Other sources of funding include
collateralized borrowings, securitizations (primarily credit card and
mortgages), long-term debt, and purchased/wholesale funds. This funding
is significantly enhanced by Gitigroup’s strong capital position. Each of
Citigroup’s major operating subsidiaries finances its operations on a basis
consistent with its capitalization, regulatory structure and the operating
environment in which it operates.

Other liquidity and capita! resource considerations for Citigroup and its
major operating facilities follow.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Citigroup and its subsidiaries are involved with several types of off-balance
sheet arrangements, including special purpose entities (SPEs), lines and
letters of credit, and loan commitments.
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The principal uses of SPEs are to obtain sources of liquidity by securitizing
certain of Citigroup’s financial assets, to assist our clients in securitizing their
financial assets, and to create other investment products for our clients.

SPEs may be organized as trusts, partnerships, or corporations. In a
securitization, the company transferring assets to an SPE converts those assets
into cash before they would have been realized in the normal course of
business. The SPE obtains the cash needed to pay the transferor for the assets
received by issuing securities to investors in the form of debt instruments,
certificates, commercial paper, and other notes of indebtedness. Investors
usually have recourse to the assets in the SPE and often benefit from other
credit enhancements, such as a cash collateral account, overcollateralization
in the form of excess assets in the SPE, or a liquidity facility, such as a line of
credit or asset purchase agreement. Accordingly, the SPE can typically obtain
amore favorable credit rating from rating agencies, such as Standard and
Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service, than the transferor could obtain for its
own debt issuances, resulting in less expensive financing costs. The transferor
can use the cash proceeds from the sale to extend credit to additional
customers or for other business purposes. The SPE may also enter into a
derivative contract in order to convert the vield or currency of the underlying
assets to match the needs of the SPE’s investors or to timit the credit risk of the
SPE. The Company may be the counterparty to any such derivative. The
securitization process enhances the liquidity of the financial markets, may
spread credit risk among several market participants, and makes new funds
available to extend credit to consumers and commercial entities.

Securitization of Citigroup’s Assets
Citigroup securitizes credit card receivables, mortgage, home equity and auto
loans, and certain other financial assets that it originates or purchases.

Credit Card Receivables

Credit card receivables are securitized through a trust, which is established to
purchase the receivables. Citigroup sells receivables into the trust on a non-
recourse basis.

After securitization of credit card receivables, the Company continues to
maintain credit card customer account relationships and provides servicing
for receivables transferred to the SPE trusts. As a result, the Company
considers both the securitized and unsecuritized credit card receivables to
be part of the business it manages. The documents establishing the trusts
generally require the Company to maintain an ownership interest in the trust.
The Company also arranges for third parties to provide credit enhancement to
the trusts, including cash collateral accounts, subordinated securities, and
letters of credit. As specified in certain of the sale agreements, the net revenue
with respect to the investors’ interest collected by the trusts each month is
accumulated up to a predetermined maximum amount, and is available over
the remaining term of that transaction to make payments of interest to trust
investors, fees, and transaction costs in the event that net cash flows from the
receivables are not sufficient. If the net cash flows are insufficient, Citigroup’s
loss is limited to its retained interest. When the predetermined amount is
reached, net revenue with respect to the investors’ interest is passed directly to
the Citigroup subsidiary that sold the receivables. Credit card securitizations
are revolving securitizations; that is, as customers pay their credit card
balances, the cash proceeds are used to replenish the receivables in the trust.
Salomon Smith Barney is one of several underwriters that distribute securities
issued by the trusts to investors. The Company relies on securitizations to fund
about 60% of its Card business.




At Decemnber 31, 2001, total assets in the credit card trusts were $87 billion.
Of that amount, $67 billion has been sold to investors via trust-issued
securities, and the remaining seller’s interest of $20 billion is recorded in
Citigroup’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as Consumer
Loans. Citigroup retains credit risk on its seller’s interests, Amounts receivable
from the trusts were $1,098 million and amounts due to the trusts were
$701 million at December 31, 2001. During the vear-ended December 31,
2001, finance charges and interchange fees of $10.1 billion were collected
by the trusts. Also for the year-ended December 31, 2001, the trusts recorded
$6.5 billion in coupon interest paid to third-party investors, servicing fees,
and other costs. Servicing fees of $1.2 billion were earned and an additional
$3.6 billion of net cash flows were received by the Cornpany in 2001.

Mortgages, Home Equity and Auto Loans
The Company provides a wide range of mortgage, home equity and auto loan
products to a diverse custorner base. In addition to providing a source of
liquidity and less expensive funding, securitizing these assets also reduces
the Company's credit exposure to the borrowers. In connection with the
securitization of these loans, servicing rights entitle the Company to a future
stream of cash flows based on the outstanding principal balances of the loans
and the contractual servicing fee. Failure to service the loans in accordance
with contractual servicing obligations may lead to a termination of the
servicing rights and the loss of future servicing fees. In non-recourse
servicing, the principal credit risk to the servicer arises from temporary
advarces of funds. In recourse servicing, the servicer agrees to share credit
risk with the owner of the mortgage loans, such as FNMA, FHLMC, GNMA,
or with a private investor, insurer or guarantor. Our mortgage loan
securitizations are primarily non-recourse, thereby effectively transferring the
risk of future credit losses to the purchasers of the securities issued by the trust.
Home equity loans may be revolving lines of credit under which borrowers
have the right to draw on the line of credit up to their maximum amount for
aspecified number of years. In addition to servicing rights, the Company also
retains a residual interest in its home equity, manufactured housing and auto
loan securitizations, consisting of seller’s interest and interest-only strips that
arise from the calculation of gain or loss at the time assets are sold to the SPE.

At December 31, 2001, total loans securitized and outstanding were $85
billion. Servicing rights and other retained interests amounted to $3.2 billion at
December 31, 2001, During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company
recognized $271 million of gains on securitizations of mortgage loans.

The following table summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid
to securitization trusts during the year ended December 31, 2001:

2001
In biflions of doliars Credit cards Mortgages(! and auto
Proceeds from new securitizations $ 227 $34.8
Proceeds from callections reinvested
in new receivables 1314 0.4
Servicing fees received 1.2 0.3
Cash flows received on retained
interests and other net cash flows 3.6 04

{1} Includes mortgages and home equity foans.

Securitizations of Client Assets

The Company acts as intermediary or agent for its corporate clients, assisting
them in obtaining sources of liquidity, by selling the clients’ trade receivables
or other financial assets to an SPE.

The Company administers several third-party owned, special purpose,
multi-seller finance companies that purchase pools of trade receivables, credit
cards, and other financial assets from third-party clients of the Company. As
administrator, the Gompany provides accounting, funding, and operations
services to these conduits. The Company has no ownership interest in the
conduits. The clients continue to service the transferred assets, The conduits’
asset purchases are funded by issuing commercial paper and medium-term
notes. Clients absorb the first losses of the conduit by providing collateral
in the form of excess assets. The Company along with other financial
institutions provides liquidity facilities, such as commercial paper back-stop
lines of credit to the conduits, The Company also provides second loss
enhancement in the form of letters of credit and other guarantees. All fees are
charged on a market basis. At December 31, 2001, total assets in the conduits
were $52 billion.

The Company also securitizes clients' debt obligations in transactions
involving SPEs that issue collateralized debt obligations (CDOs). A majority of
the transactions are on behalf of clients where the Company first purchases
the assets at the request of the clients and warehouses them until the
securitization transaction is executed. Other CDOs are structured where the
underlying debt obligations are purchased directly in the open market or
from issuers. Some CDOs have static unmanaged portfolios of assets, while
others have a more actively managed portfolio of financial assets. The
Company receives fees for structuring and distributing the CDO securities
to investors.

Creation of Other Investment Products

The Company packages and securitizes assets purchased in the financial
markets in order to create new security offerings, including hedge funds,
mutual funds, and other investment funds, for institutional and private
bank clients as well as retail customers, that match the clients’ investment
needs and preferences. The SPEs may be credit-enhanced by excess assets

in the investment pool or by third party insurers assuming the risks of the
underlying assets, thus reducing the credit risk assumed by the investors and
diversifying investors’ risk to a pool of assets as compared with investments in
individual assets. The Company typically manages the SPE for market-rate
fees. In addition, the Company may be one of several liquidity providers to the
SPE and may place the securities with investors. The Company has no
ownership interest in these entities.




Credit Commitments and Lines of Credit
The table below summarizes Citigroup’s credit commitments. Further details
are included in the footnotes.

In mittions of doltars at year-end 2001
Financial standby fetters of credit and foreign office guarantees $ 29,541
Performance standby letters of credit and foreign office guarantees 7,749
Commercial and similar letters of credit 5,681
One-to-four family residential mortgages 5,470
Revolving open-end loans secured by 1-4 family residential properties 7,107
Commercial real estate, construction and land development 1,882
Credit card lings ™ 387,396
Commercial and other consumer loan commitments 210,909
Total $655,735

(1) Credit card lines are unconditionally cancelable by the issuer.
(2) Includes $138 billion with ariginal maturity less than one year and approximately $50 billion with
original maturity of one-to-five years.

CAPITAL

Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup)

Citigroup is subject to risk-based capital guidelines issued by the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (FRB). These guidelines are used to
evaluate capital adequacy based primarily on the perceived credit risk
associated with balance sheet assets, as well as certain off-balance sheet
exposures such as unused loan commitments, letters of credit, and derivative
and foreign exchange contracts. The risk-based capital guidelines are
supplemented by a leverage ratio requirement.

Citigroup Ratios

At year-end 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital 8.42% 8.38%
Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 10.92 11.23
Leverage 5.64 5,97
Commeon stockholders’ equity 7.58 7.14

(1) Tier 1 capital divided by adjusted average assets.

Citigroup maintained 4 strong capital position during 2001. Total capital
(Tier 1 and Tier 2) amounted to $75.8 billion at December 31, 2001,
representing 10.92% of risk-adjusted assets. This compares to $73.0 billion
and 11,23% at December 31, 2000. Tier 1 capital of $58.4 billion at December
31,2001 represented 8.42% of risk-adjusted assets, compared to §54.5 billion
and 8.38% at December 31, 2000. Citigroup’s leverage ratio was 5.64% at
December 31, 2001 compared to 5.97% at December 31, 2000. See Note 18 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Components of Capital Under Regulatory Guidelines

in millions of dollars at year-end 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital
Common stockholders’ equity $ 79722 $ 64,461
Qualifying perpetual preferred stock 1,400 1,745
Qualifying mandatorily redesmable securities

of subsidiary trusts 6,725 4,920
Minority interest 803 334
Less: Net unrealized gains on securities

available-for-sale {852) (973)
Accumulated net gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax (168) —
Intangible assets:

Goodwill {23,861) (11,972

Other intangible assets (4,944) (3,572)
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale

equity securities, net of tax ™ - (68)
50% investment in certain subsidiaries @ (72) (82)
Other {305) (295)
Total Tier 1 capital 58,448 54,498
Tier 2 capital
Allowance for credit losses © 8,694 8,140
Qualifying debt ¢ 8,648 10,492
Unrealized marketable equity securities gains 79 —
Less: 50% investment in certain subsidiaries @ (72) (82)
Total Tier 2 capital 17,349 18,550
Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) $ 75,797 $ 73,048
Risk-adjusted assets © $694,035  $650,351

(1) Tier 1 capital excludes unrealized gains and losses on debt securities available-for-sale in accordance
with regulatory risk-based capital guidelines. The Federal bank regulatory agencies permit institutions
to inciude in Tler 2 capital up to 45% of pretax net unrealized hoding gains on available-for-sale equity
securities with readily determinable fair values. Institutions are required to deduct from Tier 1 capital
net unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair
values, net of tax.

(2} Represents investment in certain averseas insurance activities and unconsolidated banking and
finance subsidiaries.

(3) Includable up to 1.25% of risk-adjusted assets. Any excess allowance is deducted from
risk-acjusted assets.

(4) includes qualifying senior and subardinated debt in an amaount not exceeding 50% of Tier 1 capital, and
subordinated capital notes subject to certain limitations, The net decrease in qualifying debt during
2001 was due to redemptions of subsidiary-obligated debt.

(5) Includes risk-welghted credlt equivalent amounts, net of applicable bilateral netting agreements, of
$26.2 billion for interest rate, commadity and equity derivative contracts and foreign exchange
contracts, as of December 31, 2001, compared to $27.7 billion as of December 31, 2000. Market
risk-equivalent assets included in risk-adjusted assets amounted to $31.4 billion and $39.6 billion
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Risk-adjusted assets also includes the effect of other
off-balance sheet expasures such as unused loan commitments and letters of credit and reflects
deductions for intangible assets and any excess aliowance for credit losses.




Common stockholders’ equity increased a net $15.3 billion during the year
10 $79.7 billion at Decemnber 31, 2001, representing 7.58% of assets, compared
10 $64.5 billion and 7.14% at year-end 2000. The increase in common
stockholders’ equity during the year principally reflected net income of §14.1
billion, $6.5 billion related to the issuance of shares to effect the Banamex
acquisition, and $2.2 billion related to the issuance of shares pursuant to
employee benefit plans and other activity, offset by dividends declared on
common and preferred stock of $3.2 billion, treasury stock acquired of $3.0
billion, and §1.3 billion related to foreign currency translation adjustment
and change in unrealized gains and losses on investment securities. The
increase in the common stockholders’ equity ratio during the year reflected
the above items, and was partially offset by the increase in total assets,

During the 2001 fourth quarter, the Board of Directors granted approval
for the repurchase of an additional §5 billion of Citigroup common stock,
continuing the Company’s program of buying back its shares. Under its long-
standing repurchase program, the Company buys back shares in the market
from time to time.

During the 2001 fourth quarter, Citigroup redeemed its Series K
cumulative preferred stock for $250 miltion.

On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed for cash all outstanding shares of
its Series U cumulative preferred stock. Because notice for redemnption of these
shares occurred prior to year-end, they did not qualify as Tier 1 Capital at
December 31, 2001,

The total mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts (trust
securities) which qualify as Tier 1 capital at December 31, 2001 and 2000
were §6.725 billion and $4.92 billion, respectively. The amount outstanding
at Decemnber 31, 2001 includes $4.85 billion of parent-obligated securities
and $2.275 billion of subsidiary-obligated securities, and at December 31,
2000 includes $2.30 billion of parent-obligated securities and $2.62 billion
of subsidiary-obligated securities. On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed
for cash the $400 million Citigroup Capital 1 Trust Preferred Securities
(16 million 8% Trust Preferred Securities at the redemption price of
$25 per Preferred Security plus any accrued and unpaid distribution
thereon. Because notice for redemption of these securities occurred prior to
vear-end, they did not qualify as Tier 1 Capital at December 31, 2001,

Citigroup's subsidiary depository institutions are subject to the risk-based
capital guidelines issued by their respective primary Federal bank regulatory
agencies, which are generally similar to the FRB's guidelines. At December 31,
2001, all of Citigroup’s subsidiary depository institutions were “well
capitalized” under the Federal bank regulatory agencies’ definitions.

On January 8, 2002, the FRB issued final rules that govern the regulatory
treatment of merchant banking investments and certain similar equity
investments, including investments made by venture capital subsidiaries,
in nonfinancial companies held by bank holding companies with certain
exclusions. The new rules impose a capital charge that would increase
in steps as the banking organization's level of concentration in equity
investments increases. An 8% Tier 1 capital deduction applies on covered
investments that in the aggregate represent up to 15% of an organization’s
Tier 1 capital. For covered investments that aggregate more than 25% of the
organization's Tier 1 capital, a top marginal charge of 25% applies. The rules
are not expected to have a significant impact on Citigroup.

In December 2001, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(Committee) announced that a new consultative package on the new Basel
Capital Accord (new Accord) would not be issued in early 2002, as previously
indicated. Instead, the Committee will first seek to complete a comprehensive
impact assessment of the draft proposal, after which a new consultative
package will be issued. The new Accord, which will apply to all “significant”
banks, as well as to holding companies that are parents of banking groups, is
still intended to be finalized by year-end 2002, with implementation of the
new framework beginning in 2005, The Company is monitoring the status
and progress of the proposed rule.

On November 29, 2001, the FRB issued final rules regarding the regulatory
capital treatment of recourse, direct credit substitutes and residual interest in
asset securitizations. The rules require a deduction from Tier 1 capital for the
amount of credit-enhancing interest-only strips (a type of residual interest)
that exceeds 25% of Tier 1 capital, as well as requiring dollar-for-dollar capital
for residual interests not deducted for Tier 1 capital. These rules, which
require adoption in the fourth quarter of 2002, are not expected to have a
significant impact on Citigroup.

Additionally, from time to time, the FRB and the FFIEC propose
amendments to, and issue interpretations of, risk-based capital guidelines
and reporting instructions. Such proposals or interpretations could, if
implemented in the future, affect reported capital ratios and net risk-adjusted
assets. This paragraph and the preceding three paragraphs contain forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Citicorp

The in-country forum for liquidity issues is the Asset/Liability Management
Committee (ALCO), which includes senior executives within each country.
The ALCO reviews the current and prospective funding requirements for all
businesses and legal entities within the country, as well as the capital position
and balance sheet. All businesses within the country are represented on the
committee with the focal point being the Country Treasurer, The Country
Corporate Officer and the Country Treasurer ensure that all funding
obligations in each country are met when due. The Citigroup Corporate
Treasurer, in concert with the Country Corporate Officer and the Regional
Market Risk Manager, appoints the Country Treasurer.

Each Country Treasurer must prepare a liquidity plan at least annually
that is approved by the Country Corporate Officer, the Regional Treasurer, and
the Citigroup Corporate Treasurer. The liquidity profile is monitored on an
on-going basis and reported monthly, Limits are established on the extent to
which businesses in a country can take liquidity risk. The size of the limit
depends on the depth of the market, experience level of local management,
the stability of the liabilities, and liquidity of the assets. Finally, the limits are
subject to the evaluation of the entities' stress test results. Generally, limits are
established such that in stress scenarios, entities need to be self-funded or
providers of liquidity to Citicorp.




Regional Treasurers generally have responsibility for monitoring liquidity
risk across a number of countries within a defined geography. They are also
available for consultation and special approvals, especially in unusual or
volatile market conditions.

Citicorp's assets and liabilities are diversified across many currencies,
geographic areas, and businesses. Particular attention is paid to those

businesses which for tax, sovereign risk, or regulatory reasons carnot be freely

and readily funded in the international markets.

A diversity of funding sources, currencies, and maturities is used to gain a
broad access to the investor base. Giticorp’s deposits, which represent 59% of
total funding at December 31, 2001 and 55% at December 31, 2000, are
broadly diversified by both geography and customer segments.

Stockholders’ equity, which grew $15.6 billion during the vear to $63.5
billion at year-end 2001, continues to be an important component of the
overall funding structure. In addition, long-term debt is issued by Citicorp
and its subsidiaries. Total Citicorp long-term debt outstanding at year-end
2001 was §81.1 billion, compared with $80.3 billion at vear-end 2000.

Asset securitization programs remain an important source of liguidity.
Loans securitized during 2001 included $23.3 biltion of U.S. credit cards and
$24.3 billion of U.S. consumer mortgages. As credit card securitization
transactions amottize, newly originated receivables are recorded on Citicorp’s
balance sheet and become available for asset securitization. In 2001, the
scheduled amortization of certain credit card securitization transactions
made available $11.6 billion of new receivables. In addition, at least $9.4
billion of credit card securitization transactions are scheduled to amortize
during 2002.

Citicorp is a legal entity separate and distinct from Citibank, NA. and its
other subsidiaries and atfiliates. There are various legal limitations on the
extent to which Citicorp’s banking subsidiaries may extend credit, pay
dividends or otherwise supply funds to Citicorp. The approval of the Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency is required if total dividends declared by a
national bank in any calendar vear exceed net profits (as defined) for that
vear combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years. In
addition, dividends for such a bank may not be paid in excess of the bank’s
undivided profits. State-chartered bank subsidiaries are subject to dividend
limitations imposed by applicable state law.

Citicorp’s national and state-chartered bank subsidiaries can declare
dividends to their respective parent companies in 2002, without regulatory
approval, of approximately $9.1 billion, adjusted by the effect of their net
income (loss) for 2002 up to the date of any such dividend declaration. In
determining whether and to what extent to pay dividends, each bank
subsidiary must also consider the effect of dividend payments on applicable
risk-based capital and leverage ratio requirements as well as policy statements
of the Federal regulatory agencies that indicate that banking organizations
should generally pay dividends out of current operating earnings. Consistent
with these considerations, Citicorp estimates that its bank subsidiaries can
distribute dividends to Citicorp, directly or through their parent holding
company, of approximately $8.9 billion of the available $9.1 billion,
adjusted by the effect of their net income (loss) up to the date of any such
dividend declaration.

Citicorp also receives dividends from its nonbank subsidiaries. These
nonbank subsidiaries are generally not subject to regulatory restrictions on
their payment of dividends except that the approval of the Office of Thrift
Supervision (OTS) may be required if total dividends declared by a savings
association in any calendar year exceed amounts specified by that agency’s
regulations.

Citicorp is subject to risk-based capital and leverage guidelines issued by
the FRB.

Citicorp Ratios

At year-end 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital 8.33% 8.41%
Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 12.41 12.29
Leverage™ 6.85 7.54
Common stockholder’s equity 9.81 8.68

(1) Tier 1 capital divided by adjusted average assets.

Citicorp maintained a strong capital position during 2001, Total capital
(Tier 1 and Tier 2) amounted to §62.9 billion at December 31, 2001,
representing 12.41% of risk-adjusted assets. This compares with $58.0 billion
and 12.29% at December 31, 2000, Tier 1 capital of $42.2 billion at year-end
2001 represented 8.33% of risk-adjusted assets, compared with $39.7 billion
and 8.41% at year-end 2000. The Tier 1 capital ratio at year-end 2001 was
above Citicorp’s target range of 8.00% to 8.30%. See Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.
(Salomon Smith Barney)

Salomon Smith Barney's total assets were $301 billion at December 31, 2001,
compared to $238 billion at year-end 2000. Due to the nature of Salomon
Smith Barney's trading activities, it is not uncommon for asset levels to
fluctuate from period to period. At December 31, 2001, approximately 35%
of these assets represent trading securities, commodities, and derivatives
used for proprietary trading and to facilitate customer transactions.
Approximately 46% of these assets were related to collateralized financing
transactions where securities are bought, borrowed, sold, and lent in generally
offsetting amounts. A significant portion of the remainder of the assets
represented receivables from brokers, dealers, clearing organizations, and
customers that relate to securities transactions in the process of being settled.
The carrying values of the majority of Salomon Smith Barney’s securities
inventories are adjusted daily to reflect current prices. See Notes 1, 5,6, 7,8,
and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a further description of
these assets.

Salomon Smith Barney's assets are financed through a number of
sources including tong and short-term unsecured borrowings, the financing
transactions described above, and payables to brokers, dealers, and customers.
The highly liquid nature of these assets provides Salomon Smith Barney with
flexibility in financing and managing its business. Salomon Smith Barney
monitors and evaluates the adequacy of its capital and borrowing base on a
daily basis in order to allow for flexibility in its funding, to maintain liquidity,
and to ensure that its capital base supports the regulatory capital
requirements of its subsidiaries.




Salomon Smith Barney funds its operations through the use of secured
and unsecured short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings and TruPS®
Secured short-term financing, including repurchase agreements and secured
loans, is Salomon Smith Bamney’s principal funding source. Unsecured short-
term borrowings provide a source of short-term liquidity and are also utilized
as an alternative to secured financing when they represent a cheaper funding
source. Sources of short-term unsecured borrowings include commercial
paper, unsecured bank borrowings and letters of credit, deposit liabilities,
promissory notes, and corporate loans.

Salomon Smith Barney has a $5.0 billion 364-day committed
uncollateralized revolving line of credit with unaffiliated banks that extends
through May 21, 2002, with repayment on any borrowings due by May 21,
2004. Salomon Smith Barney may botrow under this revolving credit facility
at various interest rate options (LIBOR or base rate) and compensates the
banks for this facility through facility fees. Under this facility, Salomon Smith
Barney is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated adjusted net
worth (as defined in the agreement). At December 31, 2001, this requirement
was exceeded by approximately $4.3 billion. At December 31, 2001, there were
no borrowings outstanding under this facility. Salomon Smith Barney also
has substantial borrowing arrangements consisting of facilities that it has
been advised are available, but where no contractual lending obligation
exists. These arrangements are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure
flexibility in meeting short-term requirements.

Unsecured term debt is 4 significant component of Salomon Smith
Barney’s long-term capital. Long-term debt totaled $26.8 billion at December
31,2001 and $19.7 billion at December 31, 2000, Salomon Smith Barney
utilizes interest rate swaps to convert the majority of its fixed-rate long-term
debt used to fund inventory-related working capital requirements into
variable rate obligations. Long-term debt issuances denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar that are not used to finance assets in the
same currency are effectively converted to U.S. dollar obligations through the
use of cross-currency swaps and forward currency contracts.

Salomon Smith Barney’s borrowing relationships are with a broad range
of banks, financial institutions and other firms from which it draws funds.
The volurne of borrowings generally fluctuates in response to changes in the
level of financial instruments, commodities and contractual commitments,
customer balances, the amount of reverse repurchase transactions
outstanding, and securities borrowed transactions. As Salomon Smith
Barney’s activities increase, borrowings generally increase to fund the
additional activities. Availability of financing can vary depending upon
market conditions, credit ratings, and the overall availability of credit to the
securities industry. Salomon Smith Barney seeks to expand and diversify its
funding mix as well as its creditor sources. Concentration levels for these
sources, particularly for short-term lenders, are closely monitored both in
terms of single investor limits and daily maturities.

Salomon Smith Barney monitors liquidity by tracking asset levels,
collateral and funding availability to maintain flexibility to meet its
financial commitments. As a policy, Salomon Smith Barney attempts to
maintain sufficient capital and funding sources in order to have the capacity
to finance itself on a fully collateralized basis in the event that access to
unsecured financing was temporarily impaired. Salomon Smith Barney's
liquidity management process includes a contingency funding plan
designed to ensure adequate liquidity even if access to unsecured funding
sources is severely restricted or unavailable. This plan is reviewed periodically

to keep the funding options current and in line with market conditions.

The management of this plan includes an analysis that is utilized to
determine the ability to withstand varying levels of stress, which could impact
Salomon Smith Barney’s liquidation horizons and required margins. In
addition, Salomon Smith Barney monitors its leverage and capital ratios

on a daily basis.

Travelers Property Casualty Corp. (TPC)

TPC's insurance subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory restrictions that
limit the maximum amount of dividends available to be paid to their parent
without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. A maximum of
$1.0 billion is available by the end of 2002 for such dividends without prior
approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department. However, the payment of
asignificant portion of this amount is likely to be subject to such approval
depending upon the amount and timing of the payments.

The Travelers Insurance Company (TIC)

At Decernber 31, 2001, TIC had $34.1 billion of life and annuity product
deposit funds and reserves. Of that total, $19.1 billion is not subject to
discretionary withdrawal based on contract terms. The remaining $15.0
biltion is for life and annuity products that are subject to discretionary
withdrawal by the contractholder. Included in the amount that is subject

to discretionary withdrawal is §4.2 billion of liabilities that is surrenderable
with market value adjustments. Also included is an additional §5.0 billion
of the life insurance and individual annuity liabilities which is subject to
discretionary withdrawals and an average surrender charge of 4.7%. In the
payout phase, these funds are credited at significantly reduced interest rates.
The remaining $5.8 billion of liabilities is surrenderable without charge.
More than 10.2% of this relates to individual life products. These risks
would have to be underwritten again if transferred to another carrier, which
is considered a significant deterrent against withdrawal by long-term
policyholders. Insurance liabilities that are surrendered or withdrawn are
reduced by outstanding policy loans, and related accrued interest prior

to payout.

Scheduled maturities of guaranteed investment contracts (GICs) in 2002,
2003, 2004, 2005 and thereafter are $3.972 billion, §1.441 billion, §1.141
billion, $965 million, and $3.832 billion, respectively. At December 31, 2001,
the interest rates credited on GICs had a weighted average rate of 5.10%.

TIC is subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum
amount of dividends available to its parent without prior approval of the
Connecticut Insurance Department. A maximum of $586 million of statutory
surplus is available by the end of the year 2002 for such dividends without the
prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department.

Insurance Industry - Risk-Based Capital

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) adopted risk-
based capital (RBC) requirernents for life insurance companies and for
property and casualty insurance companies. The RBC requirements are to be
used as minimum capital requirements by the NAIC and states to identify
companies that merit further regulatory action. The formulas have not been
designed to differentiate among adequately capitalized companies that
operate with levels of capital higher than RBC requirements. Therefore, it s
inappropriate and ineffective to use the formulas to rate or to rank such
companies. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, all of the Company’s life and
property and casualty companies had adjusted capital in excess of amounts
requiring Company or any regulatory action.




GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Adjusted Operating Expenses —GAAP operating expenses excluding
restructuring- and merger-related items.

Adjusted Provisions for Benefits, Claims and Credit
Losses—Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses adjusted for the
effect of securitization activities. See Adjusted Revenues,

Adjusted Revenues—Reflects the reclassification of net credit losses

on securitized receivables, where the Company continues to manage the
receivables after they have been securitized, from other income to the adjusted
provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses.

Annuity-A contract that pays a periodic benefit for the life of a person (the
annuitant), the lives of two or more persons or for a specified period of time.

Assets under Management —Assets held by Citigroup in a fiduciary
capacity for clients. These assets are not included on Citigroup’s balance sheet.

Cash Basis Loans—Loans on which interest payments are recorded
when collected from the borrower. These are loans in which the borrower has
fallen behind in interest payments, and are considered nonaccrual assets.

In situations where the lender reasonably expects that only a portion of the
principal and interest owed ultimately will be collected, payments are credited
directly to the outstanding principal.

Catastrophe—A severe loss, usually involving risks such as fire,
earthquake, windstorm, explosion and other similar events.

Catastrophe Loss—Loss and directly identified loss adjustment
expenses from catastrophes.

Catastrophe Reinsurance-A form of excess of loss property
reinsurance which, subject to a specified limit, indemnifies the ceding
company for the amount of loss in excess of a specified limit or indemnifies
the ceding company for the amount of loss in excess of a specified retention
with respect to an accumulation of losses resulting from a catastrophic event.

Claim —Request by an insured for indemnification by an insurance
company for loss incurred from an insured peril.

Clean Letter of Credit—An instrument issued by a bank on behalf

of its customer which gives the beneficiary the right to draw funds upon the
presentation of the letter of credit in accordance with its terms and conditions.
Generally, they are issued to guarantee the performance of the customer

or to act as a payment mechanism. Clean letters of credit, unlike commercial
letters of credit, are not related to the shipment of goods and do not require
the beneficiary to present shipping documents in order to receive payment
from the bank.

Combined Ratio—The sum of the loss and LAE ratio, the underwriting
expense ratio and, where applicable, the ratio of dividends to policyholders to
net premiums eamed. A combined ratio under 100% generally indicates an
underwriting profit. A combined ratio over 100% generally indicates an
underwriting loss.

Commercial Lines—The various kinds of property and casualty
insurance that are written for businesses.
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Core Income —Net income excluding restructuring-related items and
merger-related costs and cumulative effect of accounting changes or other
non-recurring items, as specified.

Credit Default Swap—An agreement between two parties whereby one
party pays the other a fixed coupon over a specified term. The other party
makes no payment unless a specified credit event such as a default occurs, at
which time a payment is made and the swap terminates.

Deferred Acquisition Costs—Primarily commissions and premium
taxes, which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new
insurance business that are deferred and amortized to achieve a matching of
revenues and expenses when reported in financial staterments prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

Deferred Tax Asset—An asset attributable to deductible temporary
differences and carryforwards. A deferred tax asset is measured using the
applicable enacted tax rate and provisions of the enacted tax law.

Deferred Tax Liability—A liability attributable to taxable temporary
differences. A deferred tax liability is measured using the applicable enacted
tax rate and provisions of the enacted tax law.

Derivative—A contract or agreernent whose value is derived from changes
in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securities or commodities or
financial or commodity indices.

Direct Written Premiums—The amounts charged by a primary
insurer to insureds in exchange for coverages provided in accordance with the
terms of an insurance contract.

Earned Premiums or Premiums Earned —That portion of
property-casualty premiums written that applies to the expired portion of the
policy term.

Federal Funds—Non-interest bearing deposits held by member banks at
the Federal Reserve Bank.

Foregone Interest—Interest on cash-basis loans that would have been
earned at the original contractual rate if the loans were on accrual status,

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)—
Accounting rules and conventions defining acceptable practices in preparing
financial staternents in the United States of America. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), an independent self-regulatory
organization, is the primary source of accounting rules.

Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE)-The expenses of settling
claims, including legal and other fees and the portion of general expenses
allocated to claim settlernent costs.

Loss and LAE Ratio—For insurarce company statutory accounting, it
is the ratio of incurred losses and loss adjustrent expenses to net earned
premiums. For GAAP, it is the ratio of incurred losses and loss adjustment
expenses reduced by an allocation of fee income to net earned premiums.




Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses—The sum of losses
incurred and loss adjustment expenses.

Managed Basis Reporting—Reporting, adjusted to reflect certain
effects of securitization activities, receivables held for securitization, and
receivables sold with secvicing retained. On a managed basis, these earnings
are reclassified and presented as if the receivables had neither been held for
securitization nor sold.

Managed Loans— Includes loans classified as Loans on the balance sheet
plus loans held for sale which are included in other assets and securitized
receivables, primarily credit card receivables.

Managed Net Credit Losses—Net credit losses adjusted for the effect
of credit card securitizations. See Adjusted Revenues.

Minority Interest—When a parent owns a majority (but less than 100%)
of a subsidiary’s stock, the Consolidated Financial Statements must reflect the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary. The minority interest as shown in the
Statement of Income is equal to the minority’s proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net income and, as included within other liabilities in the
Statemnent of Financial Position, is equal to the minority’s proportionate share
of the subsidiary's net assets.

Net Credit Losses—Gross credit losses (write-offs) less gross
credit recoveries.

Net Credit Loss Ratio—Annualized net credit losses divided by average
loans outstanding,

Net Written Premiums—Direct written premiums plus assumed
reinsurance premiums, less premiums ceded to reinsurers.

Personal Lines—Types of property and casualty insurance written for
individuals or families, rather than for businesses.

Pool—An organization of insurers or reinsurers through which particular
types of risks are underwritten with premiums, losses and expenses being
shared in agreed-upon percentages.

Premiums—The amount charged during the year on policies and
contracts issued, renewed or reinsured by an insurance company,

Property Insurance - [nsurance that provides coverage to a person with
an insurable interest in tangible property for that person’s property loss,
damage or loss of use.

Reinsurance —A transaction in which a reinsurer (assuming enterprise),
for a consideration (premizm), assumes all or part of a risk undertaken
originally by another insurer (ceding enterprise).

Retention—The amount of exposure an insurarce company retains on
any one risk or group of risks.

Return on Assets—Annualized income (core or net) divided by
average assets.

Return on Common Equity—Annualized income (core or net) less
preferred stock dividends, divided by average common equity.

Risk Adjusted Revenue—Adjusted revenues less managed net
credit losses.

Risk Adjusted Margin-Risk adjusted revenue as a percent of average
managed loans.

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell
(Reverse Repo Agreements)—An agreement between a seller and a
buyer, generally of government or agency securities, whereby the buyer agrees
to purchase the securities, and the seller agrees to repurchase them at an
agreed upon price at a future date.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
(Repurchase Agreements)—An agreement between a seller and a
buyer, generally of government or agency securities, whereby the seller agrees
to repurchase the securities at an agreed upon price at a future date.

Standby Letter of Credit—An obligation issued by a bank on behalf of
a bank customer to a third party where the bank promises to pay the third
party in the event of some defined failure by the bank’s customer, usually, but
not always, a failure to pay.

Statutory Surplus - As determined under Statutory Accounting
Practices, the amount remaining after all liabilities, including loss reserves,
are subtracted from all admitted assets. Admitted assets are assets of an
insurer prescribed or permitted by a state to be recognized on the statutory
balance sheet. Statutory surplus is also referred to as “surplus” or “surplus as
regards policyholders” for statutory accounting purposes.

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital—Tier 1 capital includes common
stockholders’ equity (excluding certain components of other comprehensive
income), qualifying perpetual preferred stock, mandatorily redeemable
securities of subsidiary trusts, and minority interests that are held by others,
less certain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital includes, among other iterms,
perpetual preferred stock to the extent it does not qualify for Tier 1,
qualifying senior and subordinated debt and subordinated capital notes,
limited life preferred stock and the allowance for credit losses, subject to
certain limitations.

Unearned Compensation—The unamortized portion of a grant to
emplovees of restricted stock measured at the market value on the date of
grant, Unearned compensation is displaved as a reduction of stockholders’
equity on the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position.

Unfunded Commitments—Legally binding agreements to provide
financing at a future date.




REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The management of Citigroup is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements and other financial information
contained in this annual report. The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles appropriate in the circumstances. Where amounts must be based
on estimates and judgments, they represent the best estimates and judgments
of management. The financial information appearing throughout this
annual report is consistent with that in the financial statements.

The management of Citigroup is also responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. Management establishes an
environment that fosters strong controls, and it designs business processes to
identify and respond to risk. Management maintains a comprehensive system
of controls intended to ensure that transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization, assets are safeguarded, and financial
records are reliable. Management also takes steps to see that information and
communication flows are effective and to monitor performance, including
performance of internal control procedures.

Citigroup's accounting policies and internal control are under the general
oversight of the Board of Directors, acting through the Audit Committee of the
Board. The Committee is composed entirely of directors whe are not officers or
employees of Citigroup. The Committee reviews reports by internal audit
covering its extensive program of audit and risk reviews worldwide. In
addition, KPMG LLP, independent auditors, are engaged to audit Citigroup’s
financial statements.

KPMG LLP obtains and maintains an understanding of Citigroup’s
internal control and procedures for financial reporting and conducts such
tests and other auditing procedures as it considers necessary in the
circumstances to express the opinion in its report that follows. KPMG LLP has
full access to the Audit Committee, with no members of management present,
to discuss its audit and its findings as to the integrity of Citigroup’s financial
reporting and the effectiveness of internal control.

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the
effectiveness of any system of internal control, and accordingly, even effective
internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation. However, management believes that
Citigroup maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2001.

P

Todd S. Thormson
Chief Financial Officer

Sanford I. Weill
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Citigroup Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position of Citigroup Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on 4 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Citigroup Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the vears in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the
Company changed its methods of accounting for derivative instruments and
hedging activities, accounting for interest income and impairment on
purchased and retained beneficial interests in securitized financial assets,
and accounting for goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business
combinations consummated after June 30, 2001. Also, as discussed in Note 1
to the consolidated financial staternents, in 1999 the Company changed its
methods of accounting for insurance-related assessments, accounting for
insurance and reinsurance contracts that do not transfer insurance risk, and
accounting for the costs of start-up activities.

KPMme LIP

New York, New York
January 17, 2002




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

In mitiions of doflars, except per share amounts

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries
Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Revenues

Loan interest, including fees

Other interest and dividends

Insurance premiums

Commissions and fees

Principal transactions

Asset management and administration fees
Realized gains from sales of investments
Other income

$ 39616 $ 37,377 $33,018
26,949 27,582 2197
13,460 12,429 11,504
15,944 16,363 13,229

5,544 5,981 5,160
5,389 5,338 4,164

578 806 541
4,542 5,970 4,809

Total revenues
Interest expense

112,022 111,826 94,396
31,965 36,638 28,674

Total revenues, net of interest expense

80,057 75,188 65,722

Benefits, claims and credit losses
Policyholder benefits and claims
Provision for credit losses

11,759 10,147 9,120
6,800 5,339 4,760

Total benefits, claims and credit losses

18,559 15,486 13,880

Operating expenses

Non-insurance compensation and benefits
insurance underwriting, acquisition, and operating
Restructuring- and merger-refated items

Other operating expenses

19,448 18,633 16,169
3,921 3.643 3,765
458 758 (53)
15,773 15,524 13,810

Total operating expenses

39,601 38,559 33,691

Income hefore income taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect of accounting changes

21,897 21,143 18,151

Provision for income taxes 7,526 7,525 8,530
Minority interest, net of income taxes 87 99 251

Income befare cumulative effect of accounting changes 14,284 13,519 11,370
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (158) - (127

Netincome

$ 14126 $ 13519 $11,243

Basic earnings per share
Incame before cumulative effect of accounting changes
Cumuiative effect of accounting changes

$ 28 § 2609 $ 226
(0.03) — 0.03)

Net income

$ 279 § 269 $ 223

Weighted average common shares outstanding

5,031.7 4,977.0 4,979.2

Diluted earnings per share
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

$ 275 § 262 $§ 219
(0.03) — {0.02)

Netincome

$ 272 § 282 $ 217

Adjusted weighted average common shares outstanding

5,147.0 51222 5127.8

See Notes to the Consofidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 31,
In millions of doliars 2001 2000
Assels
Cash and due from banks (including segregated cash and other deposits) $ 18515 § 14,621
Deposits at interest with banks 19,216 16,164
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 134,809 105,877
Brokerage receivables 35,155 25,696
Trading account assets (including $36,351 and $30,502 pledged to creditors at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively) 144,904 132,513
Investments (including $15,475 and $3,354 pledged to creditors at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively) 160,837 120,122
Loans, net of unearned income
Consumer 244,159 228,879
Commercial 147,774 138,143
Loans, net of unearned income 391,933 367,022
Allowance for credit Josses {(10,088) (8,981)
Total loans, net 381,845 358,061
Reinsurance recoverables 12,373 10,716
Separate and variable accounts 25,569 24,947
Other asssts 118,227 93,493
Total assets $1,051,450  $902,210
Liahilities
Non-interest-bearing deposits in U.S. offices $ 23,054 $ 21,694
Interest-bearing deposits in U.S. offices 110,388 58,913
Non-interest-bearing deposits in offices outside the U.S. 18,779 13,811
Interest-bearing deposits in offices outside the U.S. 222,304 206,168
Total deposits 374,525 300,586
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or soid under agreements to repurchase 153,511 110,625
Brokerage payables 32,891 15,882
Trading account liabilities 80,543 85,107
Contractholder funds and separate and variable accounts 48,932 44,884
Insurance poficy and claims reserves 49,294 44,666
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings 14,804 18,227
Short-term borrowings 24,461 51,675
Long-term debt 121,631 111,778
Other liabilities 62,486 47,654
Citigroup or subsidiary obfigated mandatorily redeemable securities of ‘
subsidiary trusts holding solely junior subordinated debt securities of —Parent 4,850 2,300
—Subsidiary 2,275 2,620
Total liabilities 970,203 836,004
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock ($1.00 par value; authorized shares: 30 million), at aggregate liquidation value 1,525 1,745
Common stock ($.01 par value; authorized shares: 15 billion),
issued shares: 2001 —5,477,416,254 shares and 2000 —5,351,143,583 shares 55 54
Additional paid-in capital 23,196 16,504
Retained earnings 69,803 58,862
Treasury stock, at cost: 2001 — 328,727,790 shares and 2000—328,921,189 shares (11,099) (10,213
Accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources (844) 123
Unearned compensation . (1,389) (869)
Total stockholders’ equity 81,247 66,206
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,051,450  $902,210

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year ended December 31,

Amounts Shares
in millions of doliars, except shares in thousands 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Preferred stock at aggregate liguidation value
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,745 $ 1895 $ 2274 6,233 6,831 8,327
Redemption or retirement of preferred stock (250) (150) (379) {500) (598) (1,496)
Other 30 — — 117 — —
Balance, end of year 1,525 1,745 1,895 5,850 6,233 6,831
Common stock and additional paid-in capital
Balance, beginning of year 16,558 15,361 14210 5,351,144 5350,977 5,338,223
Employee benefit plans 228 1,119 1,036 - — 381
Canversion of redeemable preferred stock to common stock - - 140 - - 12,489
Other@ 6,465 78 (25) 126,272 167 (116)
Balance, end of year 23,251 16,558 15,361 5,477,416  5351,144 5,350,977
Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of year 58,862 47,997 38,893
Net income 14,126 13,519 11,243
Common dividends (3,075) (2,535) (1,990)
Preferred dividends (110) (119) (149)
Balance, end of year 69,803 58,862 47,997
Treasury stock, at cost
Balance, beginning of year (10,213) (7,662) (4,829) (328,922) (326,918)  (288,935)
issuance of shares pursuant to employee benefit plans 1,980 1,465 1,116 59,681 83,601 78,469
Treasury stock acquired (3,045) (4,066) (3,954) (64,184) (87,149)  (116,697)
Other 179 50 5 4,697 1,544 245
Balance, end of year {11,099) (10,213) (7662) (328,728)  (328,922)  (326,918)
Accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources
Balance, beginning of year 123 1,155 984
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of taxi® 118 — —
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investment securities, net of tax (222) 674) 214
Net change for cash flow hedges, net of tax 17 — —
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (1,034) (358) (43)
Balance, end of year (848) 123 1,155
Unearned compensation
Balance, beginning of year (869) (456) (497)
Net issuance of restricted stock {1,133) {1,055) (380)
Restricted stock amortization 613 642 421
Balance, end of year (1,389) (869) (456)
Total common stockholders’ equity and commen shares outstanding 79,722 64,461 56,395 5,148,688 5,022,222 5,024,059
Total stockholders’ equity $ 81,247 $ 66,206 $58,290
Summary of changes in equity from nonowner sources
Net income $14,126  $13,519 $11,243
Other changes in equity from nonowner sources, net of tax (967) (1,032) 171
Total changes in equity from nonowner sources $13,159 $12,487 $11,414

(1) Represents shares previously held by affiliates that have subsequently been traded on the open market to third parties.
(2) In 2001, primarily includes $6.5 billion for the issuance of shares to effect the Banamex acquisition.
(3) Refers to the adoption of SFAS 133 and the adoption of EITF 99-20 in 2001, resulting in increases to equity from nonowner sources of $25 million and $93 million, respectively.

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

I mitlions of dollars

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries
Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and value of insurance in force
Additions to deferred policy acquisition costs
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred tax provision
Provision for credit losses
Change in trading account assets
Change in trading account liabilities
Change in Federal funds sold and securities barrowed or purchased under agreements to resell
Change in Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase
Change in brokerage receivables net of brokerage payables

$ 14126 $ 13519 $ 11,243

2,062 1,676 1,613
(2,592) (2,154) (1,961)
2,417 2,648 2,226
1,014 1,537 598
6,800 5,339 4,760

(12,391) (25452 9,928
{4,564) (5,393) (3,848)
(28,932) 8,778  (17,824)
39,834 18,034 11,566
7,550 (1,033) (4,926)

Change in insurance policy and claims reserves 4,628 824 405
Net gains on sales of investments (578) (8086) (541)
Venture capital activity 888 (1,044) (863)
Restructuring-related items and merger-related costs 458 759 (53)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax 158 — 127
Other, net (4,300) (12,559) (1,227)
Total adjustments 12,452 (10,846) (20)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,578 2,673 11,223
Cash flows from investing activities
Change in deposits at interest with banks (3,052) (3,898) (573)

Change in foans

Proceeds from sales of loans

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales of investments

Proceeds from maturities of investments

Other investments, primarily short-term, net

Capital expenditures on premises and eguipment

Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment, subsidiaries and affiliates, and repossessed assets
Business acquisitions

(34,787) (82,985  (120,970)
26,470 32,530 94,677
(453,504)  (103,461)  (02,495)
403,078 67,561 49,678
31,867 34,774 35,525
(642) (3,086) 2,677
(1,774) (2,249) (1,750)
1,802 1,232 3,437
(7,067) (8,843) (6,321)

Net cash used in investing activities

(37,609) (68375  (36,115)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Issuance of common stock

Issuance of mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable securities of parent trusts
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts
Redemption of preferred stock, net

Treasury stock acquired

Stock tendered for payment of withholding taxes

Issuance of long-term debt

Payments and redemptions of long-term debt

Change in deposits

Change in short-term borrowings including investment banking and brokerage borrowings
Contractholder fund deposits

Contracthoider fund withdrawals

(3,185) (2,654) (2,139)

875 958 758
- — 800
2,550 - -
(345) — —
(220) (150) (388)
(3,045) (4,066) (3,954)
{506) (593) (496)

43,735 43,527 18,537
(34,795)  (22330) (18,835
39,398 39,013 32,160
(32,001) 9,851 (580) -
8,363 6,077 5,933
(5,486) (4,758) (5,028)

Net cash provided by financing activities

15,248 64,875 26,568

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and due from banks

(323) (630) (98)

Change in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period

3,894 (1,357} 1,578
14,621 15,978 14,400

Cash and due from banks at end of period

$ 18515 § 14621 § 15978

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for income taxes

Cash paid during the period for interest

Non-cash investing activities —transfers to repossessed assets

Non-cash effects of accounting for the conversion of investments in Nikko Securities Co., Ltd.

$§ 2411 § 5367 § 4314
32,831 34924 27,502
445 820 862

- 702 —

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Citigroup and its subsidiaries (the Company).
Twenty-to-fifty percent-owned affiliates, other than investments of designated
venture capital subsidiaries, are accounted for under the equity method, and
the pro rata share of their income (loss) is included in other income. Income
from investments in less than twenty percent-owned companies is generally
recognized when dividends are received. Gains and losses on disposition of
branches, subsidiaries, affiliates, and other investments and charges for
management’s estimate of impairment in their value that is other than
temporary, such that recoverv of the carrving amount is deemed unlikely, are
included in other incorne. On July 1, 2001 the Company adopted the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
(SFAS 141) and certain provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” (SFAS 142) as required for goodwill and intangible assets
resulting from business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001.
Goodwill related to purchase acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001 is
amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life through the
end of the year, while goodwill related to purchase acquisitions completed
after June 30, 2001, principally Banamex and EAB (as described in Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements), is not amortized. On January 1,
2002, Citigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 under which
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives will no
longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual impairment tests. See
Future Application of Accounting Standards in Note I to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Other intangible assets are amortized over their
estimated useful lives, subject to periodic review for impairment that is other
than temporary. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 141 and SFAS 142, if it was
determined that enterprise level goodwill was unlikely to be recovered,
impairment was measured on a discounted cash-flow basis. The Company
recognizes 4 gain or loss in the Consolidated Staternent of Income when a
subsidiary issues its own stock to a third party at a price higher or lower than
the Company’s proportionate carrying amount.

Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation.

Foreign currency translation. Assets and liabilities denominated in
non-U.S. dollar currencies are translated into U.S. dollar equivalents using
year-end spot foreign exchange rates. Revenues and expenses are translated
monthly at amounts which approximate weighted average exchange rates,
with resulting gains and losses included in income. The effects of translating
operations with a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included
in stockholders’ equity along with related hedge and tax effects. The effects of

translating operations with the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, including

those in highly inflationary environments, are included in other income along

with related hedge effects. Hedges of foreign currency exposures include forward

currency contracts and designated issues of non-U.S. dollar debt.

Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries

Use of estimates. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash flows. Cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in
cash and due from banks. Cash flows from risk management activities are
classified in the same category as the related assets and liabilities.

Investments. Investments include fixed maturity and equity securities.
Fixed maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks, as well
as certain loan-backed and structured securities subject to prepayment risk.
Equity securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks.
Fixed maturities classified as “held to maturity” represent securities that the
Company has both the ability and the intent to hold until maturity and are
carried at amortized cost. Fixed maturity securities classified as “available-
for-sale” and marketable equity securities are carried at fair values, based
primarily on quoted market prices or if quoted market prices are not
available, discounted expected cash flows using market rates commensurate
with the credit quality and maturity of the investment, with unrealized gains
and losses and related hedge effects reported in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, net of applicable income taxes. Declines in fair value
that are determined to be other than temporary are charged to eamnings.
Accrual of income is suspended on fixed maturities that are in default, or on
which it is likely that future interest payments will not be made as scheduled.
Fixed maturities subject to prepayment risk are accounted for using the
retrospective method, where the principal amortization and effective yield are
recalculated each period based on actual historical and projected future cash
flows. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are included in
earnings on a specific identified cost bass.

Citigroup’s venture capital subsidiaries include subsidiaries registered as
Small Business Investment Companies and other subsidiaries that engage
exclusively in venture capital activities, Venture capital investments are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in other income.
The fair values of publicly-traded securities held by these subsidiaries are
generally based upon quoted market prices. In certain situations, including
thinly-traded securities, large-block holdings, restricted shares or other
special situations, the quoted market price is adjusted to produce an estimate
of the attainable fair value for the securities. For securities held by these
subsidiaries that are not publicly traded, estimates of fair value are made
based upon review of the investee’s financial results, condition, and prospects,
together with comparisons to similar companies for which quoted market
prices are available.




Securities borrowed and securities loaned are recorded at

the amount of cash advanced or received. With respect to securities loaned,
the Company receives cash collateral in an amount in excess of the market
value of securities loaned. The Company monitors the market value of
securities borrowed and loaned on a daily basis with additional collateral
obtained as necessary. Interest received or paid is recorded in interest income
or interest expense.

Repurchase and resale agreements are treated as collateralized
financing transactions and are carried at the amounts at which the securities
will be subsequently reacquired or resold, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements. The Company’s policy is to take
possession of securities purchased under agreements to resell. The market
value of securities to be repurchased and resold is monitored, and additional
collateral is obtained where appropriate to protect against credit exposure.

Trading account assets and liabilities include securities,
commodities and derivatives and are recorded at either market value or, when
market prices are not readily available, fair value, which is determined under
an alternative approach, such as matrix or model pricing. Obligations to
deliver securities sold but not yet purchased are also valued at market and
included in trading account liabilities. The determination of market or fair
value considers various factors, including: closing exchange or over-the-
counter market price quotations; time value and volatility factors underlying
options, warrants and derivatives; price activity for equivalent or synthetic
instruments; counterparty credit quality; the potential impact on market prices
or fair value of liquidating the Company’s positions in an orderly manner over
a reasonable period of time under current market conditions; and derivatives
transaction maintenance costs during that period. Interest expense on trading
account liabilities is reported as a reduction of interest revenues.

Commodities include physical quantities of commodities involving future
settlement or delivery, and related gains or losses are reported as principal
transactions.

Derivatives used for trading purposes include interest rate, currency, equity,
credit, and commodity swap agreements, options, caps and floors, warrants,
and financial and commodity futures and forward contracts. The fair
value of derivatives is determined based upon liquid market prices evidenced
by exchange traded prices, broker-dealer quotations or prices of other
transactions with similarly rated counterparties. The fair value includes an
adjustment for individual counterparty credit risk and other adjustments, as
appropriate, to reflect liquidity and ongoing servicing costs, The fair values
(unrealized gains and losses) associated with derivatives are reported net by
counterparty, provided a legally enforceable master netting agreement exists,
and are netted across products and against cash collateral when such
provisions are stated in the master netting agreement. Derivatives in a net
receivable position, as well as options owned and warrants held, are reported
as trading account assets. Similarly, derivatives in a net payable position, as
well as options written and warrants issued, are reported as trading account

85

liabilities. Revenues generated from derivative instruments used for trading
purposes are reported as principal transactions and include realized gains
and losses as well as unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in
the market or fair value of such instruments.

Commissions, underwriting and principal transactions
revenues and related expenses are recognized in income on a trade date basis.

Consumer loans includes loans managed by the Global Consurmer
business, The Citigroup Private Bank and consumer loans issued by Banamex
in Mexico. Consumer loans are generally written off not later than a
predetermined number of days past due primarily on a contractual basis, or
earlier in the event of bankruptcy. The number of days {s set at an appropriate
level by loan product and by country. The policy for suspending accruals of
interest on consumer loans varies depending on the terms, security and loan
loss experience characteristics of each product, and in consideration of write-
off criteria in place.

Commercial loans represent loans managed by Global Corporate and
commercial loans issued by Banamex in Mexico. Commercial foans are
identified as impaired and placed on a cash (nonaccrual) basis when it is
determined that the payment of interest or principal is doubtful of collection,
or when interest or principal is past due for 90 days or more, except when the
loan is well secured and in the process of collection. Any interest accrued is
reversed and charged against current earnings, and interest is thereafter
included in earnings only to the extent actually received in cash. When there
is doubt regarding the ultimate collectibility of principal, all cash receipts are
thereafter applied to reduce the recorded investment in the loan. Impaired
commercial loans are written down to the extent that principal is judged to be
uncollectible. Impaired collateral-dependent loans where repayment is
expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral and there are no
other available and reliable sources of repayment are written down to the
lower of cost or collateral value. Cash-basis loans are returned to an accrual
status when all contractual principal and interest amounts are reasonably
assured of repayment and there is a sustained period of repayment
performance in accordance with the contractual terms.

Lease financing transactions. Loans include the Company's share of
aggregate rentals on lease financing transactions and residual values net of
related unearned income. Lease financing transactions substantially represent
direct financing leases and also include leveraged leases. Unearned income is
amortized under a method which results in an approximate level rate of return
when related to the unrecovered lease investment. Gains and losses from sales
of residual values of leased equipment are included in other income.




Securitizations primarily include sales of credit card receivables,
mortgages and home equity loans.

Revenue on securitized credit card receivables is recorded monthly as
earned over the term of each securitization transaction, which may range
up to 12 years. The revolving nature of the receivables sold and the monthly
recognition of revenue result in a pattern of recognition that is similar to the
pattern that would be experienced if the receivables had not been sold.

Net revenue on securitized credit card receivables is collected over the life
of each sale transaction. The net revenue is based upon the sum of finance
charges and fees received from cardholders and interchange revenue earned
on cardholder transactions, less the sum of the yield paid to investors, credit
losses, transaction costs, and a contractual servicing fee, which is also
retained by certain Citigroup subsidiaries as servicers.

The Company retains a seller’s interest in the credit card receivables
transferred to the trust, which is not in securitized form. Accordingly, the
seller’s interest is carried on a historical cost basis and classified as consumer
loans. Retained interests in securitized mortgage loans are classified as
investments.

Servicing rights retained in the securitization of mortgage and home
equity loans are measured by allocating the carrying value of the loans
between the assets sold and the interest retained, based on the relative fair
value at the date of the securitization. The fair market values are determined
using either financial models, quoted market prices or sales of similar assets.
Gain or loss on the sale of mortgage loans is recognized at the time of the
securitizations. Mortgage servicing assets are amortized over the expected life
of the loan and are evalvated periodically for impairment.

Loans held for sale. Credit card and other receivables and mortgage
loans originated for sale are classified as loans held for sale, which are
accounted for at the lower of cost or market value in other assets with net
credit losses charged to other income.

Allowance for credit losses represents management’s estimate of
probable losses inherent in the portfolio. Attribution of the allowance is
made for analytical purposes only, and the entire allowance is available to
absorb probable credit losses inherent in the portfolio including unfunded
commitments. Additions to the allowance are made by means of the
provision for credit losses. Credit losses are deducted from the allowance,
and subsequent recoveries are added. Securities received in exchange for
loan claims in debt restructurings are initially recorded at fair value, with
any gain or loss reflected as a recoverv or charge-off to the allowance, and
are subsequently accounted for as securities available-for-sale.
Larger-balance, non-homogenous exposures representing significant
individual credit exposures are evaluated based upon the borrower’s overall
financial condition, resources, and payment record; the prospects for support

from any financially responsible guarantors; and, if appropriate, the
realizable value of any collateral. The allowance for credit losses attributed
to these loans is established via a process which begins with estimates of
probable loss inherent in the portfolio based upon various statistical
analyses. These analvses consider historical and projected default rates

and loss severities; internal risk ratings; geographic, industry, and other
environmental factors; and mode! imprecision. Management also considers
overall portfolio indicators including trends in internally risk-rated
exposures, classified exposures, cash-basis loans, and historical and
forecasted write-offs; and a review of industry, geographic, and portfolio
concentrations, including current developments within those segments. In
addition, management considers the current business strategy and credit
process, including credit limit setting and compliance, credit approvals, loan
underwriting criteria, and loan workout procedures, Within the allowance for
credit [osses, a valuation allowance is maintained for larger-balance, non-
homogenous loans that have been individually determined to be impaired.
This estimate considers all available evidence including, as appropriate, the
present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
contractual effective rate, the secondary market value of the loan and the fair
value of collateral,

Each portfolio of smaller-balance, homogenous loans, including
consumer mortgage, installment, revolving credit and most other consumer
loans, is collectively evaluated for impairment. The allowance for credit losses
attributed to these loans is established via a process that begins with estimates
of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, based upon various statistical
analyses. These include migration analysis, in which historical delinguency
and credit loss experience is applied to the current aging of the portfolio,
together with analyses that reflect current trends and conditions.
Management also considers overall portfolio indicators including historical
credit losses, delinquent, non-performing and classified loans, and trends in
volumes and terms of loans; an evaluation of overall credit quality and the
credit process, including lending policies and procedures; consideration of
economic, geographical, product, and other environmental factors; and
model imprecision.

This evaluation includes an assessment of the ability of borrowers with
foreign currency obligations to obtain the foreign currency necessary for
orderly debt servicing,

Repossessed assets. Upon repossession, loans are adjusted, if
necessary, to the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral and
transferred to Repossessed Assets, which is reported in other assets net of 2
valuation allowance for selling costs and net declines in value as appropriate.




Risk management activities-derivatives used for
non-trading purposes. The Company manages its exposures to market
rate movernents outside of its trading activities by modifying the asset and
liability mix, either directly or through the use of derivative financial products
including interest rate swaps, futures, forwards, and purchased option
positions such as interest rate caps, floots, and collars as well as foreign
exchange contracts. These end-user derivatives are carried at fair value in
other assets or other [iabilities.

To qualify asa hedge, the hedge relationship is designated and formally
docurnented at inception detailing the particular risk management objective
and strategy for the hedge which includes the item and risk that is being
hedged, the derivative that is being used, as well as how effectiveness is being
assessed. A derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective
of offsetting either changes in fair value or cash flows for the risk being
hedged. The effectiveness of these hedging relationships is evaluated on a
retrospective and prospective basis using quantitative measures of correlation.
If 2 hedge relationship is found to be ineffective, it no longer qualifies as a
hedge and any excess gains or losses attributable to such ineffectiveness, as
well as subsequent changes in fair value, are recognized in other income.

The foregoing criteria are applied on a decentralized basis, consistent with
the level at which market risk is managed, but are subject to various limits
and controls. The underlying asset, liability, firm commitment or forecasted
transaction may be an individual item or a portfolio of similar items.

For fair value hedges, in which derivatives hedge the fair value of assets,
liabilities or firm commitments, changes in the fair value of derivatives are
reflected in other income, together with changes in the fair value of the
related hedged item. The net amount, representing hedge ineffectiveness, is
reflected in current eamnings. Citigroup’s fair value hedges are primarily the
hedges of fixed-rate long-term debt, loans and available-for-sale securities.

For cash flow hedges, in which derivatives hedge the variability of cash
flows related to floating rate assets, liabilities or forecasted transactions, the
accounting treatment depends on the effectiveness of the hedge. To the extent
these derivatives are effective in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash
flows, changes in the derivatives’ fair value will not be included in current
earnings but are reported as other changes in stockholders’ equity from
nonowner sources. These changes in fair value will be included in earnings of
future periods when earnings are also affected by the variability of the hedged
cash flows. To the extent these derivatives are not effective, changes in their
fair values are immediately included in other income. Citigroup’s cash flow
hedges primarily include hedges of floating rate credit card receivables and
loans, rollovers of commercial paper and foreign currency denominated
funding. Cash flow hedges also include hedges of certain forecasted
transactions up to a maximum tenor of 30 years, although a substantial
majority of the maturities is under five years.
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For net investment hedges, in which derivatives hedge the foreign currency
exposure of a net investment in 4 foreign operation, the accounting treatment
will similarly depend on the effectiveness of the hedge. The effective portion of
the change in fair value of the derivative, including any forward premium or
discount, is reflected in other changes in stockholders’ equity from nonowner
sources as part of the foreign currency translation adjustment.

Non-trading derivatives that are either hedging instruments that are
carried at fair value or do not qualify as hedges are also carried at fair value
with changes in value included either as an element of the yield or return on
the hedged item or in other income.

For those hedge relationships that are terminated, hedge designations that
are removed, or forecasted transactions that are no longer expected to occur,
the hedge accounting treatment described in the paragraphs above is no
longer applied. The end-user derivative is terminated or transferred to the
trading account. For fair value hedges, any changes to the hedged item
remain as part of the basis of the asset or liability and are ultimately reflected
as an element of the vield. For cash flow hedges, any changes in fair value of
the end-user derivative remain in other changes in stockholders’ equity from
nonowner sources and are included in earnings of future periods when
earnings are also affected by the variability of the hedged cash flow. If the
hedged relationship was discontinued or a forecasted transaction is not
expected to occur when scheduled, any changes in fair value of the end-user
derivative are immediately reflected in other income.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), on January 1, 2001 (see
Accounting Changes below), end-user derivatives designated in qualifying
hedges were accounted for consistent with the risk management strategy as
follows. Amounts payable and receivable on interest rate swaps and options
were accrued according to the contractual terms and included in the related
revenue and expense category as an element of the yield on the associated
instrument (including the amortization of option premiums). Amounts paid
or received over the life of futures contracts were deferred until the contract
is closed; accumulated deferred amounts on futures contracts and amounts
paid or received at settlement of forward contracts were accounted for as
elements of the carrying value of the associated instrument, affecting the
resulting yield. End-user contracts related to instruments carried at fair
value were also carried at fair value, with amounts payable and receivable
accounted for as an element of the vield on the associated instrument. When
related to securities available-for-sale, fair value adjustments were reported
in stockholders’ equity, net of tax.

If an end-user derivative contract was terminated, any resulting gain or
loss was deferred and amortized over the original term of the agreement
provided that the effectiveness criteria had been met. If the underlying
designated items were no longer held, or if an anticipated transaction was
no longer likely to occur, any previously unrecognized gain or loss on the
derivative contract was recognized in earnings and the contract was
accounted for at fair value with subsequent changes recognized in earnings.




Foreign exchange contracts which qualified as hedges of foreign currency
exposures, including net capital investments outside the U.S., were revalued at
the spot rate with any forward premium or discount recognized over the life
of the contract in interest revenue or interest expense. Gains and losses on
foreign exchange contracts which qualified as 4 hedge of a firm commitment
were deferred and recognized as part of the measurement of the related
transaction, unless deferral of a loss would have led to recognizing losses on
the transaction in later periods.

Insurance premiums from long-dﬁration contracts, principally life
insurance, are earned when due. Premiums from short-duration insurance
contracts are earned over the related contract period. Short-duration contracts
include primarily property and casualty, including estimated ultimate
premiums on retrospectively rated policies, and credit life and accident and
health policies.

Value of insurance in force, included in other assets, represents the
actuarially determined present value of anticipated profits to be realized from
life and accident and health business on insurance in force at the date of the
Company’s acquisition of is insurance subsidiaries using the same
assumptions that were used for computing related liabilities where
appropriate. The value of insurance in force acquired prior to December 31,
1993 is amortized over the premium paying periods in relation to anticipated
premiums. The value of insurance in force relating to the 1993 acquisition of
The Travelers Corporation was the actuarially determined present value of the
projected future profits discounted at interest rates ranging from 14% to 18%
for the business acquired. The value of insurance in force is amortized over
the contract period using current interest crediting rates to accrete interest
and using amortization methods based on the specified products. Traditional
life insurance is amortized over the period of anticipated premiums; universat
life in relation to estimated gross profits; and annuity contracts employing a
level yield method. The value of insurance in force is reviewed periodically for
recoverability to determine if any adjustment is required.

Deferred policy acquisition costs, included in other assets, for

the life insurance business represent the costs of acquiring new business,
principally commissions, certain underwriting and agency expenses and the
cost of issuing policies. Deferred policy acquisition costs for the traditional life
business are amortized over the premium-paying periods of the related
policies, in proportion to the ratio of the annual premium revenue to the total
anticipated premium revenue. Deferred policy acquisition costs of other
business lines are generally amortized over the life of the insurance contract
or at a constant rate based upon the present value of estimated gross profits
expected to be realized. For certain property and casualty lines, acquisition
costs (primarily commissions and premium taxes) have been deferred to the
extent recoverable from future earned premiums and are amortized ratably
over the terms of the related policies. Deferred policy acquisition costs are
reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future income, including
investment income, and, if not recoverable, are charged to expense. All other
acquisition expenses are charged to operations as incurred.

Separate and variable accounts primarily represent funds for
which investment income and investment gains and losses accrue directly to,
and investment risk is borne by, the contractholders. Each account has
specific investment objectives. The assets of each account are legally
segregated and are not subject to claims that arise out of any other business
of the Company. The assets of these accounts are generally carried at market
value. Amounts assessed to the contractholders for management services

are included in revenues. Deposits, net investment income and realized
investment gains and losses for these accounts are excluded from revenues,
and related liability increases are excluded from benefits and expenses.

Insurance policy and claims reserves represent liabilities for
future insurance policy benefits. Insurance reserves for traditional life
insurance, annuities, and accident and health policies have been computed
based upon mortality, morbidity, persistency and interest rate assumptions
(ranging from 2.5% to 8.1%) applicable to these coverages, including adverse
deviation. These assumptions consider Company experience and industry
standards and may be revised f it is determined that future experience will
differ substantially from that previously assumed. Property-casualty reserves
include (1) unearned premiums representing the unexpired portion of policy
premiums, and (2) estimated provisions for both reported and unreported
claims incurred and related expenses. The reserves are adjusted regularly
based on experience.

In determining insurance policy and claims reserves, the Company
performs a continuing review of its overall position, its reserving techniques
and its reinsurance. The reserves are also reviewed periodically by a qualified
actuary emploved by the Company. Reserves for property-casualty insurance
losses represent the estimated ultimate cost of all incurred claims and claim
adjustment expenses. Since the reserves are based on estimates, the ultimate
liability may be more or less than such reserves. The effects of changes in such
estimated reserves are included in the results of operations in the period in
which the estimates are changed. Such changes may be material to the results
of operations and could occur in a future period.

Contractholder funds represent receipts from the issuance of
universal life, pension investment and certain individual annuity contracts.
Such receipts are considered deposits on investment contracts that do

not have substantial mortality or morbidity risk. Account balances are
increased by deposits received and interest credited and are reduced by
withdrawals, mortality charges and administrative expenses charged to

the contractholders. Calculations of contractholder account balances for
investment contracts reflect lapse, withdrawal and interest rate assumptions
(ranging from 1.9% to 14.0%) based on contract provisions, the Cornpany's
experience and industry standards, Contractholder funds alse include other
funds that policyholders leave on deposit with the Company.




Employee benefits expense includes prior and current service costs
of pension and other postretirement benefit plans, which are accrued on a
current basis, contributions and unrestricted awards under other employee
plans, the amortization of restricted stock awards, and costs of other employee
benefits. There are no charges to earnings upon the grant or exercise of fixed
stock options or the subscription for or purchase of stock under stock
purchase agreements. Compensation expense related to performance-based
stock options granted in prior periods was recorded over the periods to the
vesting dates. Upon issuance of previously unissued shares under employee
plans, proceeds received in excess of par value are credited to additional paid-
in capital. Upon issuance of treasury shares, the difference between the
proceeds received and the average cost of treasury shares is recorded in
additional paid-in capital.

Income taxes. Deferred taxes are recorded for the future tax consequenices
of events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns,
based upon enacted tax laws and rates. Deferred tax assets are recognized
subject to management’s judgment that realization is more likely than not. The
Company and its wholly owned domestic non-life insurance subsidiaries file a
consolidated Federal income tax return. The major life insurance subsidiaries
are included in their own consolidated Federal income tax return. Assoctates
filed separate consolidated Federal income tax returns prior to the merger.

Earnings per common share is computed after recognition of
preferred stock dividend requirements. Basic earnings per share is computed
by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period, excluding
restricted stock. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised and has been computed after giving consideration to the weighted
average dilutive effect of the Company’s convertible securities, common stock
warrants, stock options and the shares issued under the Company’s Capital
Accumulation Plan and other restricted stock plans.

Accounting Changes

Adoption of EITF 99-20. During the second quarter of 2001, the
Company adopted Emerging Tssues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 99-20,
“Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained
Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets” (EITF 99-20). EITF 99-20
provides new guidance regarding income recognition and identification and
determination of impairment on certain asset-backed securities. The initial
adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment of $116 million after-tax,
recorded as a charge to earnings, and an increase of $93 miltion included in
other changes in stockholders’ equity from nonowner sources.

Derivatives and hedge accounting. On January 1, 2001, Citigroup
adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” These new rules changed the accounting treatment of derivative
contracts (including foreign exchange contracts) that are employed to
manage risk outside of Citigroup’s trading activities, as well as certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, SFAS 133 requires that all
derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. The treatment
of changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the character of the
transaction, including whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of 2
hedging relationship. The majority of Citigroup’s derivatives are entered into
for trading purposes and were not impacted by the adoption of SFAS 133. The
cumulative effect of adopting SFAS 133 at January 1, 2001 was an after-tax
charge of $42 million included in net income and an increase of $25 million
included in other changes in stockholders’ equity from nonowner sources.

Business combinations. Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted
the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and certain
provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” as required
for goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business combinations
consummated after June 30, 2001. The new rules require that all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the
purchase method. The nonamortization provisions of the new rules affecting
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are effective

for all purchase business combinations completed after June 30, 2001.

Insurance-related assessments. During the first quarter of 1999,
the Company adopted Statement of Position (“SOP™) 97-3, “Accounting by
Insurance and Other Enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments.” SOP
97-3 provides guidance for determining when 2n entity should recognize a
liability for guaranty-fund and other insurance-related assessments, how to
measure that liability, and when an asset may be recognized for the recovery
of such assessments through premium tax offsets or policy surcharges. The
initial adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment recorded as a charge to
earnings of $135 million after-tax and minority interest.

Deposit accounting. During the first quarter of 1999, the Company
adopted SOP 98-7, “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and
Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk.” SOP 98-7
provides guidance on how to account for insurance and reinsurance contracts
that do not transfer insurance risk and applies to all entities and all such
contracts, except for long-duration life and health insurance contracts.

The method used to account for such contracts is referred to as deposit
accounting, The initial adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment
recorded as a credit to earnings of $23 million after-tax and minority interest.

Start-up costs. During the first quarter of 1999, the Company adopted
SOP 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.” SOP 98-5 requires
costs of start-up activities and organization costs to be expensed as incurred.
The initial adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment recorded as a
charge to earnings of $15 million after-tax.




Future Application of Accounting Standards

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets

On January 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS 142,
when the rules became effective for calendar year companies. Under the new
rules, effective January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual
impairment tests. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives.

Based on current levels of goodwill and an evaluation of the Company’s
intangible assets, which determined that certain intangible assets should be
reclassified as goodwill and identified as other intangible assets that have
indefinite lives, the nonamortization provisions of the new standards will
reduce other expense by approximately $570 million and increase net income
by approximately $450 million in 2002.

During 2002, the Company will perform the required impairment tests of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1, 2002. It is not
expected that the adoption of the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 will have a
material effect on the financial staternents as 4 result of these impairment tests.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

In September 2000, FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a
replacernent of FASB Statement No. 125" (SFAS 140). In July 2001, FASB
issued Technical Bulletin No. 01-1, “Effective Date for Certain Financial
Institutions of Certain Provisions of Statement 140 Related to the Isolation
of Transferred Assets.”

Certain provisions of SFAS 140 require that the structure for transfers of
financial assets to certain securitization vehicles be modified to comply with
revised isolation guidance for institutions subject to receivership by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. These provisions are effective for
transfers taking place after December 31, 2001, with an additional transition
period ending no later than September 30, 2006 for transfers to certain master
trusts. It is not expected that these provisions will materially affect the
financial statements. SFAS 140 also provides revised guidance for an entity to
be considered a qualifying special purpose entity.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

On January 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144), when the rule
became effective for calendar year companies. SFAS 144 establishes additional
criteria as compared to existing generally accepted accounting principles

to determine when a long-lived asset is held for sale. It also broadens the
definition of “discontinued operations,” but does not allow for the accrual

of future operating losses, as was previously permitted.

The provisions of the new standard are generally to be applied
prospectively. The provisions of SFAS 144 will affect the timing of discontinued
operations treatment for the planned initial public offering and tax-free
distribution of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.

2. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

Planned Initial Public Offering and Tax-Free Distribution
of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.

Citigroup announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. (TPC), intends to sell 2 minority interest in TPC in an initial
public offering and Citigroup intends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such amount of the remainder of its interest in TPC so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TPC
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution.

The distribution is subject to various regulatory approvals as well as a
private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the distribution
will be tax-free to Citigroup and its stockholders. Citigroup has no obligation
to consurnmate the distribution, whether or not these conditions are satisfied.

Acquisition of Banamex

On August 6, 2001, Giticorp completed its acquisition of 99.86% of the issued
and outstanding ordinary shares of Grupo Financiero Banamex-Accival
(Banamex), a leading Mexican financial institution, for approximately
$12.5 billion in cash and Citigroup stock, Citicorp completed the acquisition
by settling transactions that were conducted on the Mexican Stock Exchange.
On September 24, 2001, Citicorp became the holder of 100% of the issued and
outstanding ordinary shares of Banamex following a share redemption by
Banamex. Banamex’s and Citicorp’s banking operations in Mexico have been
integrated and conduct business under the “Banamex” brand name.

Acquisition of EAB

On July 17, 2001, Citibank completed its acquisition of European American
Bank (EAB), a New York state-chartered bank, for 1.6 billion plus the
assumption of $350 million in EAB preferred stock.

Acquisition of Associates

On November 30, 2000, Citigroup Inc., completed its acquisition of Associates
First Capital Corporation (Associates). The acquisition was consummated
through a merger of a subsidiary of Citigroup with and into Associates (with
Associates as the surviving corporation) pursuant to which each share of
Associates common stock became a right to receive .7334 of a share of
Citigroup Inc. common stock (534.5 million shares). Subsequent to the
acquisition, Associates was contributed to and became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Citicorp and Citicorp issued a full and unconditional guarantee
of the outstanding long-term debt securities and commercial paper of
Associates. Associates’ debt securities and commercial paper will no longer be
separately rated. The acquisition was accounted for as a pooling of interests.

Acquisition of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.
Minority Interest

During April 2000, a subsidiary of the Company completed a cash tender offer
to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.
not previously owned.




3. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

Citigroup is a diversified bank-holding company whose businesses provide a
broad range of financial services to consumer and corporate custorners
around the world. The Company’s activities are conducted through Global
Consumer, Global Corporate, Global Tnvestment Management and Private
Banking, and Investment Activities. These segments reflect the characteristics
of its products and services and the clients to which those products or services
are delivered.

The Global Gonsumer segment includes z global, full-service consumer
franchise encompassing, among other things, branch and electronic
banking, consumer lending services, investment services, credit and charge
card services, and auto and homeowners insurance. The businesses included
in the Company’s Global Corporate segment provide corporations,
governments, institutions, and investors in over 100 countries and territories
with 2 broad range of financial products and services, including investment
advice, financial planning and retail brokerage services, banking and
financial services, and commercial insurance products. The Global

The following table presents certain information regarding these segments:

Investment Management and Private Banking segment offers a broad range
of life insurance, annuity and asset management products and services from
global investment centers around the world, including individual annuity,
group annuity, individual life insurance products, COLI products, mutual
funds, closed-end funds, managed accounts, unit investment trusts, variable
annuities, pension administration, and personalized wealth management
services distributed to institutional, high net worth, and retail clients. The
Investment Activities segment includes the Company's venture capital
activities, realized investment gains and losses from certain insurance-related
investments, results from certain proprietary investments and the results of
certain investments in countries that refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady
Plan or plans of a similar nature. Corporate/Other includes net corporate
treasury results, corporate staff and other corporate expenses, certain
intersegment eliminations, and the remainder of Internet-related
development activities not allocated to the individual businesses. The
accounting policies of these reportable segments are the same as those
disclosed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Total revenues, net Provisian for Identifiable
. of interest expense income taxes Net income (loss) @4 assets at year-end
In millions of doflars, except

igentifiable assets in billions 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Global Consumer $37,607 $32,939 $29,816 $4,023 $3,315 $2911 $7222 $580 § 4897 $ 357 $275 $235
Global Corporate 34,297 33,479 28,688 2,929 3,234 2,902 5,707 6,020 5,259 572 506 449

Global Investment Management
and Private Banking 7,553 7,145 6,099 817 786 702 1,528 1,434 1,221 99 93 83
Investment Activities 907 2,309 1,083 264 805 356 530 1,383 650 9 1 11
Corparate/Other (397) (744) 30 (507) (615) (341) 861) (1,178 (784) 14 17 18
Total $80,057 $75188 $85,722 $7,526 $7,525 $6,530 $14,126 $13519  $11,243 $1,051 $902 $796

(1) Includes total revenues, net of interest expense in the United States of $55.4 biltion, $53.3 bitlion, and $47.5 billion in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Inciudes total revenues, net of interest expense in Mexico of
$2.1 billion, $603 million, and $531 miflion in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. There were no other individual foreign countries that were material to total revenues, net of interest expense.

(2) For 2001, Global Cansumer, Global Corporate, Globa! Investment Managament and Private Banking, and Corporate/Other results reflect after-tax restructuring-related charges (credits) of $144 miliion, $137 million, $7
million, and ($3) million, respectively. For 2000, Global Consumer, Global Corporate, Global Investment Management and Private Banking, and Corparate/Other results reflect after-tax restructuring-related charges and
merger-related costs of $144 million, $146 million, $11 million, and $320 million, respectively. The 2000 results also reflect after-tax Housing Finance unit charges in Carporate/Other, For 1999, Global Consumer, Global
Carporate, Global Investment Management and Private Banking, and Corporate/Other results reflect after-tax restructuring-retated charges (credits) of $78 million, ($121) million, (52) million, and $20 million, respectively.

(3) Includes provision for benefits, claims and credit osses in the Global Consumer results of $9.4 billion, $7.9 bil

jon, and $7.3 billion, in the Global Corporate results of $6.5 billion, $5.2 billion, and $4.3 billion, in the Global

Investment Management and Private Banking results of $2.6 billion, $2.4 billion, and $2.0 billion, and in the Corporate/ Other results of $1 million, $36 million, and $208 miltion for 2001, 2000, and 1939, respectively.

Includes provision for credit losses in the Investment Activities results of $7 million in 2000.
(4) For 2001, Corporate/Other includes after-tax charges of $42 millian and $116 million for the cumulative effect

of accounting changes related to the implementation of SFAS 133 and EITF 99-20, respectively. For 1933,

Carporate/Other includes after-tax charges (credits) of $135 million, ($23) million, and $15 million for the cumulative effect of accounting changes related to the implementation of SOP 97-3, SOP 98-7, and SOP 98-5,

respectively. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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4. INVESTMENTS

In millions of doliars at year-end 2001 2000
Fixed maturities, primarily available for sale at fair value $139,344  § 99,484
Equity securities, primarily at fair value 7,577 6,652
Venture capital, at fair value 4,316 5,204
Shart-term and other 9,600 8,782

$160,837  $120,122

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, were as follows:

2001 2000
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
in mitlions of dollars at year-end cost gains losses value cost gains losses value
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity,

principally mortgage-backed securities $§ 2 $ - $ — $§ 26 5 28 $§ - $ — § 28
Fixed maturity securities available for sale
Mortgage-backed securities, principally obligations of

U.S. Federal agencies $ 28,614 $ 438 $ 250 $ 28,802 $16,196 $ 329 $ 211 $16,314
U.S. Treasury and Federal agencies 6,136 62 85 6,113 5,680 171 15 5,836
State and municipal 16,712 441 152 17,001 15,314 730 141 15,803
Foreign government@ 44,942 266 79 45,129 25,934 148 154 25,928
U.S. corporate 30,097 843 591 30,349 25,143 589 547 25,185
Other debt securities 11,516 554 146 11,924 9,633 763 106 10,290

138,017 2,604 1,303 139,318 97,800 2,730 1,174 99,456
Total fixed maturities $138,043 $2,604 $1,303  $139,344 $97,928 $2,730 $1,174 $99,484
Equity securities © $ 7401 $ 400 $ 224 $ 75T $ 6,757 $ 340 $ 445 $ 6,652
(1) Recorded at amortized cost.
(2) Increase primarily relates to inclusion of Banamex portfolio of Mexican government securities.
(3) Includes non-marketable equity securities carried at cost, which are reported in both the amortized cost and fair value columns.

The accompanying table shows components of interest and dividends on The following table presents the amortized cost, fair value, and average
investments, realized gains and losses from sales of investments, and net yield on amortized cost of fixed maturity securities by contractual maturity
gains on investments held by venture capital subsidiaries: dates as of December 31, 2001:

- Amortized Fair
In milions of doflars 2001 2000 1999 In mitfions of doflars cost value Yield
Taxable interest $5,687 $6,743 $6.916 .5, Treasury and Federal agencies)

Intgrest exempt from U.S. Federal Due within 1 year $ 1422 $ 1,426 2819
_income tax : 827 762 688 After 1 but within 5 years 2,038 2,086 4.42
Dividends 263 393 306 after 5 but within 10 years 1,651 1,679 5.69
Gross realized Investment gaing $2,070 $2,008 $1,073  After 10years @ 24,255 24,266 6.36
Gross realized investment losses( 1,492 1,202 732 Total $29 366 $20 457 6.02%
Net realized and unrealized -
) ‘ State and municipal
perture Cfpc'ita(‘j_gams $308 5180 8 818 b yinind year $ 128§ 130 5.47%
W'GC nelude od 782 750 ggg  Aftert butuitiin§ years 995 1,035 5.43
er 0ss ””’ea!;ze ; lga'”s 613 o cgy  After5butwitin 10 years 3,431 3,519 5.07
[085 Unreazed osses After 10 years @ 12,158 12,317 5.44
{1} Includes net realized gains related to insurance subsidiaries” sate of OREQ and mortgage loans of
$8 million, $74 million, and $215 miliien in 2001, 2000, and 1939, respectively. Totat $16.712 $17.001 5.36%
All other®
Due within 1 year $18,628 $18,775 5.78%
After 1 but within 5 years ‘ 36,529 37,118 717
After 5 but within 10 years 17,669 17,847 7.33
After 10 years @ 19,139 19,146 8.27
Total $91,965 $92,886 7.15%

(1) Includes mortgage-backed securities of U.S. Federal agencies.

(2) Investments with no stated maturities are included as contractual maturities of greater than 10 years.
Actual maturities may differ due to call or prepayment rights.

(3} Includes foreign government, U.S. corporate, mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. corporations,
and other debt securities. Yields reflect the impact of local interest rates prevaiting in countries outside
the U.S.
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5. FEDERAL FUNDS, SECURITIES BORROWED, LOANED,
AND SUBJECT TO REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements
to resell, at their respective carrying values, consisted of the following at
Decemnber 31:

In millions of doliars 2001 2000
Federal funds sold and resale agreements $ 89472 3 69,087
Deposits paid for securities borrowed 45,337 36,790

$134,809  $105,877

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to
repurchase, a: their respective carrying values, consisted of the following at
December 31

in millions of dollars 2001 2000
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements $137,649 $ 94,397
Deposits received for securities loaned 15,862 16,228

$153,511  $110,625

The resale and repurchase agreements represent collateralized financing
transactions used to generate net interest income and facilitate trading
activity. These instruments are collateralized principally by government and
government agency securities and generally have terms ranging from
overnight to up to a year. It is the Company’s policy to take possession of the
underlying collateral, monitor its market value relative to the amounts due
under the agreements, and, when necessary, require prompt transfer of
additional cotlateral or reduction in the balance in order to maintain
contractual margin protection. In the event of counterparty default, the
financing agreement provides the Company with the right to liquidate the
collateral held. Resale agreements and repurchase agreements are reported
net by counterparty, when applicable, pursuant to FASB Interpretation 41,
“Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Repurchase and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements” (FIN 41). Excluding the impact of FIN 41, resale
agreements totaled §141.2 billion and $118.9 billion at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Deposits paid for securities borrowed (securities borrowed) and deposits
received for securities loaned (securities loaned) are recorded at the amount
of cash advanced or received and are collateralized principally by government
and government agency securities, corporate debt and equity securities.
Securities borrowed transactions require the Company to deposit cash with the
lender. With respect to securities loaned, the Company receives cash collateral
in an amount generally in excess of the market value of securities loaned. The
Company monitors the market value of securities borrowed and securities
loaned daily, and additional collateral is obtained as necessary. Securities
borrowed and securities loaned are reported net by counterparty, when
applicable, pursuant to FAS Interpretation 39, “Offsetting of Amounts Related
to Certain Contracts” (FIN 39).

6. BROKERAGE RECEIVABLES AND
BROKERAGE PAYABLES

The Company has receivables and payables for financial instruments
purchased from and sold to brokers and dealers and customers. The Company
is exposed to risk of loss from the inability of brokers and dealers or customers
to pay for purchases or to deliver the financial instrument sold, in which case
the Company would have to sell or purchase the financial instruments at

prevailing market prices. Credit risk is reduced to the extent that an exchange
or clearing organization acts as a counterparty to the transaction.

The Company seeks to protect itself from the risks associated with
custorner activities by requiring customers to maintain margin collateral in
compliance with regulatory and internal guidelines. Margin levels are
monitored daily, and customers deposit additional collateral as required.
Where customers cannot meet collateral requirements, the Company will
liquidate sufficient underlying financial instruments to bring the custormer
into compliance with the required margin level.

Exposure to credit risk is impacted by market volatility, which may
impair the ability of clients to satisfy their obligations to the Cornpany. Credit
limits are established and closely monitored for customers and brokers and
dealers engaged in forward and futures and other transactions deemed to be
credit sensitive.

Brokerage receivables and brokerage payables, which arise in the normal
course of business, consisted of the following at December 31

In mifions of dollars 2001 2000
Receivables from customers $19,660 $23,142
Receivables from brokers,

dealers, and clearing organizations 15,495 2,554
Total brokerage receivables $35,155 $25,696
Payables to customers $16,876 $13,564
Payables 1o brokers,

dealers, and clearing organizations 16,015 2,318
Total brokerage payables $32,891 $15,882

7. TRADING ACCOUNT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Trading account assets and liabilities, at market value, consisted of the
following at December 31:

In millions of dollars 200t 2000

Trading account assets
U.S. Treasury and Federal agency securities $ 46,218 $ 30,939
State and municipal securities 4,517 2,439

Foreign government securities 12,450 13,308
Corporate and other debt securities 21,318 17,046
Derivatives ) 29,762 35177
Equity securities 15,619 17,174
Mortgage loans and
collateralized mortgage securities 6,869 6,024
Other 8,151 10,406
$144904  $132,513
Trading account liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased $ 51,815 $ 48489
Derivatives ™ 28,728 36,618
$ 80,543  § 85107

(1) Net of master netting agreements.




8. TRADING RELATED REVENUE

Trading related revenue consists of principal transactions revenues and net
interest revenue associated with trading activities. Principal transactions
revenues consist of realized and unrealized gains and losses from trading
activities. The following table presents trading related revenue for the vears
ended December 31:

In mitlions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Global Corporate

Fixed income $4,007 $2,531 $2,306
Equities @ 882 1,720 1,273
Foreign exchange ® 1,464 1,103 1,115
All other ¢) 197 308 498
Total Global Carporate 6,550 5,662 5,193
Global Consumer and Other 826 782 584
Total trading related revenue $7,376 $6,444 $5,777

(1) Includes revenugs from government securities and corporate debt, municipat securities, preferred stock,
mortgage securities, and other debt instruments. Also includes spot and farward trading of currencies
and exchange-traded and over-the-counter (OTC) currency options, options on fixed income securities,
interest rate swaps, currency swaps, swap options, caps and flaors, financial futures, OTC options and
forward contracts on fixed income securities.

{2) Includes revenues frem common and convertible preferred stock, convertible corporate debt, equity-
linked notes, and exchange-traded and OTC equity options and warrants.

{3) Includes revenues from foreign exchange spot, forward, option and swap contracts.

{4 Primarily includes revenues from the results of Phibro Inc. (Phibro), which trades crude oil, refined oil
products, natural gas, electricity, metals, and other commodities. Also includes revenues related to
arbitrage strategies.

The following table reconciles principal transactions revenues on the
Consolidated Statement of Income to trading related revenue for the years
ended December 31:

In millions of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Principal transactions $5,544 $5,981 $5,160
Net interest revenue 1,832 463 617
Total trading related revenue $7,376 $6,444 $5,777
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9. LOANS
In millions of doflars at year-end 2001 2000
Consumer
inU.S. offices
Mortgage and real estate @ $ 80,009 § 73,166
instaliment, revolving credit, and other 84,367 78,017
164,466 151,183
In offices outside the U.S.
Mortgage and real estate (' 27,703 24,988
Installment, revolving credit, and other 54,276 55,515
Lease financing 391 427
82,370 80,930
246,836 232,113
Unearned income (2,677) (3,234)
Consumer loans, net of unearned income $244,159  $228,879
Commercial
In U.S. offices
Commercial and industrial 4 $ 32431 $ 37,220
Lease financing 18,518 14,864
Mortgage and real estate () 2,784 3,490
53,733 55,574
In offices outside the U.S.
Commercial and industrial 76,459 69,111
Mortgage and real estate ™ 2,859 1,720
Loans to financial institutions 10,163 9,559
Lease financing 3,788 3,689
Governments and official institutions 4,033 1,852
97,302 86,031
151,035 141,605
Uneamed income (3,261) (3,462)
Commercial loans, net of unearned income $147,774  $138,143

(1) Loans secured primarily by real estate.

(2) Includes $4.9 billion in 2001 and $3.7 billion in 2000 of commerciat real estate loans related to

community banking and private banking activities.

(3) Includes $2.5 hillion in 2001 and $2.7 billion in 2000 of loans secured by commercial real estate.

{4) Includes loans not otherwise separately categorized.




Impaired loans are those on which Citigroup believes it is not probable
that it will be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan, excluding smaller-balance homogeneous loans that are
evaluated collectively for impairment, and are carried on a cash basis.
Valuation allowances for these loans are estimated considering all available
evidence including, as appropriate, the present value of the expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s contractual effective rate, the secondary
market value of the loan and the fair value of collateral. The following table
presents information about impaired loans.

in millions of doflars at year-end 2001 2000 1999
Impaired commercial loans $3,572 $1,847 $1,551
Other impaired loans 339 100 185
Total impaired loans @ $3,911 $1,947 $1,736
Impaired loans with valuation allowances $3,500 $1,583 $1,381
Tota! valuation allowances 915 480 411
During the year:

Average balance of impaired loans $3,098 $1,858 $1,898

Interest income recognized on impaired loans 98 97 85

(1) Primarily commercial real estate loans related to community and private banking activities.
(2) Atyear-end 2001, approximately 17% of these loans were measured for impairment using the fair value

of the collateral, compared with approximately 25% at year-end 2000.

(3) Included in the allowance for credit losses.

For the loan portfolios where the Company continues to manage loans
after they have been securitized, the following table presents the total loan
amounts managed, the portion of those portfolios securitized, and
delinquencies (loans which are 90 days or more past due) at December 31,
2001 and 2000, and credit losses, net of recoveries, for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Home equity Home equity
Credit card and auto Credit card and auto
Managed loans receivables loans receivables loans
In bilions of doliars
Principal amounts, at year-end:
Total managed $108.7 $ 274 $104.0 $33.0
Securitized amounts (67.1) (1.3) (57.0) (3.6)
On-balance sheet () $ M6 $ 26.1 $ 47.0 $29.4
In miftions of dollars
Delinquencies, at year-end:
Total managed $2,141 $1,174 $1,503 $794
Securitized amounts (1,268) (14) (925) 87)
On-balance sheet ) $ 873 $1,160 $ 578 $707
in miflions of doflars
Credit losses, net of recoveries,
for the year ended
December 31:
Total managed $ 5,603 $ 720 $ 3,986 $619
Securitized amounts (3,140) (111) (2,216) (12)
On-balance sheet( $2,463 $ 609 $1,770 $607

(1) inctudes loans held for sale.

10. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

In millions of dofiars 2001 2000 1999
Allowance for credit losses

at beginning of year $ 8,961 $8,853 $8,596
Additions

Consumer provision for credit losses 5,316 4,345 4,169

Commercial provision for credit losses 1,484 994 591
Total provision for credit losses 6,800 5,339 4,760
Deductions

Consumer credit losses 6,233 5,352 4,862

Consumer credit recoveries {853) (929) (769)
Net consumer credit losses 5,380 4,423 4,093

Commercial credit losses 2,055 906 746

Commercial credit recoveries (" (407) (135) (156)
Net commercial credit losses 1,648 771 580
Other—net®@ 1,355 (37) 180
Allowance for credit losses at end of year $10,088 $8,961 $8,853

(1} Includes amounts received under credit default swaps purchased from third parties.

(2} Includes the addition of credit loss reserves related to the acquisitions of Banamex and EAB In 2001,
Also includes the addition of allowance for credit losses related to other acquisitions and the impact of
foreign currency translation effects.

11. SECURITIZATION ACTIVITY
Citigroup and its subsidiaries securitize primarily credit card receivables,
mortgages, home equity loans and auto loans.

After securitizations of credit card receivables, the Company continues to
maintain credit card customer account relationships and provides servicing
for receivables transferred to the trust. The Company also provides credit
enhancement to the trust using cash collateral accounts. As specified in
certain of the sale agreements, the net revenue collected each month is
accumulated up to a predetermined maximum amount, and is available over
the remaining term of that transaction to make payments of vield, fees, and
transaction costs in the event that net cash flows from the receivables are not
sufficient. When the predetermined amount is reached net revenue is passed
directly to the Citigroup subsidiary that sold the receivables.

The Company provides a wide range of mortgage and home equity
products to a diverse customer base. In connection with these loans, the
servicing rights entitle the Company to a future stream of cash flows based on
the outstanding principal balances of the loans and the contractual servicing
fee. Failure to service the loans in accordance with contractual requirements
may lead to a termination of the servicing rights and the loss of future
servicing fees. In non-recourse servicing, the principal credit risk to the
servicer is the cost of temporary advances of funds. In recourse servicing, the
servicer agrees to share credit risk with the owner of the mortgage loans such
as FNMA or FHLMC or with a private investor, insurer or guarantor. Losses on
recourse servicing occur primarily when foreclosure sale proceeds of the
property underlying a defaulted mortgage or home equity loan are less than
the outstanding principal balance and accrued interest of such mortgage loan
and the cost of holding and disposing of the underlying property.
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The following table summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid
to securitization trusts during the year-ended December 31:

2001 2000
Mortgages'" Mortgages!
and auto and auto
In bitlions of doflars Credit cards loans Credit cards loans
Proceeds from new
securitizations $22.7 $34.8 $9.1 $18.3
Proceeds from collections
reinvested in new
receivables 1314 04 127.2 0.2
Servicing fees received 1.2 0.3 1.0 0.3
Cash flows received on
retained interests and
other net cash flows 36 04 28 0.4

(1) Includes mortgages and home equity loans.

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company
recognized $271 miltion and $142 million, respectively, of gains on
securitizations of mortgages, home equity loans and auto loans.

Key assumptions used for mortgages during the year-ended December 31,
2001 in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the date of sale or
securitization follow:

Discount rate 5.0% to0 15.0%
Constant payment rate 6.9% to 40.0%
Anticipated net credit losses 0.02% to 5.0%

As required by SFAS 140, the effect of two negative changes in each of the
key assumptions used to determine the fair value of retained interests must
be disclosed. The negative effect of each change in each assumption must be
calculated independently, holding all other assumptions constant. Because
the key assumptions may not in fact be independent, the net effect of
simultaneous adverse changes in the key assumptions may be less than the
sum of the individual effects shown below.

At Decemnber 31, 2001, for mortgages, auto loans and manufactured
housing loans, the key assumptions, presented by product groups, and the
sensitivity of the fair value of retained interests to two adverse changes in each
of the key assumptions were as follows:

In mitiions of doflars

Carrying value of retained interests $3,222.1
Discount rate 5.0% to 15.0%; 15.0%; 13.0%
+10% $ (100.8)
+20% $ (195.4)
Constant payment rate 12.0% to 40.0%; 14.1% to 19.3%; 10.5%
+10% $ (116.3)
+20% $ (220.7)
Anticipated net credit losses 0.04% t0 5.0%; 6.7% t0 14.0%; 13.1%
+10% $ (60.6)
+20% $ (122.0)

96

12. DEBT

Investment Banking and Brokerage Borrowings
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings and the corresponding
weighted average interest rates at December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000

Weighted Weighted

average average

interest interest

In millions of dollars Balance Rate Balance rate
Commercial paper $13,858 1.9% $16,705 6.6%
Bank borrowings 565 2.5% 429 5.7%
Other 381 6.2% 1,093 6.0%

$14,804 $18,227

Investment banking and brokerage borrowings are short-term in nature
and include commercial paper, bank borrowings and other borrowings used
to finance Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.’s (Salomon Smith Barney's)
operations, including the securities settlement process. Outstanding bank
borrowings include both U.S. dollar and non-U.S. dollar denominated loans.
The non-U.S. dollar loans are denominated in multiple currencies including
the Japanese yen, German mark, and UK sterling. All commercial paper
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was U.S. dollar denominated.
Also included in other are deposit liabilities and other short-term obligations.

At December 31, 2001, Salomon Smith Barney had a $5.0 billion, 364-day
committed uncollateralized revolving line of credit with unaffiliated banks
that extends through May 21, 2002, with repayment on any borrowings due
by May 21, 2004. Salomon Smith Barney may borrow under its revolving
credit facilities at various interest rate options (LIBOR or base rate) and
compensates the banks for the facility through facility fees. Under this facility,
Salomon Smith Barney is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated
adjusted net worth (as defined in the agreement). At December 31, 2001, this
requirement was exceeded by approximately $4.3 billion, At December 31,
2001, there were no borrowings outstanding under this facility.

Salomon Smith Barney also has substantial borrowing arrangements
consisting of facilities that it has been advised are available, but where no
contractual lending obligation exists.

Short-term Borrowings
At December 31, short-term borrowings consisted of commercial paper and
other borrowings with weighted average interest rates as follows:

2001 2000
Weighted Weighted
In milfions of dollars Balance average Balance average
Commercial paper
Citigroup $ 481 184% § 496 6.61%
Citicarp and Subsidiaries 12,215 1.99% 37,656 5.34%
12,696 38,152
Other borrowings 11,765 3.44% 13,523 8.76%
$24,461 $51,675




Citigroup, Giticorp and certain other subsidiaries issue commercial paper
directly to investors. Citigroup and Citicorp, both of which are bank holding
companies, maintain combined liquidity reserves of cash, securities, and
unused bank lines of credit to support their combined outstanding
commercial paper.

Borrowings under bank lines of credit may be at interest rates based on
LIBOR, CD rates, the prime rate or bids submitted by the banks. Each
company pays its banks commitment fees for its lines of credit.

Citicorp, Salomon Smith Barney, and some of their nonbank subsidiaries

have credit facilities with Citicorp’s subsidiary banks, including Citibank, N.A.

Borrowings under these facilities must be secured in accordance with Section
23A of the Federal Reserve Act,

Citigroup has unutilized bilateral committed revolving credit facilities in
the amount of $950 miltion that expire in 2002. Under these facilities the
Cornpany is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated stockholders'
equity (as defined in the agreements). The Company exceeded this
requirement by approximately $56 billion at Decernber 31, 2001.

Associates, a subsidiary of Citicorp, has a combination of unutilized credit
facilities of $6.8 billion as of December 31, 2001. These facilities, which have
maturities ranging from 2002 to 2005, are all guaranteed by Citicorp. In
connection with the facilities for Associates, Citicorp is required to maintain
a certain level of consolidated stockholder’s equity (as defined in the
agreements). At December 31, 2001, this requirernent was exceeded by
approximately $49 billion, Citicorp has also guaranteed various other debt
obligations of Associates and CitiFinancial Credit Company (CCC), an
indirect subsidiary of Citicorp.

Long-Term Debt

Weighted
average

I millions of doars coupon Maturities 2001 2000
Citigroup Inc.
Senior Notes () 481%  2002-2030 $30,544  $ 13,947
Subordinated Notes 7.25% 2010 4,250 4,250
Citicorp and Subsidiaries
Senior Notes 6.28%  2002-2037 52,965 65,313
Subordinated Notes 6.97%  2002-2035 6,663 7,747
Salomon Smith Barney

Holdings Inc.
Senior Notes @) 4.28%  2002-2029 26,813 19,652
Travelers Insurance

Group Holdings Inc.
Senior Notes 7.36%  2006-2026 380 850
Travelers Property

Casualty Corp. @ 16 19
Senior Notes 110,702 99,762
Subordinated Notes 10,913 11,997
Other 16 19
Total $121,631 $111,778

(1) Also includes $250 million of notes maturing in 2098,
(2) Alsaincludes $1.45 billion of notes maturing between 2025 through 2097,
(3) Also includes subordinated debt of $124 miliion and $145 million at December 31, 2001 and

December 2000, respectively.

{4) Principally 12% GNMA/FNMA-collateralized obligations.

The Company issues both U.S. dollar and non-U.S. dollar denominated
fixed and variable rate debt. The Company utilizes derivative contracts,
primarily interest rate swaps, o effectively convert a portion of its fixed rate
debt to variable rate debt. The maturity structure of the derivatives generally
corresponds with the maturity structure of the debt being hedged. At
December 31, 2001, the Company has outstanding interest rate swaps which
convert $51.5 billion of its §101.6 billion of fixed rate debt to variable rate
obligations. At December 31, 2001, the Company's overall weighted average
interest rate for long-term debt was 5.23% on a contractual basis and 4.99%
including the effects of derivative contracts. In addition, the Company utilizes
other derivative contracts to manage the foreign exchange impact of certain
debt issuances.

Aggregate annual maturities on long-term debt obligations (based on final maturity dates) are as follows:

In millions of doliars 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
Citigroup Inc. $ 5722 $ 4,500 $ 5,050 $ 4,874 $ 4,000 $10,648
Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. 5,030 8,163 4,982 2,193 2,143 4,302
Citicorp and Subsidiaries 20,450 11,973 6,273 6,108 3,752 11,072
Travelers Insurance Group Hoidings inc. — — — — 150 230
Travelers Property Casualty Corp. — — — — — 16

$31,202 $24,636 $16,305 $13,175 $10,045 $26,268
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13. INSURANCE POLICY AND CLAIMS RESERVES
At December 31, insurance policy and claims reserves consisted of the
following;

in milions of doftars 2001 2000

Benefits and loss reserves:

Property-casualty ™ $29,792 $28,327
Life and annuity 10,987 9,966
Accident and health 1,271 1,074
Unearned premiums 6,681 4,836
Policy and contract claims 563 463
$49,294 $44,666

(1) Included at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are $1.4 billion of reserves related to workers’ compensation
that have been discounted using an interest rate of 5%.

The following table is a reconciliation of beginning and ending property-
casualty reserve halances for claims and claim adjustment expenses for the
years ended December 31:

In millions of dollars 2001 2000 1999

Claims and claim adjustment expense

reserves at beginning of year $28,327 $28,776 $29,139
Less reinsurance recoverables on
unpaid losses 8,405 8,408 7,987
Net balance at beginning of year 19,922 20,367 21,152
Pravision for claims and claim adjustment
expenses for claims arising in current year 8,075 7,015 6,564
Estimated claims and claim adjustment
expenses for claims arising in prior years 2 (204) (281)
Total increases 8,077 6,811 6,283
Claims and claim adjustment expense
payments for claims arising in:
Current year 3,202 2,975 2,757
Prior years 4,606 4,281 4,311
Total payments 7,808 7,256 7,068
Net balance at end of year 20,191 19,922 20,367
Plus reinsurance recoverables on
unpaid losses 9,601 8,405 8,409
Claims and claim adjustment expense
reserves at end of year $29,792 $28,327 $28,776

The increase in the claims and claim adjustment expense reserve in 2001
from 2000 was primarily due to the impact of the terrorist attack on
September 11th, 2001. Partially offsetting the above were net payments of
$427 million in 2001 for environmental and cumulative injury claims. The
decrease in the claims and claim adjustment expense reserves in 2000 from
1999 was primarily attributable to net payments of $341 million, for
environmental and cumulative injury claims.

In 2001, estimated claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims
arising in prior years included net favorable loss development on Commercial
Lines loss sensitive policies in various lines; however, since the business to
which it relates is subject to premium adjustments, there is no impact on
results of operations. In addition, estimated claims and claim adjustment
expenses for claims arising in prior years also included approximately
$109 million of net unfavorable development, primarily related to certain
Commercial Lines coverages, predominately in general liability, commercial

auto liability, assuimed reinsurance and specialty businesses, partially
offset by favorable development in commercial multi-peril and other claim
adjustment expenses.

In 2000, estimated claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims arising
in prior vears included approximately 76 million primarily relating to net
favorable development in certain Commercial Lines coverages, predominantly
in the commercial multi-peril line of business, and in certain Personal Lines
coverages, predominately personal umbrella coverages. In addition, in 2000
Commercial Lines experienced favorable loss development on loss sensitive
policies in various lines, however, since the business to which it relates is subject
o premium adjustments, there is no impact on results of operations.

In 1999, estimated claims and ctaim adjustment expenses for claims
arising in prior years included approximately $205 million primarily
relating to net favorable development in certain Personal Lines coverages,
predominantly automobile coverages, and in certain Commercial Lines
coverages, predominantly in the general liability and commercial multi-peril
lines of business. In addition, in 1999 Commercial Lines experienced
favorable loss development on loss sensitive policies in the workers’
compensation line; however, since the business to which it relates is subject to
premium adjustments, there was no impact on results of operations.

The property-casualty claims and claim adjustment expense reserves
include $1.216 billion and $1.364 billion for asbestos and environmental-
related claims net of reinsurance at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Itis difficult to estimate the reserves for environmental and asbestos-
related claims due to the vagaries of court coverage decisions, plaintiffs’
expanded theories of liability, the risks inherent in major litigation and other
uncertainties, including without limitation, those which are set forth below.
Conventional actuarial techniques are not used to estimate such reserves.

In establishing environmental reserves, the Company evaluates the
exposure presented by each insured and the anticipated cost of resolution, if
any, for each insured on a quarterly basis. In the course of this analysis, the
Company considers the probable liability, available coverage, relevant judicial
interpretations and historical value of similar exposures. In addition, the
Company considers the many variables presented, such as the nature of the
alleged activities of the insured at each site; the allegations of environmental
harm at each site; the number of sites; the total number of potentially
responsible parties at each site; the nature of environmental harm and the
corresponding remedy at each site; the nature of government enforcement
activities at each site; the ownership and general use of each site; the overall
nature of the insurance relationship between the Company and the insured,
including the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the Company has
issued to the insured; the involvement of other insurers; the potential for other
available coverage, including the number of years of coverage; the role, if any,
of non-environmental claims or potential non-environmental clairns, in any
resolution process; and the applicable law in each jurisdiction.

[n establishing the Company’s asbestos reserves, the Company evaluates
the exposure presented by each insured. In the course of this evaluation, the
Company considers available insurance coverage including the role of any
umbrella or excess insurance issued by the Company to the insured; limits
and deductibles; an analysis of each insured’s potential liability; the
jurisdictions involved; past and anticipated future claim activity; past
settlement values of similar claims; allocated claim adjustment expense;
potential role of other insurance; the role, if any, of non-asbestos claims or
potential non-asbestos claims in any resolution process; and applicable




coverage defenses or determinations, if any, including the determination as to
whether or not an asbestos claim is a product/completed operation claim
subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if any, for that
claim. Once the gross ultimate exposure for indemnity and allocated claim
adjustment expense is determined for each insured by each policy vear, the
Company calculates a ceded reinsurance projection based on any applicable
facultative and treaty reinsurance, as welf as past ceded experience.
Adjustments to the ceded projections also occur due to actual ceded claim
experience and reinsurance collections.

Historically, the Company’s experience has indicated that insureds with
potentially significant environmental and/or asbestos exposures often have
other cumnulative injury other than ashestos (CIOTA) exposures or CIOTA
claims pending with the Company. Due to this experience and the fact
that settlemnent agreements with insureds may extinguish the Company’s
obligations for all claims, the Company evaluates and considers the
environmental and asbestos reserves in conjunction with the CIOTA reserve.

The Company also conipares its historical direct and net loss and expense
paid experience vear-by-vear, to assess any emerging trends, fluctuations or
characteristics suggested by the aggregate paid activity. The comparison
includes a review of the result derived from the division of the ending direct
and net reserves by last year’s direct and net paid activity, also known as the
survival ratio.

The reserves carried for environmental and asbestos claims at December
31,2001 are the Company’s best estimate of ultimate claims and claim
adjustment expenses based upon known facts and current law, However, the
uncertainties surrounding the final resolution of these claims continue.
These include, without liritation, the risks inherent in major litigation,
including more aggressive asbestos litigation against insurers, including the
Company, any impact from the bankruptcy protection sought by various
asbestos producers and other asbestos defendants, a further increase or
decrease in asbestos and environmental claims which cannot now be
anticipated, the role of any umbrella or excess policies issued by the Company
for such claims, whether or not an asbestos claim is a product/completed
operation claim subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if
any, for that claim, the number and outcome of direct actions against the
Company and unanticipated developments pertaining to the Company’s
ability to recover reinsurance for environmental and asbestos claims, It is also
not possible to predict changes in the legal and legislative environment and
their impact on the future development of asbestos and environmental
ctaims. Such development will be affected by future court decisions and
interpretations, as well as changes in applicable legislation. In addition,
particularly during the last few months of 2001 and continuing into 2002, the
asbestos-related trends described above have both accelerated and become
more visible. These trends include, but are not limited to, the filing of
additional claims, more aggressive litigation based on novel theories of
liability and litigation against new and previously peripheral defendants, and
developments in existing and pending bankruptcy proceedings.

Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabilities may arise
for amounts in excess of the current related reserves. These additional
amounts, or 4 range of these additional amounts, cannot now be reasonably
estimated, and could result in a liability exceeding reserves by an amount that
could be material to the Company’s operating results in a future period.
However, in the opinion of the Company’s management, it is not likely that
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these claims will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition or liquidity.

The Company has a geographic exposure to catastrophe fosses in certain
areas of the United States. Catastrophes can be caused by various events
including hurricanes, windstorms, earthquakes, hail, severe winter weather,
explosions and fires, and the incidence and severity of catastrophes are
inherently unpredictable. The extent of losses from a catastrophe is a function
of both the total amount of insured exposure in the area affected by the
event and the severity of the event, Most catastrophes are restricted to small
geographic areas, however, hurricanes and earthquakes may produce
significant damage in large, heavily populated areas. The Company generally
seeks to reduce its exposure to catastrophes through individual risk selection
and the purchase of catastrophe reinsurance.

14. REINSURANCE
The Company's insurance operations participate in reinsurance in order to
limit losses, minimize exposure to large risks, provide additional capacity for
future growth and effect business-sharing arrangements. Life reinsurance is
accomplished through various plans of reinsurance, primarily coinsurance,
modified coinsurance and vearly renewable term. Property-casualty
reinsurance is placed on both a quota-share and excess of loss basis. The
property-casualty insurance subsidiaries also participate as a servicing carrier
for, and a member of, several pools and associations. Reinsurance ceded
arrangements do not discharge the insurance subsidiaries as the primary
insurer, except for cases involving a novation.

Reinsurance amounts included in the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the vears ended December 31 were as follows:

Gross Net
in miflions of dolars amount Ceded amount
2001
Premiums

Property-casualty insurance $12,373 $(1,920) $10,453
Life insurance 3,124 (343) 2,781
Accident and health insurance 505 (279) 226
$16,002 $(2,542) $13,460
Claims incurred $14,269 $(3,623) $10,646
2000
Premiums
Property-casualty insurance $11,691 $(1,795) $ 9,896
Life insurance 2,550 (332) 2,218
Accident and heaith insurance 530 (215 315
$14,771 $(2,342) $12,429
Claims incurred $10,779 $(1,895) $ 8,884
1999
Premiums
Property-casualty insurance $10,860 31,7220  $ 9,238
Life insurance 2,190 (314) 1,876
Accident and health insurance 444 (54) 390
$13,594 ${2,090) $11,504
Claims incurred $ 9,039 $(1,913) $ 8,026




Reinsurance recoverables, net of valuation allowance, at December 31
include amounts recoverable on unpaid and paid losses and were as follows:

In millions of dollars 2001 2000
Life business $ 2,283 $ 2,028
Property-casualty business:
Pools and associations 2,082 2,592
Other reinsurance 8,008 6,096
Total $12,373 $10,716

15. RESTRUCTURING AND MERGER-RELATED ITEMS

in millions of dofiars 2001 2000 1999
Restructuring charges $448 $579 $166
Changes in estimates (53) {65) (401)
Accelerated depreciation 63 68 182
Total restructuring-related items 458 582 B3)
Merger-related items - 177 —
Total restructuring and merger-related items  $458 $759 $ (53)

During 2001, Citigtoup recorded restructuring charges of $448 million. Of
the $448 million, $319 million related to the downsizing of certain functions
in the Global Corporate and Global Consumer businesses in order to align
their cost structures with current market conditions and $129 million related
to the acquisition of Banamex and the integration of its operations within
the Global Consumer business. These restructuring charges were expensed
and are included in “Restructuring- and merger-related items” in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. In addition, a restructuring reserve of
$112 million was recorded in connection with the acquisition of Banamex
and recognized as a liability in the purchase price allocation of Banamex.
The total Banamex reserves of $241 million include costs related to
downsizings, the reconfiguration of branch operations in Mexico, and the
integration of operations and operating platforms. These restructuring
initiatives are expected to be implemented over the next year, The reserves
included $423 million related to employee severance, $72 million related
to exiting leasehold and other contractual obligations, and $65 million of
asset impairment charges.

The $423 million related to employee severance reflects the cast of
eliminating approximately 12,500 positions, including 4,200 in Citigroup’s
Global Consumer business and 3,600 in Banamex related to the acquisition,
and 1,300 in the Global Consumer business and 3,400 in the Global
Corporate business related to other restructuring initiatives. Approximately
3,200 of these positions were in the United States.

The 2001 restructuring reserve utilization included $65 million of asset
impairment charges as well as §287 million of severance and other costs (of
which $203 million of employee severance and §16 million of leasehold and
other exit costs have been paid in cash and $68 is legally obligated), together
with translation effects. Through December 31, 2001 approximately 8,600
gross staff positions have been eliminated under these programs.

During 2000, Citigroup tecorded restructuring charges of $579 million,
primarily consisting of exit costs related to the acquisition of Associates. The
charges included $241 million related to employee severance, $154 million
related to exiting leasehold and other contractual obligations, and
$184 million of asset impairment charges.

Of the $579 million charge, $474 million related to the acquisition of
Assoctates included the reconfiguration of certain branch operations, the exit
from non-strategic businesses and from activities as mandated by Federal
bank regulations, and the consolidation and integration of corporate, middle
and back office functions. In the Global Consumer business, $51 million
includes the reconfiguration of certain branch operations outside the U.S. and
the downsizing and consolidation of certain back office functions in the U.S.
Approximately $440 miltion of the $579 million charge related to operations
in the United States.

The $241 million portion of the charge related to employee severance
reflects the costs of eliminating approximately 5,800 positions, including
approximately 4,600 in Associates and 700 in the Global Consumer business.
Approximately 5,000 of these positions related to the United States. In 2000,
an additional reserve of $23 million was recorded, $20 million of which
related to the elimination of 1,600 non-U.S. positions of an acquired entity.

As of December 31, 2001, the 2000 restructuring reserve utilization
included $184 million of asset impairment charges and $302 million of
severance and other exit costs (of which $145 million of employee severance
and $107 million of leasehold and other exit costs have been paid in cash and
$50 million is legally obligated), together with translation effects. The
remaining reserve for 2000 restructuring initiatives of $87 million at
December 31, 2001 is expected to be substantially utilized by the end of the
first quarter of 2002. Through December 31, 2001, approximately 5,450 staff
positions have been eliminated under these programs.

During 2000, the Company also recorded $177 million of merger-related
costs which included legal, advisory, and SEC filing fees, as well as other costs
of administratively closing the acquisition of Associates.

Tn 1999, Citigroup recorded restructuring charges of $166 million,
including additional severance charges of $49 million as a result of the
continued implementation of 1998 restructuring initiatives, as well as §82
million of exit costs associated with new initiatives in the Global Consumer
business primarily related to the reconfiguration of certain branch operations
outside the U.S., the downsizing of certain marketing operations, and the exit
of a non-strategic business. The 1999 restructuring reserve was fully utilized
at June 30, 2000.

The 1999 charge included $35 million of integration charges recorded by
Assoctates (the Avco charge) related to its January 6, 1999 acquisition of Avco
Financial Services, Inc. (Avco). In addition to the Avco charge, as part of the
purchase price allocation of the Avco acquisition, Associates recorded a $146
million reserve at the time of the acquisition, This reserve was established to
reflect the costs of exiting certain activities that would not be continued after
the acquisition. The costs primarily consisted of severance costs and related
expenses, lease termination costs and other contractual liabilities. The Avco
reserve was fully utilized at December 31, 1999.

The implementation of these restructuring initiatives also caused certain
related premises and equipment assets to become redundant. The remaining
depreciable lives of these assets were shortened, and accelerated depreciation
charges (in addition to normal scheduled depreciation on those assets) of
$63 million, $68 million and $182 million were recognized in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.




The status of the 2001, 2000, and 1999 restructuring initiatives is
summarized in the following table:

Restructuring Reserve Activity
Restructuring Initiatives

In millions of doftars 2001 2000 1999
Original charges $ 448 $579 $117
Acquisitions during:®
2001 112 — —
2000 - 23 —
1999 - — 146
112 23 146
Utilization during:@
2001 (352) (231) —
2000 - (255) 51
1999 - — 212
(352) (486) (263)
Changes in estimates during:
2001 (18) (29) —
2000 - - —
1999 - — —
(18) (29) —
Reserve balance at
December 31, 2001 $ 190 $ 87 $ —

(1) Represents additions to restructuring Habilities arising from acquisitions.
(2) Utilization amounts include translation effects on the restructuring reserve.

Changes in estimates are attributable to facts and circumstances arising
subsequent to an original restructuring charge. Changes in estimates
attributable to lower than anticipated costs of implementing certain projects
and a reduction in the scope of certain initiatives during 2001 resulted in the
reduction of the reserve for 2001 restructuring initiatives of $18 million, a
reduction of $29 million for 2000 restructuring initiatives and a reduction of
$6 million for 1998 and 1997 restructuring initiatives. During 2000 and
1999, changes in estimates resulted in reductions in the reserve for 1998
restructuring initiatives of $65 million and $151 million, respectively.
Changes in estimates related to 1997 restructuring initiatives, which were
fully utilized as of December 31, 1999, were $250 million in 1999, and were
primarily related to the reassessment of space needed due to the Travelers and
Citicorp merger, which indicated the need for increased occupancy and the
utilization of space previously considered excessive.
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16. INCOME TAXES

In miltions of dolfars 2001 2000 1999
Current
Federal $3,649 $3,295 $3,350
Foreign 2,481 2,301 2,198
State 382 392 3684
6,512 5,988 5,932
Deferred
Federal 757 1,231 631
Foreign 98 197 (134
State 159 109 101
1,014 1,537 588
Provision for income tax
before minority interest( 7,526 7,525 6,530
Provision (benefit) for income taxes on
cumulative effect of accounting changes (93) — (84)
Income tax expense (benefit) reported in
stockholders' equity related to:
Foreign currency translation (252) (108) (25)
Securities available for sale (71) (259) (28)
Employee stock plans (674) (1,400) 1,017
Cash flow hedges 105 — —
Other — (24) (1)
Income taxes before minority interest $6,541 $5,734 $5,375

{1) Includes the effect of securities transactions resulting in a provision of $202 million in 2001, $282

millionin 2000, and $189 miltion in 1999.

The reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to the

Company’s effective income tax rate applicable to income (before minority
interest and cumulative effect of accounting changes) for the years ended

December 31 was as follows:

2001 2000 1993
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Limited taxability of investment income (1.3) (1.2 (1.4)
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit 1.6 1.6 1.7
Other, net (0.9) 0.2 0.7
Effective income tax rate 34.4% 35.6% 36.0%




Deferred income taxes at December 31 related to the following:

in millions of dolfars 2001 2000
Deferred tax assets

Credlt loss deduction $ 4,197 $ 2,981
Differences in computing policy reserves 1,787 1,956

Unremitted foreign earnings - 2,031

Deferred compensation 1,413 1,234
Employee benefits 1,108 613
Interest-refated items 379 363
Foreign and state loss carryforwards 290 293
Other deferred tax assets 1,427 1,513
Gross deferred tax assets 10,601 10,984
Valuation allowance 200 220
Deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 10,401 10,764
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted foreign earnings (37) —
Investments (978) {1,534)
Deferred policy acquisition costs and value of

insurance in force (1,248) (1,102)
Leases (1,792) (1,524)
Intangibles (769) (354}
Other deferred tax liabilities {1,697) {1,995)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (6,521) (6,509)
Net deferred tax asset $ 3,880 $ 4,255

Foreign pretax earnings approximated $8.1 billion in 2001, §6.9 billion in
2000, and $5.4 billion in 1999. As a U.S. corporation, Citigroup is subject to
U.S. taxation currently on all foreign pretax earnings earned by a foreign
branch. Pretax earnings of a foreign subsidiary or affiliate are subject to U.S.
taxation when effectively repatriated. In addition, certain of Citigroup’s U.S.
income is subject to foreign income tax where the payor of such income is
domiciled outside the United States. The Company provides income taxes on
the undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries except to the extent that
such earnings are indefinitely invested outside the United States. At December
31,2001, $2.0 billion of accumulated undistributed earnings of non-U.S.
subsidiaries was indefinitely invested. At the existing U.S. Federal income tax
rate, additional taxes of §565 million would have to be provided if such
earnings were remitted,

Income taxes are not provided for on the Company’s life insurance
subsidiaries” “policyholders’ surplus account” because under current U.S. tax
rules such taxes will become payable only to the extent such amounts are
distributed as a dividend or exceed limits prescribed by Federal law.
Distributions are not contemplated from this account, which aggregated $982
million (subject to a tax of $344 million) at December 31, 2001.

The 2001 net change in the valuation allowance related to deferred tax
assets was a decrease of $20 million primarily relating to state net operating
losses. The valuation allowance of $200 million at December 31, 2001 is
primarily related to specific state and local, and foreign tax carryforwards, or
tax law restrictions on benefit recognition in the U.S. Federal tax return and
in the above jurisdictions.

Management believes that the realization of the recognized net deferred
tax asset of $3.880 billion is more likely than not based on existing carryback
ability and expectations as to future taxable income. The Company has
reported pretax financial statement income of approximately $20 billion, on
average, over the last three years and has generated Federal taxable income
exceeding $13 billion, on average, each year during this same period.

17. MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE SECURITIES OF
SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS

The Company formed statutory business trusts under the laws of the state of
Delaware, which exist for the exclusive purposes of (i) issuing Trust Securities
representing undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the Trust; (ii)
investing the gross proceeds of the Trust securities in junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures (subordinated debentures) of its parent; and
(iif) engaging in only those activities necessary or incidental thereto. Upon
approval from the Federal Reserve, Citigroup has the right to redeen these
securities. These subordinated debentures and the related income effects are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. Distributions on the
mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts below have been
classified as interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income.




The following tables summarize the financial structure of each of the Comnpany’s subsidiary trusts at December 31, 2001:

Junior subordinated debentures owned by trust
Common

issued as depositary shares, each representing a one-tenth interest in a share of the corresponding series of preferred stock.
Shares previously held by affiliates in 2001 have been subsequently traded on the open market to third parties during the third quarter of 2001.

Trust securities shares Redeemable
with distributions {ssuance Securities  Liquidation Coupon issued by issuer
guaranteed by date issued value rate to parent Amount Maturity beginning
In miflions of doltars

Citigroup:

Citigroup Capital | QOct. 1896 16,000,000 $ 400 8.000% 494,880 $ 412 Sept. 30, 2036 Oct. 7, 2001
Citigroup Capital I Dec. 1996 400,000 400 7.750% 12,372 412 Dec. 1, 2036 Dec. 1,2006
Citigroup Capital fll Dec. 1996 200,000 200 7.625% 6,186 206 Dec. 1, 2036 Nat redeemable
Citigroup Capital IV Jan. 1998 8,000,000 200 6.850% 247,440 206 Jan. 22,2038 Jan. 22,2003
Citigroup Capital V Nov. 1988 20,000,000 500 7.000% 618,557 515 Nov. 15, 2028 Nav. 15, 2003
Citigroup Capital VI Mar. 1999 24,000,000 600 6.875% 742,269 819 Mar. 15,2029 Mar. 15, 2004
Citigroup Capital Vi July 2001 45,000,000 1,130 7.125% 1,422,681 1,186 July 31, 2031 July 31, 2006
Citigroup Capital VII Sept. 2001 56,000,000 1,400 6.950% 1,731,959 1,443 Sept. 15, 2031 Sept. 17,2006
Total parent abligated $4,850

Subsidiaries:

Travelers P&C Capital | Aprit 1996 32,000,000 $ 800 8.080% 989,720 $ 825 Aprit 30, 2036 April 30, 2001
Travelers P&C Capital Il May 1996 4,000,000 100 8.000% 123,720 103 May 15, 2036 May 15, 2001
Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.

Capital f Jan, 1998 16,000,000 400 7.200% 494,880 412 Jan. 28,2038 Jan. 28,2003
Citicorp Capital | Dec. 1996 300,000 300 7.933% 9,000 309 Feb. 15,2027 Feb. 15,2007
Citicorp Capitat Il Jan. 1997 450,000 450 8.015% 13,500 464 Feb. 15, 2027 Feb. 15, 2007
Giticorp Capital 1l June 1998 9,000,000 225 7.100% 270,000 232 Aug. 15,2028 Aug. 15,2003
Total subsidiary obligated $2,275

In each case, the coupon rate on the debentures is the same as that on the On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed, for cash, all of the Trust Preferred
trust securities. Distributions on the trust securities and interest on the Securities of Citigroup Capital I at the redemption price of $25 per Preferred
debentures are payable quarterly, except for Citigroup Capital IT and I1T and Security plus any accrued and unpaid distributions thereon.

Citicorp Capital I and I, on which distributions are payable semiannually.
18. PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Perpetual Preferred Stock
The following table sets forth the Company’s perpetual preferred stock outstanding at December 31:
Redeemable, in Redemption i i
whole a in part price Number of Carrying value (In miliions of doliars)
Rate on or after® per share®@ shares 2001 2000
Series F® 6.365% June 18, 2007 $250 1,600,000 $ 400 $ 397
Series G© 6.213% July 11,2007 $250 800,000 200 181
Series H® 6.231% September 8, 2007 $250 800,000 200 200
Series K4 8.400% March 31, 2001 $500 500,000 - 250
Series M® 5.864% QOctober 8, 2007 $250 800,000 200 195
Serigs Q) Adjustable May 31, 1999 $250 700,000 175 172
Serigs R®) Adjustable August 31, 1999 $250 400,000 100 100
Series U@ 7.750% May 15, 2000 $250 500,000 125 125
Serigs V© Fixed/Adjustable February 15, 2006 $500 250,000 125 126
$1,525 $1,745
(1) Under various circumstances, the Company may redeem certain series of preferred stock at times other than described above.
(2) Liquidation preference per share equals redemption price per share.
(31 Issued as depositary shares, each representing a one-fifth interest in a share of the corresponding sertgs of preferred stock.
) Issued as depositary shares, each representing a one-twentieth interest in a share of the corresponding series of preferred stock.
)
)
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All dividends on the Company’s perpetual preferred stock are payable
quarterly and are cumulative. Citigroup redeerned Series K Preferred Stock in
October 2001. In January 2002, Citigroup redeemed Series U Preferred Stock.

Dividends on Series Q and R Preferred Stock are payable at rates
determined quarterly by formulas based on interest rates of certain U.S.
Treasury obligations, subject to certain minimum and maximum rates as
specified in the certificates of designation. The weighted-average dividend rate
on the Series Q and R Preferred Stock was 4.83% for 2001.

Dividends on the Series V Preferred Stock are payable at 5.86% through
February 15, 2006, and thereafter at rates determined quarterly by a formula
based on certain interest rate indices, subject to a minimum rate of 6% and a
maximum rate of 12%. The rate of dividends on the Series V Preferred Stock is
subject to adjustment based upon the applicable percentage of the dividends
received deduction.

Regulatory Capital
Citigroup and Citicorp are subject to risk-based capital and leverage
guidelines issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
(FRB), and their U.S. insured depository institution subsidiaries, including
Citibank, N.A., are subject to similar guidelines issued by their respective
primary regulators. These guidelines are used to evaluate capital adequacy
and include the required minimums shown in the following table,

To be “well capitalized” under Federal bank regulatory agency definitions,
a depository institution must have a Tier 1 ratio of at least 6%, a combined
Tier 1 and Tier 2 ratio of at least 10%, and a leverage ratio of at least 5%, and
not be subject to a directive, order, or written agreement to meet and maintain
specific capital levels. The regulatory agencies are required by law to take
specific prompt actions with respect to institutions that do not meet
minimum capital standards. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, all of
Citigroup’s U.S. insured subsidiary depository institutions were “well
capitalized.” At December 31, 2001, regulatory capital as set forth in
guidelines issued by the U.S. Federal bank regulators is as follows:

Minimum Citibank,
In millions of dollars requirement Citigroup Citicorp N.A.
Tier 1 capital $58,448 $42,188 $31,763
Total capital 75,797 62,871 46,778
Tier 1 capital ratio 4.00% 8.42% 8.33% 9.23%
Total capital ratio®) 8.00% 10.92% 12.41% 13.60%
Leverage ratiof 3.00% 5.64% 6.85% 7.16%

(1) Total capital includes Tier 1 and Tier 2.
(2) Tier 1 capital divided by adjusted average assets.

There are various legal limitations on the extent to which Citigroup’s
banking subsidiaries may pay dividends to their parents. Citigroup’s national
and state-chartered bank subsidiaries can declare dividends to their respective
parent companies in 2002, without regulatory approval, of approximately
$9.1 billion adjusted by the effect of their net income (loss) for 2002 up to the
date of any such dividend declaration. In determining whether and to what
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extent to pay dividends, each bank subsidiary must also consider the effect of
dividend payments on applicable risk-based capital and leverage ratio
requirements as well as policy statements of the Federal regulatory agencies
that indicate that banking organizations should generally pay dividends out
of current operating earnings. Consistent with these considerations, Citigroup
estimates that its bank subsidiaries can distribute dividends to Citigroup of
approximately §8.9 billion of the available $9.1 billion, adjusted by the effect
of their net incorme (loss) up to the date of any such dividend declaration.

The property-casualty insurance subsidiaries’ statutory capital and surplus
at Decernber 31, 2001 and 2000 was $7.687 hillion and $7.634 billion,
respectively. The life insurance subsidiaries’ statutory capital and surplus at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $6.188 billion and $6.079 billion,
respectively. Statutory capital and surplus are subject to certain restrictions
imposed by state insurance departments as to the transfer of funds and
payment of dividends. The property-casualty insurance subsidiaries’ statutory
net income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was
$1.091 billion, $1.445 billion and $1.500 billion, respectively. The life
insurance subsidiaries’ statutory net income for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 was $471 million, $1.090 billion and $988 million,
respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income are
determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices.

TIC is subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum
amount of dividends available to its parent without prior approval of the
Connecticut Insurance Department. A maximum of $586 million of statutory
surplus is available by the end of the year 2002 for such dividends without the
prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department.

TPC’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory restrictions
that limit the maximum amount of dividends available to be paid to their
parent without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. A
maximum of $1.0 billion is available by the end of 2002 for such dividends
without prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department. However,
the payment of a significant portion of this amount is likely to be subject to
such approval depending upon the amount and timing of the payments,

Certain of the Company’s U.S. and non-U.S. broker-dealer subsidiaries
are subject to various securities and commaodities regulations and capital
adequacy requirements promulgated by the regulatory and exchange
authorities of the countries in which they operate. The principal regulated
subsidiaries, their net capital requirement or equivalent and excess over the
minimum requirement as of December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Excess over

minimum
requirement

Net capital

Subsidiary Jurisdiction or equivalent
In milfions of doffars

Salomon Smith Barney Inc.

U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission Uniform

Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1)  $3,474 $3,014
Salomon Brothers United Kingdom's Securities
International Limited and Futures Authority 2,757 768




19. CHANGES IN EQUITY FROM NONOWNER SOURCES

Changes in each component of “Accumulated Other Changes in Equity from Nonowner Sources” for the three-year period ended December 31, 2001

are as follows:
Accumulated other
Net unrealized gains Foreign currency changes in equity
on investment trans!ation from nonowner
In mitlions of dollars securities adjustment Cash flow hedges S0Urces
Balance, January 1,1999 $1,433 $ (449 $ — $ 984
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $161 566 — — 566
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
income, net of tax of ($189) (352) — - (352)
Foreign currency transtation adjustment, net of tax of ($25) — {43) - (43)
Current period change 214 (43) — 171
Balance, December 31, 1999 1,647 (492) — 1,155
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $23 (150) — - (150)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
income, net of tax of ($282) (524) — — (524)
Foreign currency tranglation adjustment, net of tax of ($108) — (358) — (358)
Current period change ©674) (358) — (1,032)
Balance, December 31,2000 973 (850) — 123
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax of §70™ 101 20 3 118
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $71 154 — — 154
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income,
net of tax of ($202) (376) — — (376)
Foreign currency transtation adjustment, net of tax of ($263) — {1,034) — (1,034)
Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $106 — — 171 171
Current period change (121 (1,014) 168 967)
Balance, December 31, 2001 $ 852 $(1,864) $168 $ (849)

(1) Refers to the 2001 first quarter adoption of SFAS 133 and the 2001 second quarter adoption of EITF 99-20.
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20. EARNINGS PER SHARE 21. INCENTIVE PLANS

The following is a reconciliation of the income and share data used in the The Company has adopted a number of equity compensation plans under
basic and diluted earnings per share computations for the years ended which it administers stock options, restricted/deferred stock and stock
December 31: purchase programs to attract, retain and motivate officers and employees, to
y compensate them for their contributions to the growth and profits of the
In millions of doliars, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999 ,
Company, and to encourage employee stock ownership. At December 31,
'“c"fme be'O;f’ 0"':”'5““’8 effect Sz S50 §11970 2001, approximately 450 million shares were authorized for grant under
Cur?wula;i(\:/zue:f;rcltg ocf: agggf:ting changes 21 58) ’ — k1 27} Citigroup’s stock incentive P lans.
Preferred dividends (110) (116) (149) Stock Option Programs
Income available to common The Company has a number of stock option programs that provide for the
stockholders for basic EPS 14,016 13,403 11,094 granting of stock options to officers and emplovees. Options are granted at the
Effect of dilutive securifies - - 10 fair market value of Citigroup common stock at the time of grant for a period
Incame available te common of ten vears. Generally, Citigroup options vest over a five-year period,
stockholders for diluted EPS §14016 813403 $11,104  including options granted under Travelers predecessor plans and options

Weighted average common shares granted since the date of the merger. Generally, 50% of the options granted

outstanding applicable to basic EPS 5,031.7 4977.0 4979.2 under Giticorp predecessor plans prior to the merger are exercisable
beginning on the third anniversary and 50% beginning on the fourth

Effect of dilutive securities:

Options 81.6 110.9 1033  anniversary of the date of grant. Generally, options granted under Associates

Restricted stock 326 33.2 34.8 predecessor plans vest over a three-year petiod. Certain options permit an

Convertible securities ~ 14 11 105 employee exercising an option under certain conditions to be granted new
Adjusted weighted average common shares options (reload options) in an amount equal to the number of common

outstanding applicable to diluted EPS  5,147.0 5122.2 51278  shares used to satisfy the exercise price and the withholding taxes due upon
exercise. The reload options are granted for the remaining term of the related
original option and vest after six months.

Basic earnings per share
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes $ 282 $ 269 $ 2.6 To further encourage emplovee stock ownership, the Company’s eligible
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (0.03) — (0.03)  employees participate in WealthBuilder, Citibuilder, or the new Citigroup
Net income $ 279 S 260 $ 223 Ownership stock option programs. Commencing in 2001, new grants are

made under the Citigroup Ownership Program. Options granted under the
Diluted earnings per share WealthBuilder and the Citigroup Ownership programs vest over a five-vear
Income before cumulative effect . . emy s
of accounting changes $ 275 § 262 $ 219 period, whereas options granted under the CitiBuilder program vest after five
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (0.03) — (0.02)  vears. These options do not have a reload feature.

During 1998, a group of key Citicorp employees were granted 12,680,000
performance-based stock options at an equivalent Citigroup strike price of
$24.13. These performance-based options vested in 1999 when Citigroup’s
stock price reached $40.00 per share. The cost of performance-based options
was measured as the difference between the exercise price and the market
price required for vesting, After-tax expense recognized on these performance-
based options was $68 million in 1999. All of the expense related to these
grants has been recognized.

Net income $ 272 $ 262 $ 217

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, weighted average options of 100.1 million
shares, 28.1 million shares and 42.7 million shares with weighted average
exercise prices of $52.76 per share, $58.32 per share, and $40.81 per share,
respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because the
options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the
Company’s common stock.

Information with respect to stock option activity under Citigroup stock option plans for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

exercise exercise exercise

Options price Qptions price Qptions price

Outstanding, beginning of year 372,547,412 $30.55 377,082,042 $23.69 419,060,809 $20.37

Granted-origina! 57,366,507 52.77 86,287,613 43.57 29,869,276 34.46

Granted-reload 13,695,748 49.99 57,637,033 49.50 39,352,789 37.61

Forfeited {21,544,911) 34.55 (20,672,028) 2711 {18,106,937) 20.43

Exercised (57,602,949) 23.12 (127,787,248) 26.14 (93,093,895) 18.70

Outstanding, end of year 364,421,807 $36.18 372,547,412 $30.55 377,082,042 $23.69
Exercisable at year-end 164,268,613 118,330,975 113,813,418
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The following table summarizes the information about stock options outstanding under Citigroup stock option plans at December 31, 2001:

Optians outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted
average Weighted Weighted
contractuat average average
Number life exercise Number exercise
Range of exercise prices outstanding remaining price exercisable price
$ 0.03—$ 9.99 16,025,359 2.3 years $ 6.83 15,012,126 $ 672
$10.00—%19.98 13,439,499 4.3 years 14.26 11,977,180 14.26
$20.00—%29.99 123,660,877 6.0 years 23.60 65,974,043 23.42
$30.00—%$39.99 30,524,889 7.1 years 33.77 10,956,980 33.52
$40.00—$49.99 91,055,480 7.7 years 45.49 27,506,605 46.58
$50,00—$59.99 89,612,050 7.1 years 53.41 32,772,216 54.09
$60.00—$60.93 103,653 7.3years 60.93 69,463 60.93
364,421,807 6.6 years $36.18 164,268,613 $31.91

The Restricted Stock Program

The Company, primarily through its Capital Accumulation Program (CAP),
issues shares of Citigroup common stock in the form of restricted stock to
participating officers and employees, The restricted stock generally vests after
a two- or three-vear restricted period, during which time the stock cannot be
sold or transferred by the participant and is subject to total or partial forfeiture
if the participant's employment is terminated. Certain CAP participants may
elect to receive part of their awards in CAP stock and part in stock options. The
figures in the two previous tables include options granted under CAP.
Unearned compensation expense associated with the restricted stock grants
represents the market value of Citigroup common stock at the date of grant
and is recognized as a charge to income ratably over the vesting period.
Information with respect to restricted stock awards is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Shares awarded 26,018,414 27,989,280 14,577,765
Weighted average fair market value
per share $43.80 $40.66 $28.52
After-tax compensatian cost charged to
earnings (in mitlions of doffars) $ 397 $ 417 $ 269

Citigroup 401(k)

Under the Citigroup 401(k) plan, eligible employees receive awards up to 3%
of their total compensation deferred into the Citigroup common stock fund.
The after-tax expense associated with this plan amounted to $32 million in
2001, $29 million in 2000 and $31 million in 1999.

Stock Purchase Program

Stock Purchase Program offerings, which are administered under the
Citigroup 2000 Stock Purchase Plan and the Citicorp 1997 Stock Incentive
Plan allow eligible employees of Citigroup to enter into fixed subscription
agreements to purchase shares in the future at the market value on the date of
the agreements. Subject to certain limits, enrolled employees are permitted to
make one purchase prior to the expiration date. The purchase price of the
shares is paid with accumulated payroll deductions plus interest. Shares of
Citigroup’s comumon stock to be delivered under the Stock Purchase Program
may be sourced from authorized and unissued or treasury shares. The
original offering under the Citigroup Stock Purchase Program was in August
2000. In 2001, three additional offerings were made to new emplovees in
March, July and November 2001.
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Aprevious offering under the 1997 Stock Purchase Plan allowed eligible
employees of Citicorp to enter into fixed subscription agreements to purchase
shares at the market value on the date of the agreements. Such shares could
be purchased from time to time through the expiration date. Shares of
Citigroup’s common stock delivered under the Stock Purchase Plan were
sourced from treasury shares.

Following is the share activity under the August 2000 and 1997 fixed-price
offerings for the purchase of shares at the equivalent Citigroup price of $52.92
and $22.65 per share, respectively. The fixed-price offerings for the purchase
of shares for the offerings made in March, July and November 2001 were
$44.98, $50.21 and $45.52, respectively. The 1997 offering expired on June 30,
1999. All current offerings will expire in September 2002.

2001 2000 1999

Outstanding subscribed shares
at beginning of year 24,081,663 — 15,090,212
Subscriptions entered into 2,981,557 24,618,050 —
Shares purchased 76,361 1,647 13,765,639
Canceled or terminated 5,725,549 534,740 1,324,573

Outstanding subscribed shares

atend of year 21,261,310 24,081,663

Pro Forma Impact of SFAS No. 123

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Emplovees” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based
compensation plans under which there is generally no charge to earnings for
employee stock option awards (other than performance-based options) and
the ditutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
difution in the computation of earnings per share.

Alternatively, FASB rules would permit a method under which a
compensation cost for all stock awards would be calculated and recognized
over the service period (generally equal to the vesting period). This
compensation cost would be determined in a manner prescribed by FASB
using option pricing models, intended to estimate the fair value of the awards
at the grant date. Earnings per share dilution would be recognized as well.

Under both methods, an offsetting increase to stockholders’ equity is
recorded equal to the amount of compensation expense charged.




Had the Company applied SFAS No. 123 in accounting for the Company’s
stock option plans, net income and net income per share would have been the
pro forma amounts indicated below:

In miliions of doliars, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999
Compensation expense
related to stock
option plans As reported $ - 8 - $ 108
Pro forma 862 919 818
Net income As reported $14,126 $13,519 $11,243
Pro forma 13,566 12,931 10,782
Basic earnings per share  As reported $ 279 $ 269 $ 223
Pro forma 2.68 2.57 211
Diluted earnings per share As reported $ 272 $ 262 $ 217
Pro forma 2.61 2.50 2.05

The pro forma adjustments relate to stock options granted from 1995
through 2001, for which a fair value on the date of grant was determined
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. No effect has been given to
options granted prior to 1995, The fair values of stock-based awards are based
on assumptions that were determined at the grant date.

SFAS No. 123 requires that reload options be treated as separate grants
from the related original grants. Under the Company’s reload program, upon
exercise of an option, employees tender previously owned shares to pay the
exercise price and surrender shares otherwise to be received for related tax
withholding, and receive a reload option covering the same number of shares
tendered for such purposes. Reload options vest at the end of a six-month
period. Reload options are intended to encourage employees to exercise
options at an earlier date and to retain the shares so acquired, in furtherance
of the Company’s long-standing policy of encouraging increased employee
stock ownership. The result of this program is that employees generally will
exercise options as soon as they are able and, therefore, these options have
shorter expected lives. Shorter option lives result in lower valuations using a
Black-Scholes option model. However, such values are expensed more quickly

Net Benefit Expense

due to the shorter vesting period of reload options. In addition, since reload
options are treated as separate grants, the existence of the reload featre
results in a greater number of options being valued.

Shares received through option exercises under the reload program are
subject to restrictions on sale. Discounts (as measured by the estimated cost of
protection) have been applied to the fair value of options granted to reflect
these sale restrictions.

Additional valuation and related assurption information for Citigroup
option plans is presented below:

For options granted during 2001 2000 1999
Weighted average fair value
Option $11.69 $9.94 $10.65
Weighted average expected life
Original grants 3years 3years 3 years
Reload grants 1 year 1year 1 year
Valuation assumptions
Expected volatility 38.76% 41.35% 46.1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.63% 6.17% 517%
Expected annual dividends per share $ 0.82 $0.76 $ 047
Expected annual forfeitures 5% 5% 5%

22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company has several non-contributory defined benefit pension plans
covering substantially all U.S. employees and has various defined benefit
pension termination indemnity plans covering employees outside the United
States. The U.S. defined benefit plan provides benefits under a cash balance
formula. Emplovees satisfying certain age and service requirements remain
covered by a prior final pay formula. The Company also offers postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits to certain eligible U.S. retired
employees, as well as to certain eligible employees outside the United States.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income and the funded status
and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the Company’s
U.S. plans and significant plans outside the United States.

Pension plans Postretirement benefit plans(

1.S. plans Plans outside U.S. U.S. plans
In milions of doliars 2001 2000 1998 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Benefits earned during the year $232 $238 $ 264 $116 $ 95 $ 89 $6 $12 $16
Interest cost on benefit obligation 544 527 494 190 102 98 73 73 68
Expected return on plan assets (795) (757) (688) (185) (106) (90) (20) (18) (16)
Amortization of unrecognized:
Net transition (asset) obligation — 17 9 5 4 - — —
Prior service cost (18) 9 6) - — — 2) 6] (5)
Net actuarial 10ss (gain) 3 (29) 14 5 1) 6 3) ©) 2
Curtailment (gain) loss (5) — — 6 — — (39) (29) (29
Net (benefit) expense $(39) $ (29 $ 81 $14 $ 95 $107 $15 $24 $ 36

(1) For plans outside the U.S., net postretirement benefit expense totaled $42 million in 2001, $13 million in 2000, and $13 millicn in 1999.
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Prepaid Benefit Cost (Benefit Liability)

Postretirement
Pension plans benefit plans®
U.S. plans Plans outside Y.5.@ U.S. plans
In milions of doliars at year-end 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $7,382 $6,630 $1,794 $1,632 $1,015 $ 946
Benefits earned during the year 232 238 116 95 6 12
Interest cost on benefit obligation 544 527 188 102 73 73
Plan amendments (166) 1 - (5) - 3
Actuarial (gain} loss 22 327 104 109 28 95
Benefits paid (389) (351) (128) (68) (82) (77)
Acquisitions 10 24 559 59 - —
Expenses (16) (14) - — - -
Curtailment 5 — 1 8 (22) (31
Settlements - — 1 (8) — —
Foreign exchange impact - — (70) (114) - —
Benefit obligation at end of year $7,823 $7,382 $2,565 $1,794 $1,018 $1,015
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year $8,478 $8,638 $1,421 $1.471 $ 218 $ 217
Actual return on plan assets (238) 102 333 17 (6) 1
Company contributions 379 71 139 104 82 77
Employee contributions - — 8 4 - —
Acquisitions 10 32 388 47 - —
Settlements - — (5) () - —
Benefits paid (389) (351) (128) (68) (82) (77)
Expenses (16) (14) —_ — — _
Foreign exchange impact ~ — (57) 99 - —
Plan assets at fair value at end of year $8,224 $8,478 $2,099 $1,421 $ 212 $ 218
Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) benefit cost and total amount recognized
Funded status of the plan $401 $1,096 $ (446) $ (373) $ (806) $ (797)
Unrecognized:
Net transition obligation (asset) - — 24 26 - —
Prior service cost (245) (114) 10 8 (8) (26)
Net actuarial (gain) loss 655 (589) 289 148 (30) (88)
Net amount recognized $ 811 $ 393 $(143) % (191) $(84) (91
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of
Prepaid benefit cost $1,300 $ 848 $ 174 $ 13 - $ —
Accrued benefit liability {554) (513 (401) (365) (844) 911)
Intangible asset 65 58 84 43 —_ —
Net amount recognized $ 811 $ 393 $(143) $ (191) $(84) $ 91

(1) For unfunded U.S. plans, the aggregate benefit obligation was $547 million and $537 million, and the aggregate accumulated benefit abligation was $512 million and $475 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

{2) For plans outside the U.S., the aggregate benefit obligation was $2.378 billion and $1.175 billion, and the fair value of plan assets was $1.877 billion and $700 mitlion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for
plans whose benefit obligation exceeds plan assets. The aggregate accumulated benefit obligation was $670 million and $440 million, and the fair value of pian assets was $324 million and $167 million at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively, for plans whose accumulated benefit obligation exceeds plan assets.

(3) For plans outside the U.S., the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was $524 million and $88 million and the postretirement benefit fiability was $519 million and $44 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.
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The expected long-term rates of retuarn on assets used in determining the
Company’s pension and postretirement expense are shown below:

2001 2000 1999
Rate of return on assets
U.S. plars 9.5% 9.0%109.5% 9.0%109.5%
Plans outside the U.S. 3.0%t012.0% 25%1012.0% 2.5%t012.5%

(1) Excluding highly inflationary countries.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and
postretirement benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown in the
following table.

At year-end 2001 2000
Discount rate
U.S. plans 7.25% 7.5%
Plans outside the U.S.(Y 25%1012.0% 2.5%1012.0%
Future compensation increase rate
U.S. plans 4.0%106.0% 4.0%106.5%
Plans outside the U.S.(0 25%1t012.0% 2.5%1t012.0%
Health care cost increase rate—U.S. plans
Following year 7.0%t080% 7.0%1085%
Decreasing to the year 2005 5.0% to 5.5% 5.0%

(1) Excluding highly inflationary countries.

As an indicator of sensitivity, increasing the assumed health care cost trend
rate by 1% in each vear would have increased the accumulated postretirernent
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 by $38 million and the aggregate
of the benefits earned and interest components of 2001 net postretirernent
benefit expense by $5 million. Decreasing the assumed health care cost trend
rate by 1% in each year would have decreased the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 by $35 million and the aggregate
of the benefits earned and interest components of 2001 net postretirernent
benefit expense by $4 millien.

23. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER ACTIVITIES
The following table summarizes certain information related to the Company’s
hedging activities for the vear ended December 31, 2001:

Year ended December 31,

In mitlions of doliars 2001
Fair value hedges:
Hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings $168
Net gain excluded from assessment of effectiveness 85
Cash flow hedges:
Hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings 20
Amount excluded from assessment of effectiveness -
Net investment hedges:
Net gain included in foreign currency translation
adjustment within accumulated other changes in
equity from nonowner sources 432
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Additionally, $313 million of net gains is expected to be reclassified from
accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources within twelve
months from December 31, 2001.

The accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources from
cash flow hedges for 2001 can be summarized as follows (net of taxes):

Year ended December 31,
In milions of doflars 2001
Beginning balance!" $ @3
Net gains from cash flow hedges 315
Net amounts reclassified to earnings (144)
Ending batance $ 168

(1) Results from the cumulative effect of accounting change for cash flow hedges.

Citigroup enters into derivative and foreign exchange futures, forwards,
options and swaps, which enable customers to transfer, modify or reduce
their interest rate, foreign exchange and other market risks, and also trades
these products for its own account. In addition, Citigroup uses derivatives
and other instruments, primarily interest rate products, as an end-user in
connection with its risk management activities. Derivatives are used to
manage interest rate risk relating to specific groups of on-balance sheet assets
and liabilities, including investments, commercial and consumer loans,
deposit liabilities, long-term debt and other interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities, as well as credit card securitizations, redemptions and sales. In
addition, foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge non-U.S. dollar
denominated debt, net capital exposures and foreign exchange transactions.

Futures and forward contracts are commitments to buy or sell at a future
date a financial instrument, commodity or currency at a contracted price and
may be settled in cash or through deliverv. Swap contracts are commitments to
settle in cash at a future date or dates which may range from a few days to 2
number of years, based on differentials between specified financial indices, as
applied to a notional principal amount. Option contracts give the purchaser,
for a fee, the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell within a limited time, a
financial instrument or currency at a contracted price that may also be settled
in cash, based on differentials between specified indices.

Citigroup also sells various financial instruments that have not heen
purchased (short sales). In order to sell securities short, the securities are
borrowed or received as collateral in conjunction with short-term financing
agreements and, at a later date, must be delivered (i.e. replaced) with like or
substantially the same financial instruments or commodities to the parties
from which they were originally borrowed.

Derivatives and short sales may expose Gitigroup to market risk or credit
risk in excess of the amounts recorded on the balance sheet. Market risk on a
derivative, short sale or foreign exchange product is the exposure created by
potential fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other
values, and is 2 function of the type of product, the volume of transactions,
the tenor and terms of the agreement, and the underlying volatility. Credit risk
is the exposure to loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
transaction and if the value of collateral held, if any, was not adequate to
cover such losses. The recognition in earnings of unrealized gains on these
transactions is subject to management's assessment as to collectibility.
Liquidity risk is the potential exposure that arises when the size of the
derivative position may not be able to be rapidly adjusted in times of high
volatility and financial stress at a reasonable cost.




24, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in economic, industry or
geographic factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate
credit exposure is material in relation to Citigroup’s total credit exposure.
Although Citigroup's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified
along industry, product, and geographic lines, material transactions are
completed with other financial institutions, particularly in the securities
trading, derivative, and foreign exchange businesses.

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The table presents the carrying value and fair value of Citigroup’s financial
instruments, as defined in accordance with applicable requirements.
Accordingly, as required, the disclosures exclude leases, affiliate investments,
and pension and benefit obligations. Contractholder funds amounts exclude
certain insurance contracts. Also as required, the disclosures exclude the effect
of taxes, do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from
offering for sale at one time the entire holdings of 4 particular instrument, the
excess fair value associated with deposits with no fixed maturity, as well as
other expenses that would be incurred in a market transaction. In addition,
the table excludes the values of nonfinancial assets and liabilities, as well as a
wide range of franchise, relationship, and intangible values, which are
integral to a full assessment of Citigroup’s financial position and the value of
its net assets.

The data represents management’s best estimates based on a range of
methodologies and assumptions. The carrving value of short-term financial
instruments as well as receivables and payables arising in the ordinary course
of business, approximates fair value because of the relatively short period of
time between their origination and expected realization. Quoted market
prices are used for most investments, for loans where available, and for both
trading and end-user derivatives, as well as for liabilities, such as long-term
debt, with quoted prices. For performing loans where no quoted market prices
are available, contractual cash flows are discounted at quoted secondary
market rates or estimated market rates if available. Otherwise, sales of
comparable loan portfolios or current market origination rates for loans with
similar terms and risk characteristics are used. For loans with doubt as to
collectibility, expected cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate
considering the time of collection and a premium for the uncertainty of the
flows. The value of collateral is also considered. For liabilities such as long-
term debt without quoted market prices, market borrowing rates of interest
are used to discount contractual cash flows.

Fair values of credit card securitizations reflect the various components of
these transactions but principally arise from fixed rates payable to certificate
holders. Under the applicable requirements, the estimated fair value of
deposits with no fixed maturity in the following table excludes the premium
values available in the market for such deposits, and the estimated value is
shown in the table as being equal to the carrying value.

2001 2000
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
In biflions of doliars at year-end value fair value value fair value
Assets and related
instruments
Investments $160.8 $160.8 $1201 $120.1
Federal funds sold and
securities borrowed or
purchased under
agreements to resell 134.8 134.8 105.9 105.9
Trading account assets 1449 1449 132.5 1325
Loanst 359.1 3746 338.1 351.1
Other financial assets 156.6 156.3 138.2 138.6
Liabilities and related
instruments
Deposits 3745 374.2 300.6 3007
Federal funds purchased
and securities loaned or sold
under agreements
to repurchase 153.5 153.5 110.6 110.6
Trading account liabilities 80.5 80.5 85.1 85.1
Contractholder funds
With defined maturities 9.5 10.0 6.7 6.7
Without defined maturities 10.6 10.3 101 9.9
Long-term debt 121.6 124.3 111.8 112.3
Other financial fiabilties®® 132.5 132.5 148.2 147.8

(1) The carrying value of loans is net of the allowance for credit losses and also excludes $22.7 billion and
$20.0 hiflion of lease finance receivables in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

(2) Includes cash and due from banks, deposits at interest with banks, brokerage receivables, reinsurance
recoverables and separate and variable accounts for which the carrying value Is a reasonable estimate
of fair valug, and the carrying value and estimated fair value of financial instruments included in other
assets on the Consotidated Statement of Financial Position,

{3} Includes brokerage payables, separate and variable accounts, Investment banking and brokerage bor-
rowings, short-term borrowings, for which the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value, and
the carrying value and estimated fair value of financial instruments included in other liabilities on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Fair values vary from period to period based on changes in a wide range of
factors, including interest rates, credit quality, and market perceptions of value,
and as existing assets and liabilities run off and new items are entered into.

The estimated fair values of loans reflect changes in credit status since the
loans were made, changes in interest rates in the case of fixed-rate loans, and
premium values at origination of certain loans. The estimated fair values of
Citigroup’s loans, in the aggregate, exceeded carrying values (reduced by the
allowance for credit losses) by $15.5 billion at year-end 2001 and $13.0 billion
in 2000. Within these totals, estimated fair values exceeded cartying values for
consumer loans net of the allowance by $10.9 billion, an increase of $1.5
billion from year-end 2000, and for commercial loans net of the allowance
by $4.6 billion, which was an increase of $1.0 billion from year-end 2000.
The increase in estimated fair values in excess of carrying values of consumer
loans and commercial loans is primarily due to the lower interest rate
environment in 2001.

The estimated fair value of credit card securitizations, which are included
with other financial assets in the table above, was $0.3 billion less than
their carrying value at December 31, 2001, which is $0.6 billion less than
December 31, 2000, when the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying
value by $0.3 billion. This decrease is due to the effects of a lower interest rate
environment on the fixed-rate investor certificates.

For 2001, all end-user derivative contracts, which are included in other
assets and other liabilities in the previous table, are carried at fair value. At

December 31, 2000 the gross difference between the fair value and carrying




amount was $0.8 billion for contracts whose fair value exceeds carrying
value, and $0.5 billion for contracts whose carrying value exceeds fair value.

26. PLEDGED ASSETS, COLLATERAL
AND COMMITMENTS

Pledged Assets

At December 31, 2001 and 2000 the approximate market values of securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and other assets pledged, excluding the
impact of FIN 39 and FIN 41 were as follows:

In milions of doflars 2001 2000
For securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase $183,814  $161,909
As collateral for securities borrowed of approximately
equivalent value 44,340 41,149
As coliateral on bank loans 154 225
To clearing organizations or segregated under
securities laws and regulations 12,834 10,427
For securities loaned 17,562 21,226
Other 43,054 41,520
$301,758  $276,456

In addition, included in cash and due from banks at December 31,
2001 and 2000 is $5.3 billion and $2.7 billion, respectively, of cash
segregated under Federal and other brokerage regulations or deposited
with clearing organizations.

At December 31, 2001 the Company had $975 million of outstanding
letters of credit from banks to satisfy various collateral and margin
requirements.

Collateral

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the approximate market value of collateral
received by the Company that may be sold or repledged by the Company,
excluding amounts netted in accordance with FIN 39 and FIN 41, was $245.0
billion and $236.6, respectively. This collateral was received in connection
with resale agreements, securities borrowings and loans, derivative
transactions, and margined broker loans.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, a substantial portion of the collateral
received by the Company had been sold or repledged in connection with
repurchase agreements, securities sold, not vet purchased, securities
borrowings and loans, pledges to clearing organizations, segregation
requirements under securities laws and regulations, derivative transactions,
and bank loans.

In addition, at December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had pledged
$47.5 billion and $47.5 billion, respectively, of collateral that may not be sold
or repledged by the secured parties.

Lease Commitments

Rental expense (principally for offices and computer equipment) was §1.7
billion, $1.5 billion and §1.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.
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Future minimum annual rentals under noncancelable leases, net of
sublease income, are as follows:

In millions of dollars at year-end

2002 $ 1,079
2003 927
2004 761
2005 759
2006 488
Thereafter 2,654

$6,668

The Company and certain of Salomon Smith Barney’s subsidiaries
together have an option to purchase the buildings presently leased for
Salomon Smith Barney's executive offices and New York City operations at the
expiration of the lease term.

Loan Commitments

In millions of dolfars at year-end 2001 2000
One to four family residential mortgages $ 5470 $ 2456
Revolving open-end loans secured by 1-4 family

residential properties 7,107 6,164
Commercial real estate, construction and land development 1,882 1,310
Credit card lines 387,396 347,383
Commercial and other consumer loan commitments () 210,909 197,415
Total $612,764  $554,728

(1) Includes commercial commitments to make or purchase loans, to purchase third-party receivables, and
to provide note Issuance or revalving underwriting facilities.

The majority of unused commitments are contingent upon customers
maintaining specific credit standards. Commercial commitments generally
have floating interest rates and fixed expiration dates and may require
payment of fees. Such fees (net of certain direct costs) are deferred and, upon
exercise of the commitment, amortized over the life of the loan or, if exercise
is deemed remote, amortized over the commitment period. The table does not
include commercial letters of credit issued on behalf of customers and
collateralized by the underlying shipment of goods which totaled §5.7 billion
and $6.8 billion at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Loans Sold with Credit Enhancements

Amounts

In billions of dollars at year-end 2001 2000  Form of credit enhancement

Residential mortgages and other
loans sold with recourse(® $77 $10.4  2001: Recourse obligation
of $3.5, and put options as
described below. 2000:
Recourse obligation of
$5.1, and put options as
described below.

GNMA sales/servicing

agreements@ 134 16.1 Secondary recourse
obligation
Securitized credit card receivables  66.8 57.0  Includes net revenue over

the life of the transaction.
Also includes other
recourse obligations of
$1.0in 2001 and 2000.

(1) Residential mortgages represent 57% of amounts in 2001 and 71% in 2000.
(2) Government National Mortgage Association sales/servicing agreements covering securitized
residential mortgages.




Citigroup and its subsidiaries are obligated under various credit
enhancements related to certain sales of loans or sales of participations in
pools of loans, as summarized above.

Net revenue on securitized credit card receivables is collected over the life
of each sale transaction. The net revenue is based upon the sum of finance
charges and fees received from cardholders and interchange revenue earned
on cardholder transactions, less the sum of the yield paid to investors, credit
losses, transaction costs, and 4 contractual servicing fee, which is also
retained by certain Citigroup subsidiaries as servicers. As specified in certain of
the sale agreements, the net reveniue collected each month is accumulated up
to a predetermined maximum amount, and is available over the remaining
term of that transaction to make payments of yield, fees, and transaction costs
in the event that net cash flows from the receivables are not sufficient. When
the predetermined amount is reached, net reveniue is passed directly to the
Citigroup subsidiary that sold the recetvables. The amount contained in these
accounts is included in other assets and was $139 million at December 31,
2001 and $66 million at December 31, 2000. Net revenue from securitized
credit card receivables included in other revenue was $2.1 billion, $2.4
billion, and $2.1 billion for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively.

Various put options were written during 2000 and 1999 which require
Citigroup to purchase, upon request of the holders, securities issued in certain
securitization transactions in order to broaden the investor base and improve
execution in connection with the securitizations. The put option at year-end
2001 is exercisable in October of each year beginning in October 2000, with
respect to an aggregate of up to approximately $2 billion principal amount of
certificates backed by manufactured housing contract receivables, of which
approximately $133 million was exercised in 2000. If exercised, the Company
will be obligated to purchase the certificates or notes at par plus accrued
interest. Two option contracts from 2000 that were exercised in 2001 were the
following: a put option, exercisable at any time after June 15, 2000, with
respect to an aggregate of up to approximately $1 billion principal amount
of notes secured by home equity loan receivables only to the extent the
securitization trust cannot meet its obligation under a separate put option
by the trust which is exercisable at any time after March 15, 2000; and a put
option, originally exercisable at any time after September 15, 2000, the
exercise of which had been extended to April 12, 2001, with respect to an
aggregate of up to approximately §1.25 billion of notes secured by hore
equity loan receivables only to the extent the notes are not purchased by the
securitization trust pursuant to a separate put option issued by the trust and
exercisable at any time after june 15, 2000. The aggregate amortized amount
of these options was approximately $1.4 billion at December 31, 2001 and
$3.4 billion at December 31, 2000. The Company has recorded liabilities
totaling approximately $6 million at December 31, 2001 and $17 mitlion 4t
December 31, 2000 in connection with these options. Subsequent to their
initial issuance, such options are marked to market with the fluctuation
being reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income.
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Financial Guarantees

Financial guarantees are used in various transactions to enhance the credit
standing of Citigroup customers. They represent irrevocable assurances, subject
to the satisfaction of certain conditions, that Citigroup will make payment in
the event that the customer fails to fulfill its obligations to third parties.

Citicorp issues financial standby letters of credit which are obligations to
pay a third-party beneficiary when a customer fails to repay an outstanding
loan or debt instrument, such as assuring payments by a foreign reinsurer to 4
U.S. insuret, to act as a substitute for an escrow account, to provide a payment
mechanism for a customer’s third-party obligations, and to assure payment of
specified financial obligations of a customer. Fees are recognized ratably over
the term of the standby letter of credit. The following table summarizes
financial standby letters of credit issued by Citicorp. The table does not include
securities lending indemnifications issued to customers, which are fully
collateralized and totaled $19.9 billion at December 31,2001 and $15.5 billion
at December 31, 2000, and performance standby letters of credit.

2001 2000

Expire within Expire after  Total amount Total amount

in biltions of dollars at year-end 1 year 1year  outstanding outstanding

Insurance, surety $28 $ 67 $95 $ 80
Options, purchased securities,

and escrow 0.3 0.1 0.4 0.3

Clean letters of credit 3.3 1.0 4.3 45

Backstop state, county, and

municipal securities — — - 0.1

Other debt related 7.4 27 10.1 10.2

Total® $13.8 $10.5 $24.3 $23.1

(1) Total Is net of cash collateral of $2.2 billion in 2007 and $2.0 billion in 2000. Collateral other than cash
covered 30% of the total in 2001 and 24% in 2000.

Other Commitments

Salomon Smith Barney and a principal broker-dealer subsidiary have each

provided a portion of 4 residual value guarantee in the amount of $77 million

in connection with the lease of the buildings occupied by Salomon Smith

Barney’s executive offices and New York operations.

27. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, Citigroup and/or its subsidiaries are
defendants or co-defendants in various litigation matters, other than
environmental and asbestos property and casualty insurance claims as
discussed in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Staternents. Although there
can be no assurances, the Company believes, based on information currently
available, that the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings would not be
likely to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial
condition, or liquidity.




28. CITIGROUP (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Condensed Statement of Income

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

in milions of doltars 2001 2000 1999
Year ended December 31,
in mitions of doftars 2001 2000 1999 Cash fiows from operating activities
Net income $14,126  $13519  §$11,243
Revenues $ 54 8§ 133 8§ 80  adjustments toreconcile net income to cash
Expenses: provided by operating activities:
interest 851 346 289 Equity in net income of subsidiaries (14,642) (13,8200  (11,529)
Other 267 255 133 Dividends received from:
Bank and bank holding company
Total 918 601 522 subsidiaries 5,784 1,255 4,791
Pre-tax loss (864) (468) (442) Other subsidiaries 2,325 1,535 2,285
Income tax benefit 348 167 156 Other, net (199) (40) 2046
Loss before equity in net Net cash provided by operating activities 7,484 2,249 8,836
income of subsidiaries (516) (301) (286)  Cash flows from investing activities
Equity in netincome of subsidiaries 14,642 13,820 11,529 Capital contributions to subsidiaries (6,250) (5,800) (321)
Change in investments (1,487) 1,763 (425)
Income 14126 $13510 81243 vances tosubsidiaries, net (13733) 6523 (1,208
Condensed Statement of Financial Position Net cash used in investing activities (21,470) (10,560 (1,952
December31,  Cash flows from financing activities
» Proceeds from (repayment of) advances
I milons of golers 2m 2000 from subsidiaries, net 2,061 67 (1197)
Assets Dividends paid (3,185) (2,654) (2,139
Cash $ 27 3 85 Issuance of common stock 875 958 758
Investments 1,487 — Redemption of preferred stock (250) (150) (388)
Investment in and advances to: Stock tendered for payment of
Bank and bank holding company subsidiaries 87,562 56,973 withholding taxes (506) (593) (496)
Other subsidiaries 33,060 30,431 Treasury stock acquired (3,045) (4,066} (3,954)
Cost of acquired businesses in excess of net assets 368 381 Issuance of long-term debt 17,610 14,817 1,859
Other 383 508 Issuance of junior subordinated debentures 2,483 — 619
Payments and redemptions of long-term debt (3,000) (650) (100)
Total $122,887 $88.378 Change in short-term borrowings (15) 496 (991)
Liabilities Net cash provided by (used in)
Advances from and payables to subsidiaries $ 748 § 270 financing activities 13,928 7,541 (6,029)
Commercial paper 481 496
Junior subordinated debantures, held by subsidiary trusts 4,850 2367  Changein cash (58) {770) 855
Long-term dabt 34,794 18,197 Cash at beginning of period 85 855 —
Other labilties 541 816 Cashatend of period $ 27 $ 85 § 855
Redeemable preferred stock, held by subsidiary 226 226
Stockholders’ equity Supplemental disclosure of cash
Prefarred stock ($1.00 par value; authorized shares: flow information
30 million), at aggregate liquidation value 1,525 1,745 Cash paid during the period for interest $ 1739 $§ 510 $ 400
Common stock Cash received during the period for taxes 911 1,066 1,251
(8.01 par value; authorized shares: 15 billion),
issued shares: 5,477,416,254 at December 31, 2001
and 5,351,143,583 at December 31, 2000 55 54
Additional paid-in capital 23,196 16,504
Retained earnings 69,803 58,862
Treasury stock, at cost (2001 — 328,727,790 shares;
and 2000—2328,921,189 sharas) (11,099) (10,213
Accumulated other changes in equity from
nONOwWner sources (844) 123
Unearned compensation (1,389) (869)
Stockholders’ equity 81,247 66,206
Total $122,887  $88,378
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29. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2001 2000
fn miltions of dollars, except per Share amounts Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Total revenues $26,650 $27,714  $27,854 $29,804 $29,328 $28,624  $27.059  $26,815
Total revenues, net of interest expense 21,004 19,387 19,385 20,281 19,003 18,835 18,220 19,130
Total benefits, claims, and credit losses 5,200 4,983 4,166 4,201 4,288 3,760 3,753 3,685
Total operating expenses 9,985 9,523 9,592 10,501 10,282 9,620 9,290 9,367
Income before income taxes, minority interest, and cumulative

effect of accounting changes 5,810 4,881 5,627 5,579 4,433 5,455 5177 6,078
Provision for income taxes 1,898 1,678 1,960 1,990 1,582 1,958 1,818 2,167
Minority interest, net of income taxes 37 26 15 9 11 13 20 55
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 3,875 3,177 3,652 3,580 2,840 3,484 3,339 3,856
Cumulative effect of accounting changest™ —_ - (116) (42) — — — —
Net income $3875 $3177 $3536 $3538 $2840 $3484 $3339 § 385
Basic earnings per share $ 075 ¢$ 062 $ 070 $ 070 $ 057 $ 069 $ 067 $ 077
Diluted earnings per share $ 074 $ 061 $ 069 $ 069 $ 055 $ 067 $ 085 $ 075
Common stock price per share
High $51.190  $53.480  $53.550  $56.297  $57.125  $59.125  $50156  $46.781
Low 41,750 36.360 42.700 40.600 44,500 45,422 42.000 35.813
Close 50.480 40.500 52.840 44.980 51.063 54,063 45,188 44,906
Dividends per share of common stock 0.160 0.160 0.140 0.140 0.140 0.140 0.120 0.120

(1) Accounting changes include the first quarter 2001 adoption of SFAS 133 and the secand quarter 2001 adoption of EITF 99-20.

Due to averaging of shares, quarterly earnings per share may not add to
the totals for the full-year totals. The fourth quarter of 2001 includes charges
of $235 million (pretax) related to write-downs of Argentine credit exposures
and $235 million (pretax) in losses related to the foreign exchange
revaluation of the consumer loan portfolio. The 2001 fourth quarter also
includes a $228 million {pretax) write-down of Enron-related credit exposure
and trading positions, and the impairment of Enron-related investments.

The third, second and first quarters of 2001 include $82 million after-tax
(8129 million pretax), $129 million after-tax ($209 million pretax) and $66
million after-tax ($110 million pretax), respectively, of restructuring charges.
The fourth, third, and second quarters of 2000 include $381 million after-tax
($538 million pretax), $15 million after-tax ($24 million pretax), and $11
million after-tax (§17 million pretax), respectively, of restructuring charges,
and in the 2000 fourth and third quarters, include §119 million after-tax
($143 million pretax) and $22 million after-tax ($34 million pretax),
respectively, of merger-related costs. The fourth quarter of 2000 includes a

115

$135 million after-tax ($210 million pretax) transportation loss provision
related to the truck loan and leasing portfolio. The first quarter of 2000
includes a $71 million after-tax (8112 million pretax) charge related to
discontinuation of Associates Housing Finance loan originations. The fourth
and second quarters of 2001 include credits for reductions of prior charges of
$22 million after-tax ($35 million pretax) and $10 million after-tax (§18
million pretax), respectively. The fourth and second quarters of 2000 include
credits for reductions of prior charges of $13 million after-tax ($22 million
pretax) and $28 million after-tax ($43 million pretax), respectively. The 2001
fourth, third, second and first quarters also include $9 million after-tax

($14 million pretax), $3 million after-tax ($5 million pretax), $14 million
after-tax ($22 million pretax), and $14 million after-tax ($22 million
pretax), respectively, of restructuring-related accelerated depreciation. The
2000 fourth, third, second, and first quarters also include $4 million after-tax
($7 million pretax), $8 million after-tax (§12 million pretax), $19 million
after-tax ($29 million pretax), and $12 million after-tax ($20 million
pretax), respectively, of restructuring-related accelerated depreciation.




FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT

AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES, TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS"@®

Average volume Interest revenue % Average rate
In millions of doliars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Assets
Cash and due from banks
InU.S. offices $ 2842 ¢ 3338 $ 3038 $ -~ $& — § — - — -
In offices outside the U.S.¢4 1,095 1,540 917 17 30 13 1.55 1.95 1.42
Total 3,937 4,878 3,955 17 30 13 0.43 0.62 0.33
Deposits at interest with banks® 18,395 13,232 12,384 1,265 1,226 992 6.88 9.27 8.01
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed
or purchased under agreements to resell
in U.S. offices 104,150 96,807 82,778 7,082 8,654 6,120 6.80 8.94 7.39
In offices outside the U.S. 34,087 30,615 32,635 1,798 1817 1,549 5.27 593 475
Totat 138,237 127,422 115413 8,880 10,471 7,669 6.42 8.22 6.64
Brokerage receivables
in U.S. offices 25,058 26,029 17,002 1,197 2,135 1,212 478 8.20 7.13
in offices outside the U.S.® 2,517 3,271 3,416 205 320 188 8.14 9.78 5.50
Total 27,575 29,300 20,418 1,402 2,455 1,400 5.08 8.38 6.86
Trading account assets®5®)
InU.S. offices 81,241 63,723 58,052 3,685 3,181 2,245 454 499 3.87
In offices outside the U.S.@ 37,304 36,571 30,948 1,787 1,340 989 479 3.66 3.20
Total 118,545 100,294 89,000 5,472 4,521 3,234 4.62 4.51 3.63
investments
InU.S. offices
Taxable 79731 74,375 67,924 4,919 4916 4,327 6.17 6.61 6.37
Exempt from U.S. income tax 16,050 14,747 14,297 1,213 1,057 1,000 7.56 717 6.99
In offices outside the U.S.@ 38,822 29,623 28,262 2,557 2,169 2,907 6.59 7.32 10.28
Total 134,603 118,745 110,483 8,689 8,142 8,234 6.46 6.86 7.45
Loans (net of unearned income)”
Consumer loans
In U.S. offices 151,837 134624 113,773 17,353 15,797 13,321 11.43 1173 1.71
in offices outside the U.S.® 79,782 75,200 63,984 10,187 9,708 8,984 12,77 12.91 13.02
Total consumer loans 231,619 209,824 182,757 27,540 25,505 22,305 11.89 12.16 12.20
Commercial loans
inU.S. offices
Commerciat and industrial 36,330 32,472 27,443 2,759 2,649 2,325 7.59 8.16 8.47
Lease financing 14,364 11,792 8,758 1,339 1,045 682 9.32 8.86 7.79
Mortgage and real estate 3,140 3,598 6,518 278 361 730 8.85 10.03 11.20
In offices qutside the U.S.& 91,867 79,812 73,565 7,706 7,821 6,980 8.39 9.80 9.49
Total commercial loans 145,701 127,674 116,284 12,082 11,876 10,717 8.29 9.30 922
Total loans 377,320 337,498 299,041 39,622 37,381 33,022 10.50 11.08 11.04
Other interest-earning assets 15,456 9,745 7,740 1,607 1,027 753 10.40 10.54 9.73
Total interest-earning assets 834,068 741,114 658,434  $66,954  $65253  $55,317 8.03 8.80 8.40
Non-interest earning assets® 149171 135,538 118,641
Total assets $983,239 $876,652 $777,075
1) The taxable equivalent adjustment is based on the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate of 35%.
2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories. See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financiai Statements.
3) Monthly or quarterly averages have been used by certain subsidiaries, where daily averages are unavaiiable.
)

Average rates refiect prevailing local interest rates including infiationary effects and monetary correction in certain countries.

5) The fair value carrying amounts of derivative and foreign exchange contracts are reported in non-interest earning assets and other non-interest bearing liahilities.
6) Interest expense on trading account liabilities of Salomon Smith Barney is reported as a reduction of interest revenue,

7) Includes cash-bass loans.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES, TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS(1@8

Average volume Interest expense % Average rate

In millions of doltars 2001 . 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Liabilities
Deposits
InU.S. offices

Savings deposits 7 $ 68427 $ 36252 $33422 $1676 $1206 § 928 2.45 3.33 2,78

Other time deposits 20,391 16,050 12,105 461 712 301 2.26 4.44 249
In offices outside the U.S.4) 209,542 196,368 169,138 9,099 11,172 9,518 4.34 5.69 5.63
Total 298,360 248,670 214,665 11,236 13,090 10,748 3.77 5.26 5.01
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned

or sold under agreements to repurchase
InU.S. offices 118,928 106,655 79,669 7,673 9,515 8,172 6.45 8.92 7.75
In offices autside the U.S.19 36,878 27,435 30,326 2,892 2,351 1,778 7.84 8.57 5.86
Total 155,806 134,090 109,995 10,565 11,866 7,950 6.78 8.85 7.23
Brokerage payables
In U.S. offices 22,632 18,275 11,852 236 282 219 1.04 1.54 1.85
In offices outside the U.S¥ 1,851 1,926 1,675 12 25 3 0.65 1.30 0.18
Total 24,483 20,201 13,627 , 248 307 222 1.01 1.52 1.64
Trading account liabilities ©©
In U.S. offices 23,544 20,711 28,409 37 39 54 0.16 0.19 0.19
In offices outside the U.S.# 24,773 22,696 21,150 12 17 31 0.05 0.07 0.15
Total 48,317 43,407 49,559 49 56 85 0.10 013 0.17
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings
In U.S. offices 13,651 16,970 11,656 669 1,188 663 4.90 7.00 5.69
In offices outside the U.S.4 679 539 533 I 58 86 10.46 10.76 14.50
Total 14,330 17,509 12,249 740 1,246 749 5.16 7.12 6.11
Short-term borrowings
InU.S. offices 33,965 42,482 35,318 1,359 2,131 1,631 4.00 5.02 4.62
In offices outside the U.S.@ 10,066 8,809 9,539 944 1223 1,343 9.38 13.88 14.08
Total 44,031 51,291 44,857 2,303 3,354 2,974 5.23 6.54 6.63
Long-term debt
In U.S. offices 114,372 84,658 79,392 5,827 5679 4,802 5.09 6.71 6.05
In offices outside the U.S.4 10,029 10,402 9,548 572 662 776 570 6.36 8.13
Total 124,401 85,060 88,940 6,399 6,341 5578 5.14 6.67 6.27
Mandatorily redeemable securities of

subsidiary trusts 5,563 4,920 4,920 425 378 368 7.64 7.68 7.48
Demand deposits in U.S. offices 8,293 9,998 10,761
Other non-interest bearing liahilities® 186,870 189,977 173,852
Total stockholders’ equity 72,785 61,529 53,750
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $983,239 $876,652 §777,075  $31,965 336,638  $28,674
Net interest revenue as a percentage of

average interest-earning assets
InU.S. offices® $529,774 $471,277 $407,304  $22,400 $17,578  $16,543 4.23 3.73 4.06
in offices outside the U.S.® 304,294 269,837 251,130 12,589 11,037 10,100 4.14 4.09 4.02
Total ‘ $834,068 $741,114 $658,434  $34,989  $28,615  $26,643 419 3.86 4.05

(1) The taxable equivalent adjustment is based on the U.S. Federat statutory tax rate of 35%.

(2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories. See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) Monthly or quarterly averages have been used by certain subsidiaries, where daily averages are unavailable.

(4) Average rates reflect prevailing local interest rates including inflationary effects and monetary correction in certain countries.

(5) The fair value carrying amounts of derivative and foreign exchange cantracts are reported in non-interest earning assets and other non-interest bearing liabilities.

(6) Interest expense on trading account liabilities of Salomon Smith Barney Is reported as a reduction of interest revenue.

7} Savings deposits consist of Insured Money Market Rate accounts, NOW accounts, and other savings deposits.

)

(

(8) Includes allocations for capital and funding costs based on the location of the asset.




ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST REVENUE

2001 vs. 2000 2000 vs. 1999
Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)
due to change in: due to change in:

Average Average Net Average Average Net
In miltions of doliars on a taxable equivalent basis ! volume rate change@ volume rate change®?
Cash and due from banks $ @ $ (B $ (13 $ M $ 6 $ 17
Deposits at interest with banks @ 404 (365) 39 71 163 234
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell
InU.S. offices 619 (2,191) (1,572) 1,134 1,400 2,534
In offices outside the U.S.® 195 (214) (19) (100) 368 268
Total 814 (2,405) (1,591) 1,034 1,768 2,802
Brokerage receivables
InU.S. offices (77) (861) (938) 719 204 923
In offices outside the U.S.@ 67) (48) (115) ®) 140 132
Total . (144) (909) (1,053) 711 344 1,055
Trading account assets @
InU.S. offices 815 (311) 504 236 700 936
In offices outside the U.S.@ 27 420 447 194 157 351
Total 842 109 951 430 857 1,287
Investments
InU.S. offices 434 (275) 159 458 188 646
In offices cutside the U.S.@ 622 (234) 388 134 872 (738)
Total 1,056 (509) 547 592 (684) (92)
Loans — consumer '
InU.S. offices 1,976 (420) 1,556 2,447 29 2,476
In offices outside the U.S.® 586 (107) 479 803 (79) 724
Total 2,562 (527) 2,035 3,250 {50) 3,200
Loans — commercial
InU.S. offices 490 (169) 321 439 (121) 318
In offices outside the U.S.@ 1,094 {1,209) (115) 806 235 841
Total 1,584 {1,378) 206 1,045 114 1,159
Total loans 4,146 {1,905) 2,241 4,285 64 4,359
Other interest-earning assets 594 (14) 580 207 67 274
Total interest revenue 7,704 (6,003) 1,701 7,351 2,585 9,936
Deposits
InU.S. offices 1,031 (812) 219 202 487 689
In offices outside the U.S.@ 710 (2,783) (2,073) 1,548 105 1,653
Total 1,741 {3,595) (1,854) 1,750 592 2,342
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase
InU.S. offices 1,006 (2,848) (1,842) 2,310 1,033 3,343
In offices outside the U.S.@) 754 (213) 541 (183) 756 573
Total 1,760 (3,061) (1,301) 2,127 1,789 3,916
Brokerage payables
InU.S. offices 58 (104) (46) 103 (40) 63
In offices outside the U.S.® . (1) (12) (13) 1 21 22
Total 57 (116) (59) 104 19) 85
Trading account liabilities ¢
InU.S. offices 5 7) (2) (15) — (15)
in offices outside the U.S.® 1 (6) 5) 3 7 19
Total 6 (13) (7) (12 (17 29)
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings
InU.S. offices (205) (314) (519) 348 177 525
In offices outside the U.S.8 15 {2) 13 {7) 21) (28)
Total (190) (316) (506) 341 166 497
Short-term borrewings
In U.S. offices (384) (388) (772) 351 149 500
In offices outside the U.S.@ 157 (436) (279) (102) (18) {(120)
Total (227) (824) {1,051) 249 131 380
Long-term debt
InU.S. offices 1,709 {1,561) 148 332 545 877
In offices outside the U.S.® (23) (67) (90) 65 (179) (114)
Total 1,686 (1,628) 58 397 366 763
Mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 49 (2) 47 — 10 10
Total interest expense 4,882 (9,555) (4,673) 4,956 3,008 7,964
Net interest revenue $2,822 $ 3,552 $6,374 $2,395 $ (423 $1,972
(1) The taxable equivalent adjustment is based on the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate of 35%.
(2) Rate/volume variance is allocated based on the percentage refationship of changes in volume and changes in rate to the total net change.
(3) Changes in average rates reflect changes in prevailing local interest rates including inflationary effects and monetary correction in certain countries.
(4) Interest expense on trading account liabllities of Salomon Smith Barney is reported as a reduction of interest revenue.
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RATIOS LOANS OUTSTANDING
2001 2000 1999 In millions of dollars at year-end 2001 2000 1899 1998 1997
Net income to average assets 1.44% 1.54% 1.45%  Consumer loans
Return on common stockholders’ equity® 19.72% 22.43% 21.47%  InU.S. offices
Return on total stockholders’ equity® 18.41% 21.97% 20.92% Mortgage and real estate  $ 80,098 $ 73,166 § 59,376 $ 51,381 $ 46,465
Total average equity to average assets 7.40% 7.02% 6.92% Installment, revolving
Dividends declared per common credit, and other 84,367 78,017 63374 60,564 57,340
share as a percentage of income per
common share, assuming dilution 22.1% 19.8% 18.7% 164466 151183 122750 111,945 103,805
) - in offices outside the U.S.
(1 Egs&%gg;e; |gg<u1irtnf iess total preferred stock dividends as a percentage of average common Mortgage and real estate 27,703 24988 24808 21578 19,140
(2) Based on net income less preferred stock dividends as a percentage of average total Instaliment, revolving
stackhoiders' equiy. credt, and other 54,276 55515 50,203 42,375 34,989
Lease financing 391 427 475 484 544
FOREGONE INTEREST REVENUE ON LOANS ® 82370 80030 75576 64,437 54,673
InU.S. In non-U.S. 2001
In millions of dofiars offices offices total 246,836 232,113 198,326 176,382 158,478
Unearned income 2,677y (3.234) (3,757) (3,377) (3432
interest revenue that would have been
accrued at original contractual rates® $358 $516 $874 Consumer loans—net 244,159 228,879 194,569 173,005 155,046
Amount recognized as interest revenug® 103 164 267 Commercial loans
Foregone interest revenue $255 $352 $607 In U.S. offices
Commercial and industrial 32,431 37,220 30,163 26,182 23,597
(i) Belates to commercial cash-basis and renegotiated loans and consumer loans on which accrual of Lease f‘mancmg 18,518 14,864 10,281 9,477 8,690
interest had been suspended.
(2) Interest revenue in offices outside the U.S. may refiect prevailing local interest rates, including the Mortgage and real estate 2,784 3,490 5,439 9,000 7,666
effects of inflation and monetary correction in certain countries.
53,733 55574 45883 44,659 39,953
LOAN MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN In offices outside the U.S.
INTEREST RATES Commercial and industrial ~ 76,469 69,111 61984 56,761 48,284
_m[_lu;z bt OYtehrj o Mortgage and real estate 2,859 1,720 1728 1,792 1,651
. within T but within ver Loans to financial
In mitlions of dollars at year-end year 5years §years Total institutions 10,163 9559 7,692 8,008 6,480
Maturities of the gross commercial Lease financing 3,788 3,689 2,459 1,760 1,439
loan portfolio Governments and official
In U.S. offices institutions 4,033 1,952 3,250 2,132 2,376
Commercial and industrial loans $ 7,734 $18665 $ 6,032 $ 32,431
Mortgage and real estate 925 1,353 506 2,784 97,302 86031 77113 70453 60,230
Lease financing 3192 12173 3,153 18,518 151,035 141,605 122,896 115112 100,183
In offices outside the U.S. 60,073 28,517 8,712 97,302 Unearned income (3,261) (3,462) (2,664) (2439 (2,186)
Total commercial loan portfolio $71,924 $60,708 $18,403 $151,035 Commercial loans—net 147,774 138,143 120,332 112,673 97,997
Sensitivity of loans due after one Total loans—net of
year to changes in interest rates(t unearned income 391,933 367,022 314,901 285678 253,043
Loans at predetermined interest rates $28,602 $ 8,110 Allowance for credit
Loans at floating or adjustable losses (10,088) (8,961) (8,853) (8,596) (8,087)
interest rates 32,106 10,293
Total loans —net of
Total $60,708 $18,403 unearned income

(1) Based on contractual terms. Repricing characteristics may effectively be modified from time to time
using derivative contracts. See Notes 23 and 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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and allowance for
credit losses

$381,845 $358,061 $306,048 $277,082 $244,956




CASH-BASIS, RENEGOTIATED, AND PAST DUE LOANS

DETAILS OF CREDIT LOSS EXPERIENCE

In millions of dollars at year-end 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 In millions of dolfars 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Commercial Allowance for credit losses
cash-basis loans at beginning of year $8,961 $8,853 $8536 $8,087  $7,306
Coliateral dependent Provision for credit losses
(at lower of cost or Consumer 5316 4345 4169 3753 3523
collateral value) $699 $ 390 $473 $ 555 $ 398 Commercial 1,484 904 591 508 79
Other® 3,342 1,580 1,162 1,201 806
6,800 5339 4,760 4,261 3,595
Total $4,041  $1970 $1635 $1,756  $1,204 .
Gross credit losses
Commercial Consumer!(!}
cash-basis loans InU.S. offices 4185 3413 3063 3057 3,011
In U.S. offices $1,315 $ 700 $ 476 $ 614 $ 432 '[r:‘o‘)nf:'rcne:rgius‘de the U.S. 2048 1939 179 1235 989
In offices outside the U.S.2 2,726 1,270 1,159 1,142 772 Mortgage and real estate
Total $4,041  $1,970 $1,635 $1,756  $1,204 InU.S. offices 13 10 59 40 33
In offices outside the U.S. 3 22 11 58 47 -
Commerecial Governments and official
renegotiated loans institutions outside the U.S. - — — 3 —
In U.S. offices $ 551 $63¢ $ 509 $ 532 $ 560 Loans to financial institutions
In offices outside the U.S. 130 151 98 96 77 In U.S. offices 10 - - - -
in offices outside the U.S. - — 11 97 7
Total $681 378 §$ 607 $ 628 $ 837 Commercial and industrial
R InU.S. offices 1,378 563 186 125 70
Consumer loans on which In offices outside the U.S. 651 an 479 348 112
accrual of interest had
been suspended 8,288 6258 5608 4963 4,269
In U.S. offices $2,501 $1,797 $1696 $1,751  $1,679  Credit recoveries
In offices outside the U.S.@ 1,733 1,607 1,821 1,664 1,063 Consumeri!
in U.S. offices 435 526 413 427 450
Total 34234 83404 §3517 83415 82742y offices outside the US, M8 403 36 287 264
Accruing loans 90 or more Commercial®
days definquent Molrr:gt? S gf?\igga' e 1 9 3 89 50
InU.S. offices $1,822 $1247 $ 874 § 833 $ 871 n oﬁiées outside the U.S 1 ] 9 10 7
in offices outside the US.@ 776 385 452 532 467 Governments and official -
Total $2,598 $1,632 $1326 $1,385 $1,338 institutions outside the U.S. - 1 - 10 36
Loans to financial institutions
(1) A cash-basis loan is defined as coflateral dependent when repayment is expected to be provided solely in offices outside the U.S. 9 9 5 16 17
Cho 0 arh e e Cown o e owe o coctor cltgrtvlan e Commeraia and ndustral 262 " 9 % -
) : nU.S. offices
g; g?xebs?:ﬁge%szl\sgdnzs%(r)r:eE\aéggcseolfn\gllr:ga%%az%amﬁri(olg,agg(%amimon, $379 miilion, $267 million, and In offices outside the U.S. 134 70 94 30 35
$240 million are government-guaranteed student loans at December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, and
1997, respectively. 1,260 1,064 925 a05 951
Net credit losses
OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED AND OTHER InU.S. offices 4,888 3,406 2,840 2,670 2,542
REPOSSESSED ASSETS In offices outside the U.S. 2,140 1,788 1,843 1,388 776
In mitlions of doflars at year-end 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 7,028 5,164 4,683 4,058 3,318
Other real estate owned Other —net® 1,355 (37) 180 306 504
Consumert! $393 $366 $332 $358 $ 356 Allowance for credit losses
Commercialt” 220 291 511 514 716 atend of year $10,088 $8961 $8,853 $8596  $8,087
Corporate/Other 8 8 14 8 8
Net consumer credit losses $5,380 $4,423 $4,003 $3578 $3,286
Total other real As a percentage of average
estate owned 5621 $665  $857  $880 1,080 consumer loans 232%  211%  2.24%  223%  219%
Other repossessed assets@  $439 $292 $256 $135  § 126 Net commercial creditlosses  $1,648 § 771  $ 590 § 480 § 32
As a percentage of average
(1) Represents repossessed real estate, carried at lower of cost or fair value, less costs to sell. commercial loans 113% 0.60% 0.51% 0.45% 0.04%

(2) Primarily commercial transportation equipment and manufactured housing, carried at lower of cost or

falr value, less costs to sell.
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(1) Consumer credit losses and recoverles primarily relate to revolving credit and installment foans.
(2) Includes amounts received under credit default swaps purchased from third parties.

(3) 2001 primarily includes the addition of allowance for cradit losses related to the acquisitions of

Banamex and EAB. Also includes the addition of allowance for credit losses related to other acquisitions
and the impact of fareign currency translation effects. 1998 reflects the addition of $320 million

of credit loss reserves related to the acquisition of the Universal Card portfolio, In 1997, $373 millicn
was restored to the aliowance for credit losses that had previousty been attributed to credit card
securitization transactions where the exposure to credit losses was contractually limited to the cash

flows from the securitized receivables, $50 million attributable to standby lettars of credit and

guarantees was reclassified to other liabilities, and $50 million attributable to derivative and foreign
exchange contracts was reclassified as a deduction from trading account assets.




AVERAGE DEPOSIT LIABILITIES IN OFFICES OUTSIDE THE U.S.7

2001 2000 1999

Average Average Average Average Average Average

in millions of dollars at year-end balance interestrate balance  interest rate balance  interest rate
Banks@ $ 24,039 6.39% $ 32,063 6.78% $ 21,993 7.10%

QOther demand deposits 58,885 2.74 44,486 3.64 38,798 3.14

Other time and savings deposits® 141,392 435 132325 5.57 119,581 5.64

Total $224,316 414  $208,874 535 $180,372 528

{1) Interest rates and amounts Include the effects of risk management activities, and also reflect the Impact of the local Interest rates prevailing in certain countries. See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Primarily consists of time certificates of deposit and other time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more.

MATURITY PROFILE OF TIME DEPOSITS ($100,000 OR
MORE) IN U.S. OFFICES

In milfions of doliars Under 3 Over3t06  Over6toi12 Over12
at year-end 2001 months maonths months months
Certificates of deposit $4,480 $793 $829 $1,798
Other time deposits 535 191 115 6,748

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER BORROWINGS®

Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under

Investment banking and

agreements to repurchase Commercial paper Other funds borrowed brokerage borrowings

In millions of doflars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 - 1999
Amounts outstanding

at year-end $153,511 $110,625 § 92591 $12,696 $38,152 $31,018 $11,765 $13523 $13,321 $14,804 $18227 $13719
Average outstanding

during the year 155,806 134,090 109,995 30,524 37,837 32,769 13,507 13,454 12,088 14,330 17,509 12,249
Maximum month end

outstanding 172,763 154,543 128,112 35,825 43,037 38,018 16,331 15,478 17,666 18,840 21,701 14,048
Weighted-average interest rate
During the year® 6.78% 8.85% 7.23% 3.58% 5.02% 4.75% 8.95% 10.82% 11.72% 5.16% 7.12% 6.11%
At year-endi 2.49% 578% 4.34% 1.98% 5.36% 5.69% 3.44% 8.76% 7.94% 2.03% 6.55% 8.00%

(1) Original maturities of less than one year.

(2) Rates reflect the impact of local interast rates prevailing in countries outside the United States.

(3} Interest rates include the effects of risk management activities. See Notes 12 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
{4) Based on contractual rates at year-end.
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Property-Casualty Insurance Services-Other Information

Selected Product Information

The following table sets forth by product line net written premiums
(including Associates) for Commercial Lines and Personal Lines for the year
ended 2001. Many National Accounts custorners dernand services, other than
pure risk coverage, primarily for workers’ compensation and o a lesser extent
general liability and commercial automobile exposures. These types of
services include risk management services such as claims management, loss
control and risk management information services, and are generally offered
in connection with a large deductible or self~insured programs. These services
generate fee income rather than net written premiurns, and are not reflected
in the following table.

2001 Net Written Premiums

Amount of Percentage of
net written total net written
In millions of dollars premiums premiums
Product Line
Commercial Lines
Commercial multi-perit $1,793 28.6%
Workers’ compensation 1,033 16.5
Commercial automobite 1,133 18.0
Property 905 14.4
Genegral liability 506 8.1
Fidelity and surety 907 144
Total Commercial Lines $6,277 100.0%
Personal Lines
Automobile $2,642 63.4%
Homeowners and other 1,524 36.6
Total Personal Lines $4,166 100.0%

Property and Casualty Reserves

Property and casualty claim reserves are established to account for the
estimated ultimate costs of claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims
that have been reported but not vet settled and claims that have been incurred
but not reported. The Company establishes reserves by major product line,
coverage and year.

The table on page 123 sets forth the year-end reserves from 1991 through
2001, and the subsequent changes in those reserves, presented on a historical
basis for the Company. The original estimates, cumulative amounts paid, and
reestimated reserves in the table for the years 1991-1995 have not been
restated to include the property-casualty insurance businesses acquired by the
Company from Aetna Services, Inc. in 1996 (Aetna P&C). Beginning in 1996,
the table includes the reserve activity of Aetna P&C. The data in the table is
presented in accordance with reporting requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Care must be taken to avoid misinterpretation by
those unfamiliar with this information or familiar with other data commonly
reported by the insurance industry. The following data is not accident year
data, but rather a display of 1991-2001 year-end reserves and the subsequent
changes in those reserves, For instance, the “cumulative deficiency or
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redundancy” shown in the table for each year represents the aggregate
amount by which original estimates of reserves as of that vear-end have
changed in subsequent vears. Accordingly, the cumulative deficiency for a
vear relates only to reserves at that year-end and those amounts are not
additive. Expressed another way, if the original reserves at the end of 1991
included $4 million for a loss that is finally paid in 2001 for §5 million, the
$1 million deficiency (the excess of the actual payment of §5 million over the
original estimate of $4 million) would be included in the cumulative
deficiencies in each of the vears 1991- 2000 shown in the table.

Various factors may distort the reestimated reserves and cumulative
deficienicy or redundancy shown in the table. For example, a substantial
portion of the cumulative deficiencies shown in the table arise from claims on
policies written prior to the mid-1970s involving liability exposures such as
environmental, asbestos, and other cumulative injury claims. In the post-
1984 period, the Company developed more stringent underwriting standards
and policy exclusions and significantly contracted or terminated the writing
of these risks. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations-Environmental Claims, Asbestos Claims
and Litigation, Uncertainty Regarding Adequacy of Environmental and
Asbestos Reserves and Cumulative Injury Other than Asbestos Claims.”
General conditions and trends that have affected the development of these
liabilities in the past will not necessarily recur in the future.

Other factors that affect the data in the table include the discounting of
workers’ compensation reserves and the use of retrospectively rated insurance
policies, To the extent permitted under applicable accounting practices,
workers' compensation reserves are discounted to reflect the time value of
money, due to the relatively long time period over which these claims are
to be paid. Apparent deficiencies will continue to occur as the discount on
these workers’ compensation reserves is accreted at the appropriate interest
rates. Also, a portion of National Accounts business is underwritten with
retrospectively rated insurance policies in which the ultimate loss experience
is primarily borne by the insured. For this business, increases in loss
experience result in an increase in reserves, and an offsetting increase in
amounts recoverable from insureds. Likewise, decreases in loss experience
result in a decrease in reserves, and an offsetting decrease in amouns
recoverable from these insureds. The amounts recoverable on these
retrospectively rated policies mitigate the impact of the cumulative
deficiencies or redundancies but are not reflected in the table.

Because of these and other factors, it is difficult to develop a meaningful
extrapolation of estimated future redundancies or deficiencies in loss
reserves from the data in the table. The differences between the reserves
for claims and claim adjustment expenses shown in the table, which is
prepared in accordance with GAAP, and those reported in the annual
statements of the Company's subsidiaries filed with state insurance
departments, which are prepared in accordance with statutory accounting
practices, were: ($17) million, $9 million and $38 million, for the years 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively.




The table below reflects Associates for all periods due to the acquisition being accounted for as a pooling of interest:

Year ended December 31,

In mitlions of doliars 19910 19920 19930 19941 19950 1996@ 1997@ 1998@ 1999@  2000@ 20012
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment

expense originally estimated $ 9421  $ 9884 $10,205 $10271 $10,124 $21,839  $21,426 $21,152 $20,367 $19,922  $20,191
Cumulative amounts paid as of
One year later 2,144 2,215 1,907 1,861 1,529 3,714 4,033 4,311 4,281 4,606
Two years later 3,583 3,563 3,229 2,897 2,817 6,610 6,890 7,137 9,948
Three years later 4,603 4571 3,996 4,064 3,911 8,851 8,858 9,308
Four years later 5,384 5170 4,950 4,942 4,769 10,365 10,488
Five years later 5,860 5,973 5,662 5,655 5,330 11,659
Six years later 6,556 6,587 6,270 6,122 5,850
Seven years iater 7,098 7,127 6,678 6,591
Eight years later 7,591 7,492 7,107
Nine years later 7,928 7,892
Ten years later 8,301
Reserves reestimated as of
One year later 9,457 10,023 10,162 9,954 9,880 21,359 21,094 20,868 20,163 19,924
Two years later 9,765 10,125 10,127 9,778 9,797 21,174 20,708 20,557 20,062
Three years later 10,060 10,155 10,002 9,864 9,800 20,829 20,428 20,365
Four years later 10,166 10,161 10,166 9,896 9,746 20,677 20,179
Five years later 10,263 10,378 10,193 9,932 9722 20,440
Six years later 10,507 10,413 10,244 9,810 9,672
Seven years later 10,536 10,481 10,266 9,914
Eight years later 10,617 10,528 10,270
Nine years later 10,677 10,542
Ten years later 10,708

Cumulative deficiency (redundancy) $ 1,287 $ 658 § 65 & (357) $§ {452y $(1,399) $ (12470 § (787) § (305 § 2

Gross liabllity—end of year $13,822 $13,894 $14740 $29,992 $29,367 $29,139 $28,776 $28,327 $29,792
Reinsurance recoverables 3,617 3,623 4616 8,153 7,941 7,987 8,409 8,405 9,601
Net liability—end of year $10,205 $10,271  $10,124 $21,839 $21,426 $21,152 $20,367 $19,922  $20,191
Gross reestimated liability— latest $13,936 $13820 $14,136 $28424 $27876 $28354 $28,417 $28,525
Reestimated reinsurance

recoverables —latest 3,666 3,906 4,464 7,984 7,697 7,989 8,355 8,601
Net reestimated liability — latest $10,270 $ 9914 $ 9672 $20440 $20,178 $20,365 $20,082 $19,924

Gross cumulative deficiency )
{redundancy) $ 14 $ (74 $ (604 $(1.568) $(1.491) $ (783 $ (359) $ 198

(1) Reflects reserves of Travelers P&C, excluding Aetna P&C reserves which were acquired on April 2, 1996. Accordingly, the reserve development (net reserves for loss and loss adjustment expense recorded at the end of the
year, as originally estimated, less net reserves reestimated as of subsequent years) relates only to losses recorded by Travelers P&C and does not include reserve development recorded by Aetna P&C.
(2) Includes Aetna P&C gross reserves of $16.775 billion and net reserves of $11.752 billion acquired on April 2, 1986 and subsequent development recorded by Aetna P&C.
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Property and Casualty Reinsurance
TPC reinsures a portion of the risks it underwrites in order to control its
exposure to losses, stabilize earnings, and protect capital resources. TPC
cedes 10 reinsurers a portion of these risks and pays premiums based upon
the risk and exposure of the policies subject to this reinsurance. Reinsurarice
involves credit risk and is generally subject to aggregate loss limits.
Although the reinsurer is liable to TPC to the extent of the reinsurance
ceded, TPC remains liable as the direct insurer on all risks reinsured. TPC
also holds collateral, including escrow funds and letters of credit, under
certain reinsurance agreements. TPC monitors the financial condition of
reinsurers on an ongoing basis, and reviews its reinsurance arrangements
periodically. Reinsurers are selected based on their financial condition,
business practices, and the price of their product offerings. For additional
information concerning reinsurance, see Note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

TPC utilizes a variety of reinsurance agreements to control its exposure to
large property and casualty losses.

Net retention policy. The descriptions below relate to reinsurance
arrangements of TPC in effect after January 1, 2002. For third-party liability,
including automobile no-fault, the reinsurance agreements used by
Commercial Accounts limit the net retention to  maximum of §8.2 million
per insured, per occurrence and those used by Select Accounts limits the net
retention to a maximum of $6.4 million per insured, per occurrence.
National Accounts utilizes reinsurance to limit net retained policy limits on
third-party coverages to $6.0 million. Gulf utilizes various reinsurance
mechanisms and has limited its net retention to a maximum of $5.5 million
per risk for any line of business. For commercial property insurance, there is a
$7.5 million maxinmum retention per risk with 100% reinsurance coverage for
risks with higher limits. The reinsurance agreement in place for workers’
compensation policies written bv Commercial Accounts, National Accounts,
Select Accounts, and some segments of the residual market business within
National Accounts and Gulf cover 75% of each loss between $10 million and
$20 million. Personal Lines retains the first $5 million of umbrella policies
and purchases facultative reinsurance for limits over §5 million. For personal
property insurance, there is a $6 million maximum retention per risk. For
executive liability products such as errors and omissions liability, directors’
and officers’ liability, employment practices liability and blended insurance
products, Bond generally retains from $2 miltion up to §5 million per risk.
For surety protection Bond generally retains up to $29.7 million per principal
which may be increased based on the type of obligation and other credit risk
factors. Retention policies are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Catastrophe reinsurance. TPC utilizes reinsurance agreements with
nonaffiliated reinsurers to control its exposure to losses resulting from one
occurrence. For the accumulation of net property losses arising out of one
oceurrence, reinsurance agreements cover 67% of total losses between $450
million and $750 million. For multiple workers’ compensation losses arising
from a single occurrence, reinsurance agreements cover 100% of losses
between $20 million and $250 million and, for workers’ compensation losses
caused by property perils, reinsurance agreements cover 67% of losses between
$450 million and $750 million. Risk and catastrophe coverages are reviewed
at least quarterly and changes made when deemed appropriate.

Regulation and Supervision

Bank holding company requlation. The Company is 2 bank
holding company within the meaning of the U.S. Bank Holding Company Act
of 1956 (BHC Act) registered with, and subject to examination by, the Federal
Reserve Board (FRB). The subsidiary depository institutions of the Company
(the banking subsidiaries), including its principal bank subsidiary, Citibank,
NA. (Citibank), are subject to supervision and examination by their
respective federal and state banking authorities. The nationally chartered
subsidiary banks, including Citibank, are supervised and examined by the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (0CC); Federal savings association
subsidiaries are regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision (0TS); and state-
chartered depository institutions are supervised by the banking departments
within their respective states (California, New York, Delaware, and Utah), as
well as the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The FDIC also has
back-up enforcement authority with respect to each of the banking
subsidiaries, the deposits of which are insured by the FDIC, up to applicable
limits. The Company also controls (either directly or indirectly) overseas
banks, branches, and agencies. [n general, the Company’s overseas activities
are regulated by the FRB and OCC, and are also regulated by supervisory
authorities of the host countries.

The Company’s banking subsidiaries are also subject to requirements and
restrictions under federal, state, and foreign law, including requirements to
maintain reserves against deposits, restrictions on the types and amounts of
loans that may be made and the interest that may be charged thereon, and
limitations on the types of investiments that may be made and the types of
services that may be offered. Various consumer laws and regulations also
affect the operations of the Company’s banking subsidiaries.

The activities of U.S. bank holding companies are generally limited to the
business of banking, managing or controlling banks, and other activities
that the FRB determines to be so closely related to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. In addition, under the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the GLB Act), which became effective in most
significant respects on March 11, 2000, bank holding companies, such
as the Company, all of whose controlled depository institutions are “well
capitalized” and “well managed,” as defined in Federal Reserve Regulation Y,
and which obtain satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act ratings, have the
ability to declare themselves to be “financial holding companies” and engage
in a broader spectrum of activities, including insurance underwriting and
brokerage (including annuities), and underwriting and dealing securities.
The Company’s declaration to become a financial holding company became
effective on the first eligible date, and as a result, it is permitted to continue to




operate its insurance businesses as currently structured and, if it so
determines, to expand those businesses. Financial holding companies that do
not continue to meet all of the requirements for such status will, depending
on which requirement they fail to meet, face not being able to undertake new
activities or acquisitions that are financial in nature, or losing their ability to
continue those activities that are not generally permissible for bank holding
companies. Under the BHC Act, after two vears from the date as of which the
Company became a bank holding company, the Company was required to
conform any activities that were not considered to be closely related to
banking or financial in nature under the BHC Act. This two-year period may
be extended by the FRB for three additional one-year periods, upon
application by the Company and finding by the FRB that such an extension
would not be detrimental to the public interest. The Company obtained

such an extension with respect to several activities in October 2000 and
October 2001,

Under the GLB Act, inancial holding companies are able to make
acquisitions in companies that engage in activities that are financial in
nature, both in the U.S. and outside of the United States. No prior approval of
the FRB is generally required for such acquisitions except for the acquisition
of U.S. depository institutions and foreign banks. In addition, under merchant
banking authority added by the GLB Act, financial holding companies are
authorized to invest in companies that engage in activities that are not
financial in nature, as long as the financial holding company makes its
investment with the intention of limiting the investment in duration, does not
manage the company on a day-to-day basis, and the investee company does
not cross-market with any of the financial holding company’s controlled
depository institutions. This authority applies to investments both in the U.S.
and outside the United States. Regulations interpreting and conditioning this
authority have been promulgated. Bank holding companies also retain their
authority, subject to prior specific or general FRB consent, to acquire less than
20% of the voting securities of a company that does not do business in the
United States, and 20% or more of the voting securities of any such company
if the FRB finds by regulation or order that its activities are usual in
connection with banking or finance outside the United States. In general,
bank holding companies that are not financial holding companies may
engage in a broader range of activities outside the United States than they
may engage in inside the United States, including sponsoring, distributing,
and advising open-end mutual funds, and underwriting and dealing in debt,
and to a limited extent, equity securities, subject to local country laws.

Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, a U.S. bank holding
company, with the prior approval of the FRB, may acquire an out-of-state
bank. Banks in states that do not prohibit out-of-state mergers may merge
with the approval of the approptiate Federal bank regulatory agency. A
national or state bank may establish a de novo branch out of state if such
branching is expressly permitted by the other state, A Federal savings
association is generally permitted to open a de novo branch in any state.

Outside the U.S., subject to certain requirements for prior FRB consent or
notice, the Company may acquire banks and Citibank may establish branches
subject to local laws and to U.S. laws prohibiting companies from doing
business in certain countries.

The Company’s earnings and activities are affected by legislation, by
actions of its regulators, and by local legislative and administrative bodies
and decisions of courts in the foreign and domestic jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries conduct business. For example, these include
limitations on the ability of certain subsidiaries to pay dividends to their
intermediate holding companies and on the abilities of those holding
companies to pay dividends to the Company (see Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). It is the policy of the FRB that bank holding
companies should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of income
available over the past year and only if prospective earnings retention is
consistent with the organization’s expected future needs and financial
condition. The policy provides that bank holding companies should not
maintain a level of cash dividends that undermines the bank holding
company’s ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking subsidiaries.

Various federal and state statutory provisions limit the amount of
dividends that subsidiary banks and savings associations can pay to their
holding companies without regulatory approval, In addition to these explicit
limitations, the Federal regulatory agencies are authorized to prohibit a
banking subsidiary or bank holding company from engaging in an unsafe or
unsound banking practice. Depending upon the circumstances, the agencies
could take the position that paving a dividend would constitute an unsafe or
unsound banking practice.

Numerous other federal and state laws also affect the Company's earnings
and activities including federal and state consumer protection laws.
Legislation may be enacted or regulation imposed in the U.S. or its political
subdivisions, or in any other jurisdiction in which the Company does
business, to further regulate banking and financial services or to limit finance
charges or other fees or charges earned in such activities. There can be no
assurance whether any such legislation or regulation will place additional
limitations on the Company’s operations or adversely affect its earnings. The
preceding statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

There are various legal restrictions on the extent to which a bank holding
company and certain of its nonbank subsidiaries can borrow or otherwise
obtain credit from banking subsidiaries or engage in certain other
transactions with or involving those banking subsidiaries. In general, these
restrictions require that any such transactions must be on terms that would
ordinarily be offered to unaffiliated entities and secured by designated
amounts of specified collateral. Transactions between a banking subsidiary
and the holding company or any nonbank subsidiary are limited to 10% of
the banking subsidiary’s capital stock and surplus, and as to the holding
company and all such nonbank subsidiaries in the aggregate, to 20% of the
bank’s capital stock and surplus.




The Company’s right to participate in the distribution of assets of any
subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation or reorganization will be subject
to the prior claims of the subsidiary’s creditors. In the event of a liquidation or
other resolution of an insured depository institution, the claims of depositors
and other general or subordinated creditors are entitled to a priority of
payment over the claims of holders of any obligation of the institution to its
stockholders, including any depository institution holding company (such as
the Company) or any stockholder or creditor thereof.

In the liquidation or other resolution of a failed U.S. insured depository
institution, deposits in U.S. offices and certain claims for administrative
expenses and employee compensation are afforded a priority over other
general unsecured claims, including deposits in offices outside the U.S., non-
deposit claims in all offices, and claims of a parent such as the Company.
Such priority creditors would include the FDIC, which succeeds to the position
of insured depositors.

A financial institution insured by the FDIC that is under common control
with a failed or failing FDIC-insured institution can be required to indemnify
the FDIC for losses resulting from the insolvency of the failed institution,
even if this causes the affiliated institution also to become insolvent. Any
obligations or liability owed by a subsidiary depository institution to its parent
company is subordinate to the subsidiary’s cross-guarantee liability with
respect to commonly controlled insured depository institutions and to the
rights of depositors.

Under FRB policy, a bank holding company is expected to act as a source
of financial strength to each of its banking subsidiaries and commit resources
to their support. As a result of that policy, the Company may be required to
commit resources to its subsidiary banks in certain circumstances. However,
under the GLB Act, the FRB is not able to compel a bank holding company to
remove capital from its regulated securities or insurance subsidiaries in order
to commit such resources to its subsidiary banks.

The Company and its U.S. insured depository institution subsidiaries are
subject to risk-based capital and leverage guidelines issued by U.S. regulators
for banks, savings associations, and bank holding companies. The regulatory
agencies are required by Law to take specific prompt actions with respect to
institutions that do not meet minimum capital standards and have defined
five capital tiers, the highest of which is “well-capitalized.” As of December
31,2001, the Company’s bank and thrift subsidiaries, including Citibank,
were “well capitalized.” See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for capital analysis.

Abank is not required to repay a deposit at a branch outside the U.S. if the
branch cannot repay the deposit due to an act of wa, civil strife, or action
taken by the government in the host country, unless the bank has expressly
agreed to do so in writing.

The GLB Act included the most extensive consumer privacy provisions ever
enacted by Congress. These provisions, among other things, require full
disclosure of the Company's privacy policy to consumers and mandate
offering the consumer the ability to “opt out” of having non-public customer
information disclosed to third parties. Pursuant to these provisions, the
Federal banking regulators have adopted privacy regulations. In addition, the
states are permitted to adopt more extensive privacy protections through
legislation or regulation. There can be no assurance whether any such
legislation or regulation will place additional limitations on the Company’s
operations or adversely affect its earnings. The preceding statement is a
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

The earnings of the Company, Citibank, and their subsidiaries and
affiliates are affected by general economic conditions and the conduct of
monetary and fiscal policy by the U.S. government and by governments in
other countries in which they do business.

Legislation is from time to time introduced in Congress that may change
banking statutes and the operating environment of the Company and its
banking subsidiaries in substantial and unpredictable ways. The Company
cannot determine whether any such proposed legislation will be enacted,
and if enacted, the ultimate effect that any such potential legislation or
implementing regulations would have upon the financial condition ot results
of operations of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Insurance —~ State Requlation

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulation in the various
states and jurisdictions in which they transact business. The regulation,
supervision and administration relate, among other things, to the standards
of solvency that must be met and maintained, the licensing of insurers and
their agents, the lines of insurance in which they may engage, the nature of
and limitations on investments, premiun rates, restrictions on the size of
risks that may be insured under a single policy, reserves and provisions for
unearned premiums, losses and other obligations, deposits of securities for the
benefit of policyholders, approval of policy forms and the regulation of
market conduct including the use of credit information in underwriting as
well as other underwriting and claims practices. In addition, many states
have enacted variations of competitive rate-making laws which allow insurers
to set certain premium rates for certain classes of insurance without having to
obtain the prior approval of the state insurance department. State insurance
departments also conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance
companies and require the filing of annual and other reports relating to the
financial condition of companies and other matters.




Although the Company is not regulated as an insurance company, it is the
owner, through various holding company subsidiaries, of the capital stock of
its insurance subsidiaries and as such is subject to state insurance holding
company statutes, as well as certain other laws, of each of the states of
domicile of its insurance subsidiaries. All holding company statutes, as well as
certain other laws, require disclosure and, in some instances, prior approval
of material transactions between an insurance company and an affiliate.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state statutory
and regulatory restrictions in each company’s state of domicile, which limit
the amount of dividends or distributions by an insurance company to its
stockholders. See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are also
required to participate in various involuntary assigned risk pools, principally
involving workers' compensation and automobile insurance, which provide
various insurance coverages to individuals or other entities that otherwise are
unable to purchase such coverage in the voluntary market. Participation in
these pools in most states is generally in proportion to voluntary writings of
related lines of business in that state.

Many state insurance regulatory laws intended primarily for the protection
of policyholders contain provisions that require advance approval by state
agencies of any change in control of an insurance company that is domiciled
(or, in some cases, having such substantial business that it is deemed to be
commercially domiciled) in that state. “Control” is generally presumed to
exist through the ownership of 10% or more of the voting securities of a
domestic insurance company or of any company that controls a domestic
insurance company. In addition, many state insurance regulatory laws
contain provisions that require prenotification to state agencies of a change
in control of a nondomestic admitted insurance company in that state. Such
requirements may deter, delay or prevent certain transactions affecting the
control of or the ownership of the Company’s common stock, including
transactions that could be advantageous to the stockholders of the Company.

Securities Requlation

Certain U.S. and non-U.S. subsidiaries are subject to various securities and
commodities regulations and capital adequacy requirements promulgated
by the regulatory and exchange authorities of the jurisdictions in which
they operate.

The Company’s registered broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s (the SEC) net capital rule, Rule
15¢3-1 (the Net Capital Rule), promulgated under the Exchange Act. The Net
Capital Rule requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined.
The Net Capital Rule also limits the ability of broker-dealers to transfer large
amounts of capital to parent companies and other affiliates. Compliance with
the Net Capital Rule could limit those operations of the Company that require
the intensive use of capital, such as underwriting and trading activities and
the financing of customer account balances, and also could restrict Salomon
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Smith Barney Holdings Inc.'s ability to withdraw capital from its broker-
dealer subsidiaries, which in turn could limit Salomon Smith Barney
Holdings Inc.’s ability to pay dividends and make payments on its debt. See
Notes 12 and 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain of the
Company’s broker-dealer subsidiaries are also subject to regulation in the
countries outside of the U.S. in which they do business. Such regulations
include requirements to maintain specified levels of net capital or

its equivalent.

The Company is the indirect parent of investment advisers registered and
regulated under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 who provide investment
advice to investment companies subject to regulation under the Investment
Company Act of 1940. Under these Acts, advisory contracts between the
Company’s investment adviser subsidiaries and these investment companies
(Affiliated Funds) would automatically terminate upon an assignment of
such contracts by the investment adviser. Such an assignment would be
presumed to have occurred if any party were to acquire more than 25% of the
Company's voting securities. In that event, consent to the assignment from
the stockhiolders of the Affiliated Funds involved would be needed for the
advisory relationship to continue. In addition, subsidiaries of the Company
and the Affiliated Funds are subject to certain restrictions in their dealings
with each other.

Competition

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to intense competition in
all aspects of their businesses from both bank and non-bank institutions
that provide financial services and, in some of their activities, from
government agencies.

General Business Factors

In the judgment of the Company, no material part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries is dependent upon a single customer or group
of customers, the loss of any one of which would have a materially adverse
effect on the Company, and no one customer or group of affiliated customers
accounts for as much as 10% of the Company’s consolidated revenues.

Properties

The Company’s executive offices are located at 399 Park Avenue, New York,
New York. 399 Park Avenue is a 39-story building which is owned by Citibank
and is occupied by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, including
the principal offices of Citicorp and Citibank. The Company and certain

of its subsidiaries accupy office space in Citigroup Center (153 E. 53rd St,,
New York, NY) under a fong-term lease. Citibank owns a building in Long
Island City, New York and leases a building located at 111 Wall Street in

New York City, which are totally occupied by the Company and certain of

its subsidiaries.




The Company’s property-casualty insurance subsidiaries lease 168 field
offices throughout the United States. The principal offices of TIC, TLAC, and
TPC are located in Hartford, Connecticut. The majority of such occupied
space in Hartford is owned by TIC. TPC also rents space from Aetna Services,
Inc. at CityPlace, located in Hartford, Connecticut.

The Company's life insurance subsidiaries lease office space at
approximately 15 locations throughout the United States, TIC and/or
The Travelers Insurance Group Inc. lease two other buildings in Hartford,
Connecticut, most of which is subleased to third parties. TIC also owns
a building in Norcross, Georgia that is occupied by its information
systems department,

Salomon Smith Barney leases two buildings located at 388 and 390
Greenwich Street in New York City. These leases, which expire in 2008,
include a purchase option with respect to the related properties. The principal
offices of Salomon Smith Barney are located at 388 Greenwich Street,

New York, New York.

Associates maintains its principal offices in Irving, Texas, in facilities
which are, in part, owned and, in part, leased by it. Associates has office and
branch sites for its business units throughout the United States, Canada, Asia
(Japan, Taiwan, Philippines and Hong Kong), Europe and Latin America. The
majority of these sites are leased and, although numerous, none is material to
Associates’ operations. :

Other offices and certain warehouse space are owned, none of which is
material to the Company's financial condition or operations.

The Company believes its properties are adequate and suitable for its
business as presently conducted and are adequately maintained. For
further information concerning leases, see Note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, Citigroup and its subsidiaries are
defendants or co-defendants in various litigation matters incidental to and
typical of the businesses in which they are engaged. These include civil
actions, arbitration proceedings and other matters in which the Company's
broker-dealer subsidiaries have been named, arising in the normal course of
business out of activities as a broker and dealer in securities, as an
underwriter of securities, 4s an investment banker or otherwise. These also
include numerous matters in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are
named, arising in the normal course of their business. In the opinion of the
Company’s management, the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings
would not be likely to have a material adverse effect on the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries’ operations, financial condition, or liquidity.
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Executive Officers \
The following information with respect to each executive officer of \
Citigroup is set forth below as of March 8, 2002: name, age and the

position held with Citigroup.

Name

Sir Winfried EW. Bischoff
Michael A Carpenter

Age  Position and office held

60
54

Chairman, Citigroup Europe

Chairman & CEOQ, Corporate

and Investment Bank and

Salomon Smith Barney

Chairman & CEO, Global Investment
Management & Private Banking Group;
Chairman & CEO, Citigroup

Asset Management

Vice Chairman; Chairman, Internet
Operating Group; Head, Citigroup Mergers
& Acquisitions; Chairman, Cross-Marketing
Group; Chairman, Citigroup Japan
Chairman & CEQ, Citibank, N A.; Head of
Emerging Markets

Chief Operating Officer;

Corporate Secretary; Chief Operating
Officer, Emerging Markets

Senior Vice Chairman,
Citigroup/Citicorp/Citibank, N.A.
Director, Member, Office of

the Chairman

Executive Vice President; Chief Financial
Officer; Head of Global Investments
Chairman & CEO

President; Chairman & CEO,

Global Consumer

Thomas W. Jones 52

SirDeryck C. Maughan 54

Victor J. Menezes

Charles O. Prince 52

William R. Rhodes 66

Robert E. Rubin 63
Todd S. Thomson 41

08
56

Sanford I. Weill
Robert B. Willumstad

Except as described below, each executive officer has been employed in
such position or in other executive or management positions within the
Company for at least five years.

Sir Winfried Bischoff joined Citigroup in April 2000 upon the merger of
J. Henry Schroder & Co. Ltd. with Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. and,
from 1995 until that time, he was Chairman and Group Chief Executive of
J. Henry Schroder & Co. Ltd. Mr. Jones joined Gitigroup in August 1997 and,
prior to that time, he was Vice Chairman, President, Chief Operating Officer,
and a director of the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association — College
Retirement Equities Fund. Mr. Rubin joined Citigroup in October 1999 and,
prior to that time, served as Secretary of the Treasury of the United States from
1995 to 1999. Mr. Thomson joined Citigroup in July 1998 and, prior to
that time, was Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning and Business
Development for GE Capital Services. Previously, Mr. Thomson held
management positions at Barents Group LLC and Bain and Company,




10-K CROSS-REFERENCE INDEX

This Annual Report and Form 10-K incorporate into a single document the
requiremnents of the accounting profession and the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including a comprehensive explanation of 2001 results,
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** See the material under the captions “Executive Compensation” and “How We Have Oane” in the Proxy
Statement, incorporated herein by reference.

“** See the material under the captions "About the Annual Meeting" and “Stock Ownership” in the Praxy
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EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following exhibits are either filed herewith or have been previously filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are filed herewith by

incorporation by reference:

» (itigroup's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended,

o Citigroup’s By-Laws,

* Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures,

¢ Material Contracts, including certain compensatory plans available only
to officers and/or directors,

* Statements re: Computation of Ratios,

e Subsidiaries of the Registrant,

* Consents of Experts and Counsel,

e Powers of Attorney of Directors Armstrong, Belda, Bialkin, Derr, Deutch,
Harp Held, Herndndez Ramirez, Jordan, Lipp, Mark, Masin, Mecum,
Parsons, Pearson, Rubin, Thomas, and Zankel.

Amore detailed exhibit index has been filed with the SEC. Stockholders
may obtain copies of that index, or any of the documents on that index, by
writing to Citigroup, Corporate Governance, 425 Park Avenue, 2nd Floor,
New York, New York 10043, ot on the Internet at http://Awww.sec.gov.

Financial Statements filed for Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Consolidated Statement of Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

On December 10, 2001, in connection with the August 2000 acquisition of
the outstanding capital stock of AST StockPlan, Inc., the Company issued
88,013 shares of its common stock. No underwriters were used and the
recipients of the Company’s common stock were former stockholders or
option holders of the acquired company. The shares of common stock issued
on December 10, 2001 were issued in reliance upon an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 provided by Rule 506
of Regulation D thereof. The former stockholders and option holders of the
acquired company made certain representations to the Company as to
investment intent and that they possessed a sufficient level of financial
sophistication. The shares issued on December 10, 2001 were subject to
restrictions on transfer absent registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
and no offers to sell the securities were made by any form of general
solicitation or general advertisement. Subsequently, the Company registered
the 88,013 shares for resale on a registration statement on Form S-3 declared
effective by the SEC on January 7, 2002.

On October 18, 2001, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated October 17, 2001, reporting under Item 5 thereof the results of its
operations for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, and certain other
selected financial data.

On October 29, 2001, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-,
dated October 26, 2001, (a) noting under Item 5 thereof that the Company
had previously changed its operating segments presentation to include the
various Associates businesses within the other existing operating segments of
Citigroup, and (b) filing as an exhibit under [tem 7 thereof the restated
Historical Annual Supplement of Citigroup.

On December 19, 2001, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated December 19, 2001, reporting under Item 5 thereof the intention of
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property Casualty Corp. (“TPC”),
to sell a portion of its equity in an initial public offering and the Company's
intention to make a tax-free distribution of a portion of its interest in TPC to
the Company’s stockholders.

No other reports on Form 8-K were filed during the 2001 fourth quarter,
however, on January 18, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form
8-K, dated January 17, 2002, reporting under Item 5 thereof the results of its
operations for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2001, and certain
other selected financial data.

On February 22, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated February 13, 2002, filing as exhibits under Item 7 thereof the Terms
Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, and the Form of Note relating to the
offer and sale of the Company’s 6.00% Notes due February 21, 2012,

On March 7, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-X,
dated February 27, 2002, filing as exhibits under Item 7 thereof the Terms
Agreement, dated February 27, 2002, and the Form of Note relating to the
offer and sale of the Company’s 5.00% Notes due March 6, 2007.

‘Securities and Exchange Commission

Washington, DC 20549
Form 10-K

Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001
Commission File Number 1-9924

Citigroup Inc.

Incorporated in the State of Delaware

IRS Employer Identification Number; 52-1568099
Address: 399 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10043

Telephone: (212) 559-1000

Stockholder Information
Citigroup common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the
Pacific Exchange under the ticker symbol “C.”

Citigroup Preferred Stock Series E G, H, M, Q, and R are also listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on April 16, 2002, at Carnegie
Hall, 154 West 57th Street, New York, NY.

Transfer Agent
Stockholder address changes and inquiries regarding stock transfers, dividend
replacement, 1099-DIV reporting, and lost securities for common and
preferred stocks should be directed to:

Citibank Stockholder Services

P. 0. Box 2502

Jersey City, NJ 07303-2502

Telephone No. (201) 536-8057

Toll-free No. (838) 250-3985

Facsimile No. (201) 324-3284

E-mail address: Citibank@em.fenbd.com




Exchange Agent
Holders of Associates First Capital Corporation, Citicorp or Salomon Inc.
common stock, Citigroup Inc. Preferred Stock Series ], K, S, T, or U, Salomon
Inc. Preferred Stock Series E or D, or Travelers Group Preferred Stock Series A
or D should arrange to exchange their certificates by contacting:

Citibank Stockholder Services

P. 0. Box 2502

Jersey City, Nj 07303-2502

Telephone No. (201) 536-8057

Toll-free No. (888} 250-3985

Facsimile No. (201) 324-3284

E-mail address: Citibank@em.fenbd.com

The 2001 Forms 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
for the Company and certain subsidiaries, as well as Annual and Quarterly
reports, are available from Citigroup Document Services tol] free at (877)
936-2737 (outside the United States at (718) 765-6514) or by writing to:

Citigroup Document Services

140 58th Street, Suite 5i

Brooklyn, NY 11220

Copies of this annual report and other Citigroup financial reports can be
viewed or retrieved on the Internet at http://www.citigroup.com or
http://wwwsec.gov.

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b)
and (g) of the Act

Alist of Citigroup securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) and (g) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is available from Citigroup Corporate
Governance, 425 Park Avenue, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10043 or on the
Internet at http://www.sec.gov.

As of February 4, 2002, Citigroup had 5,127,926,371 shares of common
stock outstanding,

As of February 4, 2002, Citigroup had approximately 221,400 common
stockholders of record. This figure does not represent the actual number of
beneficial owners of common stock because shares are frequently held in
“street name” by securities dealers and others for the benefit of individual
owners who may vote the shares.

Citigroup (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days.

Disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Ttern 405 of Regulation $-K is
not contained herein nor in Citigroup's 2002 Proxy Statement incorporated by
reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K.

The aggregate market value of Citigroup common stock held by non-
affiliates of Citigroup on February 4, 2002 was approximately $227 billion.
Certain information has been incorporated by reference as described
herein into Part ITI of this annual report from Citigroup’s 2002 Proxy

Staterment.

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 8th day of
March, 2002.

Citigroup Inc.
(Registrant)

o

Todd S. Thomson
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 8th day of March, 2002.

Citigroup’s Principal Executive Officer:
Sanford I. Weill

Citigroup's Principal Financial Officer:

=

Todd S. Thomson

Citigroup’s Principal Accounting Officers:

,Q/WW%_P,Z/

Irwin R. Ettinger William P. Hannon

The Directors of Citigroup listed below executed a power of attorney
appointing Todd S. Thomson their attorney-in-fact, empowering him to sign
this report on their behalf.

C. Michael Armstrong Reuben Mark

Alain J.P Belda Michael T. Masin
Kenneth . Bialkin Dudley C. Mecum
Kenneth T. Derr Richard D. Parsons
John M. Deutch Andrall E. Pearson
Alfredo Harp Held Robert E. Rubin
Roberto Herndndez Ramirez Franklin A. Thomas
Ann Dibble Jordan Arthur Zankel

Robert I Lipp
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C. Michael Armstrong
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

AT&T Corp.

Alain J.P. Belda
Chairman of the Board
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CONSUMER GROUP

2001 INITIATIVES

Internet expansion Citihanking North America
(CBNA) demonstrated the power of its award-
winning online banking with 25 percent of
CBNA clients regularly using Internet banking
versus the industry average of 15 percent.

Brand leverage Further leveraged the “Citi”
brand through the highly successful Live Richly
campaign. For example, Citipro® sales during a
four-month ad period were up 73 percent.

Accelerated growth CitiFinancial demonstrated
one of the highest growth rates of any Citigroup
business in 2001.

Acquisitions expertise Continued integration
of acquired companies, while positioning
ourselves to further take advantage of
ongoing industry consolidation.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Increase productivity Keep leveraging our
competitive advantages through branding
and increasing productivity at all levels in
retail banking.

Export business model Using our exportable
business model, further develop the consumer
finance franchise internationally. Continue dili-
gent risk management in a changing global
economy.

Increase momentum Maintain and expand
current cards momentum through branding,
efficiency, superior risk management and ability
to take advantage of industry consolidation
opportunities.

Broaden and deepen relationships Uphold
highest standards of service and conduct while
delivering a variety of meaningful and effective
products to our clients. Deepen and broaden
relationships with current and future
customers.

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANK

2001 INITIATIVES

Market leadership Continued to grow market
share across all businesses globally. Became lead-
ing underwriter globally in volume by raising
$487 billion for clients, a 37 percent increase
over 2000. Became number one globally in
investment banking revenue.

Aggressive cost cutting Initiated aggressive
expense reductions early in 2001, reducing
quarterly expenses overall by 19 percent from
a peak in the first quarter, resulting in superior
profit performance and reinforcement of our
position as the low-cost competitor.

Individual client service The Private Client
Group and its 12,000 Financial Consultants
helped its high-net-worth customers through
a difficult market, adding $40 billion in net
assets during the year, improving our Internet
services and broadening the product and serv-
ices available to clients.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Clients first Continue effective implementation
of proven Power of One business model.
Broaden and deepen relationships with our
target client base, particularly in becoming
their principal trusted strategic advisor. Further
develop customized financial solutions for
high-net-worth clients.

Increase reach Strengthen our positions
in markets and industries where we are
under-represented.

Resource management Remain focused on
expense reduction and operational efficiency
in anticipation of continuing difficult markets.

Re-engineer CitiCapital Continue integration

of recently acquired commercial finance busi-
nesses. Upgrade operational infrastructure and
improve financial performance.

EMERGING MARKETS

2001 INITIATIVES

Building momentum Gained strong momentum
through the combination of internal growth
and selected acquisitions in priority countries.

Acquisitions/joint ventures Completed the inte-
gration of Citibank Mexico and Banamex.

Bought remaining interest of Credito Familiar
and Nikko Trust in Japan, a custody business.

Cost management Initiated actions focusing on
integrating operations and technology in each
country, and the sireamlining of infrastructure
with the goal of operating processes in locations
with lower cost structures.

Solutions Our Internet platform for corporate
clients (CitiDirect® Online Banking) is now
in 85 countries and 12 languages. Rolled out
CitiDirect® for Securities, the online platform
for our securities customers.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Market share Maintain our status as the number-
one financial institution in the emerging markets
through market share increases as a result of
organic growth and acquisitions.

Internet Exploit global market presence to
deliver products via the Internet for corporate
and consumer customers. Provide innovative
electronic solutions for our corporate customers.

at a glance

Products Develop global products with the fur-
ther expansion of consumer finance, insurarce
and asset management services.

Leadership Continue to define ourselves as
the leading financial institution as we further
improve the level of both customer and
employee satisfaction.

GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
& PRIVATE BANKING GROUP

2001 INITIATIVES

Number one Citigroup Asset Management
became number one in U.S. retail high-net-
worth managed accounts with $63 billion of
assets under management and $14 billion

in net flows.

Record gains in cross-marketing Citigroup Asset
Management and The Citigroup Private Bank
collaborated efficiently, enabling the Private
Bank to capture an all-time high of $4.3 billion
in net new discretionary sales.

The rankings Travelers Life & Annuity ranks
number three in U.S. life and annuity earnings,
number seven in individual annuity sales,
number three in group annuity and number
18 in individual life sales. Citigroup Asset
Management ranks number one in the Dalbar
survey of financial professionals regarding the
quality of mutual fund firms.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Alternative Investments Become the leader in
alternative investments by expanding offerings
and targeting a broader distribution in the insti-
tutional and high-net-worth markets.

Citigroup Asset Management Expand institu-
tional pension investment advisory assets,
maintain top position in U.S. high-net-worth
managed accounts and expand third-party
distribution.

Private Bank growth Expand the Citigroup
Private Bank’s wealth management market
share by emphasizing our sophisticated asset
allocation strategy and investment portfolio,
including alternative investments.

Travelers Life & Annuity Expand third-party
distribution to grow our share of individual
annuity and life sales.
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TUESDAY O T

8:48 a.m.  Terrorists crash plane into 1 World Trade Center.

9:10 a.m.  Evacuation of 16,000 employees in lower Manhattan begins; customer coverage provided out of London,
Chicago and San Francisco.

10:30 a.m.  Citigroup Disaster Recovery teams make their way to New Jersey and other Disaster Recovery sites.

12:00 p.m. First all-hands Disaster Recovery conference call held with executives and Disaster Recovery coordinators
for each business.

12:15 p.m.  Begin process of getting operations running in remote locations.

2:00 p.m.  Begin providing additional short-term liquidity to our corporate clients who could not access the
securities markets or banks.

5:20 p.m. 7 World Trade Center collapses.

7:00 p.m.  Create special telephone hotlines with Disaster Recovery information for displaced employees, which will
receive more than 15,500 calls in the first week.

WEDNESDAY QT2

8:00a.m.  Contingency locations are fully staffed and operational.
10:30 a.m.  Travelers catastrophe vans arrive near Ground Zero and process claims for individuals and business owners.

11:30 a.m.  Create special Disaster Recovery information Web site on Citigroup.com for clients, shareholders and
employees. :

12:30 p.m.  First Citibank Financial Center opens to provide food and shelter to emergency workers; several other
Financial Centers will follow later in the week.

THURSDAY O %

9:00 a.m.  Citigroup bond trading desks fully operational and ready when Bond Markets resume trading.

10:00 a.m.  Citigroup conducts its first grief counseling session, which subsequently will be used by more than 6,000
employees at 60 lacations in 12 states.

2:30 p.m.  Citibank establishes Citi for the City, a fund to meet the immediate needs of relief workers and families
affected by the tragedy.

FRIDAY @14

1:20 p.m.  Citigroup announces that, with a $15 million donation, it has established the Citigroup Relief Fund to provide
college scholarships to children of 9/11 victims. [t is the largest corporate-sponsored fund of its kind.

SATURDAY/SUNDAY 91_%’ =1i'_;§_6

10:00 a.m.  After review by New York City and independent engineers, 388 and 390 Greenwich Street are declared
(Sat.) habitable and made ready for employees to return to their desks.

7:00 p.m.  Citigroup’s Robert Rubin appears on “60 Minutes” to provide his perspective on the attack and the state
(Sun.) of the economy.

MONDAY G.T 7

8:00 a.m.  Citigroup issues press statement estimating the September 11 impact on our earnings.
9:30a.m.  Opening bell rings on New York Stock Exchange. Citigroup begins what will be single-day record volume trading.
6:00 p.m.  Almost one week after the attack on the World Trade Center, six Citigroup employees remain missing.
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